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To the Shareholders of Acciona, S.A.

REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Acciona, S.A. (the “Parent”) and
subsidiaries (together the “Group”), which comprise the balance sheet at 31 December 2017, the
income statement, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in total
equity, the statement of cash flows, and the notes, all of them consolidated, for the year then
ended.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view, in all
material respects, of the equity and financial position of the Group at 31 December 2017 and of its
financial performance and cash flows, all of them consolidated, for the year then ended, in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union
(IFRS-EU) and other provisions of the financial reporting framework applicable in Spain.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with prevailing legislation regulating the audit of accounts in
Spain. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements, including those
regarding independence, that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in
Spain pursuant to the legislation regulating the audit of accounts. We have not provided any non-
audit services, nor have any situations or circumstances arisen which, under the aforementioned
regulations, have affected the required independence such that this has been compromised.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Recognition of revenue from construction contracts

See notes 4.2.(0) and 25 to the consolidated financial statements

Key Audit Matter

How the Matter was Addressed in Our Audit

A large part of the Group's revenue is from
construction service contracts, whereby revenue is
recognised in accordance with the percentage of
completion method, which requires estimating the
margin on each contract, the costs still to be incurred
and the probability that revenue arising from any
amounts claimed or disputed vis-a-vis clients will be
received.

The recognition of revenue and results on these
contracts therefore requires a high level of
judgement by management and the Directors, and
rigorous control over the estimates made and any
deviations that may arise over the life of the
contracts. The estimates take into account all costs
and revenue related to the contracts, including any
unforeseen cost overruns, risks or claims currently in
dispute and any revenue currently being negotiated
with or claimed from clients. Revenue is recognised
only when the probability of collection from the client
is high and the recoverable amount can be reliably
determined.

Due to the uncertainty associated with these
estimates and as any changes therein could give rise
to material differences in the revenue recognised,
this has been considered a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included, among others, the
following:

e \We evaluated the design, implementation and
effectiveness of key controls in relation to the
process for revenue recognition using the
percentage of completion method and the
process for budget control, evaluating the
methodology used to draw up the contract
budgets and monitor the assumptions used
therein.

e Based on certain quantitative and qualitative
selection criteria, we obtained a sample of
construction contracts and evaluated the most
significant and complex estimates therein used
by the Group for purposes of revenue
recognition. We obtained documentation
supporting these estimates and evidencing the
judgements made by the Group.

e We compared the results on completed
contracts with the budgeted results, including
the historical performance and the Group's
control over the budget, to evaluate the
reasonableness of the estimates made
regarding the contracts.

e For a selection of contracts, we analysed key
clauses and identified significant contractual
mechanisms, such as penalties and bonuses, in
order to evaluate whether these clauses are
adequately reflected in the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements.

e We evaluated the Group's judgement regarding
the recognition of revenue at the reporting date
in respect of completed work pending
certification for which client approval is currently
being obtained, and the general reasonableness
thereof. On the basis of our own expectations,
in turn based on our knowledge of the Group
and our experience in the sector and the
countries where the Group operates, we
updated the status of negotiations with clients
per the main case files and verified the
reasonableness and consistency of the




Recognition of revenue from construction contracts
See notes 4.2.(0) and 25 to the consolidated financial statements

Key Audit Matter

How the Matter was Addressed in Our Audit

documentation supporting the probability of
recovery.

e We visited the main work sites, physically
inspecting the projects for stage of completion
and identifying areas of potential risk through
observation and by analysing documentation and
holding discussions with site personnel.

e We evaluated whether the provisions
recognised at the reporting date for each
contract reasonably reflect the main obligations
and the level of risk of the contracts, assessing
the Group's judgement when drawing up these
estimates.

o \We assessed whether the disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements meet the
requirements of the financial reporting
framework applicable to the Group.

Recoverability of the property, plant and equipment of the Energy division

See notes 4.2 (E) and 5 to the consolidated financial statements

Key Audit Matter

How the Matter was Addressed in Our Audit

The Group recognised impairment of Euros 641
million on the property, plant and equipment of the
Energy division in prior years.

In accordance with the applicable financial reporting
framework, at the end of each reporting period the
Group assesses whether there has been any
indicator of possible impairment or any evidence of
changes in the events or circumstances that gave
rise to previously recognised impairment and, where
applicable, regulatory or other changes that could
modify future cash flow expectations. Determining
and measuring the indicators requires management
and the Directors to make significant judgements
and estimates, which increases the risk.
Consequently, this area has been considered a key
audit matter.

Our audit procedures included, among others, the
following:

e \We obtained an understanding of the evaluation
process used by the Group to identify indications
of impairment in the valuation of property, plant
and equipment or indications that previously
recognised impairment should be reassessed, and
we evaluated the design and implementation of
that process.

e \We reviewed management's analysis of possible
impairment indicators and the conclusions drawn.

e We also assessed whether the disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements meet the
requirements of the applicable financial reporting
framework.




Valuation of the investment in Nordex SE
See notes 3.2 (f) and 9 to the consolidated financial statements

Key Audit Matter

How the Matter was Addressed in Our Audit

The Group has an investment in Nordex SE, an
equity-accounted company listed on the Frankfurt
Stock Exchange. Subsequent to the acquisition, the
market value of Nordex SE fell to below the carrying
amount of the investment on the balance sheet.

To determine whether there are any impairment
losses, the Group has calculated the recoverable
amount of this investment based on its estimated
value in use, in turn calculated using the present
value of the investment's estimated future cash
flows.

There is a high level of judgement and complexity
involved in determining whether there are indicators
of impairment and estimating the value in use of the
Group's investment in Nordex SE. Value in use is
based, among other things, on financial projections
that consider the assumptions made regarding
macroeconomic trends, the internal circumstances
of the investee and its competitors, discount rates
and the future performance of the business.

Furthermore, changes in the Group's key
assumptions for the valuation of Nordex SE could
imply significant modifications to its value in use and,
therefore, to its carrying amount at the reporting
date. Due to the foregoing, there is a significant risk
inherent in the valuation of the aforementioned
investment, therefore making it a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included, among others, the
following:

e \We documented our understanding of the
Group's processes for identifying indications of
impairment and estimating value in use, which
included testing the design and implementation of
the key controls established by the Group in
connection with these processes.

e \We evaluated the reasonableness of the
methodology and assumptions used by the Group
in estimating the recoverable amount of the
investment in Nordex SE, with the collaboration of
our specialists in business valuations. We
reviewed the extent of achievement of the
estimates in past business plans and contrasted
the information contained in the valuation model
with Nordex SE's business plans used by the
Group and with estimates and forecasts for the
industry of which Nordex SE forms part, obtained
from external sources. In addition, we evaluated
the growth rates and discount rates used in the
calculation of the recoverable amount, and
sensitivity of the latter to changes in key
assumptions to determine its impact on the
valuation.

e |astly, we assessed whether the disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements meet the
requirements of the applicable financial reporting
framework.




Litigation and contingencies
See notes 4.2 (m) and 17 to the consolidated financial statements

Key Audit Matter

How the Matter was Addressed in Our Audit

In the course of its activity, the Group is exposed to
claims and disputes and may find itself becoming a
party to administrative or judicial proceedings and
arbitration.

The process for controlling, monitoring and
evaluating claims and disputes involving the Group
is complex. Management and the Directors must
exercise judgement to predict the outcome thereof
and estimate the probability of a ruling against the
Group, its possible economic consequences and,
where appropriate, the amount of any provisions
needed to cover the related obligations and other
accounting impacts and/or disclosures to be
included in the consolidated financial statements.

As mentioned in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements, the subsidiary ATLL Sociedad
Concesionaria de la Generalitat de Catalunya, S.A. is
involved in legal proceedings appealing the decision
of the body that granted it the concession.
However, at the date of this report, these
proceedings have not prevented the
aforementioned subsidiary from continuing to
operate the service concession. On 21 February
2018, the Spanish Supreme Court dismissed two of
the appeals against the decision adopted by the
Catalonian High Court on 22 June 2015, thereby
confirming the cancellation of the award of the
concession. Should the outcome of the appeals that
are pending a decision by the Supreme Court be the
same as the aforementioned decision, the contract
would be cancelled and go into liquidation, and the
government would be bound to pay compensation
in accordance with the Public Sector Contracts Law.
Nevertheless, in accordance with the tender
specifications, ATLL Sociedad Concesionaria de la
Generalitat de Catalunya is obliged to continue to
provide the service until the certificate evidencing
the return of the related assets and rights has been
signed and the compensation provided for in the
tender specifications for early termination of the
concession has been received. Based on the
opinion of their legal counsel and their best
estimate at this date, the Group's Directors
consider that the outcome of the aforementioned
litigation will not undermine the Group's equity or
require an outflow of funds. Consequently no
impact has been recognised in this regard at 31
December 2017.

Due to the judgement involved in predicting the
outcome of these matters and the uncertainty

Our audit procedures included, among others, the
following:

o \We obtained details of claims and litigation
involving the Group from the information provided
by the Group's legal counsel.

e \We evaluated the design and implementation of
the relevant controls established by the Group in
relation to the integrity of claims and litigation and
to estimate the possible consequences thereof for
the Group and, where appropriate, the necessary
provisions and their corresponding recognition.

e \We obtained responses from the Group's lawyers
containing their representations regarding the
status, probability and possible consequences for
the Group of the most significant claims and
disputes in quantitative and qualitative terms.

e In the case of the more significant claims and
litigation, together with our legal specialists we
evaluated the reasonableness of the assumptions
and estimates made by management and the
Directors and, where appropriate, the Group's
lawyers.

¢ \We also assessed whether the disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements meet the
requirements of the applicable financial reporting
framework.




Litigation and contingencies
See notes 4.2 (m) and 17 to the consolidated financial statements

Key Audit Matter How the Matter was Addressed in Our Audit

inherent in the estimates related to claims and
disputes, particularly those subject to a court ruling
or arbitration, and because changes therein or the
outcome of such rulings could give rise to
significant differences with respect to the amounts
recognised by the Group at the reporting date, we
have considered litigation and contingencies to be a
key audit matter.

Other Information: Consolidated Directors' Report

Other information solely comprises the 2017 consolidated directors' report, the preparation of which
is the responsibility of the Parent's Directors and which does not form an integral part of the
consolidated financial statements.

Our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not encompass the consolidated
directors' report. Our responsibility regarding the content of the consolidated directors' report is
defined in the legislation regulating the audit of accounts, which establishes two different levels:

a) A specific level applicable to the consolidated statement of non-financial information and to
certain information included in the Annual Corporate Governance Report, as defined in article
35.2. b) of Audit Law 22/2015, which consists solely of verifying that this information has been
provided in the consolidated directors' report, or where applicable, that the directors' report
makes reference to the separate report on non-financial information, as provided for in
legislation, and if not, to report on this matter.

b) A general level applicable to the rest of the information included in the consolidated directors’
report, which consists of assessing and reporting on the consistency of this information with
the consolidated financial statements, based on knowledge of the Group obtained during the
audit of the aforementioned accounts and without including any information other than that
obtained as evidence during the audit. Also, assessing and reporting on whether the content
and presentation of this part of the consolidated directors' report are in accordance with
applicable legislation. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there are
material misstatements, we are required to report them.

Based on the work carried out, as described above, we have verified that the information mentioned
in a) above has been provided in the consolidated directors' report and that the rest of the
information contained in the consolidated directors' report is consistent with that disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements for 2017 and the content and presentation of the report are in
accordance with applicable legislation.
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Directors' and Audit Committee's Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial statements

The Parent's Directors are responsible for the preparation of the accompanying consolidated
financial statements in such a way that they give a true and fair view of the consolidated equity,
consolidated financial position and consolidated financial performance of the Group in accordance
with IFRS-EU and other provisions of the financial reporting framework applicable to the Group in
Spain, and for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Parent's Directors are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Parent's audit committee is responsible for overseeing the preparation and presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with prevailing legislation regulating the audit of accounts in Spain will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with prevailing legislation regulating the audit of accounts in Spain,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

— Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

— Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Parent's Directors.
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— Conclude on the appropriateness of the Parent's Directors' use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

— Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves a true and fair view.

— Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee of the Parent regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Parent's audit committee with a statement that we have complied with the
applicable ethical requirements, including those regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated to the audit committee of the Parent, we determine those that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and which are therefore the key audit matters.

We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

Additional Report to the Audit Committee of the Parent

The opinion expressed in this report is consistent with our additional report to the Parent's audit
committee dated 26 February 2018.
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Contract Period

We were appointed as auditor of the Group by the shareholders at the ordinary general meeting on
18 May 2017 for a period of three years, from the year ended 31 December 2017.

KPMG Auditores, S.L.
On the Spanish Official Register of
Auditors (“ROAC") with No. S0702

(Signed on the original in Spanish)

Borja Guinea Lopez
On the Spanish Official Register of Auditors (“ROAC") with number 16210

26 February 2018
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[The text below is a certified translation into English of the consolidated annual financial
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ACCIONA, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET FOR FINANCIAL YEARS 2017 and 2016 (Thousand curos)

f ASSEYS Note 31122817 31.12.2816
Property. plar? zrd egnipment 5 6640329 7.965.873
Investmenst property 6 176,757 STL594
Goodwill 7 183,650 79,284
Other intangihie assets 2 1,576 622 1,496,958
Other pon-current financial assets 11 131,923 179,080
Investments accounted for asing the equity method 9 1391331 1,160,821
Deferred X assets 22 805369 997,393
Mon-cursent receivables and other nor-cument assets 12 277250 283,401
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 11,184,631 12,684,404
Iaventorics i3 820,965 782,725
Trade and other accounts seceivable 4 1,891 803 1,723,658
Other cmrent financial assets 11 246 488 211223
Current Imrome 13X assets 22 146 403 95872
Onher cumrent assets 151.576 154,402
Cash and cash equivalents 15 1272781 1,428,319
Non-cusrent assets keld for sale 23 1432121 327.161
CURRENT ASSETS 5,962,727 4,723,360
TOTAL ASSETS 17,147,358 17,407,764
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Note 35422017 31.12.2016
Share capital 57.260 57,260
Retamed camings and issue premium 3943324 3849495
Treasury shares (3,146) (14,403)
Translation differences {237211) (60.876)
interim rvidend - -
Equity attribatable to equity bolders of the Parent Company 16 3,768,227 3,831,476
Non-controlling mterests 16 203,041 265,870
EQUITY 3,383,268 2,697,346
Preferred shares, debentures and other marketable securities 18 864,938 621,201
Bank boorowings i8 4486936 4,581,051
Deforrad 1ax limbiliies 22 450,506 834282
Provisions 17 528,607 497472
Other non-comrent lizhilities 2% 1,786,271 1,835,335
NONCURRENT LIABILITEES 8,%7T,258 £.839.341
Preferred shares, debentures and other marketable securities i8 641,148 493,408
Bank borrowings ig 831,142 675,098
Trede and ather paszhiss 36 2.199.2i7 1297429
Provisions 139,810 164,967
Current meome tax Habilities 22 77,385 57,927

{ Opher corrent lrebilities 21 744 590 596.098
Liabisties keld for sale 23 473540 180,150
CURRENTY LIABILYTIES 5106832 4,471,877
TOTAL EQUITY AND LEARIE CEIES 17,147,358 17,407,763

Accompanying Notes | to 36 and the appendices are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements for 2017.

- Page4 -




TRANSLATION

ACCIONA, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT FOR 2017 and 2016
{Thousand euros)
NOTE 2017 2016
Revenue 25 7,253,974 5,977.419
QOther income 4.2 A) 613,346 554,705
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress 29,166 8,395
Cost of good sold 26 (1,975.668) (1.595.057)
Personnel expenses 26 {1,497,03 D) (1,287.557)
Other operating expenses 26 (3,148,568) (2,466,378)
Depreciation and amortisation charge and change in provisions 4,5,7.26 (662,989 (778.381)
Impainment and profit/{loss) on disposals of nan<urrent assets 26 104,323 532,194
Other gains and losses 3,774 42.837
PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS 720,327 988,177
Financial income 28 45628 61.921
Finance costs 28 (368,747) {732.653)
Translation differences (9,8938) 27.689
Profit/(loss) from changes m value of financial mstruments at tair vatue 26 38482 (7.069)
Profit/(loss) of companies accounted for using the equity method 8 (69,506) 69,570
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 356,286 407,635
Income tax expense 22 (105,341} (33.780)
YEAR’S PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 250,945 373,855 I
{ Profit/(Loss) after tax from discontiared operations - — {
( YEAR'’S PROFIT/LOSS) 250,945 373,855 {
l Non-controlling interests 16 (30,814) (21,874) |
l PROFITALOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE PARENT COMPANY 220,131 351,981 J
I BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 31 3.85 6.17 I
I DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 31 3.79 6.22 I
| BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE (euros) 30 3.85 6.17 |
] DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE (euros) 31 379 6.22 I
Accompanying Notes | 1o 36 and the appendices are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements for 2017,
CliFp LS o0
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ACCIONA, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR 2017 and 2016 (Thousand euros)

Note 2017 2016
A} CONSOLIDATED PRO¥FIT FOR THE YEAR 250,945 373,855
1. Profit attributed to the Parent 224,131 351,981
2. Nom-controlling tmerests 30814 21,874
B){ ITEMS THAT WILL NOT BE RECLASSIFIED TO THE 16 (1,146)
INCOME STATEMENT ’
1. Revaluation/(Reversion of revaluation) of property. plant and R _
equipment and mtansible assely
2. Actuarial gains and losses ard other adjustments 17 155 (1,372)
3. Tax effect 39 226
;; l\l_"rii:\:isﬂ"iixl" MAY BE RECLASSIFIED T0 THE INCOME (150,288) 17377
Ezeorme and expense recogised directly in eqoity (184,583) (61,232)
. Bevalpstion of fowneind faste men's: {316 265
aj Avatlable-for-sale financial assets 16 {316} 269
b) Other income / (expenses) - -
2. Cash flow badges 260 40,878 {130.768)
3. Translation differences (250405} 48 854
4. Grher income and expenses recogaised directly in equity — -
5. Tax effect (15144 20411
Transfers to the income statement: 34,695 235,003
1. Revaluation of financial fostrumants: - -
a) Available-for-sole finsucsal assets - —
b) Other income / (expenses) - -
2. Cash flow bedges 20 47548 320010
| 3. Translation differences (960} {6,672)
4. Other income and expenses recognised directly in equity - -
5. Tax effect (11,887} (78.335)
TOTAL RECOGNISED INCOME / (EXPENSE) {A+B+() 189,773 546,480
2} Attributed to the Parent 121,324 529,624
b) Attributed te son-controlling interests (20.551) 16,856

Accompanying Notes ! to 36 and the appendices are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements for 2017.
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ACCIONA, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TOTAL EQUITY AT 31 DECEMBER 2617 (thoasand carns)

Eguity attribaied to (he Parext Company {ihonsand turos)

Sharchaiders® Equity (Nete 16)

Share
premivea, . . .
- o Year’s profit o0 . Valae Nom-
::?:I re::':’cs Tshare? attribated to ins h:lzi:':s} adjast- comtrolling Total eqaity
P . N the Parent ments interests
rtenim
dihidend

:))]",;'l’l';‘g balance at 57260  3,712946  (14,403) 351,981 — (276,368 265870 4,097,346

L[4
Adjustracnis due to changes _ . _ _ _ _
in accounting polictes - -
Adjustments due to errors - - - — - - - -
Adjusted opening balagce 57260  3,712946  (14,483) 351,981 —  {276,308) 265,870 4,897,346
Total recognised - - - 220,131 - (98807) (20551) 109,773
income/(expense)
Transactions with

- 2 2 - -~ - 2

shareholders or owners (201.992) (2.195) (39.053) (243.240)
Capital _ _ N

increases/ reductions) - - - - -
Conversion of financial B . _ B B B _

Habilities into equity - N
Dividends paid - (164,569) - - - - (40,422) (204,991)
12?}1?;“ share transactions - (35.711)  (2.195) - - - - (37.906)
Increases/(Decreases) due to _ _ _ . _ _ 3426 2426

business combinations ) )
Other transactions with o

shareholders or owners B 1,712y B B B B (1.057) (2.769)
Other changes in equity - 350,143 13.452 (351,980 - - (3.225) 8.389
Share-based payments - 573 13.452 - - - - 14,025
Tfansférs between equity _ 351,981 _ (351.981) _ _ _ B

items
Other changes - (2.411) - - - - (3.225) {3,636)
g‘]';’ls;'/’l%”"’““ at ST 3ESLAYT (3,16 728,131 — @751 MILHT 3963268

Accompazyma Moty | 1o 36 and the agpemdices ire an integral part ¢f the consol dated financial getements for 2017,
\ Lo B
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TRANSLATION

ACCIONA, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TOTAL EQUITY AT 31 DECEMBER 2016 (thousand euros)

Equity attributed to the Parent Company {thousand earos)
Shareholders’ Eqaity {Note 16)
Share Year’s
St preminm, ) profit Otber Value Nen-
stal reserves and T b vy attriboted eqoity adjost- controfing Total equity
capl ingeriey ares & the Emetr coents mends interesds
dividend Parent

Opeping halacee at 260 2 - ey T - 394 = 265865 3.754.145
01/91/16 57,281 RT@REST (DRIIE 297,32 —~  {35395%) 860 754,145
Adjastments due 1o changes _ _ _ _ _
in accounting pokoies - - -
Adipstznents due to eress — ~ — - - - ~ -
Adjasted opening balance 57,266 3,762,890  (20,238) 207,324 —  (453.951) 260,360 3,754,145
Total recegsised =
- coreien o) — - - 351,981 - 177,643 16,856 546,480
Traasactions anith - =
shareBolders or owmers - (197.355) 16 - - - (12,2593 (209,598)
Capital

mCTeases: | redrotions ) - - - - - - (12) (12)
Conversion of fmancial _ _ _ _ _ _ _

tiabilities into equity -
Dividends paid - (143,104) - - - - (46,01%) (189,122)
T];is:)uy share transactions _ (58.629) 16 - — — - (58.013)
Increases{ocreases) duc t0 _ - - - - ~ 32,009 32,009

business combinations
Gther transactions with o

charcholders or owers — 3778 - - - - 1762 5,540
Oiher chapges in equity — 207,411 5819 {287.324) — - 413 6,319
Share-based pavments - 368 5.819 - —_ - — 6,187
Transfers between equity - 207,324 - (07329 —~ - - -

items
Other chanpes - (281 — — - — 413 132
g"n"“gz o 6‘”"‘ aee at 57260 3712946 (14403 351,981 — 76 265,870 4,097,346

Accompanying Notes 1 to 36 and the appendices are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements for 2017,
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TRANSLATION

ACCIONA, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR 2817 and 2016 {Theasand earos)

Note w17 2616
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 493,087 523,002
Profit before tax fram continaing operations 356286 487,635
Adjastmeants for: 846,776 684,491
Depreciation and amortisation charge and provisions 5361:217] 12; 627494 892.998
Other adjustments to profit (net) 926728 219282 {208,507)
Changes in working capital (343.096) 162,145
Other cash flows from operating activities: (368,879) (431,269)
Interest paid 28 (297,724) (379.063)
Interest received 28 32,207 65.431
Dividend received 9 20204 21,808
Income tax recovered/(paid) 25 (110.812) (79.387)
Other amounts received/(paid) relating to operating activities (12.754) (60,058)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 5.6,8,11 (588,435) (625,930)
Payments due to investment: (929,897) (823,776)
Group companies, associates and busmess units (160,329) (33,540)
Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment propenty (768,768) (790,236)
Proceeds from disposal: 231,036 65,289
Group companies, associates and business units 188.433 1.222
Property. plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment property 42,603 64,067
Other cash flows from ins esting activities: 169,626 132,557
Ottrer amounts recerved/(pad) relating to investing activities 109,626 132,557
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (25,574 {231,192)
Proceeds and (payvments) relating to equily instrmments: 16 {6,567) (355)
Purchases (6,567) {355)
Disposals - -
Proceeds and (payments) relating to financial lability instruments: 18 237,954 (326.292)
Proceeds from issues 2,088,175 3.855.626
Repayments and redemptions (1,850,221) (4,181.918)
Dividends and returas on other equity instruments paid 16 (204.991) (189,i22)
Other cash flews frem Hsaocing z2ctivithes (33,976 284576
Other amounts received/(paid) relatmg to financiag activities (51,970) 284,576
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES (32.616) 2,267
NET INCREASEADECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {155,538) (31.854)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1428319 1,460,173
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 1,272,781 1,428 319
COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF
YEAR
Cash on hand and at banks 909,851 1,116.858
Other tinancial assets 362,930 311.461
TOTAL CASH AND CASH EGQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR is 1,272,781 1428319

LR B Y N

Accompam mg Notes } to 36 and the appendices are an mtegral part of the coasalidated {7
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TRANSLATION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 OF ACCIONA, S.A. AND
SUBSIDIARIES
(Consolidated Group)

1.- Group activities

Acciona, S.A. (“the Parent Company” or “the Company™) and its subsidiaries integrate
the Acciona Group (“Acciona” or the “Group™). Acciona, S.A.’s registered office and
headquarters are in Alcobendas (Madrid) at Avenida de Europa 18.

The Acciona Group companies operate in several sectors of economic activity, including
most notably:

Acciona Energy: including the electricity business, contemplate development of
renewable energy plants, their construction, operation, maintenance, and the sale of the
energy produced. All the electricity generated by Acciona Energy comes from renewable
sources.

Acciona Infrastructure Construction: including mainly construction and engineering
activities and transport and hospital concessions.

Acciona Water: including the activities relating to the construction of desalination plants,
water treatment plants and drinking water plants as well as the management of the entire
water cycle, an activity that covers from the initial water collection, to its treatment,
including desalination, to its purification and return to the environment after use. It also
operates concessions for services related to the entire water cycle.

Acciona Service: including the activities of facility services, airport handling services,
waste collection and treatment, and logistics services, among others.

Other Activities: businesses relating to fund management and stock market brokerage,
wine production, as well as the activities of the Acciona Trasmediterranea subgroup, and
other investments.

Note 27 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, “Segment Reporting”,
includes detailed information about the assets, liabilities and transactions carried out in
each of the above business divisions that integrate the Acciona Group. The Acciona S.A.
Shares are traded on the Madrid Stock Exchange.

2.- Regulatory framework for the energy division

Spain

The regulatory framework for the energy division in Spain is summarised below, as it is
the most significant within the Group’s activity. The business of electricity production
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TRANSLATION

under the special system in Spain was regulated until 2013 by Spanish Electricity Industry
Act 54/1997, of 27 November, and by the regulatory provisions developing the Act,
mainly Royal Decree 661/2007, of 25 May, which regulated electricity production under
the special system.

In addition, most of the Group’s electricity production facilities in Spain were constructed
under, as far as the remuneration framework for the support of renewable energy sources
is concerned, the special system stablished by Royal Decree 661/2007, of 25 May, which
regulated electricity production under the special regime.

Transitional Provision One of Royal Decree 661/2007 acknowledged the right of wind
generated power facilities, inter alia, with start-up certificates pre-dating 1 January 2008,
to continue to receive the premiums and incentives existing under the previous system
(Royal Decree 436/2004, of 12 March) until 31 December 2012, before transitioning into
the new system. The facilities owned by the Group’s subsidiaries that commenced
operations prior to that date availed themselves of the aforementioned Transitional
Provision. For all the facilities that came into service after 1 January 2008 caps and floors
were set for the aggregate price (market price plus premium) applicable to power sales in
the market, or a regulated tariff was established.

Royal Decree 6/2009, of 30 April, introduced the facility pre-assignment system for
entitlement to the premiums system of the Special System defined in the Spanish
Electricity Industry Act until the targets set in the Renewable Energy Plan for 2020 had
been met. The facilities that, at the date of publication of the Royal Legislative Decree,
met the pre-assignment conditions established therein, would be entitled to the premiums
and tariffs provided for in Royal Decree 661/2007.

Royal Decree 1614/2010 was approved on 7 December 2010. The purpose of this
legislation was to modify and regulate matters relating to the production of electricity
using solar thermal and wind energy technologies, with the aim of containing the deficit.
This Royal Decree established a limit on the equivalent hours of operation with
entitlement to a premium for solar thermal and wind technologies, the obligation to sell
electricity at the regulated tariff for the solar thermal sector for the twelve months
following the entry into force of the Royal Decree or following the start-up of the related
facility if at a later date, and a 35% reduction in the premiums for wind technology subject
to Royal Decree 661/2007 and for the period from the date of approval of the Royal
Decree to 31 December 2012, while maintaining the amounts relating to the cap, floor
and regulated tariff unchanged.

The reduction in the premiums established by the aforesaid Royal Decree hardly affected
the Group’s farms, since most of them had start-up certificates pre-dating 1 January 2008
and they availed themselves of the aforementioned Transitional Provision of Royal
Decree 661/2007. The remainder of the facilities sold their energy under the regulated
tariff system. Also, the limits placed on operating hours had little impact on the Group’s
facilities, since the number of hours established in the Royal Decree exceeded the hours
that the facilities actually operated.

On 28 January 2012, Royal Decree-Law 1/2012 was published in the Spanish Central
Government Gazette and it came mto force on that same date, giving rise to the
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TRANSLATION

suspension of remuneration pre-assignment procedures and the removal of economic
incentives for new electricity production facilities which use combined heat and power,
renewable energy sources and waste. Royal Decree-Law 1/2012 affected, inter alia,
facilities under the special system that at 28 January 2012 had not been registered in the
Pre-assignment Register. Since the Group’s facilities had been registered in the
aforementioned Register before 28 January 2012, this Royal Decree did not have any
effect on the profitability of the Group’s facilities.

On 28 December 2012 Act 15/2012 was published, regarding tax measures aimed at
energy sustainability, which affected all electricity production facilities in Spain from
2013 onwards. All of Acciona’s facilities became subject to the tax on the value of
electricity output, which means 7% tax over income from electricity sales. On the other
hand, the aforementioned Act also introduced a charge for the use of inland water for
electricity production. This charge meant 22% tax on the economic value of electricity
output, with a 90% reduction in the tax for facilities with a capacity lower than 50 MW
and pumped storage power plants. Lastly, Act 15/2012 also established a dual tax on solar
thermal plants: on the one hand, the Act eliminated the premium for power produced
using fossil fuels and, on the other, it introduced a tax of 0.65 euros per GJ of gas
consumed.

Until 31 December 2012, practically all the facilitiecs owned by the companies in the
Group operating on the Spanish market were selling their energy under the free market
system (“pool”) through Acciona Green Energy Development, S.L., part of Group
companies.

Royal Decree-Law 2/2013 of 1 February on urgent measures in the electricity sector was
approved in 2013. This RDL, in force from 1 January 2013, set the premiums at 0€/kWh
for all special system facilities applying the market sale option, with the option for tariff-
based sales being maintained, although the coefficient for annual updating of said tariff
was modified, it being referenced to core inflation instead of to the Consumer Price Index
(CP1). This RLD established that the registered holders of facilities had to opt for selling
the electricity under the regulated tariff option or selling it freely on the market without
receiving any premium. Once an option was taken, it was then irrevocable.

For practical purposes, this RLD meant that the Acciona Group’s wind farms and
thermoelectric or biomass power stations had to choose the regulated tariff sale option
from 2013 on. The hydroelectric power plants under the Special System were already
selling at the tariff prior to the publication of this RLD.

On 13 July of 2013 Royal Decree-Law 9/2013 was published, whereby urgent measures
to guarantee the financial stability of the electricity system were adopted. This Royal
Decree-Law repealed the remuneration system supporting renewable energies and
introduced substantial changes in the applicable legal and economic framework.

This new regulation meant that, in addition to the remuneration for the sale of electricity
generated valued at market prices, facilities could receive a specific remuneration
comprising (i) a term per unit of power installed, covering, where appropriate, the
investment costs for a standard facility that cannot be recovered through electricity sales
and (ii) an operating remuneration term that covers, where applicable, the difference
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between operating costs and the revenue of a “standard” facility that participates on the
market, to which each pre-existing facility would assimilate.

To calculate this specific remuneration, for each type of facility, it is considered,
throughout its regulatory lifetime and with respect to activities conducted by an efficient
and well-managed company:

a) The standard revenue from the sale of the energy generated valued at market production
price.

b) Standard operating costs, and

c¢) The standard value of the initial investment.

According to the regulation, the aim of these parameters is not to exceed the minimum
level necessary to cover the costs that enable the renewable facilities to compete on a
similar level with the rest of the technologies on the market and make it possible to obtain
a reasonable profit.

With regard to this reasonable profit, the Royal Decree-Law indicated that in general it
would be similar, before tax, to the average profit of a ten-year Government Bonds on the
secondary market after the application of an appropriate differential. For the facilities
under the premium-based economic system prior to the enactment of Royal Decree-law
9/2013, the first additional provision specified that reasonable profit would be around (i)
the average return for the 24 months prior to the enactment of said Royal Decree-law plus
(ii) a differential of 300 basic points, all without prejudice to possible review every six
years.

RD-L 9/2013 came into force on 14 July 2013. Its regulatory development (RD relating
to the production activity with renewable energies and remuneration parameters order for
such activity) was still pending approval at the close of financial year 2013, existing a
draft Ministerial Order containing the parameters for remuneration, based on which, at 31
December 2013, the Group estimated and re-appraised its revenue and other key figures,
posting the resulting impairments according to the new model.

In December 2013, Act 24/2013, of 26 December was published, on the Electricity
Industry, that was enacted to replace Act 54/1997; it stablished the new legal framework
for the industry, including the provisions of RDL 9/2013, eliminating the concept of the
special system, and regulating specific remuneration and also establishing the formula for
defining the reasonable profit of the facilities.

Royal Decree 413/2014, of 6 June, was published in the Central Government Gazette on
10 June 2014, to regulate the activities of electricity generation from renewable energy
sources, co-generation and waste. As a follow-up to the same, final Ministerial Order IET
1045/2014 was issued on 20 June 2014 and published in the Central Government Gazette
on 29 June 2014. This Order contained the final remuneration parameters applicable to
all renewable energy facilities, whether already in existence or planned for the future. The
new mode! defined the remuneration of assets applicable from 14 July 2013 as a
consequence of RDL 9/2013.
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In financial year 2017, the main regulation with a relevant impact on the electricity
generation business based on renewable energies in relation to ACCIONA’s assets was
the publication of Order ETU/130/2017, dated February 17, whereby remuneration
parameters are updated for standard facilities, applicable to certain facilities that produce
electricity from renewable energy sources, cogeneration and waste, for the purposes of
its application to the regulatory half-period beginning 1 January 2017. 2016 was the last
year of the first regulatory half-period, so a partial review of some of the model
parameters was necessary (those related to past and future market price estimates). On
the basis of the new market price estimates, the Ministerial Order determines the
investment and operating remuneration values to be applied to the renewable assets
entitled to them in the period 2017-2019. The Group considers that the updating of
remuneration parameters applicable as from 2017 has not had a significant impact on the
business plans or the value of the energy division assets in Spain.

At last, the European Commission's Decision of 10 November on matters of state aid
(SA.40348) is also relevant, where in the European Commission concludes that the
Spanish support system for electricity generation from renewable energy sources, high-
efficiency cogeneration of heat and electricity and waste, complies with EU standards
regarding state aid. In this decision, the Commission declared the compatibility of the
current support system with European legislation and noted that the old system - which
was in fact built into and replaced by the current one -, did not need to be replaced.
Therefore, the possibility of an eventual negative impact on renewable energy producers
receiving incentives (currently and/or in the past) that could have been derived on an
unfavourable resolution of the matter on that file.

United States

The fight against climate change at the state level has been undermined with the entry of
the new Trump administration, which has removed it from its list of priorities, and in
addition has announced the country’s withdrawal from the Paris Agreement. It is not
clear, however, that these measures will have a real impact, since the withdrawal from
the Paris Agreement does not come into force until 4 years after its announcement. In
addition, there is significant movement of states and corporations who aim to compensate
for the efforts of the federal government.

On the other hand, renewable energies have also been affected for several reasons:

e A negative effect is expected on the photovoltaic sector derived from the so-
called Suniva Case. The photovoltaic panel company Suniva declared bankruptcy
claiming to have suffered “serious damage” due to PV panel imports from China. The
Committee on International Trade (CIT) agreed and delivered remedial
recommendations to the President, which consisted in duties of $0.25/W and $0.32/W
on cells and modules, respectively. These remedial measures may vary at the
President’s discretion, whose final decision is expected at the beginning of 2018.

e The Department of Energy (DOE) ordered FERC to force RTOs in competitive
markets to modify their structures in order to pay nuclear and coal facilities their
capital and operation costs, claiming problems of supply security. This would prevent
these plants, which are often not competitive, from shutting down. On 8 January 2018,
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the FERC has rejected the order from the DOE. The FERC has said that it will ask
every RTO and Independent System Operator (ISO) for specific information to be
provided within 60 days, and from which it will conduct its own analysis on how to
deal with the problem.

e A major tax reform was adopted at the end of the year. The drafts of the Senate and
the Parliament prior to the version that was finally approved predicted very harmful
effects to renewable energies, but the final version will have less dramatic effects. The
main points of the reform as it has been approved are:

o Reduction of the corporation tax from 35% to 21%. This is positive because it
increases the profit after tax, but renders the financing of renewable energy
projects difficult by reducing the value of the tax credits and the value of the
accelerated depreciation benefits.

o Increase in accelerated depreciation benefits, allowing up to 100% of expenses
to be declared as costs (previously only 50% was formerly allowed). This
compensates for the reduction in the benefits resulting from the reduction in
the corporation tax.

o Inclusion of the BEAT clause, but allowing 80% of ITCs and PTCs to be used
to cancel it. The BEAT Clause (Base Erosion Anti-Abuse Tax), which is
designed to penalise multinational companies, means that companies must
calculate their taxes on payments made to foreign sites and compare the results
with the minimum percentage determined by the BEAT clause (10% for non-
financial companies and 11% for financial companies). If the results are below
this limit, the company must make an additional payment until it reaches this
minimum tax rate. This extra amount can be paid with up to 80% of the ITCs
until 2025. In addition, from the year 2026 the minimum determined by the
BEAT clause will increase to 12.5% and 13.5% for non-financial and financial
companies, respectively.

The “Renewable Portfolio Standard” (RPS) is a market policy freely established by some
states which requires that a minimum proportion of the electricity supply comes from
renewable sources. The percentages vary between states, with the majority being between
20% and 30% of the supply from 2020 to 2025. The implementation of it is usually done
using Renewable Energy Credits (RECs), a system of tradeable certificates that verify
that a kWh of electricity has been generated from a renewable source. At the end of a
certain year, the electricity generators must have sufficient certificates to cover their
annual quota, and sanctions will be applied in the event of non-compliance.

The PTCs grant the electricity generated with a tax deduction during the first 10 operating
years for an amount per MWh which is adjusted annually based on the CPI (regulated by
the “Energy Policy Act”™).

In the year 2005, Congress established an investment tax credit of 30% ITC initially
applicable to solar energy projects. In the year 2009, a Law was adopted according to
which the companies that could not access the PTC regime could receive ITC in
exchange, or alternatively, could receive payment equivalent to 30% of the investment.

i 3 . )
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These tax incentives have always needed to be renewed annually, with the associated
uncertainty, but in December 2015 a long-term extension of the PTC and ITC was
approved, for both wind and solar energy, with a gradual decrease in the incentive. In the
case of wind energy, the PTC decreases 20% each year until 2020, ending with 0%
incentive. In the same way, the ITC is also progressively reduced until it is eliminated in
2020. In the case of solar energy, 30% of the ITC is maintained until 2020 (31 December
2019), from when it will begin to decrease until it is set at 10% after 2022. The milestone
that determines the time frames is the start of construction.

In May 2016, the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) published a Notice extending the safe
harbours to 4 years from the end of the year construction started. The safe harbour allows
the date from which a facility is eligible for the PTC to be determined. In May, the IRS
also revised the Notice to make clarifications and corrections and to provide guidance to
the projects commissioned after 2 January 2013.

There is also another tax benefit linked to the ability of a wind farm’s owner to take
advantage of the accelerated depreciation in most of the capital assets (Modified
Accelerated Cost Recovery - MACRs), which can be fiscally transferred to an average
depreciation period of five years. This benefit has no expiration date.

Australia

The “Renewable Energy (Electricity) Amendment Bill 2015” was approved in June 2015,
which introduced stability to the green certificate system, setting RET to 33,000 GWh in
2020 and eliminating the target revisions that took place every 2 years (which are now to
be done every 4). The first and only case to date of a company that chose to pay a penalty
for non-compliance rather than delivering the corresponding renewable electricity
certificates took place in January 2017.

The State of South Australia suffered a major blackout in September 2016. This event
caused storage and renewable energy integration issues to become more relevant in the
country. In June, the final version of the Finkel report was published, which
commissioned by the government after the blackout with the aim of providing
recommendations to enhance the safety and reliability of the system and to reduce
emissions according to the Paris targets. The report stresses the importance of carrying
out the energy transition in an orderly, studied and planned manner, in addition to the
need for strong governance and it poses systemic recommendations to maintain the level
of security of the system (e.g., revision of market rules). It gives the consumer a greater
role to play. A continuation of the RET after 2020: The Clean Energy Target (CET) is
also proposed, which would be based on a green certificate system that would include
RES and technologies that comply with an emissions limit. Some of the recommendations
in the report were approved at the Coalition Joint Party meeting on 20 June, although the
Minister of Energy announced that the implementation of the CET would be analysed
later more calmly.

In April, the Clean Energy Council published a recommendations report to eliminate
regulatory barriers to storage and to improve the security of the network (“Policy and
regulatory reforms to unlock the potential of energy storage in Australia”), and in August
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the Victoria Government announced a renewable energy auction of 650MW, which is
part of the Victorian Renewable Energy Auction Scheme (VREAS) to achieve the
Victorian Renewable Energy Target (VRET) of 40% of renewable energy by 2025.

In October 2017, the government announced the National Energy Guarantee (NEG)
scheme to replace the current CET. Its key aspects are: i) Reliability Guarantee
(obligation for retailers to contract a certain amount of “dispatchable” energy - from coal,
gas, hydro or stored); (ii) Emissions Guarantee (obligation for retailers to reach an
emissions intensity level in their energy portfolio that supports Australia's commitment
to reduce emissions by 26% by 2030). The final document is pending publication and a
decision is expected by April 2018.

In October 2017, the Victoria Government also proposed a state RET with renewable
targets of 25% by 2020 and 40% by 2025, compatible with the start of the VIC RET

auction process.
Mexico

Until December 2013, the generation, transmission, distribution and sale of electrical
energy was reserved exclusively to the Federal Government through the Federal Energy
Commission (FEC).

The only options for the sale of renewable energy were Independent Energy Production
(electricity generation plants that sell their production directly to the FEC) or Self-
Sufficiency Contracts (electricity generation plants that sell their production to a load
centre plant which has a certain ownership percentage of the generation plant).

On 20 December 2013, a constitutional reform introducing significant changes to the
Mexican energy model was published, leading to the market to open up and accepting
greater private participation. The new Law on the Electricity Industry (LEI) published on
11 August 2014 defines these substantial changes to the electricity sector: it reduces the
role of the State in the sector, which is limited to operating the system and to providing
transmission and distribution services; the legal separation of activities is imposed; a
wholesale electrical market is created which is operated by the CENACE, the bids for
which will be based on costs, and establishes an obligations system for generators to cover
with Clean Energy Certificates (CECs). In addition, auctions for Electricity Coverage
Contracts will take place to cover the supply to Basic Services Users. Clean energy, power
and CEC electricity coverage contracts are assigned in the Long-Term Auctions. With
regards to the existing contracts from the previous law, the LEI contemplates their
continuity.

The first market bases were published in 2015 and must be re-evaluated every 3 years
(the manual to carry out this re-evaluation is currently being discussed). In January 2016,
SENER published a resolution authorising operations to start in the short-term market in
the different interconnected systems, and CENACE started the Day-Ahead Market
(DAM) operations. The DAM is in operation to date, and the Real Time Market (RTM)
will not open to the public until the Market Information System (MIS) is ready. Also, in
February 2017 the Power Balancing Market was opened, which determines the price that
supports the capacity of the previous year, the volume and the total amount. It is an annual
and ex-post market.
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2018 will be the first year with CEC obligations, and the certificates must be delivered
until 5% of the electricity sold is reached. The CEC Requirements were published in
February 2017, corresponding to the Obligation Periods 2020, 2021 and 2022, (7.4%,
10.9% and 13.9%, respectively) that complement the one published in 2016 for 2019
(5.8%).

To date, three long-term auctions have taken place: the first in March 2016, the second in
September 2016 and the last in October 2017. The latter already included a clearing
house, potentially allowing the participation of suppliers different to the FEC.

The last DEPRONES (Development Programme of the National Electrical System)
published by SENER for the period 2017-2030 estimates that in 2031 electricity
generation will be of 443 TWh, less than what was estimated in the 2015-2030 estimates
for 2030 (456 TWh).

Chile

Chile amended Law 20,257 (Non-Conventional Renewable Energy Law) of 2008 through
Law 20.698 (Law 20/25) in 2013, and established a renewable target on the total power
generation of 20% by 2025. The electricity companies must prove that a percentage of
the energy that is removed from the system comes from this type of technology. The law
also imposes a penalty for breaching the obligation amounting to 0.4 UTM per MWh that
is not accredited (approximately 32 USD) and, for companies that continue to breach the
obligation in the three years following the first breach, the penalty will be 0.6UTM/MWh
(approximately 48 USD). The law indicates that those companies that have administrated
renewable energy in excess of their obligation may transfer that excess to other
companies. However, a green certificate market has not been established, but bilateral
contracts are signed between the parties concerned and the transfer certification is made
through an authorised copy of the contract.

To achieve the target set, Law 20/25 also introduced annual renewable energy auctions
according to the demand forecasts from the Government for the next three years.

In April 2016, an Exempted Resolution was published, approving the preliminary tender
report which established the values of regulated consumptions (in GWh-year) that should
be put out to tender in the next few years. The volumes included a decrease in the energy
demand forecast of approximately 10% between 2021 and 2041, which implies a
significant decline of what was going to be auctioned this year (from the 13,750 GWh
expected to approximately 12.500 GWh). The volumes of the preliminary report were
confirmed in May with the final publication of the report.

Year Call to

Tender Year Awarded  Supply Starts Volame Duration
2016 2017 2023 2,500 20
2017 2018 2024 7,000 20
2018 2019 2025 9.000 20
2019 2020 2026 4,500 20

Up to date 2 auctions have been held:
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e 2015/01, held in July 2016 which put out 12,430 GWh/year to tender, with supply
starting in the years 2021 and 2022.

e 2017/01, held in October 2017 which put out 4,200 GWh/year to tender, with
supply starting in 2023.

The Transmission Law was published in July 2016, which establishes a new electrical
power transmission system and creates a single independent coordinator entity for the
national electrical system. In general, the new Law seems to particularly favour non-
conventional Renewable Energies. Work on the associated regulations began after the
Transmission Law was approved.

In 2017, the regulation to implement the tax on CO2 emissions was approved (exempted
resolution 659), which as it stands involves all generation companies, including non-
polluting companies, making compensation payments. However, in the final version this
compensation was significantly reduced by changing the way it is quantified (annually
instead of monthly - at the suggestion of Acciona).

3.-  Basis of presentation of financial statements and consolidation principles

3.1 Basis of presentation

The consolidated financial statements for financial year 2017 of the Acciona Group were
prepared by the Directors of Acciona, S.A. at the Board of Directors Meeting held on 26
February 2018, and disclose a true and fair view of the Group’s equity and consolidated
financial position at 31 December 2017, and of the results of its operations, the changes
in the consolidated statement of recognised income and expenses, the changes in the
consolidated equity and the consolidated cash flows in the years then ended.

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with the applicable regulatory
financial reporting framework and, in particular, with the principles and criteria contained
in the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European
Union, in conformity with Regulation (EC) no. 1606/2002 of the European Parliament and
of the Council. The main mandatory accounting principles and measurement criteria
applied, the alternative treatments permitted by the relevant legislation in this respect, and
the standards and interpretations issued but not yet in force at the date of formal
preparation of these financial statements are summarised in Note 4.

These financial statements were prepared on the basis of the accounting records kept by
the Parent Company and by the other Group companies. These records include the figures
relating to the joint ventures, groupings and consortia considered to be joint operations,
in which the Group companies have interests, through the proportional consolidation
method, that is, through the inclusion, based on the percentage of participation, of the
assets, liabilities and operations of these entities, after asset and liability balances are
appropriately eliminated, as well as operations in the year.
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The Acciona Group’s consolidated financial statements for 2016 were approved by the
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on 18 May 2017. The consolidated financial
statements for 2017 of the Acciona Group have not yet been approved by the shareholders
at the Annual General Meeting. However, the Parent’s Company Board of Directors
considers that the aforementioned financial statements will be approved without any
material changes.

Unless otherwise indicated, these consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of euros, because the euro is the functional currency of the principal economic
area where the Acciona Group operates. Foreign operations are accounted for in
accordance with the policies established in Notes 3.2.g) and 4.2.q).

3.2 Consolidation principles
a. Consolidation methods

The companies over which, under IFRS 10, control is exercised were fully
consolidated. These companies are considered subsidiaries and they are listed in
Appendix I, and their consolidation method is explained in section d. of this same note.

Entities managed jointly with third parties as a joint operation are proportionately
consolidated when it is concluded that the participating company has direct rights and
obligations for its share percentage in the assets and liabilities under the agreement.
This is explained in section e. in this note. The companies consolidated by applying
the proportional method are listed in Appendix II.

Finally, the companies not included in the paragraphs above, where significant
influence is held in their management or they are a joint venturer, are associates, and
they are measured by applying the equity method (see Appendix II). This
consolidation method is explained in section f. in this note.

b. Eliminations on consolidation

All material balances and effects of the transactions performed between the
subsidiaries and the associates and joint operations, and intra-subsidiaries, were
eliminated on the consolidation process.

The gains on transactions with associates and jointly controlled entities are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s share percentage in their capital. Exceptionally, the profit
and loss on internal transactions with Group companies, jointly controlled entities or
associates in connection with certain concession-related activities were not eliminated.

¢. Uniformity

The Spanish resident companies included in the scope of consolidation were
consolidated on the basis of their separate financial statements prepared in accordance
with the Spanish General Accounting Plan and foreign companies were consolidated
in accordance with their local standards. All material adjustments required to adapt
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these financial statements to International Financial Reporting Standards and/or make
them compliant with the Group’s accounting policies were considered in the
consolidation process.

d. Subsidiaries

“Subsidiaries™ are defined as companies over which the Company has the capacity to
exercise effective control; control is generally seen in three elements that must be
complied with: having authority over the subsidiary, exposure or the right to variable
returns from its investment, and the ability to use said authority to influence the amount
of these returns.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are fully consolidated with those of the
Company. Accordingly, all material balances and effects of the transactions between
consolidated companies were eliminated on consolidation.

When a subsidiary is bought, its assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities are
measured at their acquisition-date fair values, as provided for in IFRS 3, Business
Combinations. Any excess in the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the
identified net assets is recognised as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is lower than
the fair value of the identifiable net assets, the difference is credited to profit or loss
on the acquisition date.

For subsidiaries acquired during the year, only the results from the date of acquisition
to year-end are included in the consolidation. Similarly, for subsidiaries disposed of
during the year, only the results from the beginning of the year to the date of disposal
are included in the consolidated income statement.

The interest of non-controlling shareholders is stated at their proportion of the fair
values of the assets and liabilities recognised.

The share of third parties in the equity of their investees is disclosed within the Group’s
equity under “Non-Controlling Interests” on the consolidated balance sheet. Similarly,
their share in the profit or loss for the year is disclosed under “Non-Controlling
Interests™ on the consolidated income statement.

e. Joint operations

Joint arrangements are deemed to be ventures in which the investee (jointly controlled
entity) is managed by a Group company and one or more unrelated third parties, all of
whom act jointly to manage the relevant activities and where strategic decisions
require the unanimous consent of the parties.

Joint arrangements where the investing company is deemed to hold direct rights and
obligations for its share percentage in the assets and liabilities under the arrangement
are considered joint operations.

The financial statements of joint operations are proportionately consolidated with
those of the Company and, therefore, the aggregation of balances and subsequent
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eliminations are only applied in proportion to the Group’s share in the capital of these
entities.

The assets and liabilities relating to operations are recognised on the consolidated
balance sheet classified according to their specific nature. Similarly, the income and
expenses from joint operations are disclosed in the consolidated income statement on
the basis of their nature.

f. Equity method

In the consolidated financial statements, investments in associates and joint ventures
(joint arrangements giving a right to the net assets of the arrangement) are measured
by applying the equity method, i.e., at the Group’s share in net assets of the investee,
after considering the dividends received therefrom and other equity eliminations.

The value of these investments on the consolidated balance sheet implicitly includes,
where applicable, the goodwill arising on their acquisition.

When the Group’s investments in associates are reduced to zero, any additional
implicit obligations in the subsidiaries that are accounted for by the equity method are
recognised under “Non-current provisions” on the consolidated balance sheet.

In order to disclose results uniformly, the Group’s share in the profit or loss of
associates is disclosed on the consolidated income statement before and after tax.

g. Translation differences

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations with a
functional currency other than the euro are translated to euros at the exchange rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are translated at the
average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly.
Capital and reserves are translated at the historical exchange rates. Translation
differences, if any, are classified as equity. Such translation differences are recognised
as income or as expenses in the year in which the investment is made or disposed of.

h. Changes in the scope of consolidation

Appendices I, II and III to the accompanying consolidated financial statements contain
relevant information about the Acciona Group’s subsidiaries, joint operations and
associates and joint ventures, and Appendix IV shows the changes in consolidation
scope in the year.

In financial year 2017, the significant change in scope related to the acquisition of
Geotech Holdings Pty Ltd, the parent company of the Australian construction group
called "Geotech Holding”. Acquisition of the subgroup was done through the
following corporate structure:
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ACCIONA Geotech Key Exceutives:

INFRASTRUCTURE ASIA - Belwe Noonan
PACIFIC Pry. Limited - Andre Novnan
: - Darren Loadl

8240, 176"

l |

ACCIONA GEOTECH HOLDING
PTY LTD

| 10,

GEOTECH HOLDCO PTY LTD

T

ACCIONA CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS PTY LTD
(previoasiy calivd Geotech Huldings Piyv Lid)
“SUBGROUP GEOTECH HOLDING™

On 8 March 2017, the company Acciona Infrastructure Asia Pacific, Pty. Limited,
100% controlled by the Group, indirectly acquired 82.4% of Geotech Holding
subgroup for an adjusted price up to 147 million euros (205 million AUD), with the
aim of increasing the Group's presence in the Australian and New Zealand construction
market. The acquisition cost includes: (i) the delivery of a cash amount, (ii) a payment
commitment in favour of key executives of the company subject to the achievement of
certain long-term objectives related to the expected EBITDA of the Subgroup, which
would enable them to increase their share up to a maximum of 20% and which has
been deemed probable, and (iii) a price adjustment corresponding to changes in
working capital, net debt and investment according to the contract.

The Acciona Group acquired control of the Subgroup Geotech Holding after this
transaction, and it began to be consolidated by fully consolidated method. Breakdown
of the business combination is as follows (in thousand euros).

Carrying Purchase
Acquisition Percent amo:nt of Price .
Subgroup cost acquired 100% of Allgcation Goodwill/DFC
the (PPA)
company ’
Geotech Holding 147,483 82.40% 19.963 13.826 117,207

Subgroup

The table below shows the breakdown of the Geotech Helding Subgroup’s assets and
liabilities consolidated at the time control was taken over:

Thousand euros 08/03/2017 Thousand euros 08/03/2017
ASSETS LIABILITIES
Other intangible assets 156 Equity 19.963
Property, plant and equipment 15.450
Deferred tax assets 768
Non-current assets 16,374 Non-current liabilities 2,248
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Curren assets 40,140 Current labitities 34,303

Total Assets 56,514 Total Liabilities 56,514

At the time of the acquisition, the Group carried out an analysis of the fair value of the
acquired Subgroup’s assets and liabilities in order to allocate the purchase price
("Purchase Price Allocation” or PPA} in accordance with the indications of IFRS 3.

As part of the PPA process an asset was recognised, due to the confirmed work
portfolio that the Australian subgroup had at the time 1t was purchased, which was
allocated with a total value of 13,826 thousand euros. This amount has been recognised
under “Other intangible assets” and it is amortised according to the cash flow
generated by the associated work contracts. At 31 December 2017, the amortisation
impact due to the allocated intangible asset came to 6,112 thousand euros which has
been recognised under “Depreciation and amortisation charge and change in
provisions” on the accompanying income statement.

In addition, the fair value of the non-controlling interests identified at the time of the
acquisition amounted to 3,513 thousand euros.

As a result of the previous process, and as a consequence of the difference between the
fair value of the net assets acquired and the acquisition cost, an amount of 117,207
thousand euros has been recognised as goodwill. According to applicable accounting
regulations, the allocation of assets and liabilities identified shall be deemed final once
12 months has passed since the acquisttion date.

The notes to these consolidated financial statements detail the main assets and
liabilities contributed by the subgroup Geotech Holding. Note 16.f) also details the
main amounts contributed by this subgroup in financial year 2017,

It should be noted that the revenue and benefit after tax contributed by the subgroup
Geotech Holding before the aforementioned intangible asset is amortised, from the
effective acquisition date until 31 December 2017 amounted to 103,751 thousand
euros and a profit of 2,208 thousand euros, respectively. If the acquisition date of this
subgroup had been 1 January 2017 then the revenue and profit after tax, before the
aforementioned intangible asset is amortised, would had been 119,716 thousand euros
and a benefit of 2,663 thousand euros, respectively.

The functional currency of the Geotech Holding subgroup is the Australian dollar.

On the other hand, Acciona Wind Energy Canada Inc (AWEC), a subsidiary of
Acciona Energia Internacional, S.A. acquired an additional 50% of the shares of
Ripley JV that were owned by Suncor Energy Inc. on 10 July 2017 for 31.9 million
euros (47.1 million of Canadian dollars) by exercising their right of first refusal
established in the agreement from the JV constitution. With this acquisition AWEC
now holds 100% of the shares of the Ripley JV 76 MW wind farm located in Ontario
(Canada), meaning that the consolidation method changes from proportionately to
fully consolidated. Breakdown of the business combination is as follows (in thousand
euros).
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Carryin
. amountof  Furchase
IV Acquisition Percent 100% of Price
cost acquired the Allocation
(PPA)
company
Ripley JV 31.832 50% 62,489 1,175

The table below shows the details of the JV’s assets and liabilities consolidated at the
time control was taken over:

Thousand euros 10/07/2017 Thousand euros 10/07/2017
ASSETS LIABILITIES

Property, plant and equipment 79.734 Equity 62.489

Non-current assets 79,734 Non-current liabilities 17,193

Current assets 1,476 Current liabilities 1,528

Total Assets 81,210 Total Liabilities 81,210

A PPA attributed to the wind farm has been identified according to the value analysis
under IFRS 3 and IFRS 11, and therefore a gross amount of 1,599 thousand euros that
has been recognised in section “Other Plant and Machinery™.

At 31 December 2017, the amortised amount of the PPA came to 70 thousand euros.
The net income and profit after tax for the financial year 2017 prior to the
aforementioned consolidation adjustments came up to 14.3 million euros and 6.7
million euros respectively, if it had been integrated into the Group from 1 January; the
consolidated amounts from the time of its acquisition amounted to 10.3 million euros
and 4.4 million euros, respectively. The functional currency of Ripley JV is the
Canadian dollar.

On 28 July 2017 the Parent Company acquired the additional 50% of the
concessionaire Autovia de los Vifiedos. S.A. for 8,219 thousand euros; therefore the
Group now holds 100% of this company and the consolidation method changes from
the equity method to fully consolidated. Breakdown of the business combination is as
follows (in thousand euros).

Carrying Purchase
Acquisition Percent amou/nl of Price
Compaay cost acquired w?:: of Allocation
(PPA)
company
Autovia de los
2 04 2 ]
Vifiedos. SA. 8219 5% (20.618) 37.056

The table below shows details of the Concessionaire's assets and liabilities
consolidated at the time control was taken over:

Thousand euros 28/07/2017 Thousand euros 28/07/2017
ASSETS LIABILITIES
Intangible assets 122,606 Equity (20.618)
Deferred tax assets 26.335
Other assels 360
(\‘-/" . A He ~ -
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4.-

Non-current assets 149,301 Non-current liabilities 196,010
Current assets 36,035 Current liabilities 9,974
Total Assets 185,336 Total Liabilities 185,366

A PPA attributed to the concession asset has been identified according to the value
analysis on IFRS 3, and therefore its value has been increased by a gross amount of
49,409 thousand euros. At 31 December 2017, the amortised amount of the PPA
amount to 1,594 thousand euros.

The revaluation of the pre-existing investment that the Group held has led to an added
value of 21 million euros recognition, as the reclassification of the derivatives reserves
to the income statement for a negative amount of 16 million euros, recorded under
“other gains and losses”.

The net income and profit after tax for the financial year 2017 prior to the
aforementioned consolidation adjustments amount to 19,428 thousand euros and 458
thousand euros, respectively if it had been integrated on the Group from 1 January,
and the consolidated amounts from the time of its acquisition amounted to 10,088
thousand euros and 1,351 thousand euros respectively.

On 27 July 2017 an agreement was signed for the non-cash contribution of the
investments that the Group held in Compaiiia Urbanizadora del Coto, S.L., Valgrand,
S.A., and certain real estate assets from Acciona Real Estate, S.A., valued at 336
million euros, to Testa Residencial SOCIMI, S.A. In exchange for this contribution,
Acciona Real Estate, S.A. subscribed and paid up 2,645,404,051 new shares (with a
nominal value of 26 million euros), representing 21.02% of the share capital of Testa
Residencial SOCIMI, S.A., with an associated share premium of 309 million euros.
The operation took effect on 20 September 2017, the date on which the precedent
conditions established on the agreement of the non-cash contribution were reached.
The capital gains from the operation amounted to 74 million euros, recognised in
“Impairment and profit/(loss) on disposal of non-current assets” section of the
accompanying consolidated income statement.

On 24 October 2017, authorisation was given by Chilean competition authorities
through which the purchase agreement signed on 11 August 2017 with Global Via
Infraestructuras Chile, S.A. and Globalvia Chile, S.p.a. was approved over 100% of
shares that the Group held in the Concessionaire Acciona Concesiones Ruta 160, S.A.
at a purchase price of 335 million euros, of which 109 million correspond to the
assumption of financial debt, and 33 million to the market value of the financial
derivatives associated to the debt, and through which capital gains of 34 million euros
have been recognised in the income statement.

In financial year 2017 no significant additions to or removals from the scope of
consolidation took place, apart from those described in the paragraphs above.

Main accounting policies

4.1  Adoption of new standards and interpretations issued
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Standards and interpretations applicable in this financial year

In financial year 2017, the following accounting standards, amendments and
interpretations came into force and, accordingly, were considered in the preparation of
the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Mandaterily applicable

Standards, amendments and N .
in agnaal periods

interpretations: naing os or after:
Approved to be applied in the EU
Amendments to IAS 7: Disclosure Introduces additional disclosure requirements in Gi january 2017
initiative relation to the reconciliation of movements of
financial lisbilitles with the cash flows from
financimg activities.
Amendments to IAS 12: Recognition Clarification of the principles established 01 January 2017
of deferred tax assets for uneahised regardimg the recognition of deferred tax assets for
losses. urwealtsed josses on debt instruments measured at
fair value.
Not approved for use in the EU at 31
December 2017
Improvements to IFRS Cycle 2014- The clarification regarding the scope of IFRS 12 01 January 2017
2016: Clarification regarding IFRS 12 and its intcraction with 1FRS 5 comes into force in

this period.

The standards were applied with no impact on the reported figures or on the
presentation and disclosure of the information, either because they do not involve
relevant changes or because they refer to economic events that do not affect the
Acciona Group.

Standards and interpretations issued but not in force

At 31 December 2017, the following were the most significant standards and
interpretations published by the [ASB, but they have not come into effect yet, either
because their effective date is later than the date of the consolidated financial statements,
or because they have not been adopted by the European Union yet:

Standards, ameedments and Maadatorily applicable in annval
igterpretatioas: periads beginntng en or after:
Approved to be applied in the EU
IFRS 15 — Revenue from contracts with New standand for revenue recognition {replacing (1 January 2018
clients 1IAS 11.1AS 18, IFRIC 13, IFRIC 15, IFRIC 18 and
SIC 31).
IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments This new standard replaces the requitemests for 01 Januvary 2018

classification, measurement, recognition and de-
recognition of financial assets and liabilities, hedge
accournting and impairmoeat under IAS 39

Amendments to IFRS 4 - Insurance It gives emtities within the scope of {FRS 4 the aption 01 January 2018
Contracts to apply IFRS ¢ (~overlay approach™) or temporary
exemption.
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iFRS 16 - Lesses

Not approved for ose in the EU

Amendments o IFRS 20 Classification and
measurement of share-hased payments

Amendments to 14S 48: Reclassificatios of
property inveshments

Improvermenss o IFRS Cyele 2013-2046

iFRIC 22 — Foreign currency irensactions
and advarces

IFRIC 23 - Uncertatnty over L2y ireshments

Amendments to IFRS 9: Preprvment

features with negative compensation.

Amendments to IAS 28 Long-term
interests in associates and joint ventures

Improvements to IFRS Cycle 2015-2017

IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts

Amendment 10 IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sales
or contribirtion of assets between an
investor and #s associate/joint venture

Replaces 148 17 znd rmelated imrerpreiziions. The
novelly centres around o upigue accounting modal
for lessees, which will inchude all leases o the
balance sheet {(with some lmited exceptioas) with an
impact similar to that of the current financial leases
{there will be amortisation of the asset by the right of
use and a finance expense for the amortised cost of
the lability on eases).

They are limited mnerdmens which clanfy speoific
issues such as the effects of acerual conditions on
share-based  pavments  setthed  in cash,  the
classification of shere-hesed povmmewms when i has
net settlement clauses, znd some aspects of changes
in the type of share-based payment.

The smendment clarifies that reclassification of 2o
investment from or to a property investment is
allowed only when there is evidence of a change in
use.

Minor amendments to a number of standards.

This wterpretation establishes the ~transaction date™
to the effects of determining the exchonge rate
applicable to tramsactions with foreign ourrency
advances.

This imterprotation clorifies how o 2pply the
recognition and measurement criteria from [AS 12
when there is uncertainty about the tax austhority’s
accaepiability of a panticular tax treatment used by the
entity.

It allows certain financial instnaments with
prepayment features to be measured at amertised
cost. allowing payment of an amount less than the
unpaid amounts of capital and interest.

Miror amendments to 2 number of standands.

Clarifies that IFRS 9 should be applied o the long-
term interests in an associate of joint venture if the
equity method is not applied.

Replaces IFRS 4. and incorporates the principles of
reCopniion,  measurement, presemiation  and
disciosure of insurance contracts with the aim that
the entity provides relevant and reliable information
that enables users of the information to determine the
cffect that contracts have on the financial statements.

Clarification about the gain or loss from these
operations if it is related 1o businesses or assets.

- IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments:

01 Fanuary 2019

01 Jasveary 2018

01 Jznuary 2018

01 January 2018
01 Januzary 2018

01 Iangary 2019

01 Fapuary 2019

01 January 2019

(1 JIsnuwary 2019

01 Jamuary 2021

No set date

IFRS will replace IAS 39 from the financial year starting on 1 January 2018 and it affects
both financial assets and financial liabilities. The differences with the current standard
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are related to three major blocks: (i) classification and measurement, (ii) value impairment
and (ii1) hedge accounting. The Group is carrying out a preliminary analysis on the
impacts that [FRS 9 will have on the consolidated financial statements at 31 December
2017 and the most relevant conclusions obtained from this analysis are the following:

Classification and measurement:

The new asset classification approach is based on the asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the entity’s business model. IFRS 9 includes three financial asset
classifications: (1) amortised cost, (ii) fair value with changes in equity and (iii) fair value
with changes in the income statement. Entities may choose to submit certain equity
instruments in the fair value with changes in equity category without recycling back to
the income statement. The analysis carried out has found that the transition to these
categories would involve a change in nomenclature, but no significant impacts on the
measurement of affected financial assets are expected.

On the other hand, in relation to the contractual amendments of financial liabilities which
in accordance with IAS 39 were not de-recognised from the balance sheet as they were
considered to be non-substantial amendments, the new standard provides that they should
be accounted for as a change in the estimate of the liability’s contractual cash flows,
maintaining the original effective interest rate and adjusting its value at the date of the
amendment, recording the difference in the income statement. The Acciona Group has
carried out a number of debt refinancing operations in the last few years. The approximate
impact at 1 January 2018 (date standard is first applied) is an 8 million euro reduction in
the carrying amount of the financial liability and an increase in retained earnings.

Value impairment:

The new standard establishes an impairment model based on the expected losses,
compared to incurred losses in the previous model. This new model requires the expected
losses resulting from a “default” event for the next 12 months, or for the life of the
financial instrument according to the evolution of the financial asset’s credit risk since its
initial recognition, to be recognised at the financial asset’s initial recognition date.

The standard also puts forward a simplified model for trade receivable accounts, accounts
receivable for finance leases and assets under IFRS 15, which the Group will use as a
general rule, and which calculates the expected loss over the life of these credits.

The Group is in the process of finalising the complete model of the expected losses. The
analysis carried out has estimated a negative impact of 23 million euros, net of the tax
effect, which will be recognised as a balancing entry in the retained earnings at 1 January
2018 in accordance with the standard.

Hedge accounting:

IFRS 9 seeks to align hedge accounting with company risk management policies, and in
this way the requirements to designate hedging instruments and hedged items are relaxed
and extended. The Group has determined that the existing hedging relationships which
are currently designated as effective ©-*~-- --—"? -~—*"--- <= "> classified as hedges
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under IFRS 9. As IFRS 9 does not change the general principles on how hedges are to be
recognised, the Group does not expect the application of this standard to have a significant
impact.

On applying this new standard, the Group would not re-state comparative figures from
previous years.

- IFRS 15 — Revenue recognition:

IFRS 15 is the new standard for recognising revenue with customers that from 1 January
2018 will replace the following standards and interpretations in force at 31 December
2017:1AS 11 — Construction contracts, IAS 18 — Revenue, IFRIC 13 — Customer loyalty
programmes, IFRIC 15 — Agreements for the construction of Real Estate, IFRIC 18 —
Transfers of assets from Customers and SIC 31 — Revenue - Barter Transaction Involving
Advertising Services.

An initial assessment of the impact of this standard on the scope of the various businesses
has been carried out, including changes to internal policies, information systems and
controls in order to establish practical criteria to be applied. The main effects with impacts
have been identified for the Construction, Water and Services divisions, and they are
related to: (i) the customers’ level of acceptance in relation to the work performed, (ii)
the identification of different obligations when undertaking long-term contracts, and (iii)
the treatment of incremental costs of obtaining a contract.

Customers’ level of acceptance in relation to the work performed

IFRS 15 requires approval from the Customer (in writing, by oral agreement or implicitly
following traditional business practices), stating that “... a contract modification is a
change in the scope or the price of a contract (or both) that the Parties to the contract
approve... There is a modification to the contract when the parties approve a modification
that creates new rights and obligations or changes in the existing ones”.

For those cases in which the assessment of the approved modification is pending, the
standard provides that the income is recognised by an amount for which it is highly likely
that a significant reversal of the cumulative amount of ordinary revenue recognised would
not be produced when the uncertainty is resolved in the future. This criterion is more
demanding that the requirement of IAS 11 and IAS 19 which establish that there should
be a probability that the customer will approve the contract modification. Therefore, there
will be a delay in recognising the revenue in comparison with the current standard.

Identification of different obligations when undertaking long-term contracts

IFRS 15 pays special attention to the identification and separation of the different
commitments when transferring goods or services referred to in a contract. This implies
that the revenue recognised for each of the obligations that can be identified individually
within the same main contract be carried out separately instead of treating them as a single
contract. This separation of the different performance obligations, as defined in IFRS 15,
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affects a number of contracts in which up to now the various contract elements had been
grouped together and the combined margin recorded.

Treatment of incremental costs of obtaining a contract

IFRS 15 establishes that the only capitalised costs associated with obtaining a contract
with a customer of those which the entity would not have incurred if they had not obtained
the contract. This implies that certain bidding costs capitalised at the close of the financial
year must be reversed and charged to the reserves as they do not comply with the
definition of incremental costs established in the standard.

The analysis carried out has initially estimated a negative impact of 390 million euros,
net of the tax effect, which will be recognised as a balancing entry in the retained earnings
at 1 January 2018 in accordance with the standard.

On applying this new standard, the Group would not re-state comparative figures from
previous years.

- 1IFRS 16 - Leases:

[FRS 16 - Leases will replace IAS 17 — Leases in the financial years beginning on or after
1 January 2019. This new standard provides for the lessec a single accounting model
where all the leases (leases of little value and those covering a period shorter than twelve
months can be excluded) will be recognised on the balance sheet in a similar manner to
current finance leases (recognising finance cost for the amortised cost of the liability and
depreciation for the right of use). For the lessor a dual model based on current IAS 17 is
maintained and leases will be finance or operating.

The Group has not yet completed the analysis of the effects of this standard. The expected
theoretical impact will be potentially in line with the analyses published by different
accounting experts in relation to increases in assets and financial liabilities for the future
payment obligations associated with operating leases. The mandatory date of application
15 2019 and the Group does not anticipate early application.

Except for the impacts of the standards indicated in the paragraphs above, the Group’s
Directors do not anticipate any significant changes to arise as a result of the introduction
of the other standards, amendments and interpretations published but not yet in force,
since they are applications to be applied prospectively, amendments related to
presentation and disclosure issues and/or matters that are not applicable to the Group’s
operations.

4.2 Measurement standards
The main measurement standards applied in the preparation of the Group’s consolidated

financial statements, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as adopted by the European Union, were as follows:



TRANSLATION

A) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment acquired for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes are stated on the consolidated balance sheet at the
lower of acquisition or production cost less any accumulated depreciation and their
recoverable amounts.

The costs of expansion, modernisation or improvements leading to increased
productivity, capacity or efficiency or to a lengthening of the useful lives of the assets are
capitalised. Acquisition cost includes professional fees and borrowing costs incurred
during the construction period that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use. The finance costs relating to this funding
used for the construction of these assets are entirely capitalised during their construction.

The acquisition cost of elements acquired before 31 December 2003 includes any asset
revaluations permitted in the various countries to adjust the value of the property, plant
and equipment due to the effect of inflation until that date.

The balances of assets retired as a result of modernisation or for any other reason are de-
recognised from the related cost and accumulated depreciation accounts.

In-house work done by the Group on its own property, plant and equipment is recognised
at accumulated cost (external costs plus internal costs calculated on the basis of in-house
consumption of warehouse materials and manufacturing costs incurred). At 31 December
2017 “other income” on the accompanying consolidated income statement recorded the
amount of 351 million euros for work done by the Group on its own property, plant and
equipment, mostly related to wind projects developed in Chile, India, Mexico and
Australia, and a photovoltaic project in Chile.

Upkeep and maintenance costs are charged to the consolidated income statement for the
year in which they are incurred.

Generally, depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method, on the basis of the
acquisition cost of the assets less their residual value, it is understood that the land on
which the buildings and other structures stand have an indefinite useful life and, therefore,
is not depreciated. The Group companies depreciate their property, plant and equipment
over the years of estimated useful life. The annual depreciation rates applicable in 2017
were as follows:
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Annual depreciation rates

Buildings 2-10%
Special facilities:

Wind farms 4%
Hydroclectric power plants I-4%
Biomass plants 4%
Solar thermal plants 3.33%
Photovoltaic solar plants 4%
Vessels (*) 5-6%
Remaining plant 3-30%

Machinery 5-33%
Furniture 5-33%
Computer hardware 13-33%
Transport equipment 7-25%
Other property, plant and equipment 2-33%

(*) It should be noted that Acciona Group, based on an analysis using internal information
sources, has made a new estimate of the useful life of the subgroup Trasmediterranea’s
cargo vessels, passenger ships and high-speed vessels, increasing it from 15 to 25 years
for fast ferry vessels and from 20 to 25 years for the remaining vessels. Consequently, the
“Depreciation and amortisation charge” in the consolidated income statement includes
the impact of this change in estimate from 1 January 2017, which has resulted in a lower
amortisation of 2 million euros.

The consolidated companies recognise in the books any loss that may have occurred in
the registered value of these assets due to their impairment, and the heading “result due
to impairment of assets” on the consolidated income statement is used as balancing entry.
The criteria to recognise the impairment losses of these assets and, if appropriate, the loss
recoveries that might occur subsequently are detailed in section E) in this note.

Finance leases

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are recognised in the
corresponding asset category and are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the

same basis as owned assets.

B) Investment property

“Investment Property” on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet reflects the net
values (i.e. less any accumulated depreciation) of the land, buildings and other structures
held either to earn rentals or for capital appreciation on their sale.

Investment property is stated at acquisition cost and for all purposes the Group applies
the same policies as those used for property, plant and equipment of the same kind.

Each year the Group determines the fair value of its investment property with the support
of appraisals undertaken by independent experts (see Note 6).

i 2 2t i s
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Investment property is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the years of estimated
useful life of the assets, which constitutes the period over which the Group companies
expect to use them. The average depreciation rate is as follows:

Annual depreciation rate

Buildings held for rental 2-5%
O Goodwill

As part of the process carried out in a business combination, the existing excess between
the given consideration, plus the allocated value to non-dominant stake holdings and the
net amount of the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed measured at fair value are
recognised as goodwill. If applicable, the shortcoming after measuring the given
consideration, the value assigned to non-dominant stake holdings and the identification
and measurement of the net amount of the assets acquired at fair value is recognised in
the profit/(loss).

The assets and liabilities acquired are measured provisionally at the date on which control
is acquired, and the resulting value is reviewed no later than one year from the date of
acquisition.

Goodwill is not amortised, but impairment is verified each year, or before then if there
are signs of a potential loss of asset value. For these purposes, the goodwill resulting from
the business combination is assigned to each of the Cash-Generating Units (CGU) or
groups of CGUs that belong to the Group which are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination. After the initial recognition, goodwill is measured at its cost less the
accumulated impairment losses.

Goodwill generated internally is not recognised as an asset. Goodwill is only recognised
when it has been acquired for a consideration and represents, therefore, a payment made
by the buyer in anticipation of future economic benefits from assets of the acquired
company that are not individually and separately identifiable and recognisable.

Goodwill arising in the acquisition of companies with a functional currency other than
the euro is translated to ecuros at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the

consolidated balance sheet.

D) Other intangible assets

Intangible assets are recognised initially at acquisition or production cost and are
subsequently measured at cost less, if applicable, any accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised over those useful lives using
methods similar to those used to depreciate property, plant and equipment. The
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amortisation rates, which were determined on the basis of the average years of estimated
useful life of the assets, are basically as follows:

Annual depreeiation rate

Development expenditure 10 - 20%
Administrative concessions 2-25%
L.easehold assignment rights 10 -20%
Computer software 7-33%

The consolidated companies recognise any impairment loss in the carrying amount of
these assets with a charge to “Impairment and profit/(loss) on Disposals of Non-Current
Assets™ on the consolidated income statement. The criteria to recognise the impairment
losses of these assets and, if appropriate, the loss recoveries that might occur subsequently
are detailed in section E) in this note.

Research and development

As a general rule, expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
year in which it is incurred, except in development projects in which an identifiable asset
is created, it is probable that the asset will generate future economic benefits, and the
development cost of the asset can be reliably measured. The Group’s development
expenditure, basically related to the wind power business, is only recognised as an asset
if it is probable that it will generate future economic benefits and the development cost of
the asset can be reliably measured.

Development expenditure is amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful life. Unless
the aforementioned conditions for recognition as an asset are met, development
expenditure is recognised as an expense in the year in which it is incurred.

Administrative concessions

The “Administrative Concessions” line item includes concessions that have been acquired
by the Group for a consideration (in the case of concessions that can be transferred) or
for the amount of the expenses incurred to directly obtain the concession from the
Government or from a public agency. Administrative concessions are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the concession. Appendix V details the duration (and,
therefore, amortisation) of the main concessions.

Intangible assels in infrastructure projects

Since the adoption of IFRIC 12, the Acciona Group has included under “Intangible Assets
in Infrastructure Projects”, the intangible assets associated with concessions in which the
demand risk is borne by the operator. This type of concession-related activity is carried
out through investments mainly in transport and water supply infrastructure that is
operated by subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities or associates (concession operators),
the main characteristics being as follows:

- The concession infrastructure is owned by the grantor in most cases.
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- The concession grantor, which can be a public or private sector entity, controls or
regulates the service offered by the concession operator and the conditions under which it
should be provided.

- The infrastructure is operated by the concession operator as established in the concession
tender specifications for an established concession term. At the end of this period, the
assets are handed over to the concession grantor, and the concession operator has no right
whatsoever over these assets.

- The concession operator receives revenue for the services provided either directly from
the users or through the concession grantor.

The most significant accounting criteria applied by the Acciona Group in relation to these
concession arrangements are as follows:

- Capitalisation of the borrowing costs incurred during the construction period and non-
capitalisation of the borrowing costs subsequent to the entry into service of the related
assets.

- Amortisation of the concession infrastructure on a straight-line basis over the concession
term.

- Concession operators amortise these assets so that the carrying amount of the investment
made plus the costs considered necessary to return the assets in working order is zero at
the end of the concession term.

- Practically in all the concessions of the Acciona Group, the construction work was
carried out by Group companies. In this regard, the income and expenses corresponding
to infrastructure construction or upgrade services are recognised at their gross amount
(recognition of the sales and the cost of sales on the consolidated financial statements of
the Acciona Group), with the construction margin recognised on the consolidated financial
statements. If construction were not carried out by the Group itself, this fact would be
considered for the purpose of recognising sales and the cost of sales on the consolidated
financial statements. No adjustment was necessary in 2017 for this reason.

Computer software
The acquisition and development costs incurred in relation to the basic computer systems
used in the Group’s management are recognised at acquisition cost with a charge to

“Other Intangible Assets” on the consolidated balance sheet.

Computer system maintenance costs are recognised with a charge to the consolidated
income statement for the year in which they are incurred.

E) Impairment of non-current assets

At the closing date of each balance sheet, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets, to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets might have sustained an impairment loss.
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If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the value impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not
generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the smallest identifiable cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or
cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but
in such a way that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or cash-generating unit) in previous years.

At the end of each reporting period, goodwill is reviewed for impairment (i.e. a reduction
in its recoverable amount to below its carrying amount) and any impairment is written
down with a charge to “Impairment and profit/(loss) on Disposals of Non-Current Assets”
on the consolidated income statement. Impairment losses recognised for goodwill do not
reverse in a subsequent period.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. The
methodology used to estimate value in use varies on the basis of the type of asset in
question. For these purposes, the Group considers three types of assets: investment
property (assets held to earn rentals), goodwill of companies and assets of a limited
duration (primarily assets related to electricity production and infrastructure
concessions); the way they are measured is explained below. Similarly, due to its
specificity, the following paragraphs explain how the recoverable value is estimated for
the vessels from the Compaiiia Trasmediterranea. S.A. subgroup.

Real estate assets (assets held to earn rentals and inventories)

The Group’s real estate investment relates to properties earmarked for lease. The fair
value at 31 December 2017 of the Group’s real estate investment was calculated with the
support of valuations conducted at that date by “Aguirre Newman Valoraciones y
Tasaciones, S.A.” (its report was issued on 31/12/2017), and Savills Consultores
Inmobiliarios S.A. (its report was issued on 16/02/2018).

Assets of this type are measured by updating the rents at rates that vary on the basis of
the type of building earmarked for lease and of the specific characteristics of the
buildings. In proportion to their carrying amounts, the assets held to earn rentals may be
classified as residential for rent (22.59%), offices (48.66%), land for development
(15.10%) and other property (13.65%) (housing, car parks, etc.) The update rates used for
each type of property lie in the following ranges: residential property for rent (6-8%),
offices (7.25-10%) and other property {8-11%).

The method used to calculate the market value of investment goods consists in preparing
ten-year forecasts for the income and expenses of each asset that will then be updated at
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the date of the statement of financial position, through a market discount rate. The residual
amount at the end of the tenth year is calculated by applying a yield rate (“exit yield” or
cap rate”) from the forecasts for net income in the eleventh year. The market values thus
obtained are analysed through calculation and analysis of the capitalisation of the yield
implicit in these values. The forecasts are used to reflect the best estimate of income and
expenses of property assets over the future. The yield rate and the discount rate are defined
according to the domestic market; the reasonability of the market value thus obtained is
proved in terms of initial gain.

To calculate the fair value of land, the residual method was applied. This method consists
in estimating the value of the final product on the basis of the comparison or cash flow
discount method, and the development costs are taken off this value. Development costs
include the cost or urbanisation, construction, fees, levies and all the costs needed to carry
out the projected development. Revenue and costs are distributed over time according to
the development and sale periods estimated by the appraiser. The update rate used is the
rate representing the annual average yield of the project, and the external financing that
would be required by an average developer for a development of the characteristics of the
development analysed is not considered. This update rate is calculated by adding the risk
premium (determined through the risk assessment of the development, with the type of
property asset to build, its location, liquidity, term of construction and amount of required
investment being considered) to the free-risk rate. Where in the determination of the cash
flows external financing is considered, the risk premium mentioned above increases
depending on the percentage of said financing (leverage level) attributed to the project
and on the usual interest rates on the mortgage market.

Taking the valuations made as a benchmark, the related impairment if any is booked and
recognised in “Impairment and profit/loss on disposal of non-current assets” on the
income statement (see Note 6).

Goodwill of companies

The impairment test takes into consideration the cash-generating units’ overall capacity
to generate future cash flows.

The Group prepares five-year forecasts of projected cash flows, including the best
available estimates of income and expenses for the cash-generating units, using industry
projections, past experience and future expectations.

Also, a residual value is calculated on the basis of the normalised cash flows of the last
year of the forecast, to which a perpetuity growth rate is applied which under no
circumstances exceeds the growth rates of previous years or those estimated in the long
term for the market where the cash generating unit is located. The cash flow used to
calculate residual value considers the replacement investments required for the continuity
of the business in the future at the estimated growth rate.

The weighted average cost of capital (WACC) is used to discount cash flows, which will

depend on the type of business and on the market in which it is carried on. The average
leverage during the projection period is considered in the calculation of the WACC.

- Page3§ -



TRANSLATION

Other items calculated include: i) the effective cost of borrowings, which takes into
account the tax shield that they give rise to, based on the average tax rates in each country;
and i1) the estimated cost of equity based on a risk-free interest rate, (generally using as a
benchmark the return on a ten-year bond in each market), the beta (which factors in the
leverage and the risk associated with the asset), and a market premium (estimated on the
basis of historical yields on the capital markets). These variables are tested using recent
studies on premiums required at long term, comparable companies in the industry and
rates habitually used by investment banks.

At 31 December 2017 the impairment tests implemented did not show the need to register
impairment (see Note 7).

Non-current assets in projects

This line item includes concession assets and projects with a limited duration and
characterised by having a contractual structure that makes it possible for the costs incurred
in the project to be clearly determined (both at the initial investment stage and at the
operating phase) and the related revenue to be reasonably projected over the life of the
project (basically property, plant and equipment from the energy division). They are
registered under property, plant and equipment (mainly under electric power generation
facilities) and in other intangible assets under intangible concessions (IFRIC 12).

To calculate the value in use of assets of this nature, the expected cash flows are projected
until the end of the life of the asset. Therefore, it is assumed that there is no terminal
value. This is possible because:

e These assets have a stable long-term production, thus making it possible for
reliable long-term estimates to be made.

e There are extensive series of historical data from reliable external sources.

¢ In connection with the energy division, the estimates of prices used by the Acciona
Group for revenue determination (pool price) are based on a profound
understanding of the market and on the analysis of the parameters determining
pool prices.

e The operating costs are known and with scant variability.

e Most of them have been financed with long-term debt with known and constant
terms and conditions that make it possible to forecast easily the necessary
outflows of cash 1o cover the debt service.

The projections include both known data (based on project contracts) and basic
assumptions supported by specific studies performed by experts or by historical data (on
demand, production, etc.). Also, macroeconomic data, such as inflation, interest rates,
etc., are projected using data provided by independent specialist sources (e.g.
Bloomberg).

The discounted cash flows are those obtained by the shareholder after servicing the debt.
The rates used to discount these cash flows are based on the cost of equity, and in each
case include the business risk and the sovereign risk relating to the location where the
operation is being performed.
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At 31 December 2017, the Acciona Group recognised the amount of 13 million euros in
“Impairment and profit/(loss) on disposal of assets” on the accompanying consolidated
income statement in accordance with these analyses carried out for a concession asset in
Brazil, as mentioned in Note 8.

Property, plant and equipment — Other plant: vessels

To calculate the recoverable amount of the ships from the Compaiiia Trasmediterranea,
S.A. subgroup, the specific characteristics of the market for seagoing vessels are taken
into account; it’s a narrow market where the specific features of each ship is particularly
important, as they are not built on a production line but tailor-made for certain types of
traffic; their value depends on the year and country of construction, ramps, linear metres,
height of the hold, passenger capacity, speed, etc., so the measurement of value usually
takes into account comparable market features through the international brokers the
Group works with (see Note 5). It should be noted that the Group’s vessels have been
reclassified under the line “Non-current assets held for sale” (see Note 23).

F) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset to the lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Finance leases

When the consolidated companies act as the lessee, they disclose the cost of the leased
assets on the consolidated balance sheet, based on the nature of the leased asset, and,
simultaneously, recognise a liability for the same amount (which will be the lower of the
fair value of the leased asset and the aggregate present values of the amounts payable to
the lessor plus, where applicable, the price of exercising the purchase option). These
assets are depreciated using the same criteria as those applied to similar items of property,
plant and equipment that are owned.

The finance charges arising under finance leases are charged to the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the leases.

Operating leases

In operating leases, the ownership of the leased asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards relating to the leased assets remain with the lessor, which recognises the assets
at their acquisition cost.

These assets are depreciated using a policy consistent with the lessor’s normal
depreciation policy for similar items and lease income is recognised on the income
statement on a straight-line basis.

When the consolidated companies act as the lessee, lease costs, including any incentives
granted by the lessor, are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis on their income
statcments.
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Amounts received and receivable as incentives for the arrangement of operating leases
are also recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

G) Non-current receivables and other non-current assets

“Non-Current Receivables and Other Non-Current Assets” includes the non-current trade
receivables, mainly from public authorities, and withholdings from trade receivables,
mainly from the Infrastructure Construction division.

Since the Acciona Group adopted IFRIC 12, it has recognised under “Other Non-Current
Assets” non-current assets associated with concessions in which the grantor guarantees
the demand risk is mitigated through the payment of a quantified or quantifiable amount,
and where, therefore, the operator does not bear any demand risk.

This type of concession-related activity was carried on through investments mainly in
transport, water supply and hospital infrastructure operated by subsidiaries, jointly
controlled entities or associates (concession operators), the detail being as follows:

- The concession infrastructure is owned by the grantor in most cases.

- The concession grantor, which can be a public or private sector entity, controls or
regulates the service offered by the concession operator and the conditions under which it
should be provided.

- The infrastructure is operated by the concession operator as established in the concession
tender specifications for an established concession term. At the end of this period, the
assets are handed over to the concession grantor, and the concession operator has no right
whatsoever over these assets.

- The concession operator receives revenue for the services provided either directly from
the users or through the concession grantor.

The most significant accounting criteria applied by the Acciona Group in relation to these
concession arrangements are as follows:

- The account receivable is recognised for the present value of the amount receivable from
the grantor.

- Borrowing costs are not capitalised, either during the construction phase or after the
concession has started to operate.

- The Group recognises interest income earned on the financial asset, even during the
construction phase, by applying the effective interest rate of the financial asset. This
income is recognised in the net revenue.

- Practically in all the concessions of the Acciona Group, the construction work was
carried out by Group companies. In this regard, the income and expenses corresponding
to infrastructure construction or upgrade services are recognised at their gross amount
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(recognition of the sales and the cost of sales on the consolidated financial statements of
the Acciona Group), with the construction margin recognised on the consolidated financial
statements. If construction were not carried out by the Group itself, this fact would be
considered for the purpose of recognising sales and the cost of sales on the consolidated
financial statements.

- There is no depreciation or amortisation charge since the arrangements constitute a
financial asset.

- Annual billings are divided into a financial asset component recognised on the balance
sheet (and, therefore, not recognised as sales) and the component relating to services

provided, which is recognised under “Revenue”.

H) Financial instrument disclosures

The qualitative and quantitative disclosures in the financial statements regarding financial
instruments and risk and capital management are detailed in the following notes:

- Financial asset and liability categories, including derivative financial instruments
and accounting policies are detailed in Note 4.2 1).

- Classification of the fair value measurements of financial assets and for derivative
financial instruments consistent with the fair value hierarchy established in IFRS 7,
detailed in Note 4.2 1).

- Disclosure requirements (qualitative and quantitative information) regarding the
capital are detailed in Note 16 g).

- Risk accounting and management policies are detailed in Note 19.

- Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting are detailed in Note 20.

- Transfers from equity to the year’s profit or loss, for settlements of hedging
derivative financial instrument transactions, are detailed in Note 28.

)] Financial instruments

Non-current and current financial assets excluding hedging derivatives

The financial assets held by the Group companies are classified in the following way:

- Loans and receivables: financial assets originated by the companies in exchange for
supplying cash, goods or services directly to a debtor. These items are measured at
amortised cost, which is basically the initial market value, less principal repayments,
plus the accrued interest receivable calculated using the effective interest method. This
category is comprised practically in its entirety of the assets recorded in “Trade and
other accounts receivable” and “Loans and credits to companies accounted for using
the equity method”.

- Cash and cash equivalents: this item comprises both cash and bank deposits on demand.

Other cash equivalents comprise short-term investments, with maturity under three
months, and not subject to a relevant risk of change in value.
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- Held-to-maturity investments: assets with quantified or quantifiable payments and
fixed maturity. The Group has the positive intention and ability to hold them from the
date of purchase to the date of maturity. This category includes mainly short-term
deposits, which are booked at amortised cost, as indicated above, and deposits and
guarantees.

- Available-for-sale financial assets: these relate to securities acquired that are not
classified in the other categories; almost all of them relate to investments in the capital
of companies. They are measured:

- In the case of shareholdings in unlisted companies, given that the fair value cannot
always be reliably determined, at acquisition cost, adjusted for any impairment
losses disclosed. The main criterion applied by the Acciona Group to determine if
there is objective evidence of impairment is to have incurred significant or
permanent losses in the investee.

- At fair value when it is possible to determine it reliably, either through the market
price or, in the absence thereof, using the price established in recent transactions
or the discounted present value of the future cash flows. The gains and losses from
changes in fair value are recognised directly in equity until the asset is disposed
of, at which time the cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in equity
are recognised on the income statement for the year. If the fair value is lower than
the acquisition cost and there is objective evidence that the asset has sustained an
impairment loss that cannot be considered reversible, the difference is recognised
directly on the consolidated income statement.

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the available-for-sale financial assets were
measured by reference to quoted (unadjusted) market prices and categorised in
level one of the hierarchy established in IFRS 7.

In financial years 2017 and 2016, no financial assets were reclassified among the
categories defined in the foregoing paragraphs.

Purchases and sales of financial assets are booked using the trade date method.

Transfers of financial assets

The Acciona Group de-recognises financial assets when they expire or when the rights to
the cash flows from the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership have also been transferred, such as in the case of firm asset sales, factoring of
trade receivables in which the company does not retain any credit or interest rate risk,
sales of financial assets under an agreement to repurchase them at fair value and the
securitisation of financial assets in which the transferor does not retain any subordinate
financing or award any kind of guarantee or assume any other kind of risk.

Bank borrowings other than derivatives
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Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recognised at the amount received, net of
direct issue costs. Borrowing costs, including premiums payable on settlement or
redemption and direct issue costs, are recognised in the income statement on an accrual
basis using the effective interest method and are added to the carrying amount of the
instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the period in which they arise. In
subsequent periods, these obligations are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

In specific cases where liabilities are the underlying of a fair value hedge, they are
measured, exceptionally, at fair value for the portion of the hedged risk.

The Group writes off financial liabilities or part of them when the obligations contained
therein expire, or when it is legally released from the main responsibility of the liability
through a legal process or by the creditor.

The exchange of debt instruments between Group and the counterparty, or substantial
modifications to the liabilities that had initially been recognised, are accounted for as the
cancellation of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial
liability, whenever the instruments have substantially different terms.

The Group considers the terms to be substantially different if the discounted present value
of the cash flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received
and discounted using the original effective interest rate, is at least 10 per cent different
from the discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial
liability.

If the exchange is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability,
then any costs or fees incurred are recognised as part of the profit or loss. Otherwise, the
cash flows are discounted at the original effective interest rate and any difference with
the previous carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss. In addition, the costs or fees
adjust the carrying amount of the liability and are amortised over the remaining term of
the modified liability.

The Group recognises the difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability
(or part thereof) extinguished or transferred to a third party and the consideration paid,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed in profit or loss.

The Group also applies this accounting treatment to debt renegotiations arising from
agreements with creditors, recognising the effect of them at the date the agreement is
legally approved. Positive results are recognised under “financial income arising from
agreements with creditors” in the consolidated income statement.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Because of its activities, the Group is mainly exposed to the financial risks derived from
fluctuations in foreign exchange rates and interest rates and in certain fuel stocks and fuel
supplies. The Group uses foreign exchange forward contracts and interest rate swap
contracts to hedge these exposures. Electricity and fuel price and supply hedging
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transactions are also arranged. The Group does not use derivative financial instruments
for speculative purposes.

The use of financial derivatives is governed by the Group’s policies approved by the
Board of Directors.

Accounting policies:

Derivatives are recognised at fair value (see measurement bases below) at the
consolidated balance sheet date under “Other Current Financial Assets” or “Non-Current
Financial Assets” if positive and under “Bank Borrowings” (both current and non-
current) if negative. Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments are
recognised on the consolidated income statement as they arise. If the derivative has been
designated as a hedge which is highly effective, it is recognised as follows:

- Fair value hedges: these hedges are arranged to fully or partially reduce the risk of
fluctuations in the value of assets and liabilities (underlying) recognised on the
consolidated balance sheet. The portion of the underlying for which the risk is being
hedged is measured at fair value, as is the related hedging instrument, and changes in
the fair values of both items are recognised under the same heading on the consolidated
income statement. At 31 December 2017, the Group had no fair value hedges.

- Cash flow hedges: these hedges are arranged to reduce the risk of potential changes in
the cash flows associated with the interest payments on non-current floating-rate
financial liabilities, exchange rates and fuel stock and fuel hedges. Changes in the fair
value of derivatives are recognised, with respect to the effective portion of the hedge,
in “Reserves - Value Adjustments” under equity. The cumulative gain or loss
recognised in this heading is transferred to the consolidated income statement to the
extent of the impact of the underlying (resulting from the risk hedged) on the
consolidated income statement; thus, this effect is netted off under the same heading
on the consolidated income statement. Gains or losses on the ineffective portion of the
hedges are recognised directly on the consolidated income statement.

- Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation: changes in fair value are recognised,
in respect of the effective portion of these hedges, net of the related tax effect, as
“Translation Differences” in equity, and are transferred to the consolidated income
statement when the hedged investment is disposed of. At 31 December 2017, the
Group had no hedges relating to net investments in a foreign operation.

Group policy on hedging:

At the inception of the transaction, the Group designates and formally documents the
hedging relationship and the objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. Hedges are
only recognised when the hedging relationship is expected, prospectively, to be highly
effective from inception and in subsequent years it will be effective to offset the changes
in the fair value or cash flows of the hedged item during the life of the hedge and,
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retrospectively, that the actual effectiveness of the hedge, which can be reliably
calculated, is within a range of 80 - 125% of the gain or loss on the hedged item.

The Group does not hedge projected transactions, but rather only firm financing
commitments. If the cash flows from projected transactions were hedged, the Group
would assess whether such transactions were highly probable and whether they were
exposed to changes in cash flows that could ultimately affect the year’s profit or loss.

If the cash flow hedge of a firm commitment or projected transaction results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, then, at the time the asset
or liability is recognised, the associated gains or losses on the derivative that had
previously been recognised in equity are included in the initial measurement of the asset
or liability. For hedges that do not result in recognition of a non-financial asset or liability,
amounts deferred in equity are recognised in the income statement in the same period as
that in which the hedged item affects net profit or loss.

Compound financial instruments with multiple embedded derivatives

The Acciona Group does not have any compound financial instruments with embedded
derivatives.

Measurement and adjustment for credit risk bases

The Group measures derivatives not traded on an organised market (OTC) by discounting
the expected cash flows and using generally accepted option pricing models based on spot
and futures market conditions at the closing date of every financial year. The fair value
calculations for each type of financial instrument are as follows:

- Interest rate swaps are valued by discounting future settlements between fixed and
floating interest rates to their present value, in line with implicit market rates,
obtained from long-term interest rate swap curves. Implicit volatility is used to
calculate the fair values of caps and floors using option pricing models.

- Foreign currency hedging and option contracts are valued using the spot
exchange rate, forward spots of the related currencies and, in the case of options,
implicit volatility until maturity.

- Commodities contracts (for fuel) are valued in a similar way, in this case, taking
into account the futures prices of the underlying and the implicit volatility of the
options.

In order to determine the adjustment for credit risk in the measurement of derivatives at
31 December 2017, the technique applied was based on a calculation through simulations
of the total expected exposure (incorporating both the actual and the potential exposure)
adjusted in line with the probability of default over time and the severity (or potential
loss) assigned to the Company and to each of the counterparties.

More specifically, the adjustment for credit risk was obtained from the following formula:
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EAD * PD * LGD, where

- EAD: Exposure at default at any given moment. This is calculated through the
simulation of scenarios with market price curves.

- PD: Probability of default, i.e., that one or other of the counterparties may fail to
fulfil its payment obligations at any given moment.

- LGD: Loss given default with a severity = 1- (recovery rate): The percentage of
losses ultimately occurring when one of the counterparties has incurred default.

The total expected exposure from derivatives is obtained using observable market inputs,
such as interest curves, exchange rates and volatilities depending on the market conditions
on the measurement date.

The inputs applied to obtain credit risk and counterparty risk (determination of the
probability of default) are mainly based on the application of credit spreads of the
Company or other comparable businesses currently traded on the market (CDS curves,
IRR of debt issues). In the absence of credit spreads of the Company or other comparable
businesses and in order to maximise the use of relevant observable variables, the listed
references considered are those considered most suitable in each case (listed credit spread
indices). For counterparties with credit information available, the credit spreads used are
obtained from the Credit Default Swaps (CDS) listed on the market.

Furthermore, for the fair value (adjustment of the market value to the bilateral credit risk),
consideration has been given to the credit enhancements in terms of collateral or
guarantees when determining the severity rate to be applied to each position. Severity is
considered to be unique over time. If there are no credit enhancements in terms of
collateral or guarantees, a standard market recovery rate has been applied which
corresponds to a senior unsecured debt of 40%. Nonetheless, this recovery rate would
range between 71.40% and 90.60%, depending on the degree of progress in the project
(construction or operation phase), and its geographical area (Western Europe, Eastern
Europe, North America, Latin America, Oceania and Africa), for derivatives contracted
under Project Finance structures.

The measurements at fair value made over the different derivative financial instruments
including the information used for the calculation of the adjustment for credit risk of both
the Company and its counterparty are classified at level 2 in the fair value hierarchy
established in IFRS 7 as the inputs based on prices listed for similar instruments on active
markets (not included in level 1), listed prices for identical or similar instruments on
markets that are not active, and techniques based on valuation models for which all the
significant inputs are observable on the market or can be corroborated by observable
market data.

Although the Acciona Group has determined that most of the inputs used to evaluate the
derivatives are at level 2 in the fair value hierarchy, the credit risk adjustments use level 3
inputs such as the credit estimations based on the credit rating or comparable companies
to assess the probability of insolvency for the Company or its counterparty. The Group
has assessed the relevance of the credit risk adjustments for the total valuation of the
derivative financial instruments and has concluded that they are not material.
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Trade payables

Trade payables are not interest bearing and are stated at their nominal value, which does
not differ substantially from their fair value.

Trade payables include unpaid balances to suppliers which are handled through
confirming contracts with financial entities and, in the same way, payments related
thereto are classified as transaction flows, since these transactions do not include either
special guarantees given as pledge for the payments to be made or modifications that
change the commercial nature of the transactions.

Current/Non-current classification

On the accompanying consolidated balance sheet, assets and liabilities maturing within
no more than twelve months are generally classified as current items and those maturing
within more than twelve months are classified as non-current items. However, the
companies in the Real Estate division classify them based on the operation cycle, which
is usually greater than one year. The current assets and liabilities allocated to this division
with an estimated maturity of more than twelve months are as follows:

Thousand euros

) 2017 2016
Inventories 414,273 366,835
Trade receivables -- -
Total current assets 414,273 366,835
Bank borrowings 9.375 6.491
Other current liabilities 8,627 5,723
Total current liabilities 18,002 12,214

Loans that mature in the short term but whose long-term refinancing is, at the Group’s
discretion, ensured through available long-term credit facilities are classified as non-
current liabilities.

1)) Inventories
The Group companies measure their inventories as follows:

- In the Construction business, procurements, consisting basically of construction
materials located at the sites of the various construction projects in progress, are
measured at acquisition cost. Semi-finished goods or work in progress to be included
in the value of the construction projects are recognised at production cost.

- In the real estate business, land is measured at acquisition cost, plus urban
development costs, if any, purchase transaction costs and borrowing costs incurred
from the date of commencement of the development of the site for its desired use
until construction begins, or at their estimated market value, whichever is the lower.
If the building work is halted due to its rescheduling or other reasons, the borrowing
costs cease to be capitalised.
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The costs incurred in property developments or part thereof whose construction has
not been completed at the closing date of the financial year are treated as inventories.
These costs include land, urban development and construction costs, capitalised
borrowing costs incurred in the construction period, and other allocable direct and
indirect costs. Commercial costs are charged to the income statement in the year in
which they are incurred.

In financial year 2017, the capitalised borrowing costs in inventories came to 672
thousand euros, the capitalised amount not being significant for this line item during
financial year 2016 (see Note 28).

- Other inventories are recognised generally at the lower of weighted average cost and
net realisable value. These inventories can, on a residual basis, be measured at FIFO
cost.

As regards real estate inventories, the Group’s Directors estimate their fair value at the
end of every year on the basis of the valuations carried out by independent experts “Savills
Consultores Inmobiliarios, S.A.”, whose report was issued on 16/02/2018, and “CB
Richard Ellis, S.A.”, whose report was issued on 16/02/2018, allocating if necessary
provisions for impairment when the properties are found to be overvalued.

The valuations were carried out in accordance with the Appraisal and Valuation Standards
issued by the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) of Great Britain and the
International Valuation Standards (IVS) issued by the International Valuation Standards
Committee (IVSC). The residual method was used to calculate the fair value,
supplemented by the comparative method.

Whenever there is a reasonable change in the basic assumptions that affect the recoverable
amount of the assets, the Group performs a sensitivity analysis to determine whether this
change may reduce the realisable value to below the carrying amount, in which case, an
impairment loss is recognised.

K) Treasury shares

At 31 December 2017, Acciona, S.A. held 45,702 treasury shares representing 0.0798%
of the share capital at the time. The acquisition cost of these shares amounted to 3,146
thousand euros. The acquisition cost of the treasury shares and the gains or losses on
transactions involving them were recognised directly in equity (see Note 16).

At 31 December 2016, Acciona, S.A. and its subsidiary Finanzas Dos, S.A. held 233,898
treasury shares representing 0.4085% of the share capital at that date. The acquisition cost

of these shares amounted to 14,403 thousand curos.

L) Termination benefits

Under the legislation for the time being in force, the Spanish consolidated companies and
certain foreign companies are required to pay termination benefits to employees
dismissed on unfair grounds. The Acciona Group companies do not currently have any
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employee termination plans that have not been appropriately provisioned in accordance
with the regulations in force.

M) Provisions

The Group’s consolidated financial statements include all the provisions covering present
obligations at the balance sheet date arising from past events which could give rise to a
loss for the companies, certain as to its nature but uncertain as to its amount and/or timing.
They include all the provisions with respect to which it is considered that it is more likely
than not that the obligation will have to be settled.

Provisions, which are quantified on the basis of the best information available on the
consequences of the event giving rise to them and are reviewed and adjusted at the close
of every accounting period, are used to cater for the specific obligations for which they
were originally recognised. Provisions are fully or partially reversed when such
obligations cease to exist or are reduced.

Litigation and/or claims in process

At the close of financial years 2017 and 2016, certain litigation and claims arising from
the ordinary course of operations were in process against the consolidated companies.
The Group’s Directors, considering the opinion of its legal advisers, consider that the
outcome of litigation and claims will not have a material effect on the consolidated
financial statements for the years in which they are settled. Accordingly, they did not
deem it necessary to record an additional provision in this respect.

Operating provisions and allowances

These provisions and allowances include costs that have not yet been incurred. The
provision for the cost of completion of construction projects is intended to cover the
expenses arising from the date on which project units are completed to the date of delivery
to the client.

Provisions for pensions and similar obligations

Except for the two groups discussed below, the Acciona Group companies do not have
any pension plans to supplement social security pensions. The appropriate provisions are
recognised for terminations of permanent site personnel.

- The collective agreements of certain companies in the Compafiia
Trasmediterranea subgroup establish benefits of specific amounts for employees who
reach retirement age, subject to compliance with the conditions stipulated in these
agreements. These collective agreements also establish a loyalty bonus based on the
employee’s length of service at the companies. The subgroup currently recognises these
obligations at the moment of their effective payment; the cost recognised for these
commitments in 2017 and 2016 were 5 thousand euros and 8 thousand euros, respectively.
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On 15 December 2002, pursuant to Royal Decree 1588/1999, of 15 October, Compaiiia
Trasmediterranea externalised its employee retirement benefit obligations by arranging a
single-premium insurance policy. The cost recognised at 31 December 2017 and 2016
relating to the amounts payable to the insurance company for the benefit obligations
accrued in these two years amounted to 281 and 346 thousand euros, respectively, and
this amount was recognised under “Wages and Salaries” on the accompanying
consolidated income statement.

- Certain companies from Acciona Group entered into or were subrogated to
collective agreements that establish benefits of specific amounts for employees included
in such agreements that reach retirement age, provided that the conditions established in
the agreements are met. Some of these collective agreements also establish a loyalty
bonus based on the employee’s length of service at the companies. The impact of these
obligations is not material.

These companies have various pension obligations to their employees. These defined
benefit obligations are basically formalised in pension plans, except as regards certain
benefits in kind, mainly electricity supply commitments, which, due to their nature, have
not been externalised and are covered by the related in-house provisions.

For the defined benefit plans, the companies recognise the expenditure relating to these
obligations on an accrual basis over the working life of the employees by performing at
the consolidated balance sheet date the appropriate actuarial studies calculated using the
projected unit credit method. The past service costs relating to changes in benefits are
recognised immediately on the consolidated income statement as the benefits are accrued.

The defined benefit plan obligations represent the present value of the accrued benefits
after deducting the fair value of the qualifying plan assets. The actuarial losses and gains
arising in the measurement of both the plan liabilities and the plan assets are recognised
directly in equity under “Reserves - Change due to Actuarial Losses and Gains on Pension
Schemes”.

For each of the plans, any positive difference between the actuarial liability for past
services and the plan assets is recognised under “Provisions” on the consolidated balance
sheet and any negative difference is recognised under “Trade and Other Receivables” on
the asset side of the consolidated balance sheet, provided that such negative difference is
recoverable by the Group, usually through a reduction in future contributions.

The impact of these plans on the consolidated income statement is not material (see Note
17).

The Group recognises termination benefits when there is an individual or collective
agreement with the employees or a genuine expectation that such an agreement will be
reached that will enable the employees, unilaterally or by mutual agreement with the
company, to cease working for the Group in exchange for a termination benefit. If a
mutual agreement is required, a provision is only recorded in situations in which the
Group has decided to consent to the termination of the employees when this has been
requested by them. In all cases in which these provisions are recognised the employees
have an expectation that these early retirements will take place.




TRANSLATION

N) Grants

Government grants related to assets to cover staff re-training costs are recognised as
income once all the conditions attached to them have been fulfilled over the periods
necessary to match them with the related costs.

Government grants related to property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are
treated as deferred income, are classified under “Other Non-Current Liabilities” and are
taken to income over the expected useful lives of the assets concerned under “Other
Income”.

0) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and
represents the amounts receivable for the goods and services provided in the normal
course of business, net of discounts, VAT and other sales-related taxes. Sales of goods
are recognised when substantially all the risks and rewards have been transferred.

Following is a detail of some of the particular features of the business activities carried
on by the Group:

Construction business:

Revenue:

Given the type of activity, revenue usually comes from long-term contracts where the
start date of the contract activity and the date of completion of same generally fall into
different accounting periods, so the initial revenue and cost estimates may suffer
variations that could affect the recognition of revenue, expenses and results thereof.

The Group companies recognise construction contract revenue and expenses by reference
to the stage of completion of the activity under contract at the closing date of the balance
sheet, determined on the basis of the examination of the work carried out, or by the
percentage of costs incurred in relation to total estimated costs. In the first case, based on
the measurement of the units made, the production of the month is recorded as revenue
and costs are recognised based on the accrual related to the units performed. In the second
case, revenue is recognised in the revenue statement according to the percentage of
progress in costs (costs incurred versus total costs estimated on the contract), applied to
the total revenue from the project. The latter is commonly used in markets of Anglo-
Saxon influence and contracts without unit prices.

In exceptional cases, where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be reliably
estimated, contract costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are
incurred, and contract revenue is recognised only to the extent that the contract costs
incurred are likely to be recovered.

In addition, for contracts where it is considered probable that the estimated costs of the
contract will exceed the revenue derived from same, the expected losses are provisioned

against the income statement for the year in which they are known.
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Ordinary revenue from the contract is recognised considering the initial amount of the
contract agreed with the client as well as any modifications and claims on the same to the
extent that it is probable that revenue will be obtained from same and that it can be reliably
measured.

It is considered that there is a modification to the contract when there is a client’s
instruction to change the scope of the contract. It is considered that there is a claim on the
contract when, due to the client or third parties, there are costs not included in the initial
contract (delays, errors in specifications or design, etc.) and the contractor is entitled to
be compensated for the overrunning costs incurred, either by the client or by the third
party causing them. These modifications and claims are included as revenue from the
contract when the client is more than likely to approve modifications or claims in an
advanced negotiation stage or because there is a technical and legal report from
independent experts supporting their inclusion as contract revenue. Once these concepts
are recognised, in the event that the claims end in dispute, arbitration or litigation, no
additional amounts are recorded until their settlement.

When, due to a delay in collection or to the client’s insolvency, uncertainty arises as to
the collectability of an item already recognised as contract revenue, the recoverability of
the assets is duly analysed and, if applicable, a related provision for impairment and
client’s insolvency is recorded.

As discussed above, construction contracts are subject to estimates for revenues and costs
that need to be reviewed by project managers as they progress. Any change in estimates
for revenue, expenses and final work results is subject to review by the different
management levels and when verified and approved, the effect is treated as a change in
the accounting estimate in the year in which it occurs and in subsequent periods, in
accordance with the accounting standards in force.

Expenses:
A project costs include those directly related to the main contract and to any modifications

or claims on the contract. In addition, they include the costs related to the contracting
activity for each contract, such as insurance, consultancy, design and technical assistance,

etc.

Construction contract costs are recognised on an accrual basis, i.e., the costs related to
work units performed and total contract indirect costs attributable to said units are booked
as expense.

Costs that relate to future activity on the contract, such as insurance premiums, site
installations, consultancy, design and other initial costs are initially recognised as assets
in “inventories” and are charged to the income statement on the basis of the stage of
completion of the contract.

Machinery removal and site instailation dismantling costs, upkeep costs within the
warranty period and the costs, if any, arising in the period from completion of the
construction work to the date of final settlement, are deferred and recognised over the life
of the construction project, since they are considered one more cost of the construction
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work and they relate both to the completed contract units and to the future activity on the
contract.

As regards the provision for depreciation of property, plant and equipment used in
construction contracts, the assets whose estimated useful life coincides with the duration
of the construction work are depreciated over the term of the contract so that they are
fully depreciated upon completion thereof. Machinery whose useful life exceeds the term
of the contract is depreciated systematically on the basis of the technical criteria stipulated
under the various contracts for which it is used, and it depreciates under the straight-line
method in the course of each contract.

Late payment interest due to delay in the payment by the client for work certifications are
registered, as financial income, only when they can be reliably measured, and their
collection is reasonably guaranteed.

The Group companies record in the account “Executed production pending certification”,
under “Trade and other accounts receivable”, the positive difference between the
recognised revenue from a contract and the amount of the certifications at the origin of
the contract. In addition, they record in the account “Advances received on orders”, under
“Trade and other accounts payable”, the amount of advance certifications for various
items, including advances received from the client.

Real Estate business.

The Group companies recognise property sale revenue and costs on the date the property
is delivered, since this is considered to be the time when the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership are transferred to the buyers.

Accordingly, at the date of delivery of the property the Group companies recognise, if
appropriate, the provisions required to cover the contractually stipulated costs not yet
incurred in relation to the asset delivered. These provisions arise from a present obligation
of the company, the amount of which can be reliably estimated and whose settlement will
probably give rise to an outflow of resources for the company.

Rental revenue is recognised on an accrual basis, and incentive-related income and the
initial costs of the lease agreements are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the agreement.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of property
developments or property investments -assets that necessarily require a substantial period
of time to be prepared for their intended use or sale- are added to the cost of said assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for use or sale, provided that the
market value exceeds the accumulated cost of the asset. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Services business:
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Revenue associated with the rendering of services is also recognised by reference to the
stage of completion of the transaction at the balance sheet date, provided the outcome of
the transaction can be reliably estimated.

For every year the Group companies recognise as profit or loss on their services the
difference between production (value at the selling price of the services provided during
the period, as stipulated on the main contract entered into with the client or in amendments
or addenda thereto as approved by the client, or of the services not yet approved but whose
recovery is reasonably certain) and the costs incurred during the year, since the revenue
and costs of projects in the services industry can undergo major changes during the period
of performance, which are difficult to predict and quantify objectively.

Price reviews stipulated under the initial contract signed with the client are recognised as
revenue on an accrual basis, regardless of whether they have been approved by the client

on an annual basis.

Energy business:

One the Acciona Group’s businesses is the turnkey construction of wind farms and other
energy production facilities. The total costs incurred in these projects are recognised as
operating expenses and the related sales are recognised in accordance with the stage of
completion of the project, calculated on the basis of the price and terms and conditions of
the sale agreement at the cost incurred and at the estimated cost, based on the detailed
budgets of each contract, with application since the beginning thereof. Losses on contracts
are recognised in full in the year’s profit or loss as soon as they become known.

P) Income tax. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Income tax expense is calculated by aggregating the current tax arising from the
application of the tax rate to the adjusted accounting profit for the year, after deducting
the tax credits allowable for tax purposes, plus the change in deferred tax assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are the taxes expected to be payable or recoverable on
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and their tax bases. They are registered by applying the tax rates at which they
are expected to be recovered or settled.

Corporate tax and changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities not arising from business
combinations are recognised on the consolidated income statement or in equity accounts
on the consolidated balance sheet depending on where the profits or losses giving rise to
them have been recognised.

Deferred tax assets relating to temporary differences, and tax loss and tax credit
carryforwards are recognised only if it is considered probable that the consolidated
companies will have sufficient future taxable profits against which they can be utilised.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised are reassessed at each balance sheet date in
order to verify whether they still exist, and the appropriate adjustments are made on the
basis of the findings of the analyses performed.

Q) Foreign currency balances and transactions

Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of each company are
recognised in the functional currency by applying the exchange rates prevailing at the
date of the transaction. During the year, the differences that arise between the balances
translated at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction and the balances
translated at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of collection or payment are recorded
as finance costs or finance income on the consolidated income statement.

In addition, balances receivable or payable at 31 December of every year denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies in which the financial statements of the
consolidated companies are denominated are translated to euros at the year-end exchange
rates. Translation differences are recognised as finance costs or finance income on the
consolidated income statement.

R) Environment-related activities

In general, environment-related activities are considered to be operations whose main
purpose is to prevent, reduce or redress damage to the environment.

Investments relating to environmental activities are measured at acquisition cost and
capitalised as an addition to non-current assets in the year in which they are made.

Environmental protection and improvement expenses are charged to profit or loss in the
year in which they are incurred, regardless of when the resulting monetary or financial
flow arises.

Provisions for probable or certain liability, litigation in process and outstanding
environmental indemnity payments or obligations of an unspecified amount, not covered
by the insurance policies taken out, are recorded when the liability or obligation giving
rise to the indemnity or payment arises.

S) Discontinued operations and non-current assets and liabilities held for sale

The Group classifies as “Non-Current Assets Held for Sale” property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, other non-current assets or investments under “Investments
Accounted for Using the Equity Method” and disposal groups (groups of assets which
will be disposed of together with their directly associated liabilities) for which at the date
of the consolidated balance sheet an active programme and at reasonable prices has been
started so as to sell them and the sale is expected to be completed within twelve months
from that date.

The Group classifies as “Discontinued Operations™ the relevant business lines that were
sold or otherwise disposed of or which meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale,
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including, where applicable, assets which, together with the business line, are part of the
same disposal plan or are classified as held for sale as a result of acquired commitments.
Similarly, companies acquired exclusively with a view to resale are classified as
“Discontinued Operations”.

These assets or disposal groups are measured at their carrying amount or their fair value
less costs to sell, whichever is the lower, and depreciation on such assets ceases from the
time they are classified as “Non-Current Assets Held for Sale”. However, at the date of
each consolidated balance sheet the related value adjustments are made to ensure that the
carrying amount is not higher than the fair value less costs to sell.

Non-current assets held for sale and the components of the disposal groups classified as
held for sale are disclosed on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as follows:
the assets as a single line item called “Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations” and the liabilities also as a single line item called “Liabilities Associated with
Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”.

Profit or loss after tax of discontinued operations is disclosed as a single line item on the
consolidated income statement as ‘“Profit/(Loss) after Tax from Discontinued

Operations”.
There were no discontinued operations at 31 December 2017 and 2016.

T) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the period’s net profit attributable to
the Parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during said
period, excluding the average number of shares of the Parent held by the Group

companies.

Diluted eamings per share are calculated by dividing the period’s net profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders adjusted by the effect attributable to the dilutive
potential ordinary shares by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the period, adjusted by the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would
have been outstanding if all the potential ordinary shares have been converted into
ordinary shares of the company. For these purposes, it is considered that the shares are
converted at the beginning of the accounting period or at the date of issue of the potential
ordinary shares, if the latter had been issued during the accounting period.

U) Consolidated cash flow statement

The following terms, with the meanings specified, are used on the consolidated statement
of cash flows, which was prepared using the indirect method:

- Cash flows: inflows and outflows of cash and cash equivalents, which are taken to be
changes in the value of short-term, highly liquid investments.

- Operating activities: the main revenue-producing activities of the Company and other
activities that are not imvesting or financing activities. Beginning with the profit before
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tax from continuing operations, in addition to the adjustment for “Depreciation and
Amortisation Charge”, transfers of interest paid and received are recognised under
“Other Adjustments to Profit (Net)” although on a separate basis, as well as the
transfer of the gains or losses on disposal of non-current assets included under
investing activities and, lastly, the adjustments to the results of companies accounted
for using the equity method and, in general, any results that do not generate cash
flows.

- Investing activities: the acquisition and disposal of long-term assets and other
investments not included in cash and cash equivalents.

- Financing activities: activities that result in changes in the size and composition of
equity and of borrowings that are not operating activities.

43  Accounting estimates and judgements

The information contained in these financial statements is the responsibility of the
Directors of the Parent Company.

For the consolidated financial statements for 2017 and 2016, estimates were made by the
Group’s Directors in order to measure some of the assets, liabilities, income, expenses
and obligations reported therein. These estimates, the results of which can be found in the
applicable measurement standards, refer to:

- The measurement of assets and goodwill so as to determine any impairment losses
thereon.

- Distribution of the cost of business combinations.

- Recognition of revenue in the construction activity.

- The assumptions used in the actuarial estimate of pension liabilities and
obligations.

- The useful life of property, plant and equipment, investment property and
intangible assets.

- The assumptions used to measure the fair value of financial instruments.

- The probability of occurrence and the amount of liabilities of an undetermined
amount or contingent liabilities.

- Future costs for dismantling facilities and the restoration of land.

- The results for tax purposes of the various Group companies that will be reported
to the tax authorities in the future, which served as the basis for recognising the
various corporate tax related balances on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

These estimates were made on the basis of the best information available at 31 December
2017 and 2016 on the events analysed. However, events that may take place in the future
could make it necessary to change these estimates. Any such changes would be made in
accordance with the requirements of IAS 8.
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4.4

Changes in accounting estimates and policies and correction of fundamental

€rrors

Changes in accounting estimates: the effect of any change in accounting estimates is
recognised prospectively, under the same income statement heading as that under
which the expense or income measured using the previous estimate was recognised.

Changes in accounting policies and correction of fundamental errors. The effects of
changes and corrections of this kind are recognised as follows: if material, the
cumulative effect at the beginning of the year is adjusted under “Reserves” and the
effect for the current year is recognised on the income statement. In these cases, the
financial data for the comparative year presented together with those for the current
year are restated.

The useful life of property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible
assets with finite useful lives. Based on an analysis using internal information sources,
Acciona Group has made a new estimate of the useful life of the subgroup
Trasmediterranea’s cargo vessels, passenger ships and high-speed vessels, increasing
it from 15 to 25 years for fast ferries and from 20 to 25 years for the remaining vessels.
Consequently, the “Depreciation and amortisation charge” in the consolidated income
statement includes the impact of this change in estimate from 1 January 2017, which
has resulted in a lower amortisation of 2 million euros.

Except for the change described above, at 31 December 2017 there were no material
changes in accounting estimates or accounting policies; nor any corrections of errors.
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S.-

Property, plant and equipment

The changes in financial years 2017 and 2016 in cost and accumulated depreciation were
as follows (in thousand euros):

Property, plant
and equipment
Balance at 31/12/2015

Variations due to
changes in the scope of
consolidation

Additions / charge for
the year

Reductions
Transfers
Other changes

Balance at 31/12/2016

Variations due to
changes in the scope of
consolidation

Additions / charge for
the year

Reductions
Transfers
Other changes

Balance at 31/12/2017

Land and
buildings

402,463

(96)

5,079
(919)

1,425

664
408,616

150

7358
(2.416)

(57,348)

(59)
356,310

Electricity  Other plant

generating
facilities

11,169,263

(88,878)

16,272
5,762

134,460

184.873
11,421,752

62,632

10,487
(8,987)

(848,184)

(334,879)
10,302,821

Advances
and and PPE in

machinery progress
1,215,005 125,851
15.207 7429
238,121 446,229
(29,592) (3,525)
22,852 (163.385)
3,636 1.413
1,465,229 414,012
38,038 (185)
139,625 445,089
(36.388) (5.318)
(769,869) (381,656)
(19,566) (41,592)
817,069 430,350

Other PPE

206,214

(1.514)

38,363
(6,327)

2,498

(13.,544)
225,690

8.096

49,958
(5.025)

(51,188)

(4,884)
222,646

Depre-
ciation

(4,581,540)

40.482

(476,066)
31,481

516

(28,054)
(5,013,181)

(37,995)

(511.949)
40,875

715,612

94516
“@,712,122)

Impair-
ment

(873,069)

4215

(85,185)
2,249

(4,455)
(956,245)

286

(493)
2.941

161,480

15,285
(776,746)

Breakdown of the net balances at the end of 2017 and 2016 was as follows:

Praperty, plant
and eqnipment

1 and and
buildings
Electricity
generating
facilities

Other plant
Machinery
Advances and
PPE in progress
Other PPE

Teotal

2617

Cest  Depreciation

336314

16,302,821

203,747
612,322
430,350
222 646

12,129,260

(153,357)

(3,871, 768)

{128.661)

(415,024)

(143,072

(4,712.122)

Impairment Tatal
{144 202369
(769443} 5,661,610
(2,543) 73,541
(2,484) 194 814
(2.691) 428 259
39 79.535
{776,746) 6,640,329

Cost
A0R616

11421752

907568

557.661

414,012

2256%0

13,935,299

2816

Depreciation

(132,543)

(3.827,170)

(507.703)

(364.134)

(161215)

(5.013,181)

(857.266)

(91.258)
(2.484)
(1,916

(3%)

(956,245)

Total

7,664,187

(23,155)

182,813
(871)
(1,634)
144,533
7,965,873

71,022

140,075
(14.318)

(1,231,153)

(291,171)
6,640,329

Tetal

252,421

6,737316

308,575

191,033
412,096

64.432

7965873

The main movements in PPE in financial year 2017 correspond to the transfer of the
subgroup Trasmediterranea and certain energy assets to “assets classified as held for sale”

for a net carrying amount of 1,255 million euros (see Note 3.2h) and 23).
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The commissioning of the El Romero photovoltaic plant (Chile) and the commissioning
of a wind farm in India for a combined approximate amount of 380 million euros should
also be highlighted. These plants are active from March and April 2017 respectively.

“Variations for changes in scope” includes the addition of plant, machinery and other PPE
within the construction division for acquiring control of the Australian construction
subgroup "Geotech Holding", and for acquiring the additional 50% of a wind power
generation facility in Canada (see Note 3). In financial year 2016, the main movement
was represented by the wind assets in Greece leaving the scope, in the energy division
(see note 3.2h)), as it was agreed to deliver said assets in payment for the settlement of an
existing litigation (see Note 26).

The main “Additions” in financial year 2017 correspond to the Trasmediterranea Group’s
acquisition of the “Dimonios” vessel for 54 million euros, ongoing investments in the
energy division corresponding to power generation facilities in projects in Mexico, India,
Chile and Australia for approximately 421 million euros, and investments in machinery
and other PPE to carry out construction projects in Canada, Ecuador, United Arab
Emirates and Norway.

In financial year 2016, the significant “Additions” in PPE are mainly related to the
development of three wind power generation facilities in the United States and India, and
photovoltaic generation facilities in Chile for a total amount of 425 million euros, in
addition to investments made in machinery and other PPE in the construction division for
the construction of a tunnel in Norway, an underground train line in Quito, and a dam in
Canada for 197 million euros.

Land located in Poland and ongoing PPE belonging to the real estate business have been
reclassified under “Inventories” for an amount of 17 million euros, after the outlined
strategy on such assets was changed. In financial year 2016, the main movement in
“transfers” is related to the transfer of the developments costs of a wind project located
in the United States, mentioned in the paragraph about “additions”, for 135 million euros,
from PPE in progress to electricity generating facilities.

In 2017, “Other changes” include the effect of translation differences for the period, for
a negative amount of 294 million euros (positive 105 million euros in 2016), which came
mainly from the wind farms located in the United States, Chile and Mexico, whose
financial statements consolidate in US dollars. This currency depreciated against the euro
in 2017.

In the course of 2016 there were signs of a drop in value of certain assets, mainly due to
the fall in the market prices of energy and to regulatory changes in some countries where
the Group operates. Which resulted in the recognition of an impairment for the amount
of 73 million euros, mostly related to wind facilities located in Italy, Poland and the
United States. No signs of impairment have been identified during 2017 which have
pointed to the need to recognise any additional impairment.

At 31 December 2017, the amount registered for 2017 and for the previous years under
“impairments” amounted to 777 million euros (956 million euros in 2016) which has
decreased significantly after reclassifying the Trasmediterranea Subgroup and certain
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energy assets as “assets held for sale”. The impairment amounts of the assets registered
at 31 December 2017 mainly correspond to the energy division, both in the international
area and in respect of Spanish assets. In the case of Spanish assets, it is due to the
regulatory change that took place in 2012 and 2013 as explained in detail in note 2 relating
the Spanish regulatory framework.

In 2017 the companies capitalised finance costs amounting to 4.2 million euros as
property, plant and equipment, and 6.4 million euros at 31 December 2016 (see Note 28).

Fully depreciated property, plant and equipment in use at 31 December 2017 and 2016
amounted to 455 and 578 million euros, respectively; most of these assets are currently
in use.

At 31 December 2017, the Group companies had property, plant and equipment purchase
commitments amounting to 546 million euros, mainly in the energy division, for the wind
projects currently under construction in Mexico, Australia and Chile. The amount
committed at 31 December 2016 came to 62 million euros.

The Group has insurance policies to cover the possible risks to which its property, plant
and equipment are exposed, and the claims that might be filed against it in the
development of its business activities. These policies are considered to provide adequate
cover for the related risks.

At 31 December 2017 the carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
acquired under the finance lease system amounted to 44 million euros (42 million euros
in 2016); most of this PPE related to machinery for the construction of a dam in Canada,
as mentioned above.

At 31 December 2017 the net carrying amount for material assets used as guarantee for
finance debts associated with a specific project in the energy division was 2,163 million
euros.

The Group has mortgaged land and buildings coming to a net carrying amount of 18
million euros (23 million euros in 2016) to secure credit facilities granted to the Group
by banks.

6.- Investment property

The Group’s investment property relates mainly to properties earmarked for lease.

The changes in 2017 and 2016 in the Group’s investment property were as follows:
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Iavestment property Thoasand ecaros
Accamulated
Cost an‘:iqi:lt;a‘:rm?:nt Total
losses
Balance at 31/12/2015 1,019,706t (344,486) 675,215
Additions 3,771 (22.,746) (18,975)
Disposals (87,796) 42.396 (45.,400)
Transfers (190,294) 91.048 (99.246)
Other changes - - -
Balance at 31/12/2016 745,382 (233,788) 511,594
Additions 27,947 (7,729) 20,218
Disposals (17,144) 16,754 (390)
Transfers (48.814) 28,308 (20,506)
Changes in scope (430,567) 96,408 (334,159)
Balance at 31/12/2017 276,804 (100,047) 176,757

The most significant changes in financial year 2017 correspond to:
- The additions are mainly due to the acquisition of land in Spain to be used for offices.

- Certain assets have been transferred following the change in management strategy for
the Group’s rental assets which started in 2016 and through which the possible rotation
of the assets is considered on the one hand, and assets with better potential to generate
added value for the Group are developed on the other hand; these assets mainly
correspond to the reclassification of land from property investments to inventories due to
their change in use for a gross amount of 48 million euros (148 million euros in 2016)
and a net impairment value of 20.5 million euros (73 million euros in 2016).

- The change in scope through which Acciona Real Estate, a company 100% owned by
the Group, provided Testa Residencial SOCIMI, S.A. with a package of rental assets by
contributing its share in the companies Cia. Urbanizadora del Coto, S.L. and Valgrand 6,
S.A.U,, as well as 44 homes located in Lleida, in exchange for newly issued shares of
Testa representing 21.02% of the resulting capital after the increase (see Note 3.2.h), and
which involves net real estate assets of 336 million euros leaving the scope.

In 2016, the sale of a shopping centre and an office building located in Madrid, along
with a hotel in Barcelona should be highlighted, for a total price of 67,150 thousand euros
and a joint result for disposal of 6,711 thousand euros (see Note 26).

At 31 December 2017, the fair market value of the assets recorded under this line item
estimated on the basis of the valuations made by independent appraisers (see note 4.2. E)
came to 196,944 thousand euros (547,658 thousand euros at 31 December 2016). The fall
in value in 2017 compared to 2016 was mainly due to the sale of assets indicated above
(with an appraised value of 346,820 thousand euros at 31 December 2016) and, to the
transfer to “Inventories” of a plot of land (with an appraised value of 20,500 thousand
euros at 31 December 2016). If these two impacts were to be considered, the appraised
value in 2016 if compared to 2017 would amount to 180,338 thousand euros.

The rental income earned by the Group from investment property listed under this heading
at 31 December 2017, all of which was leased out under operating leases, amounted to 20
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million euros (28 million euros in 2016). Direct operating expenses arising from
investment property in the period amounted to 9 million euros (10 million euros in 2016),
recognised under “Other Operating Expenses” on the accompanying consolidated income
statement.

At 31 December 2017 the Group had mortgaged a portion of its investment property
included under this heading for a net carrying amount of 41 million euros (367 million
euros at 31 December 2016) to secure various loans and credit lines granted to the Group.
The decrease was mainly due to the contributions of the already mentioned real estate
investments to Testa Residencial, which at December 2016 had a carrying amount of 330
million euros.

Detail by location of the cost of the properties held to earn rentals assigned to the Real
Estate Division of the Acciona Group at 31 December 2017 and 2016 was as follows:

Location 2017 2016
Cost e ovisions ™ andtprovisions
Madrid 116,366 (29,923) 520,664 (127,784)
The Levant Region 21,772 (7,773) 24,147 (9,185)
Andalusia 16,220 (9,575) 16,000 (9,045)
Catalonia 64,750 (30,093) 125,781 (61,888)
Other 55,251 (22,781) 56,345 (25,013)
Total 274,359 (99,145) 742937 (232,915)
7.-  Goodwill

The movements in “Goodwill” on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet in 2016
were as follows (in thousand euros):

Sinzmis  Additess tmpaimmest NS0 SO
Acciona Facility Services subgroup 50,962 50,962
Acciona Agua subgroup 27,976 27.976
Others 358 (12} 346
Total 79,296 - _ 12) 79,284

The movements in “Goodwill” on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet in 2017
were as follows (in thousand euros):

Batance at Additions Impairment Othier Balaace at

31/12/2016 changes 3141212017
Subgroup Geotech Holdmg - 117,207 — ¢10.860) 106,347
Acciona Facility Services subgroup 50,962 — - - 50,962
Acciona Agna subgioup 27976 — - - 27,976
Others 346 - - 19 366
Totat 79,284 117,287 - (18,841) 185,650
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Recognition of total goodwill amounting 117 million euros for the construction division
following the acquisition of the Australian construction subgroup "Geotech Holding” in
March 2017 (see Note 3) should be noted.

At 31 December 2017, negative translation differences under this heading have been
registered amounting to approximately 11 million euros, mainly due to Australian dollar
exchange rate fluctuations.

In 2017, the update of the impairment tests, according to the method described in note 4.2
E) carried out for the Acciona Facility Services and Acciona Agua subgroups did not
show the need to record additional impairment.

The WACC rates after tax that were applied were: 6.93% for the Acciona Facility
Services subgroup and 5.90% for the Acciona Agua subgroup.

The growth rate employed by the subgroups to extrapolate the cash flow projections
beyond the five-year period covered by the forecasts was 1.50%.

A sensitivity test was carried out, particularly in relation to the operating margin, the
discount rate and the perpetuity growth rate, in order to ensure than possible changes in
the estimation did not have an impact on the possible recovery of the goodwill registered.
The outcome of these sensitivity tests indicated that, decreases of 75 basis points in the
growth rate applied, increases in the discount rate of up to 40 basis points and 15%
reductions in the net operating margin, these assumptions being considered jointly, do not
change the outcome of the impairment test, that is, no goodwill impairment is shown.

At the close of the financial year, the calculation of the goodwill generated in the
acquisition of the Subgroup Geotech Holding was updated, which did not reveal any

significant changes to the assumptions used in the initial model.

The Acciona Group applies the acquisition method to account for any and all additions to
the Group that involve the acquisition of a controlling interest.

There were no further additions to the group in 2016 and 2017 that led to recognition of
goodwill different than the one described above.
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8. -

Other intangible assets

The changes in 2017 and 2016 were as follows (in thousand euros):

Other intangibie . . .

assets Development Coopcessions

Balance at S8 48

31/12/2015 " 78S R46

Variations dee to

changes in the scope

of consolidation (8,065} 1.052 866

Additions / charge for

the year 3.046 50,842

Removals (6% (607)

Transfers 1473 (573}

Other changes 34 37.232

Balance at

31/12/2016 54,464 1,929,606

Variations due to

changes in the scope

of consolidation 141 271,564

Additions / charge for

the year 1,279 28,936

Removals = (3,687)

Transfers (2,282) (93‘791)

Other changes (293) (39,906)

Balance at

31/12/2017 53,309 2,092,622

i Cornpater Adva
software

1,341 57823 4982
—_ (2067 -
fies] 6,604 12835
- {561) {305)
13 263 {37}
(23) 5 94
1,451 63,467 6,019
13,827 152 -
31,322 6.485 9.821
- (1,374) (6)
(11) (15,088) (1,395)
(1,242) (62) -
45,347 53,580 14,439

Aacaryckoted
amortisation

308,048y

(55.423)
(63,519}
780
(47}

(5,996)
(432,245)

(99,547)

(83,680)
2,096
44,231
6,758
(562,388)

Impairment

(95,548)

1,608

(31.925)

22

(125,804)

(13,110)
16,556
1471
(120,887)

Breakdown of the net balances at the end of 2017 and 2016 was as follows:

Intangible assets

Cost
Development 53,309
Concessions 2,092,622
Transfer rights 3,142
:l)slsl::; intangible 42205
Advances 14,439
Total 2,259,297

2017
Amortisation Impairment Total Cost

(49.,894) - 3415 54.465
(455,050) (120.854) 1,516,718 1,929,606
(745) 33) 2,364 1,450
(41,396) -- 12,184 63,467
(15,303) - 26.902 -
- - 14,439 6,019
(562,388) (120,887) 1,576,022 2,055,007

2016

Amortisation
(47.937)
(331,388)
(657)

(52.263)

(432,245)

Impairment

(125,771
(33)

(125,804)

Total

508,484

990,779

(34,148)
(735)
1232

31,346

1,496,958

186,137

(18,948)
(2,971
(51,880)
(33,274)
1,576,022

Total
6,528
1,472 447

760

11,204

6,019

1,496,958

The “Concessions™ line mainly includes those concession assets where the risk of
recovering the asset is assumed by the operator.

In addition, it includes the cost of the administrative concessions and the levies paid by
Acciona Agua for concessions related to the integral water cycle.
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Breakdown of the concessions and advances line at 31 December 2017 and 2016 was as

follows:
Concessions 2017 2016
Cost Amor:sntm lmpa:rmen Total Cost Amorlrlsatm lmpa:rmen Total
AAMINISTAtv - 593 454 (109,300) (16,199) 167,955 380,359 (128,524) (34,116) 217,719
¢ Concessions
Intangible <
Concessions 1"8046’06 (345,750) (104,655) ]"3395”65 1,549,247 (202,864) (91.655) 1,254,728
(IFRIC 12)
Administrativ
e concession 3,358 - - 3,358 356 - - 356
advances
IFRIC 12 5 5
advances 11,081 - - 11,081 3.663 - - 3.663
Total 2"0]7’06 (455,050) (120,854 "537"'5 1,935,625 (331,388)  (125,771) 1,478,466

The breakdown of the main concessions is given in Appendix V (SIC 29) and the detail
of the balance of the main concessions under the intangible model (IFRIC 12) at 31
December 2017 and 2016 was as follows:

Concessions 2017 2016
Cost (*) Amortisation tmpair- Total Cost (*) Amortisation Impair- Total
ment ment
Rodovia do Ago, S.A. 142,900 (27.331) (101,550) 14,019 156,053 (27,182) (88,550) 40,321
S.C. A2 Tramo 2, S A. 148,564 (58,292) (3,104) 87,167 148,532 (48,614) (3,104) 96,814
Consorcio Edlico Chiripa, S.A. 104,075 (19,120) - 84,955 118,344 (15.389) - 102,955
Autovia de los Viiedos, S.A. 271,711 (105,107) - 166,603 - - - -
Atll Concessionaria de la 1,061,319 (103,671) " 957,658 1,055,196 (82.662) - 972,534

Generalitat de Catalunya, S.A.

(*) Includes the amounts of the advances associated with the concessions.

The main intangible from this company (registered according to IFRIC 12, intangible
assets model, given that the concession carries the demand risk) relates to the current
value of the assets assigned by the Catalan Government according to the concession
arrangement subscribed between the concessionaire ATLL and the Catalan Government
after the award signed on 6 November 2012 and which, at 31 December 2017, amounted
to a net value for amortisation of 958 million euros (973 million euros at 31 December
2016), 816 million of which are pending payment at this date (792 million euros at 31
December 2016) (see Note 21).

At 31 December 2017 the main “additions” in this heading corresponded to the
investment arising from the obligations undertaken by ATLL Concessionaria de la
Generalitat de Catalunya, S.A., the addition of the Brazilian concession Rodovia Do Ago
and payment of the initial fee for a water supply concession awarded in Mexico.

“Variation for changes in scope” includes the acquisition of 50% of the concessionaire
Autovia de los Vifiedos, S.A., through which its entire equity is consolidated following
the fully consolidated method and the concession is consolidated according to the
intangible method in IFRIC 12 for a net amount of 172 million euros. Also worth
mentioning is the consolidation of intangible assets from the Subgroup Geotech Holding
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acquired in 2017 and recognition of the PPA assigned to the Australian construction
subgroup's portfolio of works under “other intangible assets™ for 13.8 million euros (see
Note 3).

After the EI Romero photovoltaic plant in Chile was commissioned in March 2017, the
operating rights acquired at the beginning of the project and recorded under
“Concessions” were “transferred” to “Property, plant and equipment” for a net carrying
amount of 27 million euros. A transfer was also made to “Non-current assets held for
sale” for a net carrying amount of 21 million euros associated to the Trasmediterranea
Subgroup.

In financial year 2017, “Other changes” includes the effect of translation differences in
the period for a negative amount of 33 million euros, mainly related to the Brazilian real
and the US dollar (positive amount of 31 million euros in 2016).

In 2017, the Group has recognised an additional impairment of 13 million euros after
additional signs of a drop in its value were shown, mainly due to a drop in the expected
revenue derived from increased rates and from the worsening of the country’s
macroeconomic conditions. As a result, the impairment test was updated, as indicated in
note 3.2 E) on the basis of the projection of cash flows estimated after covering the debt
service. The discount rate used incorporates the country risk based on the average yield
of a 10-year USA bond over the last 10 years, to which a risk premium is added according
to the conditions of the country and corrected by the average leverage from comparable
companies (leveraged beta), and increased by the difference in the CPI between USA and
Brazil, the cost of own capital standing at 11.5%. The impairment calculated amounted
to 13 million euros (30 million euros in 2016), which was recorded under the heading
“impairment and profit/(loss) from disposal of assets” on the accompanying income
statement (see Note 26).

After carrying out a sensitivity analysis on the main model assumptions, it is expected
that there will be an additional impact of 7.9 million and a reduction of 9.4 million on the
accumulated impairment at the end of the year when faced with changes in the discount
rate of +/- 1.25%.

In the same way, increases in traffic of 10% would be expected to lead to a reduction in
the impact of the 24.9 million impairment, and an increase in the deterioration of 25.8
million.

As regards the other intangible assets, in 2017 no impairment was estimated, and no
significant losses appeared that were not covered with the provisions in place at 31
December 2017.

At 31 December 2017, Group companies had commitments to acquire intangible assets
in the amount of 126 million euros, for concession projects in the infrastructure
construction division (motorways) and in the water division. At 31 December 2016, the
amount committed came to 172 million euros.

Additionally, ATLL Concessionaria de la Generalitat de Catalunya, S.A., in accordance
with the concession contract, maintains the obligation to carry out infrastructure
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improvements in water tightness and structures, as well as technical and safety
adjustments within 10 years from the signing of the contract for a total amount of 139
million euros at 31 December 2017. These commitments are treated, from an accounting
perspective, as a new concession and the consideration must be recorded received as
intangible assets in the year in which these actions are carried out; it is considered that
these amounts will be recovered in the amount of 122 million euros with the generation
of higher revenues, by increasing the rate in the year immediately following the year when
such investments are made. In financial years 2013 to 2017, the Company has made
investments amounting to 28,617 thousand euros (6,133 thousand euros in 2017 and
22,484 thousand euros in previous years).

Fully amortised intangible assets in use at 31 December 2017 and 2016 amounted to 88

and 90 million euros, respectively.

9.-

Investments in associates and joint arrangements booked by the equity

method

The movement in 2016 in this heading on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet
was as follows (in thousand euros):

Balance at Share in Dividend Tax cffect and Chagges in Balance at
Direct investmeais of the Perest Compaay Jias prefit (doss) ather chaupes seope & 31/42/16
before tax other
and
impairmeat

Direct investments of the Parent Company
Consorcio Traza, S.A. 5,602 160 - (396) - 5,366
Gran Hospital Can Misses, S.A. 1,964 (120) - (322) -- 1,522
Novo Hospital De Vigo S.A. 11,975 678 - (408) 229 12,474
Nordex S.E. -- 28,954 - (10,039) 753,942 772,857
Total direct investment 19,541 29,672 - (11,165) 754,171 792,219
Indirect investments of the Parent Company
l‘ndlrecl investments of the Acciona Energy 142,865 17.791 (5.723) (1713) 12,646 165.866
Subgroup
Indirect investments of the Ceatesalas Subgroup 84,939 (212) (1,906) 824 (601) 83,044
l‘ndlrcct investments of the Acciona Construction 22814 6.190 n (2.282) 2810 29.532
Subgroup
Indirect investments of the Acciona Concessions 12.704 934 (460) 479 3,124 16,781
Subgroup
Indirect investments of the Acciona Water 107,547 14.056 (5.616) (4.004) (43.103) 68.880
Subgroup
[ndirect investments of the Acciona Property 17.800 1269 B 440 (16.077) 3.432
Subgroup
Indirect investments of the Acciona )
Trasmediterranea Subgroup 10 106 * 30 - 182
Other indirect investments 794 (236) - 172 155 885
Total indirect investments 389,573 39,898 (13,709) (6,114) (41,046) 368,602
Total 409,114 69,570 (13,709) (17,279) 713,125 1,160,821

(*) Indirect Investments of the Acciona Water Subgroup included the concessionaire ATLL, which contributed a value on application
of the equity method of 52,123 thousand euros.

- Pay



TRANSLATION

The movement in 2017 in this heading on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet
was as follows {in thousand euros):

Balamee at Share in Phidecd Fazx effret ansd Changes in Balance at
Direct investments of the Pavent Company 31/12/16 profit (ksss) other changes scope & 31112/17
before tax other

Direct investments of the Parest Cempamy
Consgreio Traza 8.4 5,365 (1,345 - 873 - 4,894
Gran Hospiial Can Misses, S.A_ 1.3522 (168) — 1,133 (2,489) -
Nove Hospital De Vigo S A, 12474 2123 - (356) {13.041) -
Nordex S.E. 772857 (141,811 - (8437 - 622,609
Total direct investment TI2215 {141,20%0) — {6,983) {16.533) 627,503
Indirect investments of the Parent Company
[ndirect investments of the Acciona Energy 165.866 40,069 (12.159) (10.376) 9221 192,621
Subgroup
Indirect investments of the Ceatesalas Subgroup 83,044 7.871 (1,276) (1.447) — 88,192
Indirect investments of the Acciona Construction 29.532 7.404 _ (860) (99) 35.977
Subgroup
Indirect investments of the Acciona Concesstons 16,781 2,163 (395) (1,912) 16,530 33.167
Subgroup
lpdlrect investments of the Acciona Water 68.880 14.853 (4.141) (13,901) 9.844 75.535
Subgroup
Indirect investments of the Acciona Property 3432 (1.437) _ (101) 335.527 337421
Subgroup
Indirect investments of the Acciona
‘Trasmediterranea Subgroup 182 = ) (200) - -
Other indirect investments 885 749 (170) (375) (174) 915
Total indirect investments 368,602 71,695 (18,146) (29,172 370,849 763,828
Total 1,160,821 (69,500) (18,146) (36,157 354,319 1,391,331

The Acciona Group’s interests in associates are detailed in Appendix III to these notes to
the consolidated financial statements.

When the Group’s investments in associates, mainly certain toll road concession
operators, which are consolidated by application of the equity method, are reduced to
zero, and where there could be implicit obligations exceeding the contributions made, the
losses or equity decreases are recognised under “Non-Current Liabilities - Provisions” on
the consolidated balance sheet (see Note 17). In these cases, the loss is recognised under
“Other Gains or Losses” instead of “Profit/(Loss) of Companies Accounted for Using the
Equity Method™.

Of note in financial year 2017 is the addition of the investment in Testa Residencial
SOCIMI, S.A. which corresponds to 21.02% of the company’s capital after the non-cash
contribution of shares and assets that was carried out on 27 July 2017 as cited in note
3.2.h, which has been initially valued at 336 million euros and which amounts to 335
million euros at the end of 2017.

In December 2017, Acciona S.A. sold a group of concession companies to Acciona

Concesiones S.L., a company belonging to the Group and the effect of which is reflected
under "changes in scope and others".
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Regarding the investments in Nordex, a company whose shares are traded on the
Frankfurt Stock Exchange, the decline in the share price experienced in recent months
has always been considered by the Group Management as an event that did not necessarily
constitute a deterioration in the intrinsic value of the business nor of its medium or long
term financial return, as the share in Nordex is a strategic investment for the Acciona
Group that aims to achieve synergies while maintaining a relevant position in the wind
generation value chain. On the other hand, there is no doubt that the share price has been
dragged by the markets’ disproportionate reactions to one-off events that, on the other
hand, have a broad impact on the sector.

However, the share price being at a level significantly below its carrying amount for a
prolonged period of time, along with a downward re-estimation of the forecasts recently
announced by the company, has been regarded as a sign of impairment. Therefore, the
Acciona Group has carried out an impairment test to check whether the value of the
investment in use has dropped below its carrying amount. The result of the test is that the
value in use amounts to 623 million euros at 31 December 2017, and hence the Group has
an impairment of 145 million euros to align the investment value until it reaches the 623
million euros indicated above.

The methodology for calculating the value in use is described in note 3.2.E), i.e., through
discounting the cash flows (WACC) at a rate which considers the risks inherent to the
company’s business as well as the different markets in which it operates. A cash flow
projection that covers a period of five years (2018-2022) has been calculated for this
discount operation along with a terminal value that represents the value of the future cash
flow from the sixth year and which has been determined based on a standard cash flow
estimate. The cash flow projection has been based on the estimates that the Nordex’s
management team has made public, and on indicators obtained from external sources
specialised in the sector, producing results that are consistent with the historical evolution
of the entity.

With regard to the growth of sales used for the standard period, which serves as a basis
to calculate the terminal value (“g” parameter), a 1.5% growth has been estimated, despite
the existence of growth prospects in the sector in which Nordex operates that support
greater growth, among other reasons, due to the growing need for the replacement of
conventional energies. However, given the uncertainty associated with projections for
such large periods, it has been considered that 1.5% is a reasonable growth rate.

For the discounted cash flows, an after-tax WACC rate of 7.2% has been considered.

Also, in order to strengthen the consistency and reasonableness of the test, sensitivity
analyses have been performed on changes reasonably expected to occur in the main
hypotheses. Thus, a variation of +/- 50 basis points in the WACC would produce an
additional impact on the impairment amount of +58 and -69 million euros, and a variation
of +/- 50 basis points in the sales growth rate in the standard period (“g”) would result in
an additional impact on the impairment amount of -56 and +47 million euros.

The most significant movements in financial year 2016 are explained by the takeover of
ATLL, explained in note 3.2 h), as well as by the acquisition of 29.9% of Nordex S.E.
also explained in note 3 above.
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“Tax effect and other changes™ reflects, in addition to the tax effect of the year’s result,
the variations due to derivatives, translation differences and the effect of transfers to non-
current liabilities of values that turn out to be negative upon application of the equity

method.

At 31 December 2017, the heading “Tax effect and other changes” mainly includes a
negative amount of 22 million euros corresponding to the tax effect, a negative amount
of 13 million euros due to translation differences, and a positive amount of 3 million euros

due to the variation of derivatives.

The table below shows, in proportion to the share percentage in the capital of each of the
associates included under this heading, the assets, liabilities, revenue and profit or loss
for 2017 (the figures related to associates with an equity deficit, recognised on the liability
side of the consolidated balance sheet, are detailed in Note 17):

Assets
Non-current assets
Current assets
Total assets
Liabilities

Equity
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Profit/(Loss)
Net revenue

Profit before tax from
continuing operations

Profit/(L.oss) before tax

Energy

1,262,042
556,256
1,818,298

903,423
509,198
405,677
1,818,298

1,048,796
(93,871)

(93,871)

Construction

379,438
119,104
498,542

74,140
346,061
78,341
498,542

90,210
9,994

9,994

Water

116,867
83,998
200,865

75,537
81,393
43,935
200,865

74,899
14,853

14,853

Services

438
6,123
6,561

809
187
5,565
6,561

17.914
932

932

Otber Total 2017
Businesses

452,504 2,211,289
19,346 784,827
471,850 2,996,116
337,422 1,391,331
130,354 1,067,193
4,074 537,592
471,850 2,996,116

8,055 1.239.874
(1.414) (69,506)

(1,414) (69,506)

None of the associates are individually significant for the Group except for Nordex, S.E.,
(29.9%) and Testa Residencial SOCIMI, S.A. (21.02%); all the main key figures of these
investments based on the latest available information are detailed below.
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The breakdown of the financial information relating to the investee is as follows:

a) Nordex, SE:

Assets

Non-current asscts

Current assets

Total assets

Equity and Liabilities

Shareholders’ equity

Value adjustments
Equity

Non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Nordex (*)
1,245,760
1,586.239
2,831,999

956,040
(1,704)
954,336
789.072
1,088,591
2,831,999

(*) Corresponds to the last periodic public information issued by Nordex, S.E. on the Frankfurt stock exchange on 30) September 2017.

Reconciliation of the consolidated profit/(loss) of the investee is detailed below:

Profit/(Loss)

Financial statements of investees (*)
% Share
Attributed result

Adjustments (**)
Impairment of value on applying equity
method

Profit/(loss) accounted for using the
equity method

Net
reveane

2.319.466

Nordex
Profit
before tax
from
continping
activities
43,654
29.9%
13,053
(9,864)
(145.,000)

(141.811)

Profit{l.oss)
after tax

27,902

8,343
(7,435)
(145,000)

(144.093)

(*) Corresponds to the last periodic public information issued by Nordex, S.E. on the Frankfurt stock exchange on 30 September 201 7.
(**) Correspond 1o the valuation homogenisation adjustments as well as the estimate of the profit/(loss) from the fourth quarter of

2017.
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b) Testa Residencial SOCIMI, S.A.:

The breakdown of the financial information relating to the investee is as follows:

Assets

Non-current assets
Current assets

Total assets

Equity and Liabilities
Equity

Non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Total equity and Liabilities

Testa
2,176,205
72,592
2,248,797

1,534,247
591,940
122,610

2,248,797

Reconciliation of the consolidated profit/(loss) of the investee is detailed below:

Profit/{Loss)

Financial statements of mvestees
% Share
Aftribmted resol

Adjastnents

Profit/(loss) accounted for using the
equity method

10. - Interests in joint operations

Testa
Profit
Net before tax o G(Loss)
from
revenge .. after tax
continpiag
activities
52,943 (5,120) (5,415)
21.02%
- {1076} (1,138)
- 24 119
- (1052 (1.019)

The Acciona Group’s interests in joint operations are explained in Appendix II to these
Notes to the consolidated financial statements. The most significant amounts included in
the consolidated financial statements, in relation to these interests, at 31 December 2017
are summarised as follows:

2017 2016

Companies  Joint operations Companies Joint operations
Net revenue 163,400 1,336,740 110,319 843,948
Gross profit/(loss) from operations 4,339 148,097 8,138 115,314
Profit/(loss) from operations 3.696 119,387 4,243 85,399
Non-current assets 17,038 266,357 62,262 272.875
Current assets 110,817 922,410 96,099 1,006,320
Non-current liabilities 3,380 300,447 6,553 397,504
Current liabilities 99,596 857,899 88,060 900,948
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There are no stakeholdings in joint operations that are material for the Group.

11. - Other current and non-current financial assets

Breakdown of the balance for this chapter on the consolidated balance sheet was as
follows:

2017 2016
Non-current Current Non-current Current
Available-for-sale financial assets 25,902 - 28,526 20
Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets (10,530) -- (11,032) --
Financial derivatives at fair value (Note 20) 0 8,225 7.811 6.668
Deposits and guarantees 10.460 34,492 15,954 23.845
Other deposits - 166,499 -- 165,531
Other loans 111,946 37,895 142,067 15,397
Impairment of other loans (5,855) (123) (4,246) (238)
Net Total 131,923 246,988 179,080 211,223

Available-for-sale financial assets

In 2017 there were no significant changes in “Available-for-Sale Financial Assets”.

Other deposits

This heading relates basically to the funds allocated to the debt service reserve accounts
by the energy division for the projects under way as required by Project Finance clauses
in force to secure compliance with the payment obligations. There were no significant
changes in 2017.

Other loans
This line is related mainly to loans granted to companies consolidated by applying the

equity method.

12. - Non-current receivables and other non-current assets

Breakdown of this heading at 31 December 2017 and 2016 was as follows:

31.12.2017 31.12.2016
Non-current operating receivables 132,283 145,079
Non-current prepayments and accrued income 32,375 27,345
Concessions under the non-current financial asset model 112,592 120,977
Total non-current receivables and other non-currcnt assets 277,250 293,401
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“Non-Current Operating Receivables” includes mainly client balances and other trade
receivables generated by operating activities maturing at over one year and also the
retentions that are customary in the construction business. In addition, it includes the
amount of 66,614 thousand euros (53,428 thousand euros at 31 December 2016) related
to the fair value of a non-financing derivative engaged by a Chilean subsidiary within the
energy Division to supply energy to a client as from 2017 at an inflacted fixed price for
13 and a half years.

“Non-current prepayments and accrued income” includes the amount of 14,571 thousand
euros (16,259 thousand euros at 31 December 2016) related to the initial value of an
energy contract entered into, in December 2015, by a subsidiary in the United States, to
supply a specific amount of energy for a term of 13 years.

“Concessions under the Non-Current Financial Asset Model” includes the balance
receivable to more than one year for concessions which, in accordance with IFRIC 12,
were treated as financial assets, since there was an unconditional collection right on the
investment made to date. The current portion of this unconditional collection right was
recognised under “Trade and Other Receivables” based on the collections expected to be
made by the grantors of the concessions under the various economic and financial plans.
At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the balance reclassified to short term in the “Concessions
under the Current Financial Asset Model” under the heading “Trade and Other
Receivables™ for the amount expected to be collected by the granting entities in the next
twelve months came to 14,573 and 16,232 thousand euros, respectively (see Note 14).

Breakdown, by division, of “Concessions under the Non-Current Financial Asset Model”
was as follows:

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Infrastructure division 112,211 118,441
Water division 381 2,536
Total 112,592 120,977

The main concession projects included in the infrastructure division relate to hospitals
and motorways, and those in the water division relate to the integral water cycle and are
detailed in Appendix V. Breakdown of the balance of the main concessions under the
financial model at 31 December 2017 and 2016 was as follows:

31.12.2017 31.12.2016
S.C. Hospital del Norte, S.A. 79,301 82.285
Hospital De Leon Bajio, S.A. De C.V. 32910 36,156

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group companies had no commitments to acquire
concession assets under the financial asset model in any significant amount.

13. - Inventories
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Detail of the Group’s inventories at 31 December 2017 and 2016 was as follows (in
thousand euros):
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Real Estate 2017 2016

Raw materials, other procurements and trade inventories 65 62
Land 734,044 705,516
Property developments in progress 140,128 73,203
Property developments completed 22,333 49.085
Advances paid 485 492
Impairment (444.859) (454.515)
Total real estate 452,196 373,843
Other inventories 2017 2016

Raw materials, other procurements and trade inventories 229260 218,103
Work in progress and half-finished goods 35.951 34.167
Finished goods 3,713 3418
Assets received in payment of loans 12.477 15.328
Land 8110 8.116
Advances paid 112,132 162,672
Impairment (32,873) (32.922)
Total other inventories 368,769 408,882
Total inventories 820,965 782,725

The main movement in 2017 related to the reclassification of several plots of land from
property investments and PPE to inventories, for the gross amount of 68 million euros
(37 million euros net in impairment), due to their change in use according to the Group’s
new strategy in order to optimise the value, realisation and liquidity of property assets
(see Note 6).

Also, plots of land located in Spain and Mexico for a total amount of 79 million euros
were acquired in 2017, land mainly located in Poland has been sold for a gross amount of
74 million euros (50 million euros net of impairment) and land amounting to 45 million
euros has been transferred to work in progress.

In 2017 the Group has reduced the impairment provision for certain property assets in
inventories in 5 million euros, as their carrying amount is less than their recoverable
amount on the basis of the valuations made at 31 December 2017 by independent
appraisers not related to the Acciona Group.

Based on these valuations performed by Savills Consultores Inmobiliarios, S.A. and CB
Richard Ellis, S.A., the Group’s property inventories have an estimated value of 497
million euros. These valuations incorporated the distortions and uncertainties currently
persisting in the real estate market and came up when taking into consideration the
Group’s current strategies in relation to the property division in terms of realisation and
liquidity.

At 31 December 2017 and 2016 the net carrying amounts of mortgaged inventories were
6,367 and 14,558 thousand euros respectively, and related mostly to property
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developments completed in 2017 and 2016. The decrease was mainly due to the sale of
assets.

At 31 December 2017 there is a firm commitment to purchase a plot of land in Madrid
for an amount of 3 million euros.

Property development sales commitments to clients at 31 December 2017 and 2016
amounted to 100,613 and 12,152 thousand euros, respectively. From the balance at 31
December 2017, the amount of 21,010 thousand euros was instrumented in notes and bills
receivable, the balancing entry of which was recorded under “Current Trade and Other
Payables” on the liability side of the accompanying consolidated balance sheet until the
date of delivery (3,790 thousand euros at 31 December 2016).

14. - Trade and other receivables

Detail of “Trade and Other Receivables™ at 31 December 2017 and 2016 was as
follows:

2017 2016
Trade receivables 1,166,241 1,132,311
Doubtlul trade receivables 41,673 68.098
Amounts to be billed for work performed 757213 619,130
Total trade receivables for sales and services 1,965,127 1,819,539
Receivable from associates 58,216 92,027
Sundry accounts receivable 173,259 165,874
Current concessions under the financial asset model (Note 12) 14,573 16,232
Provisions (319,282) (370,014)
Total trade and other receivables 1,891,893 1,723,658
Advances from clients (Note 36) (658,402) (944,048)
Total net balance at 31 December 1,233,491 779,610

In 2017, the balance of “advances from clients” has reduced, mainly as a result of the
progress of the works in the construction division, the most notable ones being those
developed in Australia, Norway and Ecuador, as well as 2 desalination projects in Qatar
in the water division that are in the final stages.

In the opposite sense, the most important advances received correspond to works
developed in Chile and Dubai.

Clio ot
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Breakdown, by business activity, of the balance of trade receivables for sales and
services, net of client advances, was as follows:

2017 2016
Energy 688,713 682,938
Infrastructure construction 699,076 198,582
Water 221,455 176,300
Services 209,590 195,902
Other business activities 100,493 176,377
Intra-Group transactions (685.836) (650,489)
Total nct balance at 31 December 1,233,491 779,610

Breakdown relating to the construction business was as follows:

2017 2016
Progress billings receivable 577411 543,189
Amounts to be billed for work performed 708,473 574,234
Sundry accounts receivable 189,002 166,024
Provisions (259,744) (287.030)
Total construction trade reccivables 1,215,142 996,417
Advances from clients (571.581) (839.303)
Total net balance at 31 December 643,561 157,114

Breakdown, by type of client, of the net balance of construction trade receivables was as
follows:

2017 2016
Central Government 34,509 34,981
Regional Governments 40,524 29768
Local Governments 7,049 7,999
Other 93,817 74,007
Public-sector subtotal 175,899 146,755
Private-sector subtotal 66,719 101.887
Total Spanish clients 242,618 248,642
Total foreign clients 972,524 747,775

Breakdown, by age, of receivables from clients was as follows:

2017 2016
Age up to 3 months by date of invoice 747,324 750,809
Age between 3 and 6 months by date of invoice 29014 43,389
Age over 6 months by date of invoice 389,903 338,113
Total 1,166,241 1,132,311

Invoices past due by more than 3 months and not

L 214,025 180,307
provisioned
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The movement in provisions for losses due to impairment in the value of receivables at
31 December 2017 and 2016 was as follows:

2017 2016
Opening balance (370,014) (352,469)
Increase in provision for impairment of accounts receivable (26,696) (36.273)
Accounts receivable de-registered as impossible to collect 27.880 9,610
Reversion of amounts not used 9,889 6,166
Transfer to Non-current asscts held for sale (note 23) 27,147 --
Reclassifications and other minor adjustments 12,512 2,952
Closing balance (319,282) (370,014)

15.- Cash and cash equivalents

Detail of “Cash and Cash Equivalents™ at 31 December 2017 and 2016 was as follows:

2017 2016
Cash 909,851 1,116,858
Deposits and other 362,930 311,461
Total cash and cash equivalents 1,272,781 1,428,319

“Cash and Cash Equivalents™ includes mainly the Group’s cash, bank deposits and risk-
free deposits with initial maturity of three months or less.

The only unavailable balance related to the cumulative balance for the so-called drought
provision of the subsidiary ATLL Concessionaria de la Generalitat de Catalunya, S.A. for

30 million euros (25 million euros at 31 December 2016) (see note 17).

In 2017 and 2016 the cash and cash equivalent balances earned interest at market rates.

16. - Equity

a) Subscribed and registered share capital

The Parent Company’s share capital is represented by 57,259,550 fully paid-up ordinary
shares with a face value of 1 euro each, represented by book entries. All the Parent
Company’s shares carry the same rights, are listed and there are no restrictions as to their
transferability under the Articles of Association.

The table below shows, based on the notices received by the company, the owners of
significant direct and indirect equity interests at 31 December 2017 and 2016.

31.122017  31.12.2016
Tussen de Grachien, B.V. 27 80%6 27.80%
Wit Evropesse Imvestering, B.V_ (*) 28.39%% 28.23%
Capital Rescarch and Management

. g,
Company {**%) 407%
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(*) On 26 January 2018, the family Group of Mr. José Maria Entrecanales de Azcarate
informed of the internal reorganisation carried out in the investment company that
centralises Acciona, S.A. shares, under which La Verdosa S.1. has become a direct holder

of 5.31 % of Acciona. After this reorganisation, the investment company Wit Europesse
Investering, B.V. Holds 25.01% of Acciona, S.A.

(**) Indirect holder of the equity interest. The decrease in indirect investment held by this
significant shareholder is the cause of the communication made on 23 March 2017
informing that the share in Acciona, S.A. Which was previously 4.07% of the share
capital had fallen below 3%.

b) Share premium, reserves and translation differences

The balance of the “Share Premium™ account, which at 31 December 2017 and 2016
amounted to 170,110 thousands of million euros, arose as a result of the capital increases
with share premiums carried out on different dates. The consolidated text of the Capital
Companies Act expressly permits the use of the share premium account balance to
increase capital and does not establish any specific restrictions as to the use of said
balance.

Detail of the share premium, reserves and translation differences appearing on the
consolidated statement of changes in equity was as follows:

2017 2016
Issue premium 170,110 170,110
Legal reserve 11,452 11,452
Reserve for retired capital 10,454 10,454
Voluntary rescrves 3.204.081 3,035,238
Consolidated reserves (Note 16.d) 327,097 270,260
Subtotal reserves 3,553,083 3,327,404
Translation differences (Note 16.d) (237,211) (60,876)
Total 3,485,982 3,436,638

The legal reserve, to which transfers must be made until 20% of the share capital is
reached, can be used to increase capital provided that the remaining reserve balance does
not fall below 10% of the increased share capital amount. Otherwise, until the legal
reserve does not reach 20% of share capital, this reserve can only be used to offset losses,
provided that there are no other reserves available in a sufficient amount for this purpose.

c) Treasury shares

The changes in treasury shares in financial years 2017 and 2016 were as follows:
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2017 2016
Number of Cost Number of Cost
shares shares
Opening balance 233.898 14,403 320,460 20,238
Additions 3,395.430 253,160 4.992,255 338,284
Removals (3.392,916) (253,024) (4,987,221) (338,300)
Liquidity contract 2,514 136 5,034 (16)
Additions 03/05/2017 (*) 221,357 16,569 -- -
Other additions 90,001 6,370 - -
Removals (502,068) (34,332) (91,596) (5,819)
Other movements (190,719) (11,393) (91,596) (5,819)
Closing balance 45,702 3,146 233,898 14,403

(*) Specific acquisition to meet the convertible bond conversion requirements

On 3 July 2015 Acciona, S.A. reported subscription of a liquidity contract with Bestinver
Sociedad de Valores, S.A. for the management of its treasury stock. The company’s stock
operations carried out by Bestinver within the framework of this contract take place on
the Spanish stock exchanges and the purpose is to increase the liquidity of transactions
and the stability of the trading price. On 10 July 2017, Acciona, S.A. cancelled said
contract and on the same date, the Company signed a new liquidity contract with the terms
detailed in Circular 1/2017 of the Spanish National Securities Market Commission
(CNMYV) for the purposes of their acceptance as a market practice. The cash accounts and
securities accounts that were associated with the cancelled liquidity contract and
amounted to 44,328 shares and 3,539,114.85 euros have been used to allocate cash and
securities to the new liquidity contract, adjusting the amount in cash to the trading value
of the shares assigned to the new contract, in accordance with the limits established in the
new CNMYV circular, which have been set at 44,318 shares and 3,340,000 euros.

At 31 December 2017 the shares under the liquidity contract lost 61 thousand euros,
which was recognised in reserves.

As regards to the rest of the movements, 484,068 shares were retired in 2017. The main
movement in the period corresponds to the conversions associated with the early
amortisation of the Convertible Bond which has resulted in a decrease of 279,965 shares
with a loss reflected in “reserves” for an amount of 2,484 thousand euros (see Note 18.b)).
To carry out this operation, the liquidity contract was temporarily suspended on 3 May
2017 and 221,357 shares at 74.85 euros each were acquired on the market.

[t should also be noticed that two block purchases were carried out on 18 December 2017
comprising a total package of 90,000 Acciona, S.A. treasury shares, representing 0.157%
of the share capital at a price of 70.78 euros per share.

The remaining shares retired in 2017 mainly relate to the shares delivered to the Group’s
management. This delivery took place under the Share Delivery Plan and the variable
remuneration Replacement Plan (see Note 34). The profit reflected in “reserves” for these
operations is 1,275 thousand euros.
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In 2016, 48,000 shares were used for the liquidity contract discussed in the paragraph
above, and 91,596 shares were retired, with a profit of 368 thousand euros, recognised in
reserves. This delivery took place under the Share Delivery Plan and the variable
remuneration Replacement Plan (see Note 34).

d) Reserves in consolidated companies and translation differences

The detail, by line of business, of the consolidation reserves contributed by subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates and of the related translation differences at 31 December
2017 and 2016 was as follows (in thousand euros):

2017 2016
Line of Reserves Traaslatien Reserves Translation
business Consolidated Differerces Coasolidated  Differences
Epergy {512,153) (20.812) {386.399) 32374
Construction 39.486 (114.221) 28418 (59,820)
Water 21,330 (23,000) (29,785) (15,207)
Services 13,540 2,327y 1,875 (841)
?;ffm 802,632 (27.308) 694.476 (17,382)
;‘;‘u‘i“;ﬁf" (37,738) - (38,325) —
Total 327.897 {187 664) 276,268 {60,876)

In addition to the Parent Company, at 31 December 2017, the Group company Mostostal
Warszawa, S.A. was a listed company. The average market price of this company in the
last quarter was PLN 6.68 and the market price at year-end was PLN 4.64. Similarly, the
associate Nordex, S.E. is also a listed company and its average market price in the last
quarter was EUR 8.59 and the market price at year-end was EUR 8.87.
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¢) Value adjustments

= Available-for-sale financial assets

This heading under “Retained Earnings”™ on the consolidated balance sheet includes the
amount, net of the related tax effect, of changes in the fair value of assets classified as
available for sale. These changes are recognised in the consolidated income statement
when the assets that give rise to them are sold.

The changes in the balance of “Value Adjustments” in 2017 and 2016 were as follows:

2017 2016
Balance at 1 January 351 149
Increases in value in the year - 202
Decreases in value in the year (237) -
Transfer to results in the year - -
Changes in the scope of consolidation - -
Balance at 31 December (note 20) 114 351

» (Cash flow hedges

This heading under “Retained Earnings™ on the consolidated balance sheet reflects the
amount net of the tax effect of changes in the fair value of financial derivatives designated
as cash flow hedging instruments (see Note 20).

The changes in the balance of this item in 2017 and 2016 were as follows:

2017 2016
Balance at 1 January (213,372) (364,868)
e Changes in value in the year 46,540 (80,472)
Gross 62,054 (107,296)
Tax effect (15,514) 26,824
e Transfer to results for the year 31,109 231,968
Gross 41,478 309,291
Tax effect (10,369) (77.323)
Balance at 31 December (135,723) (213,372)

) Non-controlling interests

The balance of “Non-Controlling Interests” on the accompanying consolidated balance
sheet reflects the equity of non-controlling interests in the subsidiaries. Also, “Non-
Controlling Interests” on the accompanying consolidated income statement reflects the
share of non-controlling interests in the profit or loss for the year.
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The movement in 2016 was as follows (in thousand euros):

Changes in
Compaay ﬁmg s:g;: Bividesds adj;:t:;:ts :’re::itj ?;?;l;;la é
ecmtritn/ a5 otber {Eosag
refaraed
Energy 233,273 750 24.128) 4.127) 235 206.023
Constrection 12,725 - (1651) {1.284) 16,511 26301
Water - 32,009 (16,266} 16 247 15,966
Services 743 — (123; 58 263 941
Other services 14,119 525 (3830 1207 4638 16,639
Total pos—coatrolfing iaterests 266360 33,284 {46,818) 4,139) 21874 265,870
The movement in 2017 was as follows (in thousand euros):
Changes in
. P
Company ;:?2;;;‘; s:::mf Dividends adj:sat!;:nts :’:;n? ?:,I:;;;: ;
centrib./ and sther (a5}
reterned
Energy 206,023 (1416} (24.790) (456849} 23467 156,435
Construction 26,301 3,513 {3,842) {5,615 3,520 19.877
Water 15966 — (31.798) 2331 3239 9.766
Services 941 - - {33y 146 991
QOther services 16,639 (728) - {424y 282 15,969
Total or—cootralBng futerests 265870 3,369 S0 A2y (54,599 33814 283,641

As described in note 3.2.h, on 8 March 2017 the Group acquired 82.4% of the shares of
the Australian construction group Geotech Holding, which, at the time of purchase, had
a net worth of 20 million euros. Recognition of the non-controlling interest of 17.6% at
the date consolidated is shown under “changes in scope & capital contributions/returned”
in the previous table.

During 2017, the main currencies that the Group operates with have experienced strong
depreciation against the euro. This has resulted in a significant reduction in the non-
controlling interests in assets and businesses established abroad, the effect of which is
included under “value adjustments and other” in the previous table. The Energy Division
was the most affected one, in which the US Dollar alone has caused a fall in the carrying
amount of non-controlling interests of more than 30 million euros.

In 2016 the Group acquired an additional 37.05% of the shares in ATLL Concessionaria
de la Generalitat de Catalunya, S.A., through which the subsidiary is fully consolidated,
recognising the non-controlling interest of 23.95% in the Equity that to date amounts to
32 million under “changes in scope & capital contributions/returned”. The same column
records the change in non-controlling interest that took place as a result of the acquisition
of the non-controlling interests of the Acciona Termosolar and Acciona Solar subgroups
(15% and 25% respectively), with 100% being reached for both subgroups.
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Summarised financial information for the subgroups or subsidiaries representing a
material portion of the Group’s assets, liabilities and transactions and for which no
dominant stakeholdings are held is shown below.

ATLL
Concessio-
naria de Ia
31122817 Acciosa Gearrafitat Suwbersup
Energy de Mostostal Cia Sebgroup
Internacional Catalunya, Warszawa, Trasmedi- Geotech
Sebgroap S.A. S.AL terramea Hotdisg
% Non-controlling interests 33.33% 23.95% 49.91% 7.29% 17.60%
ASSETS
Non-current assets 2,828,205 987,997 42,094 367,664 18,012
Current assets 298.870 112.806 213,778 124,196 19213
Total Assets 3,127,075 1,100,303 255,872 491,860 67,225
LIABILITIES
Equity 191,489 32.819 42,118 225,028 14.360
Attributed Equity 40.832 32.819 38,261 225039 14.360
Value adjustments and
translation difTerences (39.428) - (4.906) 3.409 (60)
Remaining cquity attributed to 80,260 32.819 43,167 221,630 14,420
the parent Company ’ ’ ’ ’ ’
Non-controlling interests 150,657 - 3,857 (I -
Non-current liabilities 2,751,591 971,389 72,503 10,390 9,035
Current liabilities 183,995 96,595 141,251 256,442 43,830
Total Liabilities 3,127,075 1,100,803 255,872 491,860 67,225
PROFIT/(LOSS)
Revenue 437.061 156,010 259,143 425,527 150,247
Operating profit 148,545 64.853 6,238 15,688 3,043
Profit/(loss) before tax 31.146 19.845 4.829 9.875 2.990
Profit/(loss) after tax 13,757 15.381 (4.502) 5,895 2208
Profit/(loss) attributed to non- (26.016) B 1198 ! _
controlling interests ’ ’
Profit/(loss) attributed to the parent (12.259) 15381 (3.304) 5.895 2208
Company : . . E .
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ATLY,
Concessio-
naria de la
31122816 Acciona Geoeralitat Sabgroup
Energy de Mostostal Cia
loternacional Catalenya, Warszawa, Trasmedi-
Sebgreap S.A. S.A. terranea
% Non-controiling interests 33.35% 23.95% 49.91% 7.29%
ASSETS
Non-current assets 3,109,094 998,606 48,053 319,125
Current assets 332,756 113,793 238,863 127,682
Total Assets 3,441,850 1,112,399 286,916 446,807
LIABILITIES
EqUity 265,204 66,664 14,472 224 945
Attributed Equity 78,079 66,664 9,658 224,957
Value adjustments and
translation differences (16.915) - (11.413) 4,735
Remaining equity attributed to 94.994 66.664 21.071 220222
the parent Company ’ : ’ -
Non-controlling interests 187,125 - 4814 (12)
Non-current liabilities 2,979,267 952,061 75,445 13,757
Total equity and liabilities 197,379 93,674 196,999 208,105
Total Liabilities 3,441,850 1,112,399 286,916 446,807
PROFIT/(LOSS)
Revenue 463,100 148,395 320.579 430,758
Operating profit 144,083 50,722 12,648 37,036
Profit/(loss) before tax (36,157) 5,801 11,148 32,394
Profit/(loss) after tax (46,184) 865 7,607 18,211
Profit/(Joss) attributed to non- 16.352) ~ 451 _
controlling interests (e,
Profit/(loss) attributed to the parent (62.537) 365 8,058 18.210

Company

g) Capital management

The main objectives of the Group’s capital management are to safeguard its capacity to
continue operating as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns to
shareholders and to benefit other stakeholders, and also to maintain an optimal financial
and equity structure to reduce the cost of capital. As a result of this policy, creating value
for the shareholder is compatible with access to financial markets at a competitive cost in
order to cover both debt refinancing and investment plan financing needs not covered by
funds generated by the business.
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In order to maintain and adjust the capital structure, the Group may vary the amounts of
the dividends payable to the shareholders, return capital, issue shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.

In line with other groups in the industries in which the Acciona Group operates, the capital
structure is controlled on the basis of the leverage ratio. This ratio is calculated as the
result of dividing net debt by equity. Net debt is calculated as the sum of current and non-
current financial debt, excluding those relating to held-for-sale assets, less current
financia! assets and cash and cash equivalents.

The leverage ratio at 31 December 2017 and 2016 is shown below.

Leverage

Million euros

2017 2016
Net financial debt: 5,224 5,131
Non-current financial debt 5,272 5,602
Current bank financial debt 1,472 1,169
Current financial assets and cash and cash
equivalents (1,520) (1,640)
Equity: 3,963 4,097
Of the Parcnt 3,760 3831
Of non-controlling interests 203 266
Leverage 132% 125%

h) Restriction on the distribution of funds by subsidiaries

Certain Group companies have clauses in their financing contracts that have to be met in
order for profit to be distributed to the shareholders. Specifically, the clauses stipulate the
maintenance of a senior debt coverage ratio in {inancing contracts.

17.- Provisions and litigation

The movement in the section “Non-current provisions” of the liability side of the
consolidated balance sheets at 31 December 2017 and 2016 was as follows:

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Opening balance 497,472 420,245
Additions and allocations 97,262 92937
Removals (74.587) (32.729)
Transfers 3,817 (5,775)
Other changes 4,644 22,794
Closing balance 528,608 497,472

The main changes in financial year 2017 related to allocations for several litigation cases,
as well as periodic allocations to cover dismantling operations and the repairs and drought
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provision. With regards to removals, the application of 17 million euros to the tax
provision should be noted, after the inspection activities detailed in Note 22 were
concluded. The movement in “other changes™ corresponds to scope changes for the
subsidiary Sociedad Concesionaria Autovia de los Vifiedos, S.A which is now fully
consolidated. The following sections detail the effects that this subsidiary has on the
provisions of this nature.

The Acciona Group operates in different businesses and in a great number of countries
with very specific industry regulations. In the normal course of its business, the Group is
exposed to litigation related to these business activities, including most notably: tax
claims, claims related to defects in construction projects performed and claims related to
differences regarding services rendered. Part of these risks are covered by insurance
policies (third-party liability, construction defects, etc.) and for the other risks identified,
the required provisions are recognised. The nature and amount of the main provisions are
detailed below.

a) Constructive obligations: Provisions are recognised for the constructive obligations of
subsidiaries accounted for using the equity method when the Group’s investments in
associates have been reduced to zero. At 31 December 2017, the provision in this
connection amounted to 59 million euros (71 million euros at 31 December 2016). The
table below shows the detail, by division and in proportion to the Group’s share
percentage in the capital of each, of the assets, liabilities, revenue and profit/(loss) for
2017 of the associates for which a provision was recognised.

Energy Construction Water Services Total 2017
Assets
Non-current assets 22,097 321,625 44,476 156 388,354
Current assets 10,941 51,387 2,808 413 65,549
Total assets 33,038 373,012 47,284 569 453,903
Liabilities
Equity (2,697) (52.,400) (4,142) (202) (59,441)
Non-current liabilities 29,082 240,027 48,320 362 317,791
Current liabilities 6,653 185,385 3,106 409 195,553
Total equity and liabilities 33,038 © 373,012 47284 569 453,903
Profit/(Loss)
Net revenue 3,557 11,087 6,319 - 20,963
:;gfj;tie;fore tax from continuing 435 (1.832) 1.024 = GB73)
Profit/(Loss) before tax 435 (1,832) 1,024 - (373)

This section includes, in the infrastructure construction division, a provision in the
amount of 29 million euros for the companies Infraestructuras y Radiales, S.A. and
Henarsa, S.A., companies which were declared to be under voluntary creditors’ meeting
proceedings on 5 September 2013 at Business Court no. 10 in Madrid. The creditors’
meeting took place in September 2017 and as sufficient creditors did not adhere to the
proposed agreement, on 18 October 2017 the companies entered into liquidation pending
determination of the liquidation value by the insolvency administration. Similarly, there
is a provision in the amount of 3 million euros for Sociedad Concesionaria Puente del
Ebro, S.A., which was also declared to be under voluntary creditors’ meeting proceedings
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on 4 November 2014 at Business Court no. 2 in Zaragoza. The creditors’ agreement was
not approved and hence on 9 November 2017 the company entered into liquidation phase.

[t should also be noticed that this heading has reduced by 8 million euros due to the change
in how Sociedad Concesionaria Autovia de los Vifiedos, S.A. is consolidated after
acquiring an additional 50% of the shares, which is now fully consolidated (see Note 3).

b) Levies, taxes and local charges: these relate to provisions for regional, state or
international levies, taxes and local charges arising from construction work and
infrastructure development and taxes in general which, in view of the varying
interpretations that can be made of the tax legislation, could give rise to contingent tax
liabilities in the various countries in which the Acciona Group operates. At 31 December
2017 the provision in this connection amounted to 42 million euros, which in 2016
amounted to 41 million euros. An addition of 17 million euros was made during 2017
(see Note 22), as well as the application of 16.5 million euros after the last Corporate Tax
inspection activities for financial years 2010-2012 aimed at both Acciona, S.A. and other
subsidiaries (see Note 22) were concluded in May 2017.

¢) So-called “drought” provision: recognised by the subsidiary ATLL Concessionaria de
la Generalitat de Catalunya, S.A. under the concession contract, in order to deal with
possible drought periods. The provision in this connection, at 31 December 2017,
amounted to 30 million euros (25 million euros at 31 December 2016).

d) Repairs: these relate to provisions in connection to repairs agreed with the awarding
entity in concessions from the infrastructure division. Each year they are systematically
endowed by a charge against the operating profit/(loss). The provision in this connection,
at 31 December 2017, amounted to 69 million euros (42 million euros at 31 December
2016). The increase is mainly due to the consolidation of Sociedad Concesionaria Autovia
de los Vifiedos, S.A. which in 2017 is now fully consolidated, incorporating a provision
for this concept which amounts to 24 million euros.

¢) Pensions and similar: these relate to provisions for pensions and similar obligations
arising mainly from the acquisition of assets from Endesa in 2009, which are detailed and
quantified below. At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the provision in this connection
amounted to 10 million euros.

f) Burdensome contracts: these relate to contracts for works and provision of services that
represent a burden and lead to losses. The Group charges a provision against the income
statement for losses expected from these contracts at the moment when it determines that
the contract’s costs which cannot be avoided in order to comply with the contract are
likely to exceed the revenue therefrom. The provision in this connection, at 31 December
2017, amounted to 54 million euros (51 million euros at 31 December 2016).

g) Dismantling: these relate mainly to provisions stemming from the electricity
generation facilities recently commissioned in the Energy division international area,
after the Group concluded, upon analysis of the particularities of these contracts, that
there is an obligation to dismantle said facilities. The provision in this connection, at 31
December 2017, amounted to 85 million euros (75 million euros at 31 December 2016).
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h) Litigation: these related to provisions for lawsuits under way as a number of claims
have been brought against the Group in various jurisdictions for various reasons. At 31
December 2017 the Group maintained provisions amounting to 168 million euros (170
million euros at 31 December 2016), of which 87 and 81 million euros corresponded to
the energy and infrastructure divisions respectively.

As regards these cases, it is hard to predict how they will turn out, although the Group’s
Directors are of the opinion that there will be no short-term outflow of economic profits
due to the status of these court cases at the present time.

The best estimates of the risks and uncertainty inevitably surrounding most of the events
and circumstances affecting these cases have been considered for the recording of these
provisions. In this respect, the negative downturn in recent years of the general market
situation and the economic and financial conditions in many of the countries in which the
Group has operations has contributed to a general situation of extreme and very
widespread instability, giving rise to very significant uncertainties. This situation has not
only remained constant but has in fact even increased recently, with the result that the
calibration of this uncertainty has been done with prudence, understood as the inclusion
of a certain degree of caution when making the necessary assessments, but safeguarding
in all cases the true and fair view of the financial statements.

The Group’s Management considers that no significant additional liabilities will occur
that are not provisioned in the consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2017.

With regards to the court proceedings related to ATLL Concessionaria de la Generalitat
de Catalunya, S.A., on 22 June 2015 the High Court of Justice of Catalonia (HCJC) issued
judgement allowing in part the appeal for judicial review of the administrative decision
lodged by the concession company ATLL Concesionaria de la Generalitat de Catalunya,
S.A. and Acciona Agua, S.A., overruling the resolution dated 2 January 2013 from the
Contractual Resources Administrative Body of Catalonia in relation to exclusion of the
bid made by the Acciona led consortium. The Court, however, considered that there were
defects in the tender procedure that are not attributable to the bidders, which lead to the
contracting procedure being rendered void as a whole because the bidders did not have
full knowledge of the exact scope of the requirements related to the works schedule.

On 21 February 2018, the company ATLL Concessionaria de la Generalitat de Catalunya
S.A. became aware of the judgement handed down by the Supreme Court on the cassation
appeal filed by the Generalitat de Catalunya against the HCJC ruling which invalidated
the procedure to award said concession (appeal 2725/2015). This judgement dismisses
the claims brought forward by the Generalitat and confirms the TSJC ruling.

The judgement handed down by the Supreme Court does not negatively affect the
compensation to which the concessionaire that would enter into liquidation phase would
be entitled to, and without prejudice to claims that could be made for damages.

The company is currently waiting for notification of the cassation appeal 2682/2015 filed
by Gesti¢ Catalana de Aigues, and appeal 2678/2015 filed by the Concessionaire and by
Acciona Agua against the HCJC judgement which invalidated the procedure to award
said concession.
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In the event that the Supreme Court resolves the outstanding appeals in the same way,
and the award is rendered definitively void, the contract will be void and will go into the
liquidation stage, with the effects established in the Government Procurement Act. The
contract includes a contractual clause, 9.12, which refers to early termination of the
concession contract. This clause establishes that if the concession contract is terminated
before 50 years elapse, regardless of the grounds for termination, the Administration shall
pay the concession company compensation that will cover:

(a) the unamortised portion of the total concession fee. This amortisation is
calculated according to what is established in this clause 9.12 of the contract in
conformity with clause 22 of the Administrative Specifications Document;

(b) the unamortised portion of the works, installations and other investments, in
PPE and intangible assets, carried out by the concessionaire up to date; and,

(c) related additional costs.

In any event, as indicated in this contractual clause 9.12, all calculations needed to
determine what is established in the paragraphs above must refer to amounts actually
included in the tariffs, following the principle of recovery of all previous items through
the tariffs and with the time where contract termination occurs and the months elapsed in
which the concessionaire applied the annual tariff in question being taken into account, if
appropriate.

The compensation referred to in clause 9.12 is applicable even if the Administration must
enforce court resolutions that involve termination or cancellation of the concession
contract according to reply by the Generalitat de Catalunya of 5 July 2013 to the enquiry
made by the concessionaire ATLL.

In any case, the principle of ensuring continuity of the service guarantees that the
concessionaire shall still operate the concession until the Generalitat or other eventual
successful bidder resulting from another bidding process can formally step in to replace
the concessionaire.

In conclusion, if the Supreme Court rules on the outstanding appeals in the same way as
the judgement that has already been made public, then the contract would be cancelled
and would enter into liquidation phase and the administration would need to pay the
corresponding compensation. The compensation would include, inter alia, returning the
portion of the unamortised fee, without prejudice to the claim for damages as might be
appropriate.

Therefore, the Directors are of the opinion that the final resolution of the proceedings
described above will not involve an outflow of resources, for which reason no provision
for risks and expenses in connection with this lawsuit was recorded at 31 December 2017.

Note that for informative purposes, note 16.f) includes the main items that the company
ATLL Concessionaria de ia Generalitat de Catalunya, S.A contributed to the Acciona
Group at 31 December 2017.

Provisions for pensions and similar obligations e -

- Pe
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“Non-current provisions” section on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet
includes mainly provisions for pensions and similar obligations due to the acquisition of
assets and/or companies from the Endesa Group in 2009.

The group of employees considered in 2017 and 2016 for measurement was 92 employees
(101 at the close of 2016), 23 of whom have already taken early retirement or are retired
(24 at the close of 2016). Not all of them are in the same situation and under the same
commitment. The main characteristics of the plans assumed are the following:

i)

2017
Interest rate 1.72%
Mortality tables

Expected rate of return on plan

1.70%
assets

Salary review 1.70%

Defined benefit pension plan with salary increase rate tied to the increase in the
CPLI. This plan is treated in exactly the same way as a defined benefit system. The
assumptions used in calculating the actuarial liability in respect of the uninsured
defined benefit obligations at 31 December 2017 and 2016 were as follows:

2016
1.91%

PERPM/F2000 PERPM/F2000

1.85%

2.0%

Information is provided below on the changes in the actuarial liabilities for the
defined benefit obligations at 31 December 2017 and 2016:

2017 2016
Initial actuarial liability 4,044 3,995
Cost incurred in the ycar 112 99
Finance costs 71 107
Benefits paid in the year (190) -
Actuarial gains and losses (157)
Final actuarial liability 4,064 4,044

Information is provided below on the changes in the actuarial assets for the defined
benefit obligations at 31 December 2017 and 2016:

2017 2016
Initial actuarial asset 2,312 2,757
Return recognised in the year 43 72
Contributions made in the year 488 469
Actuarial gains and losses (155) (986)
Final actuarial asset 2,688 2,312
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At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the total amount of the final actuarial assets and
liabilities related in full to defined benefit obligations in Spain.

At 2017 year-end, the amount recognised in the consolidated income statement
for defined benefit pension obligations amounted to 146 thousand euros (134
thousand euros in 2016) and related to the cost incurred during the year and the
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iii)

return and finance cost of the assets and liabilities associated with these employee
welfare benefits.

Obligations to provide certain employee welfare benefits during the retirement
period, relating mainly to electricity supplies. These obligations were not
externalised and are covered by the related in-house provisions totalling 2,981
thousand euros (3,274 thousand euros at 31 December 2016).

The actuarial changes recognised, arising in this connection, amounted to a profit
of 331 thousand euros in financial year 2017 (profit of 542 thousand euros in
2016).

Commitment undertaken by the company to supplement the public social security
system benefits in the event of termination of the employment relationship as a
result of an agreement between the parties.

The movement in the provision for these obligations, recognised under caption
“Provisions” on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet in 2017 and 2016,

was as follows:

Provision for other long-
term employee benefit

obligations
Balance at 31/12/2015 961
Additions and allocations 7
Removals 461)
Balance at 31/12/2016 507
Additions and allocations 44
Removals (336)
Balance at 31/12/2017 215

These liabilities related in full to the collective redundancy procedures signed by
Group companies in Spain.

The Plan affects employees with at least 10 years of acknowledged seniority.
Employees aged 50 or more at 31 December 2005 were entitled to adhere to a pre-
retirement plan at the age of 60, of which they could avail themselves between the
ages of 50 and 60, upon the mutual agreement between the employee and the
company concerned. For the Plan to apply to employees younger than 50 at 31
December 2005, a written request from the employee and the acceptance thereof
by the Group were required.

The conditions applicable to employees under 50 years of age affected by the
Voluntary Redundancy Plan consisted in a termination benefit of 45 days” salary
per year of service plus an additional amount of 1 or 2 months’ salary based on
the employee’s age at 31 December 2005.

The impact of these plans on the consolidated income statement is not material.
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18. - Financial debt

a) Bank borrowings

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, detail of recourse and non-recourse borrowings, it being
understood that non-recourse is the debt with no corporate guarantees, whose recourse is
limited to the debtor’s flows and assets, was as follows (in thousand euros):

2017 2016

Current Current Non-current Current Non-current
Non-recourse bank borrowings 181,874 1,443,526 199,162 1,797,150
Mortgage loans for non-current asset financing 13,127 11,206 26,300 128,965
Mortgage loans for property developments 6,514 - 14,199 -
Project finance 149,990 1,407,316 151,319 1,649,926
Obligations under finance leases 10,991 25,004 5,861 17,268
Other limited recourse debt 1,252 - 1,483 991
Recourse bank borrowings 649,268 2,963,410 475,936 3,183,901
Discounted notes and bills not yet due 522 - -~ -
Other bank loans and credit facilities 648,746 2,963,410 475,936 3,183,901
Total bank borrowings 831,142 4,406,936 675,098 4,981,051

In 2017 and 2016, the Group’s loans and credit facilities accrued interest mainly refer to
Euribor for those financing in euros, although a portion of the Group’s borrowings were
also tied to other indices such as Libor for borrowings in US dollars, the CDOR for
borrowings in Canadian dollars, the TIIE for financing in Mexican pesos, the WIBOR for
financing in Polish zloty, the BBSY for financing in Australian dollars and the JIBAR for
financing in South African rands; these are the main indices for the Group outside the
euro zone. A significant portion of the Group’s borrowings is hedged by financial
derivatives which seek to reduce the volatility in the interest rates paid by the Acciona
Group (see Note 20).

Through subsidiaries or associates, the Acciona Group undertakes investments mainly in
transport infrastructure, energy, water supply and hospitals, and these are then operated
by subsidiaries, jointly-controlled entities and associates and funded through “Project
finance” (financing applied to projects).

These finance structures are applied to projects capable of providing by themselves
sufficient support for the participating financial entities as to the repayment of the
borrowings taken out to implement them. Thus, each one is normally executed through
special purpose vehicles in which the project’s assets are financed on the one hand by a
contribution of funds by the project’s sponsors, limited to a certain predefined amount,
and, on the other hand, generally a larger sum through third-party funds in the form of
long-term borrowing. The debt service on these loans or credits is fundamentally backed
by the cash flows to be generated in future by the project itself, as well as by in rem
guarantees over the project’s assets and credit rights.

The most significant changes in financial year 2017 were produced:
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- Under “mortgage loans for non-current asset financing” for the contribution of the
company Compaiiia Urbanizadora El Coto, S.L. in exchange for a share in the capital
of Testa Residencial SOCIMI, S.A., explaining the reduction in the debt by 111
million euros with respect to the previous financial year.

- Under “project finance” for the purchase of an additional 50% of the company
Autovia de los Viiiedos, S.A., which now consolidates following the global
consolidation method after taking control (it was previously consolidated by applying
the equity method), thereby incorporating bank borrowings at 31 December 2017
amounting to 123 million euros. The reduction of “project finance” corresponds to
the reclassification of 180 million euros of debt associated with certain energy assets
under “non-current liabilities held for sale” as the Group is currently undergoing
negotiations to dispose of these assets through a sale operation. Likewise, this heading
is reduced due to the amortisations programmed for this type of loan, as well as the
effect of the translation differences in the financial year which are mainly related to
projects in US dollars and South African rand.

- Under “other bank loans and credit facilities” caption, several “Green Loans” have
been taken out during the financial year: noticing one formally arranged in April 2017
for 100 million euros with BBV A with due date in 3 years, and another three “Green
Loans” formally arranged in May, July and November for 50 million euros each with
due dates in 2019, 2022 and 2020 with Unicredit, Helaba Bank and ICBC. These
“Green Loans” are intended to be used to finance renewable energy investment
operations and investments in environmental sustainability projects. The decreases
are caused due to the scheduled expiry of the loans at the due dates.

For financial year 2016 mention should be made of the cancellation of four financing
projects in US dollars for wind farms in operation and two financing projects in euros for
thermal solar plants, as well as two financing arrangements in euros for a set of assets for
wind and hydraulic generation located in Spain. These debt cancellations meant a charge
of 301 million euros in the finance cost accounts for the transfer to the income statement
of the hedge derivatives associated with these financing arrangements and for the early
termination costs and the arrangement fees pending accrual.

As indicated in Note 4.2 1), the adoption of IFRS 13 requires an adjustment in the
measurement techniques applied by the Acciona Group to obtain the fair value of its
derivatives in order to incorporate the bilateral credit risk adjustment so as to reflect both
own risk and counterparty risk in the fair value of the derivatives.

At 31 December 2017, the adjustment of credit risk represented a lower valuation of
liability derivatives in the amount of 3,930 thousand euros, recognised on the one hand
as a smaller debt with credit entities in the amount of 2,002 thousand euros by
subsidiaries, 326 thousand euros as a minor liability held for sale for companies classified
in this way at the end of the year, and as a higher value of the investment using the equity
method in the amount of 1,602 thousand euros, without considering the tax effect, by the
companies consolidated in accordance with this method. The effect, net of external and
after-tax effects, that this modification had on the heading “Adjustments in equity for
valuation of cash flow hedges” was positive in the amount of 2,616 thousand euros.

At 31 December 2017 the Group companies had been granted additional financing not
drawn down in the amount of 1,827,389 thousand euros, of which 1,807,389 thousand
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euros related to credit lines for the financing of working capital, and the remaining amount,
20,000 thousand euros, to lines to finance fees to enter water projects.

The Group’s Management is of the opinion that the amount of these credit lines and the
ordinary generation of cash, together with the realisation of current assets, will
sufficiently cover the short-term payment obligations.

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, neither Acciona, S.A. nor any of its significant
subsidiaries were in breach of any of their financial obligations or any other obligations
in such a way as might lead to early maturity of their financial obligations. Similarly, no
default is expected for 2018.

In addition, in 2017 and 2016 there were no defaults or any other non-payments of
principal, interest or repayments in respect of interest bearing borrowings.

Borrowings by the real estate division are classified as current liabilities on the basis of
the production cycle of the asset they finance, that is, inventories, even though the due
date for some of these liabilities stands at over twelve months.

Detail, by maturity, of bank borrowings for the years following the closing date of the
balance sheet was as follows:

Years
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 Total
Subsequent
831,142 1,023,510 1,104,294 920,553 580,142 130,025 648,412 5,238,078

Obligations under finance leases

Detail of the Group’s finance leases at 31 December 2017 and 2016 was as follows:

Minimum lease payments

Amounts to pay under finance leases 2017 2016

Within one year 13,743 6,775
Between one and two years 12,558 8,311
Between two and five years 12,351 10,023
After five years - -
Total lease payments payable 38,652 25,109
Less future finance charges 2,657 1,980
Present value of lease obligations 35,995 23,129
Less amount due for seftlement within twelve months (current liability) 10,991 5,861
Amount duc for settlement after twelve months 25,004 17,268

It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its facilities and equipment under finance leases.
The average lease term is three to five years. In the year ended 31 December 2017, the
average effective interest rate was the market rate. Interest rates are set at the lease
contract date. All leases have fixed payments and no arrangements have been entered into
for contingent rental payments.
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b) Debentures, bonds and negotiable securities

Breakdown at 31 December 2017 and 2016 of debentures, recourse and non-recourse
bonds and negotiable securities, it being understood that non-recourse is the debt with no
corporate guarantees, whose recourse is limited to the debtor’s flows and assets, was as
follows (in thousand euros):

Thousand curos

2017 2016
Debentures, bonds and negotiable securities without 263265 256.893
recourse
Debentures, bonds and negotiable securities with 1,242 821 857,716
recourse
Total debentures, bonds and negotiable securities 1,506,087 1,114,609
CL,v‘Ei VO
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The movement in these accounts on the current and non-current liabilities side of the
balance sheet for financial years 2017 and 2016 was as follows:

Thousand euros

2017 2016
Opening balance 1,114,609 1,175,879
Changes in the scope of consolidation 47,026 -
Issues 866,953 646,591
Interest accrued pending payment 7,068 10,434
Amortisations (489.,721) (727,548)
Other changes (39,848) 9,253
Closing balance 1,506,087 1,114,609

The main varijation in this heading in 2017, on the “Issues” line, related to the issue of
EMTN and ECP (promissory notes) for a total of 469 and 398 million euros, respectively,
under the Euro Medium Term Note (EMTN) and Euro Commercial Paper (ECP)
programmes, all described further below. As for the line “Amortisations”, mention must
be made of the amortisation on maturity of the previous ECP programme (promissory
notes) for 233 million euros, the amortisation of EMTN for 147 million euros, and the
termination of the convertible bond issued by Acciona, S.A. The line “Other changes”
related mainly to translation differences in the two issues of bonds in currencies other
than the euro.

The distribution of the maturity of these debentures for 2018 and for the next and
subsequent years is as follows:

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023  Subsequent .,
years
641,148 455,087 37,126 15,601 16,536 18212 322,376 1,506,086

At 31 December 2017, detail of the issues making up the balance for this heading was as
follows:

- Placement of a bonds issue on 10 August 2012 with a credit rating of “BBB ” given by
the Standard & Poors and Fitch rating agencies for the Mexican subsidiaries CE Oaxaca
Dos, S. de R.L. de C.V. and CE Oaxaca Cuatro, S. de R.1.. de C.V., in a total amount of
298.7 million US dollars. The purpose of this funding was the development, construction
and operation of two wind power projects (102 MW each) for the final client, the Federal
Electricity Commission (FEC). The issue accrues interest at 7.250% per annum, payable
every six months on 30 June and 31 December each year until 31 December 2031. The
redemption of the debt began on 31 December 2012 and will continue with six-monthly
debt write-downs until its total repayment on 31 December 2031. At 31 December 2017,
the balances recorded for this issue on the non-current and current bonds and debentures
account amounted to 214 and 6.9 million euros, respectively.

Euro Commercial Paper (ECP) Programme formalised on 17 January 2013 by Acciona,
S.A. and renewed as from 2015, most recently on 13 July 2017, by the Group’s subsidiary
Acciona Financiacion de Filiales, S.A., with the guarantee of Acciona, S.A., for another
twelve months and a maximum of 750 million euros. Through this programme, which is
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listed on the Irish Stock Exchange, notes are issued on the euro market with maturities
between 15 and 364 days. In 2017, promissory notes were issued and amortised for 398
and 233 million euros, respectively, and the outstanding balance stood at 378 million
euros at 31 December 2017.

Last 16 January 2017, the company reported its intention to buy back up to 108.4 million
euros of the total face value of its bonds convertible to shares issued by Acciona, S.A. in
2014, and which accounted for the total of bonds outstanding that the Company did not
have as part of its treasury stock after the buy backs made in the previous year. After this
operation, Acciona holds 95.26% of the convertible bonds issued, equivalent to 409
million euros.

In addition, during February and May 2017, 39,050 shares were delivered to the
bondholders who had exercised their right to convert their bonds under the terms and
conditions of the issuance, resulting in the termination of 0.68% of the convertible bond
(see Note 16.¢)).

On 20 June 2017, the partial termination of 95.26% of the convertible bond was formally
arranged, and the total amount of the financial debt for convertible obligations that
Acciona Group had was cancelled in accordance with IAS 32, recording an impact on
reserves of 36 million euros, and on the income statement for the year for 4.3 million
euros.

On 1 August 2017, the “Clean Up Call” clause was exercised, which was contained in the
contract to effectively convert an additional 4.01% of the bond by delivering 240,915
shares (see Note 16.c)), the remaining 0.06% of the bond was cancelled by bank transfer
according to the terms contained in the contract.

- Issue by Acciona, S.A. in April 2014 of simple bearer debentures through a private
placement, in the amount of 62.7 million euros and maturing in 2024. The face value of
each debenture is 100,000 euros and they accrue interest at 5.55% per annum with an
annual coupon. At 31 December 2017, the balances recorded for these simple debentures
on the accounts for non-current and current bonds and debentures, net of the transaction
costs and considering the interest accrued, amounted to 61.8 and 2.4 million euros,
respectively.

- On 13 July 2017 Acciona Financiacion Filiales, S.A. renewed, with the guarantee of
Acciona, S.A., under the same terms and conditions as the previous one issued by
Acciona, S.A., a fixed-interest securities issue programme - Euro Medium Term Note
Programme (EMTN) for a maximum amount of up to 1,500 million euros. In relation to
this programme, the Group prepared a base leaflet that was approved by the Central Bank
of Ireland. These issues accrue annual interest ranging from 0.732% to 4.625%. The
securities issued under this programme may: accrue fixed or variable interest, be issued
in euros or in another currency and at par, below par and premium and have different
maturity dates for the principal and the interest. At 31 December 2017 the balances
registered against this EMTN programme in the non-current and current debentures and
bonds accounts, net of transactions costs and considering interest accrued, amounted to
551 and 250 million euros, respectively. The fair value of the bonds at the end of the
financial year amounts to 817 million euros.
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- Issue by Autovia de los Vifiedos, S.A. This issue took place on 28 October 2004
in the amount of 64.100 thousand euros and accrues interest at 4.79% per annum payable
on 15 December each year throughout the life of the issue. The bonds began to be
redeemed on 15 December 2009 and their total amortisation is scheduled for 15 December
2027. In 2017, the company is now fully consolidated (see Note 3) and therefore at 31
December 2017, the balances recorded for this issue on the non-current and current bonds
and debentures account amounted to 38 and 4.2 million euros, respectively.

At 31 December 2017, there were no issues convertible into shares, or issues granting
rights or privileges that might, in the event of a contingency, make them convertible into
shares of the Parent Company or of any of the Group companies.

In addition, two of the companies in the Acciona Group consolidated using the equity
method have debentures and bonds issued with the following characteristics:

- Private issue of bonds with a credit rating of “A” given by the Standard & Poors rating
agency by the Canadian company Chinook Roads Partnership in the amount of
108,882 thousand euros attributed as part of the funding needed to undertake the
construction, operation and maintenance project for the Southeast Stoney Trail
motorway in the city of Calgary (Canada). This issue took place on 31 March 2010
and accrues interest of 7.134% per annum payable monthly on the last working day
of each month during the construction phase and quarterly during the operation phase.
Debt amortisation began on 31 December 2013 and will continue with quarterly
cancellations until its total amortisation on 31 March 2043.

- Issue on 27 May 2015 by Sociedad Concesionaria Autovia de la Plata, S.A. in the
amount of 184,500 thousand euros. The issue accrues a 3.169% annual coupon
payable every six months. The bond principal must be amortised every six months
and the total term is 26.6 years, with final maturity on 31 December 2041. The issue
credit rating is BBB by the Standard & Poors rating agency.

c) Other debt-related information

At 31 December 2017, the average interest rate of the debt, considering bank borrowings
and the debt associated with debentures and other negotiable securities, stood at 3.77%.

In financial year 2017, the debt percentage not subject to interest rate volatility stood at
41.08%.

The composition of debt in currencies other than the euro at 31 December 2017, classified
by the main currencies in which the Acciona Group operates, was the following:
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Financial debt

Currency 2017 2016
Australian dollar 359,438 191,104
Brazilian real 54,535 68,193
Canadian dollar 79.974 54,583
Mexican peso 31,611 18.856
Polish zloty 41,038 40,255
US dollar 890,793 973,191
South African rand 254,229 261,765
Others 69,749 64.586
Total 1,781,367 1,672,533

Reconciliation of the carrying amount of bank borrowings is included below,
differentiating between the changes that generate cash flow and those that do not:

Balance at 31/12/2016 6,770,758
Cash inflow 2,088.175
Cash outflow (1,850,221)
Transfers to held for sale (269.002)
Change in value of derivatives (22,317)
Change in scope 100,284
Translation differences and other -73.513
Balance at 31/12/2017 6,744,164

19. - Risk management policy

Due to its geographical and business diversification, the Acciona Group is exposed to
certain risks, which are managed appropriately through the application of a Risk
Management System. This System is designed to identify potential events that might
affect the organisation; to manage its risks through the establishment of internal treatment
and control procedures that ensure the probability of occurrence and impact of these
events are kept within the established tolerance levels; and to provide reasonable
assurance in relation to the achievement of strategic business objectives.

This policy seeks to integrate risk management into Acciona’s strategy and to establish
the framework and principles of the Risk Management System.

This policy covers all the risks associated with the activities carried on by Acciona’s
business lines throughout the geographical areas in which it carries on its activity.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate fluctuations change the future flows of assets and liabilities that bear floating-
rate interest.

This interest rate fluctuation risk is particularly material with regard to the funding of
infrastructure projects, in concession contracts, in the construction of wind farms or solar
plants and other projects where the variation in interest rates may have a strong impact
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on their profitability. This risk is mitigated by hedging transactions through the
engagement of derivatives (mainly interest rate swaps, IRS).

Hedging transactions are carried out that mitigate these risks as a function of the Acciona
Group’s projections of the trend in interest rates and of debt structure targets. The level
of debt hedged in each project depends on the type of project in question and the country
in which the investment is made.

The benchmark interest rate for the borrowings arranged by the ACCIONA Group
companies is mainly Euribor for transactions denominated in euros, Libor for transactions
denominated in US dollars, CDOR for transactions denominated in Canadian dollars, and
BBSW for transactions denominated in Australian dollars. The borrowings arranged for
projects in Latin America are normally tied to the local indices customarily used in the
local banking industry, or also to the LIBOR rate as the projects in this geographic area
are frequently financed in US dollars since the cash flows generated by the asset are also
in the same currency (Exchange rate risk natural hedge).

Sensitivity test on derivatives and debt

The financial instruments that are exposed to interest rate risk are basically borrowings
arranged at floating interest rates and derivative financial instruments.

In order to be able to analyse the effect that a possible fluctuation in interest rates might
have on the Group’s financial statements, a simulation was performed which assumed a
50-basis point increase and decrease in interest rates at 31 December 2017.

The analysis of sensitivity to upward or downward changes of 0.50% in floating interest
rates (mainly Euribor and Libor) gave rise to a sensitivity in the Group’s consolidated
income statement arising from an increase or decrease in financial results due to interest

payments, without the effect of derivatives being considered of 19,782 thousand euros at
31 December 2017.

The analysis of the sensitivity to upward or downward changes in the long-term interest rate
curve in relation to the fair value of interest rate derivatives included in cash flow hedges
arranged by the Group at 31 December 2017 on the basis of share percentage, meant a
decrease in debt for financial derivatives vis-a-vis 0.5% increases in the interest rate curve
of 45,852 thousand euros. Similarly, 0.5% decrease in the interest rate curve would lead to
an increase of 45,852 thousand euros in liabilities for financial derivatives.

Foreign currency risk

Acciona is developing a process of growing the internationalisation of its business, which
means it is exposed to foreign currency risk involving transactions in the currencies of
the countries where it invests and operates.

This risk is managed by the Group’s Economic and Financial Department, with non-
speculative hedge criteria being applied.
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Foreign currency risks relate basically to the following transactions:

- Debt denominated in foreign currencies engaged by Group companies and
associates.

- Payments to be made in international markets for procurements.

- Receivables tied mainly to the performance of currencies other than the euro.

- Investments made in foreign companies.

In order to mitigate foreign currency risk, the Acciona Group uses currency derivatives
(foreign currency hedges) to cover future transactions and cash flows, within acceptable
risk limits. At other times, non-current assets in currencies other than the euro are
financed in the same currency as that in which the asset is denominated.

Also, the net assets relating to net investments in foreign operations whose functional
currency is not the euro are exposed to foreign currency risk in the translation of the
financial statements of these foreign operations on consolidation.

The composition of current and non-current assets and liabilities and equity at 31
December 2017 is shown below in thousand euros for the main currencies in which the

Acciona Group operates.

Currency c:‘ r(:‘l;m Cﬂ";;::' c?r(:‘lc‘m Iﬁl;;;;::'c: Net Assets Sc(nlsg:;:)ity
assets liabilities

Australian dollar (AUD) 624,838 399,030 250,782 358.290 414,796 41,480
Brazilian real (BRL) 55,440 93,281 63,109 51,635 33,977 3,398
Canadian dollar (CAD) 208,416 178,106 124,471 102,968 159,083 15,908
Chilean Peso (CLP) 127,246 215,414 52,997 143,839 145,824 14,582
Mexican Peso (MXN) 374,272 250,522 97,776 261,834 265,184 26,518
Zloty (PLN) 171,340 266,052 45,950 177.951 213,491 21,349
US doliar (USD) 2,159,651 423482 1,352,300 421,898 808,935 80,894
Rand (ZAR) 287,708 145,420 266,928 94,161 72,039 7,204

The last column on the table above shows estimate of the negative impact on the Group’s
equity of 10% revaluation in the quotation of the euro in respect of these eight main
currencies in which the Group operates and holds investments.

Procurement price risk

The Acciona Group is exposed to fluctuations in the price of procurements, mainly fuel
for its sea transportation business when such fluctuations cannot be passed on to clients.

Most fuel purchase transactions are carried out in international markets.

Fluctuations in procurement prices are managed through systematic hedging transactions
for a period of up to 18 months, which is considered to be the normal period for the
implementation of the appropriate commercial policies. The systematic hedges applied
provide monthly coverage for a set amount of expected fuel consumption in each of the
next 18 months. In this way, the coverage is always for 18 months, although the amounts
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covered decreased proportionally from the period of one month up to 18 months. That is,
the quantity of fuel covered for the next month is always greater than the following month,
until the 18-month period is complete.

The risk is managed by arranging specific hedges, generally in the form of derivatives
(not deliverable), to maintain the economic balance of the procurements.

In the short and medium term, fluctuations in procurement prices are managed through
specific hedging transactions, generally using derivatives.

The Group performed a sensitivity analysis in relation to the possible changes in fuel
prices. Based on this analysis it was estimated that a 5% change in prices would have an
effect of approximately 2 million euros on the profits in 2018.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a contract does not meet its obligations,
giving rise to a financial loss for the Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only
trading with solvent third parties and obtaining sufficient guarantees to mitigate the risk
of financial loss in the event of non-performance. The Group only trades with entities
rated at the same investment level as the Group, or higher, and obtains information on its
counterparties through independent company valuation agencies, other public sources of
financial information or the information it obtains from its own relations with clients.

Bills receivable and trade receivables from clients relate to a large number of clients
spread over different industries and geographical areas. Credit relations with clients and
their solvency are assessed on an ongoing basis and credit guarantee insurance is arranged
when it is considered necessary.

As regards the default risk, basically in the infrastructure business, an assessment process
is implemented before entering into contracts with public and private clients. This
assessment includes both a solvency study and supervision of contractual requirements
from a financial and legal guarantee viewpoint. During the course of the projects, the
correct performance of the debt is monitored constantly, and the related value adjustments
are made using economic criteria.

The Group does not have significant exposure to credit risk with any of its clients or
groups of clients with similar characteristics. Similarly, credit risk concentration is not
significant.

The credit and liquidity risk of derivative instruments with a positive fair value is limited
in the Acciona Group, since both cash placements and the arrangement of derivatives are
made with highly solvent counterparties with high credit ratings and no counterparty has
significant levels of total credit risk.

Moreover, the definition given for the fair value of a liability in IFRS 13, based on the

concept of transferring the liability in question to a market player, confirms that own
credit risk must be considered in the fair value of liabilities. Thus, Acciona adds a bilateral
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credit risk adjustment in order to reflect both its own risk and the counterparty risk in the
fair value of derivatives.

Liquidity risk

The Acciona Group manages liquidity risk prudently by ensuring that it has sufficient
cash and negotiable securities (see Note 15) and by arranging committed credit facilities
for amounts sufficient to cater for its projected requirements. As indicated in Note 18, at
31 December 2017 the Group companies had been granted additional financing not drawn
down in the amount of 1,827,389 thousand euros, of which 1,807,389 thousand related to
credit lines for the financing of working capital, and the remaining amount, 20,000
thousand euros, to lines to finance fees to enter water projects. The average term of these
limits amounts to 4.13 years.

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management lies with the Economic and
Financial Department, which prepares the appropriate framework to control the group’s
liquidity requirements in the short, medium and long term. The Group manages liquidity
risk by holding adequate reserves, appropriate banking services, having available loans
and credit facilities, monitoring projected and actual cash flows on an ongoing basis and
pairing them against financial asset and liability maturity profiles.

Finally, attention should be drawn, in relation to this risk, to the fact that the Acciona
Group has recognised, as part of its quest to diversify its funding sources, a European
Commercial Paper programme for the maximum amount of 750 million euros to issue
commercial paper with maturities of not more than one year, a private placement of
simple bearer bonds for 62.7 million euros and a Euro Medium Term Notes programme
for a maximum of 1,500 million euros (see Note 18).

Economic risk vs. budget variances

The Group has an overall system of economic and budget control for each business,
adapted to each activity, which provides those responsible for each business with the
necessary information and allows them to control potential risks and make the most
appropriate management decisions. The economic and financial information generated
within each division is periodically compared with the projected data and indicators,
variances regarding business volume, profitability, cash flows and other relevant and
reliable parameters are assessed and, where necessary, the appropriate corrective
measures are taken.

Price risk

With regards to the price risk on the Spanish electricity market, Royal Decree-
Law 9/2013, whereby urgent measures were adopted to guarantee the financial stability




TRANSLATION

of the electricity system, was published on 12 July 2013. This Royal Decree, which came
into force on 13 July 2013, repealed, among others, Royal Decree 661/2007, of 25 May,
the decree governing the remuneration framework supporting renewable energies for
most of the Acciona Group’s power generation facilities located in Spain.

Royal Decree 413/2014, whereby the activities for electricity generation from renewable
energy sources, co-generation and waste were regulated, was enacted on 6 June 2014 and
published in the Central Government Gazette on 10 June 2014. In the development of this
decree, final Ministerial Order IET 1045/2014 was signed on 20 June 2014 and published
in the Central Government Gazette on 29 June 2014. The Order sets out the final
remuneration parameters applicable to all renewable facilities, whether already in
existence or planned. These parameters were recently updated after approval of Order
ETU/130/2017 of 17 February. The new model defines the remuneration for assets to be
applied from 14 July 2013 onwards, pursuant to RDL 9/2013.

This new regulation provides that, in addition to the remuneration for the sale of
electricity generated valued at market prices, facilities can receive a specific remuneration
comprising a term per unit of power installed, covering, where appropriate the investment
costs for a standard facility that cannot be recovered through electricity sales and an
operating term that covers, where applicable, the difference between operating costs and
the revenue from the participation of that standard facility in the market. Furthermore, the
terms for remunerating the investment and the transaction will be reviewed every 3 years,
taking into consideration the revenue from energy sales at market rates by standard
facilities, so that any upward or downward variations outside the range of the bands
established in said Ministerial Order will be incorporated into the calculation of the
specific remuneration.

According to the regulation, the purpose of these remuneration terms is not to exceed the
minimum level necessary to cover the costs enabling the facilities to compete on an equal
footing with the rest of the technologies on the market and making it possible for them to
achieve reasonable profitability. With regards to what constitutes reasonable profitability,
the Royal Decree-Law indicates this will revolve around the mean pre-tax yield on the
secondary market of ten-year Government Bonds by applying the appropriate differential.
The first additional provision of Royal Decree-Law 9/2013 sets this appropriate
differential at 300 basis points for facilities participating in the economic regime with a
premium, all without prejudice to possible review every six years.

The new regulatory framework shows that a large part of the Group’s renewable assets,
especially wind power technology commissioned prior to 2004, as well as many of its
mini-hydroelectric power stations, will cease to receive any additional remuneration other
than the market price and will thus be fully exposed to price variations on the electricity
market. On the domestic electricity market, approximately 59% of the Group’s total
production is subject to regulated remuneration whereas the other 41% is remunerated
solely at market prices.

Finally, as regards the price risk on the international power markets where Acciona
operates, it should be noted that approximately 65% of production is governed by a long-
term price contract (PPA) established with a third party, 15% under a regulatory feed-in
tariff and the remainder through unrestricted sale on the market.
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20. - Derivative financial instruments

Interest rate hedges

The Acciona Group regularly arranges interest rate derivatives, which are designated as
hedges. These instruments are used to hedge possible changes in cash flows due to interest
payments on long-term floating rate financial liabilities.

Detail of the derivative financial instruments arranged and outstanding at 31 December
2017 and 2016, which are recognised at market value on the accompanying consolidated
balance sheet, in assets or liabilities, depending on the market value of the derivative and
the method of inclusion in the Acciona Group, was as follows:

2047 2016
Notonal  Fmamcia  NOORT  ppancn SR Nodonst  Fmmca  Taar  Fmamcda e
g";ﬁ:’)‘ ::::d abilities Pl (:::fﬁ) m‘;fi)"“ :::::; ailites Eatite (Lm) ’”‘:fi;“‘“
Cash flow hedges:
:Ztt:mm 1‘746‘43 105464 25268 7089  (55628) %3 6‘8; 127,719 33479 10052 (78.068)
swaps
Total "746’4’7; 105464 25268 7,089  (55.628) 2’236’8; 127,719 33479 10,052 (78.068)

(*) The indicated amount of investment in associates is net of tax.

The most commonly used interest rate derivatives are interest rate swaps, the purpose of
which is to fix or limit fluctuations in the floating interest rates of hedged borrowings.
The Group arranges these financial derivatives mainly to hedge the cash flows on the debt
arranged to finance wind farms or solar facilities, in the case of the Energy division, and
to finance the infrastructure concessions operated mainly through jointly controlled
entities and associates.

At 31 December 2017, the fixed interest rates on the Euribor benchmarked financial
derivative instruments ranged from 5.074% to 2.060%, and at 31 December 2016 from
5.085% to 2.060%.

The amounts recognised by the Group are based on the market values of equivalent
instruments at the balance sheet date. Substantially all the interest rate swaps are
designated and effective as cash flow hedges and the fair value thereof is deferred and
recognised in equity.

The terms in which these cash flow hedges are expected to impact the income statement,
in proportion to the share percentage, are shown below (in thousand euros).

Future settlements

<1 month 1 - 3 months 3 m(;:;}:_s -1 1 year - 5 years + 5 years

Group companics 10 1,347 30,803 75.205 23213
or jointly
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companies
Associates (*) 476 667 11,554 34571 29242

{*) The indicated omouct of invvestmes! &t assorkeies is oot of ax
Changes in the fair value of these instruments are recognised directly in equity (see Note
16 e). The net deferred tax asset arising on recognition of these instruments amounted to

21,470 thousand euros at 31 December 2017 and 29,702 thousand euros at 31 December
2016; these were recognised in equity lines (see Note 22).

The methods and criteria applied by the Group to measure the fair value of these financial
instruments are described in Note 4.2.1.

The notional amounts of the liabilities hedged by interest rate hedges were as follows:

2017 2016
Group companies or jointly controlled companies 1,191,829 1,594,998
Associates 438014 529,776
Companies classified as held for sale 116,644 112,038
Total notional amount arranged 1,746,487 2,236,812

The contractual notional amounts of the contracts entered into do not reflect the risk
assumed by the Group, since these amounts merely represent the basis on which the
derivative settlement calculations are made. The changes in the notional amounts of the
financial instruments arranged for the coming years, in proportion to the share percentage,
are as follows:

Change in notional amounts

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Group companies or jointly
controlled companies

Associates 454,851 474,733 442,296 367,627 345,283 276,010

1,163,091 1,001,750 546,574 441,193 348,583 231,040

Fuel hedges

The Group uses financial derivatives to manage the risk of fuel purchase price fluctuations
on international markets. The Group manages this risk by arranging financial instruments
to mitigate fuel price fluctuations.

In 2017, through its subsidiary Compailia Trasmediterranea, S.A., the Group hedged fuel
oil and diesel price fluctuations by arranging several derivatives which ensure a fixed
purchase price for the tonne of these fuels for a total of 81,862 tonnes. The settlements of
these derivatives in 2017 were favourable to the Group and revenue of 4,238 thousand
euros relating to the contracts that matured during the year was recognised on the
consolidated income statement as a reduction to the cost of procurements.
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In addition, the company has hedged the risk of fluctuations in the prices of fuel oil and
gas oil for financial year 2018 by engaging two derivatives that ensure a fixed purchase
price per tonne of fuel oil and gas oil for a total of 126,584 tonnes (approximately 39%
of the expected consumption in 2018). The amount directly recognised at 31 December
2017 in equity as the effective part of the cash-flow hedging relations amounted to a profit
of 3,285 thousand euros net of external and deferred tax. The company had designated
the appropriate hedging relations at 31 December 2017 and they are fully effective. In
these hedging relations, the risk covered is the fluctuation in the prices of fuel oil and gas
oil.

Foreign currency hedges

The Group uses currency derivatives to hedge significant future transactions and cash
flows. In 2017 and 2016 the Group hedged a portion of purchases and payments to
suppliers in US dollars through exchange rate insurance.

Detail of the transactions outstanding at 31 December 2017 and 2016 was as follows (in
thousand euros):

2017 2016
Effect of Effect of
Currency Expiry date Amount measarement Amouat measurement
’ ey gy arranged at market arranged at market
valee valne
Foreign currency USD 31.05.2018 18.383 207 - -
purchase
Foreign currency EUR 31102018 9,534 13 - -
purchase
Foreign currency AUD 03.04.2017 - - 809 (63)
purchase
Total 27,917 320 809 (63)

At 31 December 2017, the market values of foreign currency hedges were recognised
under “Short-term Financial Assets” in the amount of 320 thousand euros (negative 63
thousand euros at 31 December 2016) and which related mainly to the last instalments of
the exchange rate insurance engaged for the construction of a photovoltaic plant in
Australia.

The amounts recognised by the Group are based on the market values of equivalent
instruments at the balance sheet date. Substantially all the currency purchase transactions
are designated and effective as cash flow hedges and the fair value thereof is deferred and

recognised in equity.
Other derivative financial instruments

In 2009, the Acciona Group prospectively discontinued the accounting of an interest rate
derivative from a subsidiary consolidated by the equity method, as following the novation
of the underlying loan it no longer qualified for hedge accounting. The portion of the fair
value that had been recognised as value adjustments in equity until the time hedge
accounting was discontinued, and which amounted to 12.114 thousand euros net of the
tax effect, was being transferred to profit or loss over the period to maturity of the
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transaction based on the foreseeable reduction of the notional amount, and at 31
December 2017 it has been entirely transferred to the income statement.

Lastly, it should be mentioned that two Australian energy subsidiaries have contracts in
place which enable them to set the future electricity sale price for a specific volume of
MW. These contracts are measured at market value and the changes in value are
recognised in equity as value adjustments. At 31 December 2017, the balance in
“Reserves” and in “Non-controlling interests”, net of the tax effect, amounted 22,230 and
11,114 thousand euros receivable, respectively, with balancing entries in accounts
payable in the amount of 47,634 thousand euros.

The impacts on equity of the measurement of derivative financial instruments at 31
December 2017 can be summarised as follows:
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Thessand eares 3L12.2017
Financial lLability due to interest rate hedge 105,039
Held-for-sale liability due to interest rate hedge 25,268
Financial asset due to interest rate hedge (7.,089)
Negative impact on equity due to interest rate hedge by associates, net of tax 55,759

Net deferred tax payable due to interest rate hedge (21.470)
Net defcrred tax payable duc to interest rate hedge from held-for sale liabilities 6,317)
Recycling of derivatives from purchasing in stages to income statement (note 3.2h)) (15.892)
Impact on reserves from purchasing in stages (7,946)
Othcr, mainly duc to non-controlling intercsts in interest rate hedging transactions (10,394)

Balance adjusted duc to changes in value of interest rate hedging transactions 116,958

Balance adjusted due to changes in value of fuel hedging transactions (net of non-controlling interests (3.285)

and tax) >

Balance.adj}Jsted due to changes in value of foreign currency hedging transactions (net of non- (240

controlling interests and tax)

Balance adjusted due to changes in value of energy contract (net of non-controlling interests and tax) 22,230

Balance adjusted due to changes in value of transactions with discontinued hedging (net of tax) 0

Other, mainly due to translation differences on derivatives 59

Total asset balance reccivable for value adjustments at 31 December (Note 16) 135,722

21.- QOther non-current and current liabilities
Other liabilitics Non-current Current
2017 2016 2017 2016

Obligations under finanee leases 15,334 16,907 538 547
Grants 110.685 132,426 - -
Other defcrred income 83,273 111,404 -- --
Remuneration payable -- - 129,023 136,378
Debt with non-controlling interests 350,668 367,145 5,870 3,763
Other payables 1,226,311 1,307,453 609,159 455,410
Closing balance 1,786,271 1,935,335 744,590 596,098

“Other Deferred Income™ related mainly to certain incentives established to promote the
development of renewable energies in the US, which are similar in nature to grants for
accounting purposes and which apply to two wind farms developed by the Energy
division in the US. In addition, it included the amount of 42 million euros (53 million
euros in 2016) related to the fair value of a non-finance derivative arranged by a Chilean
subsidiary of the energy Division, for energy supply to a client as from 2017 at a fixed
price for 13 and a half years (see Note 12).

“Debt with non-controlling interests” included mainly the assumption by the
infrastructure fund KKR, which became shareholder in the Acciona Group’s subsidiary
Acciona Energia Internacional, S.A. in June 2014, of one third of the subordinated debt
of Acciona Energia Internacional, S.A. dated 25 February 2012 and with a balance of
327.5 million euros at 31 December 2017 (342 million euros in 2016). This debt matured
in 2017 and accrued 12-month Euribor interest rate +3.7% and was renewed for another
5 years up to 31 December 2022, at the same interest rate.

In addition, mention must be made of the debt with members in the wind and photovoltaic
projects in South Africa, which amounted to 12 million euros (18 million euros in 2016).

()
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The main movement in “Other Non-Current Payables™ related to the balance pending
payment of 799 million euros (777 million euros at 31 December 2016) from the
subsidiary ATLL Concesionaria de la Generalitat de Catalunya, S.A. for the fee under the
conditions established in the tender document, as described in Note 8. The same item
records a loan from the Administration for 61 million euros as part of the financing for
Sociedad Concesionaria A2 Tramo 2, S.A.U., as well as liabilities for long-term business
transactions relating to the construction business for 50 million euros (251 million euros
in 2016). This figure includes advances from clients, which will be discounted with future
certifications in a period over one year in the new international projects of the
construction division.

The increase recorded in “Other current payables” related mainly to the balances pending
payment for PPE goods for 200 million euros, mostly in the energy division for two wind
facilities currently under construction in Australia and Mexico (see note 5).

“Obligations under Finance Leases”, which related mainly to outstanding lease payments,
includes the purchase option on certain facilities of the energy division in Australia. Detail

was as follows:

Minimum lease payments

Amounts payable under leases 2017 2016

Within one year 2,001 2,431
Between one and two years 1,902 2028
Between two and five years 5,512 5,855
After five years 25,531 26,612
Total lease payments payable 32,946 36,926
Less future finance charges 17.074 19.472
Present value of lcase obligations 15.872 17,454
Less: amount due for settlement within twelve months (current liability) 538 547
Amount due for settlement after twelve months 15,334 16,907

The main change in the financial year related to the payments made during the period.

“Qrants” related mostly to amounts awarded for the construction of wind farms in United
States. The changes in “Grants” in 2017 and 2016 were as follows:

Grants
Balance at 31/12/2015 148,174
Additions 237
Taken to profit/(loss) “Other Income™ (9.373)
Others (6,612)
Balaoce at 31/12/2016 132,426
Additions 124
Taken to profit/(loss) “Other Income™ (8.065)
Others (13.800)
Balance at 31/12/2017 110,685
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In 2017 there were no significant additions. The line “Other” reflects mainly a negative
variation due to the exchange rate, as a result of the depreciation of the US dollar against
the euro.

In 2016 there were no significant additions. The line “Other” reflected mainly a positive
variation due to the exchange rate, as a result of the appreciation of the US dollar against

the euro, and a negative variation due to the wind assets that the Group held in Greece
leaving the scope.

22.- Tax matters

Tax Consolidation System:

Pursuant to current legislation, consolidated tax groups include the parent together with
certain subsidiaries that meet the requirements provided for in Spanish tax legislation.
Since 2009, there has been a single tax group in Spain that avails itself of this special
taxation system, the parent Company of which is Acciona, S.A. In addition to the Spanish
tax group, the Group pays tax under the tax consolidation system in Australia (including
all the Group’s divisions operating in said country), in Germany for the handling business
and for the companies comprising the energy division in the US, Portugal and Italy.

The other Acciona Group companies file separate tax returns in accordance with the
applicable local or regional tax laws or those in force in each country.

Effective from 1 January 2008, several Group companies availed themselves of the
special system for Company Groups for VAT purposes, as set forth in Chapter IX of Title
IX of Value Added Tax Act 37/1992, of 28 December. The parent of the VAT Group is
Acciona, S.A. Various entities of the energy division also pay VAT under the Group VAT
system, in accordance with local laws in Navarra, Italy, Australia and in the United Arab
Emirates, which includes the Construction and Water project companies in Abu Dhabi
and Dubai.

Years open for review by the tax authorities:

On 10 March 2012, tax audits were initiated in relation to Corporate Tax for 2007-2009
by the inspection services from the Central Office for High-Income Taxpayers, against
both the parent, Acciona, S.A., and other subsidiaries. In addition to the review of the Tax
Group’s corporate tax for those years, the Company Group for VAT was under review
for 2008 and 2009 and for other taxes for 2008 and 2009 of the Group companies subject
to the tax review.

During these actions and on the occasion of the review of the withholdings effected on
payment of dividends, this partial review was extended to financial years 2010, 2011 and
2012 and also included the reverse merger operation involving Grupo Entrecanales, S.A.
and its subsidiaries taken over by Acciona, S.A. on 11 July 2011. The tax inspectors
accepted the existence of valid economic grounds for the merger operation and its
inclusion within the special tax system for mergers, spin-offs, contributions of assets and
securities swaps.
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The inspectors, for their part, queried the fulfilment of the requirements for application
of the exemption in the payment of dividends for one of the non-resident shareholders, in
particular, the requirements of holding the status of effective beneficiary, and this led to
the signing of the contested tax assessments. On 3 and 17 July 2014, the Company lodged
economic and administrative appeals at the Central Economic Administrative Court. On
29 May 2015 the Company reached an agreement with the shareholder that received the
dividends so as to proceed to pay said amount, with settlement of the tax debt upon the
shareholder’s payment.

The other inspection actions concluded on 12 June 2014 with the signing of uncontested
assessments for Corporate Tax for 2007-2009 and without any tax due, uncontested
conclusions for VAT with the regularisation of Acciona’s differentiated activity sectors
as a “mixed holding” (without fine), with application of part of the provisions allocated
in Acciona, S.A., as well as contested assessments for Personal Income Tax withholdings
relating to compensation for dismissal. The Group companies lodged economic and
administrative appeals at the Central Economic Administrative Court. On 19 October
2015 this Court notified dismissal of the claims filed by Acciona Construccion,
confirming settlement of the assessments for withholdings for the 2008 to 2011 periods,
as well as the relevant fine proceedings. On 3 December 2015 the company filed appeal
for judicial review at the National Appellate Court; this matter is still pending a vote and
decision. It is estimated that the risk that the proposed fines will be approved is possible.

With regards to Value Added Tax, the company heading the VAT company group
(Acciona, S.A.) agreed to and signed the tax assessment dated 29 April 2014 for financial
years-periods 2008 to January 2010, regularising the input VAT deductible due to the
“mixed holding” condition of the company.

On 21 May 2015 the Central Office of High-Income Taxpayers notified the start of
inspection actions in relation to Corporate Tax for financial years 2010-2012, targeting
Acciona, S.A., as the parent of the Group, and several subsidiaries. In addition to review
of Corporate Tax of the Tax Group for said years, it has included the VAT Company
Group, years 2011, 2012 and 2013, and any other taxes for the years/periods from 04/2011
to 12/2012 of the Group companies under tax review. These inspections were concluded
on 16 May 2017 with the signing of uncontested conclusions for VAT and uncontested
assessments for Corporate Tax without any fines. No payments were to be made as a
result, however the regularisation involved a reduction in the tax credits due to the
application of the unused tax credits. The Group proceeded to partially apply the tax
provision, recognising an amount of 16,560 thousand euros of Corporate Tax in the cost
account.

The actions related to the VAT Group for financial year 2013 are partial and limited only
to review of the deductible input VAT so as to regularise this VAT on the same terms as
those agreed in previous tax audits that ended with assessments signed in agreement and
with no fines. On 29 September 2015 the tax assessments were signed in agreement to
regularise all the outstanding years (periods 01/2010 to 12/2013)

On 10 January 2013, the company Guadalaviar Consorcio Eolico, S.A. was notified of
the inception of tax inspection actions relating to Corporate Tax and Value Added Tax
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for financial years 2008 and 2009, in which the value of the wind-power rights transferred
in 2009 was reviewed. These actions concluded with the signing of a contested
assessment for the measurement made by the tax auditors of the said wind-power rights,
which increased the value declared by the parties. The company received the proposed
settlement from the technical services from the Central Office for High-Income
Taxpayers on 23 December 2013 and an economic-administrative appeal was filed at the
Central Economic and Administrative Court on 13 January 2014. On 16 February 2017,
the Central Economic and Administrative Court issued resolution accepting the claim in
part and ordering the Inspection to proceed to notify the entity of its right to have a
counter-valuation by appraisal experts. The amount of the adjustment, including late-
payment interest up to the settlement date would come to 10,545 thousand euros and it is
estimated that the possibility of these significant liabilities materialising is possible.

In the month of December 2014, the Mexican project companies Eurus SAPI de CV, CE
Oaxaca III and CE Oaxaca IV received notice of tax settlements from Juchitin Town
Council for municipal levies related to the 2011 to 2014 financial years. These companies
lodged complaints or appeals (petitions for legal protection) before the District Court of
Oaxaca and obtained the suspension of enforcement of the settlements. The external
advisers engaged to carry out the process concluded that the likelihood that the appeals
lodged would be upheld is high (75%), since there are solid arguments for the defence,
constitutional principles had been breached and they are administrative acts contrary to
law. All this is supported by the fact that a Mexican court, at the first instance, allowed
cancellation of the municipal regulations on these contributions for 2015. In addition, on
28 January 2016 the Seventh District Court of Oaxaca issued a ruling favourable to the
company Oaxaca [V, allowing the appeal filed against the settlement of municipal
contributions of the Juchitan Town Council, although this ruling is not final as it has been
appealed against by the Town Council through appeal for review.

The Sixth District of Oaxaca also issued a ruling in favour of the appeal against the
settlements of the company EURUS (years 2011-2014), the amount of which came to 823
million pesos and hence the Oaxaca III appeal is the only one pending resolution.
Therefore, the risk that material liabilities will materialise from this process is remote.

At 31 December 2017, the years that have not lapsed and that have not been reviewed
were subject to review by the tax authorities, both for Corporate Tax and for the other
main taxes applicable to the companies in the consolidated tax group. In general, the other
Spanish consolidated companies have the last four years open for review by the tax
authorities for the main taxes applicable thereto.

As tax legislation can be interpreted in different ways, the outcome of the tax audits that
could be conducted by the tax authorities in the future for the years subject to verification
might give rise to tax liabilities which at present cannot be objectively quantified.
However, the probability of material labilities arising in this connection additional to
those already recognised is remote, and the directors of Acciona S.A. Consider that the
liabilities that might arise would not have a material effect on the equity of the Acciona
Group.
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Receivables and payables with Public Administrations

Breakdown of receivables and payables with Public Administrations at 31 December
2017 and 2016 was as follows:

2017 2016
Non-current Current Non-current Current
Tax reecivables
VAT and other indircet taxation - 131,092 - 133.328
Corporate Tax - 146,403 - 95,872
Deferred tax 805.369 - 997,393 -
Other - 15,038 - 13,723
Total 805.369 292,533 997.393 242,923
Tax payables
Corporate Tax - 77,385 - 57,927
Personal income tax withholdings - 30,697 - 21,653
VAT and other indirect {axation - 99214 - 87.551
Deferrcd tax 490,506 -- 804,282 -
Accrued social security charges - 22,144 -- 22.975
Other local taxcs - 37,690 - 39,674
Others - 46,805 - 46,267
Total 490,506 313,935 804,282 276,047

At 31 December 2017, of note is the increase in tax payables for VAT and other indirect
taxes, which corresponds to the pending payment for the VAT tax group for the month of
December, of which Acciona, S.A. is the parent company. The change in personal income
tax withholdings should also be noted, associated with the long-term delivery of shares
to Executive Directors.

The line “Other local taxes™ for balances payable included the Tax on the Value of
Electricity Generation and the fee for the use of continental waters for electricity
production. These charges were introduced by Act 15/2012 of 27 December and came
into effect on 1 January 2013. The line “Others” at 31 December 2017 and 2016 included
the Transfer Tax and Stamp Duty to which the ATLL concession is subjected to, for the
amount of 30,853 and 33,350 thousand euros respectively; the settlement of this tax is
suspended since the court ruling is still pending.

The VAT refundable and VAT payable balances include the balances relating to the
special VAT Company Groups system.
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Reconciliation of accounting profit/(loss) and the tax result

Reconciliation between the accounting result and the income tax expense, at 31 December
2017 and 2016, was as follows:

2017 2016
Consolidated profit/(loss) before tax 356,286 407,635
Profit/(loss) before tax from discontinued operations - -
Permanent differences 10,539  (530,544)
Adjusted accounting profit/(loss) 366,825 (142,909)
Tax expense adjusted by tax rate 89255  (34.822)
Tax credits (4,714) (5,811)
Offset of taxable amounts not posted to the accounts (3,919 (3,337)
Unrecognised tax credits 13,759 30,063
Year’s tax expense 94381 (13,907)
Tax rate change 4,202 253
Effect of tax adjustments from previous years and other 6,758 47.434
Tax expense on the income statement 105,341 33,780

Tax expense from discontinued operations - -~

The “Permanent differences” item is made up of income and expenditure that are not
eligible for inclusion in accordance with the applicable tax legislation. In addition, the
heading also includes those results that are eliminated in the consolidation process but,
nonetheless, are fully effective within the scope of the international tax returns of each
entity in the Group, especially those that do not belong to the Tax Group. The most
significant permanent differences include the depreciation of the share in Nordex, SE
amounting to 145 million euros which generates a permanent positive difference (see
Note 9). The main permanent negative difference corresponds to the adjustment of the
positive result of 74 million euros that is generated by the contribution of assets to Testa
Residencial SOCIMI, S.A (see Note 3.2h) and which is not subjected to taxation. Finally,
there are permanent negative differences relating to losses that, being fully effective, are
removed in the consolidation process; this includes the settlement of various subsidiaries,
the shares of which had been fully provisioned in the corresponding individual financial
statements for an amount of 22 million euros.

The most significant concept in 2016 related to the tax-exempt gains obtained from the
Nordex-AWP operation. The tax result increases included the minimum reinvestment of
the value impairment of the investments in Own Funds of entities at the close of financial
year 2013 that were fiscally deductible, for the amount of 35,119 thousand euros,
according to Royal Legislative Decree 3/2016 of 3 December, as well as sundry non-
deductible provisions and impairments.

The “Tax expense adjusted by tax rate” is the result of applying the different tax rates
applicable to the adjusted accounting result for each of the different jurisdictions where
the Group operates.

The line “Unrecognised tax credits” includes the tax credits derived from the negative

results generated by some subsidiaries.
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The reconciliation of the pre-tax accounting profit/(loss) and the tax base is shown below:

2017 2016
Consolidated profit/(loss) before tax 356,286 407.635
Permanent differences 10,539  (550.544)
Temporary differences (115,804) 197,277
Offsetting of tax loss carryforwards (125,404) (27,528)
Taxable base 125,617 26,840

The temporary differences for financial year 2017 included the deduction of the excess
non-deductible net finance costs in financial year 2016 by the Spanish Tax Group, which
meant a decrease in the taxable base of some 125 million euros, as well as the movement
in non-deductible provisions and impairments and related reversions on application
thereof, together with the remaining adjustments for the freedom of amortisation and the
accelerated tax amortisation; they are detailed further below in the section about deferred
taxes.

Taxes recognised in equity

Independently from the tax on profit recognised on the consolidated income statement, in
2017 and 2016 the Group recognised the following amounts in consolidated equity:

2017 2016
Fair value of financial instruments (27,107) (47.311)
Financial assets with changes in equity 79 67)
Actuarial losses and gains on pension plans (39) 226
Translation differences -- (10,546)
Total (27,067) (57,698)

Deferred tax

In accordance with the tax legislation in force in the countries in which the consolidated
companies are located, in 2017 and 2016 there were certain temporary differences arose
that must be considered when quantifying the related income tax expense.

The deferred taxes arose in 2017 and 2016 as a result of the following:

Deferred tax liabilities with origin in: 2017 2016
Tax toss carryforwards 279,504 254,831
Tax credit carryforwards 151.329 182.373
Derivative financial instruments 39,538 52,637
Prov. over assets 34,270 34,108
Relating to taxation under the pass-through regime (UTEs) 24,242 27,875
Other 276,486 445,569
Total deferred tax assets 805,369 997,393
e e e T
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Deferred tax liabilitics originating in: 2017 2016
Remeasurement of financial assets 38 117
Allocation of first-time consolidation differences to assets 131,560 129.004
Ss)r;:ftsyuremem of property, plant and equipment and investrent 10 40.076
Derivative financial instruments 7,696 6,070
Relating to taxation under the pass-through regime (UTEs) 908 7.163
Other 350,294 621,852
Total deferred tax liabilities 490,506 804,282

Detail of the deferred tax assets and liabilities presented as net values for accounting
purposes at the end of the financial year is as follows:

Assets 2017 Liabilities 2017

Tax loss carryforwards 61,305 Other 133,311
Relating to taxation under the

Other 72,006 pass-through regime (UTEs) 5,447

Early taxes relating to taxation under the

pass-through regime (UTEs) 5,447

Deferred tax assets 138,758 Deferred tax liabilities 138,758

At 31 December 2017, the tax loss carryforwards, generated by the subsidiaries before
their inclusion in the Tax Group of which Acciona, S.A. is the parent, amounted to 130.1
million euros. Of this amount, a total of 127.5 million euros related to tax loss
carryforwards not capitalised on the consolidated balance sheet, corresponding to the Tax
Group of which Acciona, S.A. is the parent company, as there was no assurance of the
achievement of sufficient future profits or because the tax regulations establish limits and
requirements for them to be offset. Of this balance, the subsidiaries of the Compafiia
Trasmediterranea Subgroup, which joined the Tax Group in 2010, contributed most of
the previous tax loss carryforwards.

In addition, some Energy Division subsidiaries in Mexico, South Africa, Australia and
the US, as well as Mostostal Warszawa and various subsidiaries in Chile also recognised
tax credits for negative taxable bases pending offsetting. There are also taxable bases that
have not been recorded totalling 503 million euros, mainly generated in the US and Chile.

“Revaluation of property, plant and equipment and real property” reflected the difference
between the carrying amount and the tax amount for the assets of the company Compaiiia
Urbanizadora el Coto, which after its disposal has been de-recognised.

Regarding the interim settlement of Corporate Tax of the Tax Group for 2017, the Tax
Group had a negative taxable base of 236 million euros, which, together with the balance
for 2014 and 2016, means a deferred tax asset of 59 million euros.

At 2017 year-end, the deadlines for the tax credits recognised for negative taxable bases
pending application were (in thousand euros):

Amount Lapse period
Acciona, S.A. tax group 59,018 No lapsing date

Acciona, S.A. tax group —

previous capitalised 2,611 No lapsing date
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Spanish companies outside the

Tax Group
International — limited
International — limited

International — limited
[nternational — limited
[nternational - limited
International — limited
International - limited
International — limited
International — limited
International —untlimited

Total

3.275

5413
3.609
25
1,232
8.851
27927
48,024
45,387
41,358
94,079

340,809

No lapsing date

2018
2019
2020
2021
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
No lapsing date

The Corporate Tax Act (Act 27/2014, of 27 November) eliminated with effective date on
1 January 2015, the deadline for offsetting negative taxable bases, which was set at 18

years, so this is now unlimited.

The unused tax credits, totalling 145,008 thousand euros, related mainly to those earned
by the tax Group of which Acciona, S.A. is the parent company. At 31 December 2017,
the most significant unused tax credits were: R&D+I tax credits amounting to 85,643
thousand euros; tax credits for the reinvestment of extraordinary income amounting to
25,302 thousand euros; and environmental tax credits amounting to 15,722 thousand

curos.

At the close of 2017, the deadlines for deduction of the unused tax credits recognised on
the consolidated balance sheet of the Acciona Group were as follows (in thousand euros):
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Ameount Lapse period

Acciona, S.A. Tax Group — deductions

for double taxation 2,557 No lapsing date

Acciona, S.A. tax group 9,762 2023
Acciona, S_A. tax group 11,187 2024
Acciona, S.A. tax group 8,890 2025
Acciona, S.A. tax group 16,137 2026
Acciona, S.A. tax group 19,043 2027
Acciona, S.A. tax group 23,745 2028
Acciona, S.A. tax group 27,942 2029
Acciona, S.A. tax group 7,076 2030
Acciona, S.A. tax group 6,751 2031
Acciona, S.A. tax group 7,950 2032
Acciona, S.A. tax group 860 2033
Acciona, S.A. tax group 1,556 2034
Acciona, S.A. tax group 1,553 2035

Spanish companies outside the Tax 1,143 No lapsing date

Group
Non-resident companies 5,178  No lapsing date
Total 151,539

Act 27/2014, of 27 November, on Corporate Tax, eliminated, on effective date 1 January
2015, the deadline for offsetting double-taxation deductions pending application from
previous financial years, so the period is unlimited, as provided for in section 39 of
Act 27/2014, and extended the general period to offset other deductions to 15 years,
except for R&D+I which was extended to 18 years.

At year-end there are no material unused tax credits that had not been recognised.

The Acciona Group expects to recover the tax loss and tax credit carryforwards
recognised in the books, through the companies’ ordinary activities and without any
equity risk of losses.

Most of the deferred tax assets included in the line “Other” related to provisions for
liabilities, risks, insolvency, and other non-deductible items amounting to 112,234
thousand euros, to a provision associated with contractual non-compliance, to the
adjustment for non-deductible accounting amortisation of 30% of the Spanish companies
introduced on a temporary basis for the years 2013 and 2014 and which began to reverse
in 2015, the amount of which is 36,810 thousand euros, as well as the homogenisations
made as part of the consolidation process and the elimination of internal margins that
reverse as the assets are amortised. Finally, this heading includes adjustments to the tax
base through the application of other countries’ specific regulations whereby certain
expenses are not deductible until payment or do not follow the accounting accrual
criterion for their deductibility, as is the case with Mexico, Australia and the United
States, or because a billing-based criterion is applied instead of accounting accrual by
stage of progress, as happens in Chile.

The line “Other” under the deferred tax liability heading includes the tax adjustments

under the freedom to amortise established in the Eleventh Additional Provision included
in RDL 4/2004 (consolidated text of the Corporate Tax Act) by Act 4/2008. This line
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reflects the reversion of the adjustment from previous years for the amount of the
accounting amortisation recognised and for de-recognised assets. The accumulated
amount of this adjustment at 31 December 2017 for the Spanish Tax Group companies
amounted to 152,052 million euros for tax liability. It also included the amortisation effect
for tax purposes of Mexico, South Africa and the US for approximately 138, 64 and 50
million euros for tax liability, respectively, as well as adjustments for application of the
specific regulations of countries where accounting income is not recognised for tax
purposes until the bill is issued or collected, instead of the principle of accounting accrual
or stage of progress, mainly in Chile and Mexico. This line also includes deferment of
income from uncertified works and advances to suppliers of several Mexican companies.

Based on the enactment of Royal Decree-Law 3/2016, of 2 December, which establishes
measures in the taxation area aimed at the consolidation of public finances, and urgent
measures in social matters, the total amount of the deferred tax liability related to the
impairment of portfolio pending reversion in the taxable base for 45,456 thousand euros.
This Royal Decree established the incorporation of value impairments of investments that
were fiscally deductible in periods prior to 2013, for a maximum period of five years from
the tax periods starting on 01/01/2016, regardless of whether their value has been
recovered or not. For quantification of this tax liability, the specific situations of each
value impairment of the shareholding in capital or in capital and reserves of the investees
that were fiscally deductible were considered, as well as potential legal or contractual
restrictions or otherwise in connection to possible transferability of such shareholdings.

Reporting obligations

Current Corporate tax legislation provides tax incentives to encourage certain
investments. The companies in the Tax Group have availed themselves of the benefits
provided for under this legislation.

The Tax Group, through its Parent and certain of its subsidiaries, is required to fulfil the
obligations assumed in connection with the tax incentives applied and, in particular, it
must hold, for the stipulated period, the assets for which the investment or reinvestment
tax credits were taken.

In financial years 2010, 2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014, the Parent and certain companies in
the Tax Group availed themselves of the tax credit for reinvestment of extraordinary
income provided for by Article 42 of Royal Legislative Decree 4/2004 (consolidated text
of the Corporate Tax Act)!. The income qualifying for this tax credit in these years
amounted to 86,550, 160,251, 8,640, 9,598 and 34,516 thousand euros, respectively. The
income relating to 2009 and 2010 was reinvested in 2010, the income relating to 2011
was reinvested in 2011, the income relating to 2012 and 2013 was reinvested in 2013, and
the income relating to 2014 in 2014. The assets in which the income was reinvested were
as listed in Article 42 of Royal Legislative Decree 4/2004, i.e. property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, wnvestment property and securities representing
stakeholdings of no less than 5% in the share capital or equity of all manner of companies.
The income was reinvested by the companies belonging to Tax Group 30/96.
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Pursuant to section 10 of the article 42 of the consolidated text of the Corporate Tax Act,
this information must be disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements as
long as the period for which the assets must be held, as established in section 8 of that
article, is not complied with.

In accordance with the provisions contained in section 86 of Corporate Tax Act 27/2014,
certain Group companies engaged in 2017 in the transactions listed below, to which the
Special System for mergers, spin-offs, contribution of assets and securities swaps was
applied:

- Merger of the companies Acciona Energia Solar, S.L. and Acciona Solar Canarias, S.A.
(merged companies) and the company Acciona Solar, S.A. (merging company)
documented in deed dated 27 July 2017 and with backdated effect of 1 January 2017.

- Special non-cash contribution by Acciona Service, S.L. to Acciona Aeropuertos, S.L.
of the stakeholding in the company Acciona Airport Services, S.A, documented in public
deed dated 28 July 2017.

- Special non-cash contribution by Acciona, S.A. to Acciona Concesiones, S.L. of the
stakeholdings in the companies Sociedad Concesionaria Novo Hospital de Vigo, S.A.,
Acciona Servicios Concesionales, S.L., Sociedad Concesionaria Hospital del Norte, S.A.,
Nova Darsena Esportiva de Bara, S.A., Autovia de los Vifiedos, S.A., Sociedad An6nima
Concesionaria de la Junta de Comunidades de Castilla La Mancha, Gran Hospital Can
Misses, S.A. and Sociedad Concesionaria de la Zona Regable del Canal de Navarra, S.A.,
documented in public deed dated 21 December 2017.

Pursuant to section 3 of article 86 of Act 27/2014 on the consolidated text of the Corporate
Tax Act, the information required for operations carried out in previous years appears in
the relevant separate notes to financial statements as approved.

In 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012, several companies in the tax group deducted the tax
credit for impairment losses on ownership interests in Group companies, jointly
controlled entities and associates, as provided for in Article 12.3 of Royal Legislative
Decree 4/2004 (consolidated text of the Corporate Tax Act), regulated in Temporary
Provision Sixteen of Act 27/2014.

Act 16/2013, of 29 October, repealed, with effect from 1 January 2013, section 12.3 of
the consolidated text of the Corporate Tax Act in relation to deduction of impairment
losses on such equity interests and established a transitional system for the inclusion of
losses pending incorporation at 31/12/2012 in the taxable base.

Royal Decree-Law 3/2016, of 2 December, which establishes measures aimed at the
consolidation of public finances and urgent measures in social matters, provided for
mandatory minimum reversion of deductible portfolio reversions, in a maximum period
of five years, effective financial year 2016.

The notes to the separate financial statements of these companies include the disclosures
required by tax legislation concerning the change in the year in the investees’ equity, the
amounts included in the taxable base and the amounts yet to be included.
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23.- Non-current assets and liabilities classified as held for sale

Detail of “Non-Current Assets Classified as Held for Sale” on the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet at 31 December 2017 and 2016 was as follows:

Balance at  Balance at
311127207  31/12/2016

Assets from the energy division (energy assets) 963,952 -
Assets from the other activities division (Trasmediterranca) 466,169 -
Assets from the other activities division (investment property) - 26,691
Assets from the construction division {concession asset) — 300,470
Total non—cuarreat assets classified as keld for sale 1,432,121 327,161

At 31 December 2017, detail, by division, of the main asset headings prior to their
classification as “Assets Held for Sale” was as follows:

Other

Energy Activities

Division Division
Property, plant and equipment & intangible assets 919,572 345,039
Non-current financial asscts 2 3,535
Deferred tax assets 18,277 5,049
Other non-current assets 1,012 116
Inventories - 5970
Trade and other accounts receivable 16,697 100,499
Other current financial assets 8,089 1,641
Cash and cash equivalents 2,303 4,320
Assets classified as held for sale 965,952 466,169

In addition, detail at 31 December 2017 and 2016 of “Non-current liabilities Classified
as Held for Sale™ on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet was as follows:

Balance at Balance at
31/1272017  31/12/2016

Liabilitics from the cnergy division (energy assets) 293,612 -~
Liabilitics from the other activities division (Trasmcditerranea) 179.928 -
Liabilities from the other activities division (investment property) - 14,453
Liabilities from the construction division (concession asset) - 171,697
Total non-current liabilities classified as held for sale 473,540 186,150
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At 31 December 2017, detail of the main liability items prior to their classification as held
for sale was as follows:

Other

Energy Activities

Division Division
Nos-current bank borrowings 176210 90,473
Deferred tax habilities 103,039 6,027
Other non-current liabilities 79 1,622
Current bank borrowings 9,386 2.419
Trade and other pavables 4454 74,125
Onher current dishilities 644 5,262
Liabilities hield for sake 293612 179,928

Accumulated income and expenses recognised directly in equity at 31 December 2017 in
relation to assets classified as held for sale were as follows:

Ene Qther
nerey Activities
Division .
Division
Translation differences - 5hH
Adjustments for change in value (2,065) (1,177)
Total recognised income and (2,065) (1,228)

expense

On 25 October 2017, Acciona, S.A. signed a purchase agreement with Anarafe, S.L.U., a
company belonging to the Naviera Armas Group, for all the stakeholdings that the Group
holds in the Compafiia Trasmediterranea subgroup, which amounts to 92.71% of its share
capital. This agreement involves recognising an enterprise value for 100% of the
Compaiiia Trasmediterranea subgroup of between 419 and 436 million euros, based on
the level of achievement of an earn out agreed with the purchaser which is linked to the
achievement of EBITDA objectives. This operation is subject to a single condition
precedent regarding achieving authorisation from Spanish competition authorities. The
Group hopes to achieve this authorisation in the short term. Therefore, all the assets and
liabilities associated with the Trasmediterranea Subgroup at 31 December 2017 have been
classified as held for sale.

In addition, at the close of financial year 2017, a series of energy assets located in Spain
have been transferred to these headings after advanced negotiations have taken place with
potential buyers.

Likewise, the sale of two assets that had been classified under this heading in the previous
financial year has been formalised in 2017. A property asset was sold on 10 January 2017
and on 24 October 2017 authorisation was given by Chilean competition authorities to

formalise the sale of Concessionaire Acciona Concesiones Ruta 160, S.A. (see Note
3.2.h).
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At the date when control was lost over the abovementioned Chilean concessionaire, the
breakdown of assets and liabilities in thousand curos was as follows:

ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment & intangible asscts
Concessions under L/T {inancial model

Other non-currcnt assets

Concessions under S/T financial model

Trade and other accounts receivable

Other current financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Total non-currcat assets classified as held for sale

LIABILITIES

Non-current bank borrowings
Other non-current liabilities
Current bank borrowings
Trade and other payablcs
Other current liabilities

Total liabilitics classified as held for sale

24. - Guarantee commitments to third parties

770
242,025
15913
4,249
10,072
7,726
8,046
288,801

149,027
7.360
8,704
1.756

298

167,145

The companies had provided third-party bonds before clients, public agencies and
financial institutions, for 3,677,415 thousand euros and 3,580,304 thousand euros at 31
December 2017 and 2016, respectively. The increase was mainly due to bonds delivered
for new tenders within the construction division.

The purpose of most of the bonds provided was to guarantee good performance in the
development of the works engaged by the infrastructure division.

In addition, collateral provided to cover future capital and reserves contributions in the
concession company NX2, L.P. (Puhoi —~Warkworth motorway (New Zeeland)) was
included, for the amount of 6 million curos within the infrastructure division.

The companies estimate that any liabilities as could arise from the guarantees provided

would not be significant.
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25.- Revenue

Breakdown of the Group’s revenue was as follows:

2017 2016
Energy 1,737,187 1,795,829
Construction 3,544,709 2,266,967
Water 681,576 708,054
Services 752,531 676,816
Other activities 689,838 668.274
Consolidation adjustments (151,867) (138.521)
Total revenue 7,253,974 5,977,419

Breakdown, by geographical area, of the Group companies’ total production was as
follows (in thousands of euros):

Spin U e comntries 1O

2017

Energy 1.235.264 90,196 317,082 94645  1.737.187
Construction 577.230 281132 1645150 1038197 3,544,709
Water 314252 62,010 82686 222628 681.576
Services 337210 128275 61351 23,795 752.531
Other activities 609,597 65,256 7023 7963 689,838
Intra-Group transactions (161,482) (4,538} (39,534) (6311} (151867
Fetal 2087 prodortics: 317271 625331 2073656 1382916 7253574
2016

Enerzy 1,145,017 94,869 385,153 170,790 1,795,829
Construction 626,676 322648 966,432 35120 2266967
Water 312,794 54,550 34,830 305.880 708,054
Services 499,151 107,370 56,762 13,533 676,316
Other activities 600,153 15,150 45,350 7,621 668,274
tntra-Group transactions (96,471) 3) (41,716) (331) (138,521
Total 2016 production 3,087,320 594584 1,446,811 848704 5977419

Revenue from the Construction activity

Concessions

At 31 December 2017, the Acciona Group maintained its main service concession
contracts in force in the construction and water divisions. The net amount of revenue at
the close of the financial year for each category of concession agreement, including those
within the scope of IFRIC 12, came to 192 and 140 million euros, respectively. Appendix
V details the main concessions.

As indicated in Note 4.2 g), following the adoption of IFRIC 12, the Acciona Group
recognises under “Non-Current Receivables and Other Non-Current Assets” concession
business assets whose recovery is guaranteed under the concession contract by the grantor
through the payment of a fixed or quantifiable amount and, accordingly, no demand risk
is borne by the operator.
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In relation to these concession assets, even during the construction phase the Group
recognises income earned on interest, based on the effective interest rate of the financial
asset. This interest income is recognised under “Revenue”, and at 31 December 2017 and
2016 it amounted to 15,547 and 16,377 thousand euros, respectively.

Construction

The Group obtains substantially all its construction revenue in its capacity as prime
contractor.

Detail of infrastructure construction revenue by type of project was as follows:

2017 2016
Civil engincering 3,052,575 1,549,529
Residential building construction 64274 55,138
Non-residential building construction 212,302 292,162
Other activities 75,255 260,297
Total construction revenue 3,404,406 2,157,126

Detail of infrastructure construction revenue by type of client was as follows:

2017 2016
Central Government 174,159 215,557
Regional Governments 63,127 53,901
Local councils 12,713 13,843
corpsr(;gﬁi(())::l Agencies and Government-owned 118,351 126,267
Public sector 368,350 409,568
Private sector 148,155 169,652
Total Spanish clients 516,505 579,220
Total clients abroad 2,887,901 1,577,906
Total construction revenue 3,404,406 2,157,126

The accumulated data on the contracts in progress in the construction activity, including
the part corresponding to the water division, at the close of financial years 2017 and 2016
were as follows:

2017 2016

Accumulated rcvenue from contracts in 8.155.683 7.069.519

progress
Accumulated amount of costs incurred 7.649,152 6,602,764
Total accumulated earnings 506,531 466,755
Advances from clients (Note 14) 584,441 854,219
Withholdings 63,527 56,577

The geographical distribution of the infrastructure construction backlog at the close of
2017 and 2016 was as follows:
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2017 Spain Abroad

Civil engineering 744,944 5,033,026
Residential building construction 62,254 61,985
Non-residential building eonstruetion 233,804 398,817
Other activities 205,719 27477
Total construction backlog 1,246,721 5,521,305
2016 Spain Abroad

Civil engineering, 1,001,133 5,918,390
Residential building construction 28414 75,006
Non-residential building construction 201,893 105,058
Other activities 185,624 624,287
Total construction backlog 1,417,064 6,722,741

26.- Expenses

Breakdown of the Group’s expenses was as follows:

2017 2016
Cost of good sold 1,975,668 1,595,057
Personnel expenses 1,497,031 1,287,557
Wages, salaries and similar 1,216,304 1,029,545
Social security costs 254,153 234,526
Other staff costs 26,574 23,486
Other external expenses 2,930,698 2,252,269
Taxes other than income tax 198,470 180,027
Other current operating expenses 19,400 34,082
Subtotal 6,621,267 5,348,992
Change in provisions 29,833 231234
Depreciation and amortisation charge 633,156 547,147
Totat 7,284,256 6,127,373

Employees:

The average number of employees in 2017 and 2016, by professional category, was as
follows:

2017 2016 Change
Management and supervisors 2,095 1,776 319
Qualified line personnel 5,962 5,418 544
Clerieal and support staft 1.864 1,883 (19)
Other employees 27,482 23,758 3,724
Total average number of employees 37,403 32,835 4,568
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The classification above broken down by gender in 2017 and 2016 was as follows:

2017 2016
Men Women Total Men Women Total
Management and supervisors 1,710 385 2.095 1,435 341 1,776
Qualified tine personnel 4238 1,724 5,962 3,715 1,703 5,418
Clerical and support staff 720 1,144 1,864 744 1,139 1,883
Other employces 20,563 6.919 27482 17,660 6,098 23,758
Total average number of employees 27,231 10,172 37,403 23,554 9,281 32,835

Breakdown of the Group’s employees by line of business was as follows:

2017 2016 Change
Energy 1,631 1,909 279)
Construction 12,335 9,662 2,673
Water 3,624 3.345 279
Services 17,750 15.873 1.878
Other Activities 2,063 2.046 17
Total average number of employees 37,403 32,835 4,568

The classification above broken down by gender in 2017 and 2016 was as follows:

2017 2016
Men Women Total Men Women Total
Energy 1,210 421 1,631 1,337 572 1,909
Construction 10,441 1,894 12,335 7,888 1,774 9,662
Water 3,142 482 3,624 2,788 557 3,345
Services 11,240 6,510 17,750 10,184 5,689 15,873
Other Activities 1,198 865 2,063 1,357 689 2,046
Total average number of employees 27,231 10,172 37,403 23,554 9,281 32,835

In 2017 and 2016, respectively, 313 and 288 employees of the total headcount were
employees of the Parent and the remainder were employed by the Group subsidiaries.

At 31 December 2017, the average number of employees with a disability level of 33%
or over employed by the consolidated companies amounted to 897 (direct and indirect
employment), and to 793 at 31 December 2016. The percentage of compliance with
Act 13/1982, of 7 April, on Social Integration of Persons with Disabilities, which
establishes a minimum quota of 2% for the recruitment of disabled persons in companies
with more than 50 employees, was 3.52% (3.51% at 31 December 2016).

Operating leases:

The “Leases” account under “Other External Expenses - Leases™ on the accompanying
consolidated income statement includes notably the costs incurred by the Compaitia
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Trasmediterranea Subgroup for the charter of other shipping companies’ vessels and
cargo decks totalling 32 million euros in 2017 and 2016.

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the lease terms and conditions and minimum payments
(without considering inflation or possible updates) under the main vessel charter contracts
entered into by the Compaiiia Trasmediterranea Subgroup were as follows:

2017 (thousand euros)

Vessel A""‘(’;f;“‘““' Expiry date Type 2018 2019-2020
Wisteria/Vronskiy 29/02/2012 15/11/2018 Time Charter 5,268 -
Tenacia 07/12/2011 31/12/2018 Time Charter 7,020 -
Forza 12/01/2016 22/02/2020 Time Charter 6,660 8,820
Volcan de Teneguia 04/02/2013 31/05/2017 Time Charter 1,465 -
Nura Nova 28/02/2017 28/02/2019 Time Charter 2,244 362
Romy 26/10/2017 06/11/2017 Time Charter 50 -
Surprise 08/01/2018 07/01/2019 Time Charter 3,726 -
Maestro Sea 13/10/2017 13/11/2017 Time Charter 323 -

2016 (thousand euros)

Vessel Arra(;lfteement Expiry date Type 2017 2018-2020
Wisteria/Vronskiy 29/02/2012 15/11/2018 Time Charter 5,873 5,332
Tenacia 07/12/2011 31/12/2018 Time Charter 7,117 8,577
Forza 12/01/2016 22/02/2020 Time Charter 7,608 18,794
Volcan de Teneguia 04/02/2013 31/05/2017 Time Charter 1,291 -
Snav Adriatico 07/05/2015 07/05/2017 Time Charter 2,698 -

Change in provisions:

Breakdown of the balance of “Change in Provisions” on the consolidated income
statement was as follows (in thousand euros):

2017 2016
Change in provision for uncollectable receivables 16,296 33,370
Change in provision for inventories 7,508 106,425
Other provisions 6,030 91,439
Total 29,833 231,234

At 31 December 2017, “Change in provisions for inventories” included mainly the
impairments of inventories for 5.4 million euros for a plot of land located in Italy. The
“Change in provisions for inventories” in 2016 included mainly the impairments of
inventories in the property division for 99.3 million euros, on the basis of appraisals by
independent experts unrelated to the Acciona Group (see note 4.2.j).

“Other provisions” related mainly to additions made for burdensome contracts and

provision for litigation and provision for future replacement or large repairs in
concessions recognised under the intangible model.
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Impairment and profit/(loss) on disposals of non-current assets

Breakdown for this heading on the income statement for financial years 2017 and 2016
was as follows:

Impairn}ent and profit/(loss) on disposal of plant, property 2017 2016
and equipment

Profit/(loss) from plant, property and equipment 11,118 639,586
Impairment of other assets (Notes 5 and 8) (6,795) (107,392)
Total 104,323 532,194

At 31 December 2017, “Profit/(loss) from plant, property and equipment” included profit
of 74 million euros from a share swap operation with Testa Residencial Socimi, S.A., as
well as 34 million euros from the sale of the Sociedad Concesionaria Acciona
Concesiones Ruta 160, S.A. (see note 3.2.h).

In the previous financial year this heading reflected the gains recognised from the sale of

the shares that the Group held in Corporacion Acciona Windpower, S.A. under the
agreement signed with Nordex S.E., for 650.8 million euros, and the remaining gains, for
6.7 million euros, were recorded in the translation differences account (see note 3.2.h).
“Profit/(loss) from property, plant and equipment” also included the loss of 21 million
euros related to the resolution of a litigation case in Greece, among others.

At the end of the financial year, “Impairment of other assets” included impairment for 13
million euros in intangible assets from the Brazilian concessionaire Rodovia do Ago,
S.A., as well as the reversals of investment property impairments for 6.8 million euros
from the Real Estate division.

This same heading at 31 December 2016 included impairment of PPE for 73 million euros

mostly from the energy division, as well as impairment for 30 million euros in intangible
assets from the Brazilian concessionaire Rodovia do Ago, S.A.

Other gains and losses

In 2017, the capital gain of 5 million euros was recorded under this heading as a result of
the purchase of an additional 50% stake in Sociedad Concesionaria Autovia de los
Vifiedos, S.A. (See note 3.2.h).

In 2016, the capital gain of 30 million euros was recorded under this heading mainly as a
result of the purchase of 37.05% stake in ATLL Concesionaria de la Generalitat de
Catalunya, S.A. (see note 27) and a reversion for 12 million euros of the provision for the
third and final fine imposed by the National Market and Competition Commission to
Compaiiia Trasmediterranea and resolved by the Supreme Court in a favourable manner
(see note 27).

Profit/(loss) from changes in value of financial instruments at fair value
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At 31 December 2017 this heading reflected mainly revenue of 37,370 thousand euros
related to the change in fair value of two energy sales contracts concluded in December
2015 and 2016 by subsidiaries in the US and Chile respectively, to supply a specific
amount of energy in the long term at a fixed price.

At 31 December 2016, this heading reflected mainly an expense of 7,270 thousand euros
related to the change in fair value of the energy contract concluded in December 2015 by

a subsidiary in the United States to supply a specific amount of energy in the long term.

27.- Segment reporting

Basis of segmentation:

Segment reporting is done on the one hand by business segment, and on the other hand
by geographical segment. This structure is in line with the information internally used
by Acciona Group Management to assess the performance of the segments and to
allocate resources among them.

The business lines described below are established by the Board of Directors on the
basis of the Acciona Group’s organisational structure, considering the nature of the
goods and services offered.

The structure of the information disclosed in this Note has been designed as if each line
of business were a separate business. Costs incurred by the Corporate Unit are distributed
pro rata, using an internal cost distribution system, among the different lines of business.

Inter-segment sales are made at market prices.

In addition to the segment information, in order to help understand the results and in line
with how the Acciona Group Directors manage this information, certain exceptional
amounts that facilitate a better understanding of the ordinary course of business are
presented as an additional column. Nonetheless, where these effects are material in
respect of the Group’s results, details are given as to how they affect each segment.

Segment information about these activities and extraordinaries for 2017 and 2016 is
shown below:

Begments

Balances at 311272017 . Exceptional Fotal

Enerey Censtracti Water Services Other  lntra-Group Effects Group

ey on activities  transactions

ASSETS
Prw,?my, {!L'ixi znd
equipment, intangible assets 6,374.296 6IRTTR 1122447 65963 222,641 (1L017) - 8393108
and mvestinect property
Goodwill - 196,712 27976 50.562 - - - 185,650
Non—corrent fisancial asests 25440 39,648 17,956 7,586 43370 3,023 — 131,923
Investmenis accourted for 903,423 74,140 75537 809 3741 - 1301330
using the equity method K [ i S e - e
Otber assets 253679 FH2S573 33,647 1,186 258753 BT - 1082619
Non-current assets 7,763,838 1,141,851 1297543 126,420 253 186 {7,827y — 11,184,631
Inventories 119,922 192,190 24236 1,784 499 960 (17,127) - 820,965
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Segmeants
Rahances zt 31122617 c X Bropteasl  Joa
E . “onstroctt W Sexwi I)M_ e hm—(;r_w:p Hects P
= on activiges  {ramsactiens
Trade and other receivables 702,096 1,270,657 271.864 211,597 121 516 {685.837) — 1,891,893
Other current financial 163,131 66,653 4,451 3,465 8775 513 - 246,988
assels
Other assets 195,665 89,470 21,091 6,295 1,139 (2,625) (13,056) 297,979
Caslr and cash equivalents (97,482) 1,210,201 219,678 18,018 (74,098) (3,536) - 1,272.781
Non-current assets classified 979.987 B - - 466,168 (14.034) B 1432121
as held for sale
Current assets 2,063,319 2,829,171 541,320 241,159 1,023,460 (722,646) (13,056) 5,962,727
Total assets 9,827,157 3,971,022 1,838,883 367,579 1,885,546 (729,773) (13,056) 17,147,358
EQUITY AND
LIABILITIES
Consolidated equity 3,346,376 378,547 3T 162,136 (183,690} 37,767 (13,856) 3,963,268
Bank borrowings and other
fimancial hratwhities 4,118 686 1132822 220,901 42 057 (264 672 - — 5271,874
Other liabifities 1,248 982 507,408 898 632 4,171 152 5360 {6,169) — 2805384
Non-carrent hahilities 5,389,648 1,646,330 1,119,533 46,228 {112,312) (6,159) — 8,077,258
Bank bemowtags amd other S, o - - - .
& 57 E 672 3 255013 — -
financial liabites i43,216 51,483 17672 i1 1,255 3 1472 2%
Trade and other payables 271923 1,551,854 266,174 105,881 146,025 {142,640) — 2,199217
Other lizbilitizs 384 3R 336 806 123 382 43 839 & 382 {543,197) — 9nt 785
Liabilittes directly
assoctated with son-curment -
2 2 — — — 7 - -
assets classified as held foc 293,612 179.928 473,540
sale
Current Babiities 1,691,133 1,968,145 406,628 153,215 2881548 {685,837) - 5,186,832
Total equity and Babdities 9827457 3,971,922 1,838,883 367571 18RS, 546 {729,773} {13.056) 17,i47.358
Segments
Exceptiogal Total
Bala t 31/1272017
pees & Ea Ceastractio Water Services Ctser Iutra-Gronp Effects Greap
ey n activities  transactioss
Total revenue 1,737,187 3,544,709 681,576 752,531 689,838 (151.867) - 7.253,974
Revenue 1,706,172 3,488,055 681,566 692,527 685,654 - - 7.253.974
Revenue (o ofher 31,015 56,654 10 60,004 4184 (151.867) - -
segments
Other revenue and operating (1,011,583)  (3.282,602)  (551,629) (718,246)  (565,595) 150,900 — (5978,755)
expenses
Gross operating result 725,604 262,107 129,947 34,285 124,243 (967) - 1,275,219
Prov. amorti./depreciation (406,287) (172,026) (42.521) (15,378) (45,989) 1,531 17,681 (662,989)
Impairment and profit/(loss)
fromn disposal of plant, (1,836) 1,751 (219) (28) 6,906 - 97,749 104,323
property and equipment
Other gains and losses 479 2,246 879 286 (116) - - 3,774
Profit/((loss) from 317,960 94,078 88,086 19,165 85,044 564 115,430 720,327
operations
Financial profit/(loss) (269,957) (36,541) (64.500) (6,381) 42715 - 1.647 (333,017)
?’roﬁ!/(loss) due to changes 35,235 - n N 336 ~ 2,411 38482
in value
Profit/(loss) from entities
accounted for by the equity 51,129 9,994 14,854 932 (1,415) - (145,000) (69.506)
method
Profit /(loss) before tax 134,367 67,531 38,440 13,716 127,180 564 (25,512) 356,286
Expense for Corporate Tax (46,4206) (31,020) (13,278) (4,387) (12.786) (141) 2,703 (105,341)
CLLATT LD
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Balances at 31/12/2017

Coasobdated preft/fioss)
in the year

Profiv{loss) after tax from
discontinzad activities
Profit lass) in the year

Mem-commiiieg merests

Profl o) attribotdis i
the Parent Company

Balances at 31/12/2816

ASSETS

Property, pleot and
equipmment, intzngrble assets
amd imvestroent property
Guodwill

Noo-csment finenoad ssets
Investments accounted for
wsing the equnty moahod
Onher zsazts

loventories

Trade znd oiber recervables
Other current financial
asseis

Cash aad cash apmvalesrts

Nust-current assets classified
as held for sale

LCovent assels

Total assets

EQUITY AND
LIABILITIES

Consefdated eqoity

Bank bormowengs ard other
financial Rebilities

Otber habilnies
Noo-carrest Lakilities

Bank borrowings and other
financial liabilities

Trade and other payables
Criher zhilities

Lighabities direeshy
associated with non-onment
msmets el ad as beld g
sale

Cuarrent labilities

&7.541

Ererpy

7498 359

19577

1,021,769

5714162
9,328,162

128,720
681615
175,677

339,754
(39,4273

188,747

19,309,509

3,554,500

4541567

1511652
6452 519

137,782

297,998

257510

693,290

35,505

(3075}

33,435

Cogsyuets
on

458771

275684

B

1037885

17,860
215,315
1219750

309470

3RITHATS

3,924,008

4TARE2

722143
597444
1319587

42,804

1,618,649

300,389

171,697

2,133,539

Water Segvives
25,562 9329
25182 9,329
(3.68%) {106)
21,478 9,223

Segments

Water Sersies
1128287 57,682
27978 50,962
11,375 13,533
68 882 449
62556 3,740
1,298,656 125,768
17621 1,153
266316 1994353
4245 2813

(11.764) 1112

2317945 10,960

25,803 2045

1,793,519 356,259

276,292 WOASE

227 469 48182

865912 2824

1,093 381 51,686
16,025 2,981

290,419 91,294

137,402 30,317

423 846 144,602
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184354

114,394

(457

113942

3,614
791 581
1,242,692
2259678
185,573
10,675
(412597
38,656
26691

1521072

539,748

62,891

271 433
334,524

968,914

152,643

590278

14453

1,726,288

Intra-Gooap

43

423

@)

Intra-Group
trassaciioas

(31 389

19,026

954
£31,409)

(19531}
{650,487
544

{2625y
{19,570)

691,/659)

(703,078)

0,514

(11.776)
{(1L776)

(153,574)

(456,514

(650,488)

Exvceptional
Effects

208,075

Total
Group
250,945

250,945

(30,814)

220,131

Total
Group

9.974,575
79,284

179,080

1,160,821

1,796,794
12,684,404

17,407,764

1,097 346

5,602,252

3,237.08%

3,43

8.839.341

1,168,506

2297429

818,992

186,150

4471077
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Segments
Balances at 31/122036 . Exceptioaal Total
E Coastracti w ices Otber Intra-Greep Effects Groop
mesmn o wter Sexv e o
Total equity and liabilities 10309909 3924008 1793519 356259 1,520,072 (763,078) 06875 17,407,764
Segments
Faceptienal Tetzl
Balasces at 31/12,2016
y i Effects
Enmergy (ons:runn Water Services O_thr_r lntn—Grfmp Group

Total revenue 1,795,829 2,266,567 708,053 676,816 668,274 (138,520) - 5977419

Revene 1,764,112 2,256.260 707,878 625278 663,950 1 - 5577419

Revenue 1o other 31717 50,707 175 51,538 4,384 (138,521) - -
segments
Otherrevenue and operating  y gsemay (2(93352)  (589.065)  (SIBBI1y (337246 133,783 - (aTESER)
expenses
Gross eperating resalt 739,659 173,615 118,988 27,974 131,028 263 - 1,191,527
Prov. amorti. 'deqweciation (390 874) (96,221) (46.528) (12.648) (45 /72) 3413 (189.851) (778381)
Impainnent and profit{loss)
from disposal of plant, 375 6433 308 416 (3.A423) (6,343) 535427 532,194
property and equipment
Other pains zed losses 417 (68) 312 523 (96) - 42173 12837
Prefit/{(loss) from 55 b
omerations 349577 83,759 72656 16,265 81,837 §2,666) 386,749 ©88,177
Financial peofitt loss) (282,149 (22.665) (48.689) (1,537) 27753 - (291,306) (643.047)
Profit (hoss) das to chamses < N _ _ _ _ .
in value (6.343) (524 (7,069
Profiti(loss) from entitics
accounted for by the equity 46,533 7347 14,057 258 1,375 - - 69,570
method
Profit /(loss) before tax 107,366 69,041 38,024 14,986 85,441 (2.666) 95,443 107,635
Expense for Corporate Tax (39.590) (22,576) (15,937) (1,253) (38.329) 667 83238 (33,780}
Comsolidaied profitess) 67,776 16,465 72,687 13,733 712 (1,599) 178,681 373,855
in the year
Profit/(loss) after tax from _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
discontinued activities
Profit /{less) in the year 67,776 o 465 22687 13,733 47312 1,995) 178,681 373,855
Non-controlling imterests (26.939) (16,511) 932) (263) 4,586) 6N 27394 (21,874)
Profit /(loss) attribatable to N 5 47 57 v 5
he Parent Company 40,837 29,954 21,155 13,470 42,526 (2,036) 206,075 351,981

In financial year 2017, the “Exceptional Effects” column reflected the accounting impacts
of unusual events. The most significant of these are detailed below:

- Sale of the shares held by the Group in Compaiiia Urbanizadora del Coto, S.L.,
Valgrand, S.A. and the sale of certain real estate assets owned by Acciona Real Estate,
S.A. to the company Testa Residencial SOCIMI, S.A., with capital gains of 74 million
euros linked to the “other businesses” division (see Note 3.2.h).

- Following authorisation from the Chilean Competition Authorities, sale of 100% of

the shares held by the Group in Sociedad Concesionaria Acciona Concesiones Ruta
160, S.A. for 34 million euros, linked to the “Construction” division (see Note 3.2.h).
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- Impairment of 145 million euros linked to the “Energy” division related to the share
held by the Acciona Group in Nordex, S.E. which is accounted for using the equity
method after an impairment test was carried out following the methodology and
hypothesis detailed in Note 9.

In financial year 2016, the “Exceptional Effects” column reflected the accounting impacts
of unusual events. The most significant of these are detailed below:

- Sale of the shares held by the group in Corporacion Acciona Windpower, S.A. as
part of the agreement subscribed with the German listed company Nordex S.E., with
capital gains of 657 million euros (see note 3.2.h).

- Capital gains of 30 million euros from the purchase of 37.05% in ATLL
Concessionaria de la Generalitat de Catalunya, S.A. from Aigiies de Catalunya, L.td
in 2016 (see note 3.2.h).

- Finance costs from cancellation of the debt from the energy division, which meant a
charge of 301 million euros, mainly because of the rupture of derivatives (see Note
18).

- Impairment losses for PPE and intangible assets, for 102 million euros, mostly from
certain wind facilities from the energy division, for the impairment of a motorway
concession company in Brazil and for the impairment in the property division for 101
million euros on the basis of appraisals by independent valuers and affecting mainly
“Inventories” (see Note 26).

The table below shows disclosure of certain of the Group’s consolidated balances based
on the geographical location of the companies that gave rise to them.

Income Total assets Non-current assets Current assets
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Spain 3,172,071 3,087,320 10,284,816 10,070.966 5,955,110 7436472 4,329,706 2,634,494
European Union 625,331 594,584 1,525,381 1,743,308 1,203,241 1,390,619 322,140 352,689
OECD countries 2,073,656 1,446,812 4,042,225 4,410,442 3,274,307 3,149.363 767,918 1,261,079
Other countries 1,382,916 848,703 1,294,936 1,183,048 751,973 707,950 542,963 475,098
Total 7,253,974 5,977,419 17,147,358 17,407,764 11,184,631 12,684,404 5,962,727 4,723,360

Income and non-current assets from certain significant countries are disclosed below,
understanding “significant” to refer to those where the values are greater than 10% of the
income from external clients or from non-current assets according to IFRS 8.

Income Non-current assets
2017 2016 (%) 2017 2016 (*)
Australia 892.862 373,818 616,248 417,591
Mexieo 297,963 511,815 1,150,112 1,099,399

(*) Non-significant values in 2016. Shown for comparative purposes only.

28.- Finance income and costs and other profit/(loss) for the year

- Pagel40 -
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Detail of the Group’s finance income and costs was as follows:

2017 2016
Financial income 45,628 61,921
From cquity investments 226 267
From other financial instruments in Associates 4,347 9,013
Other finance income 41,055 52,641
Finance costs (368,747) (732,653)
On payabiles to third parties (372,193) (738,330)
On ineflectiveness of derivatives (sce Note 20) - -
Capitalisation of borrowing costs (note 5) 5,197 6,439
Change in financial provisions (1,751) (762)

Other finance income and costs:

The Group had capitalised borrowing costs amounting to 5.2 million euros at 31
December 2017 and 6.4 million euros at 31 December 2016, all of them practically
capitalised in property, plant and equipment (see note 5). Borrowing costs capitalisation
in inventories amounted to 0.7 million euros in 2017 and was not material in 2016 (see
note 4.2.j).

Finance costs:

In 2017 payables to third parties subtracted from equity and included in “Finance Costs”
relating to the periodic settlements of hedging derivatives and corresponding to fully
consolidated Group companies amounted to 36,849 thousand euros (299,303 thousand
euros in 2016). In 2016, 231,640 thousand euros were recorded in relation to the
cancellation of hedging instruments within the framework of refinancing operations for
certain assets in the energy division (see Note 27).

In addition, 14,938 thousand euros (20,291 thousand euros in 2016) relating to these
periodic settlements were recognised as a decrease in the results of companies accounted
for using the equity method.

29.- Proposed application of profit/(loss)

Proposed application of the profit in financial years 2017 and 2016 of Acciona, S.A., as
approved by the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting, in the case of 2016, and that the
Board of Directors will submit to approval by the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting,
in the case 0f 2017, is as follows (in euros):

- Pagel4d1 -
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Distribution basis:
Acciona, S.A. profit or loss
Application:

To legal reserve

To statutory reserve

To capitalisation reserves
To voluntary reserves
Dividends

Total

2017

209,202,462.05

20,920,246.21
4,667.230.18
11,836,335.66
171.778,650.00
209,202,462.05

2016

386,601.903.47

38.660,190.34
183,320,506.88
164,621,206.25
386,601,903.47

The proposed allocation contemplates the distribution of dividends of 3.00 euros per
share.

The Board of Directors proposes to allocate the capitalisation reserve against the 2017
results in accordance with Article 25 of Act 27/2014, of 27 November on Corporate Tax,
amounting to 4,667,230.18 euros and equivalent to 10% of the increase in own funds
associated with the companies that form part of the tax group with Acciona, S.A. as the
parent. This reduction is limited to 10% of the tax base for the tax period obtained for the
tax group, and the excess over this limit can be transferred to the next two tax periods.

Under its Articles of Association, Acciona, S.A. must, in any event, allocate 10% of net
profit to legal and statutory reserves in such a manner that, when the former is covered
(20% of the share capital), any remaining portion of the 10% of net profit must be
transferred to the statutory reserve. This reserve is unrestricted.

30.- Environmental matters

ACCIONA backs the development of environmentally sustainable businesses: it
generates electricity from renewable sources; it desalinates water, makes it drinkable and
also cleans it; and it builds infrastructures and services where the environmental variable
is relevant when it comes to decision making.

In 2017, 34% of the Group’s global sales and 67% of EBITDA were based on businesses
included in what the United Nations Environment Programme (UNEP) defines as the
Green Economy.

http://web.unep.org/greeneconomy/resources/green-economy-report.

In 2017 environmental expenses accounted for 2,430 million euros and environmental
investments 509 million euros, which placed the company’s global environmental activity
at 2,939 million euros.

Out of that total figure, 69 million euros arose from management (prevention, mitigation
or correction) of the environmental impacts generated by the Company’s activity (65
million euros in expenses and 4 million euros in investments) and 2,870 million euros
came from development of the businesses with a mainly environmental component (2,365
million euros in expenses and 505 million euros in investments); they are relevant because
of the actual strategic orientation of the business, such as renewable energy generation
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and integral water cycle management, which centre on dealing with environmental
impacts produced by other players and whose management is part of ACCIONA’s
business.

This economic figure for ACCIONA’s environment-related activities can be broken down
as follows:

Amount
Categary {Million
)
e  Measures to minimise environmental impact 36.09
. Environmental research, development & innovation 13.00
° Personnel involved in the environmental activity 11.01
. Investments in plant. property and equipment to prevent 382
environmental impacts and protect the environment '
° Environmental consultancy and advisory services 261
. Other* 2.70
Subtotal,;: Management of environmental impacts caused by the 69.23
Company’s activity :
. Renewable energy generation 2,245.20
. Waste water treatment, Purification and Desalination 624 .88
aly: e iness i ini i 2
Subtotal,: Development of businesses with a mainly environmental 2,870.08

component, relevant because of actual strategic orientation

TOTAL (Subtotal, + Subtotal;) 2,939.31

(*) This category includes other environmental expenses, including Training, Environmental Management Systems,
Environmental communication and awareness, Insurance and taxes.

It must also be noted that ACCIONA obtained bonuses for the actions it carried out in
2017 to promote environmental respect and protection, for the amount of 1.7 million
euros.

31.- Earnings per share

- Basic:

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit distributable to the
Company’s shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the financial year.

The amounts for the periods closed at 31 December 2017 and 2016 are given below:

2017 2016
Net profit attributable to the
Parent (thousand euros) 220,131 351,981
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 57.117.274 57.010.458
Basic earnings per share (euros) 3.85 6.17
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- Diluted:

To calculate the diluted earnings per share, the entity adjusts the result of the financial
year attributable to the holders of ordinary equity instruments and the mean weighted
average of the number of outstanding shares for all diluting effects attached to the
potential ordinary shares.

In January 2014, Acciona S.A. issued convertible bonds. In 2017, conversions were made
and this financial instrument has been cancelled early (see Note 18), events which have
been considered in this calculation. The issuance of convertible bonds is the only diluting
effect that explains the difference between the weighted average number of treasury
shares outstanding considered in the basic earnings per share calculation and the diluted
earnings per share. The finance costs recorded in the income statement for the financial
year 2017 before Corporate Tax amount to 5,148 thousand euros.

The amount for the period closed on 31 December 2017 and 2016 is given below:

2017 2016
Adjusted net profit attributable to 225279 370,794
the parent (thousand euros)
Diluted weighted average number of shares outstanding 59.447.633 58,851,022
Diluted earnings per share (euros) 3.79 6.22

32.- Events after the reporting period

On 21 February 2018, Acciona Group and the company ATLL Concessionaria de la
Generalitat de Catalunya S.A. became aware of the judgement handed down by the
Supreme Court on the cassation appeal filed by the Generalitat de Catalunya against the
High Court of Justice of Catalonia (TSJC) ruling which invalidated the procedure to
award said concession (appeal 2725/2015). This judgement dismisses the claims brought
forward by the Generalitat and confirms the TSJC ruling.

The Acciona Group is currently waiting for notification of the cassation appeal 2682/2015
filed by Gestid Catalana de Aigues, and appeal 2678/2015 filed by the Concessionaire
and by Acciona Agua against the TSJC judgement which invalidated the procedure to
award said concession.

On 26 February 2018, an agreement has been reached for the sale of the thermal solar
business in Spain to subsidiaries of the company Contour Global, consisting of five plants
with a total capacity of 250 MW for an amount of 1,093 million euros (including debt).
In addition, the parties have agreed to the payment of an earn out of up to 27 million
euros. The effectiveness of the operation is conditional upon compliance with several
conditions precedent (see Note 23 in the financial statements).
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33.- Related party transactions

As indicated in these notes to the consolidated financial statements, transactions
performed by the Company with its subsidiaries (related parties) as part of its normal
business activities, as regards their purpose and terms and conditions, were eliminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Transactions between the Group and its
associates are disclosed below.

Transactions with associates

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, detail of the balances receivable from and payable to
associates was as follows (in thousand euros):

Receivables / Expenses Payables / Income
2017 2016 2017 2016
Trade and other receivables 58,216 92,027 - --
Trade and other payables - - 278,047 66,193
Loans to associates 112,019 118,579 8.649 5,334
Income and expenses 184,929 17,234 106,996 114,902

The Income column basically reflects billings by Acciona Infrastructure to various
concession holders, for the construction of their assets.

The balances of “Expenses” and “Payables” mainly include transactions carried out by
companies in the Energy Division with the company NORDEX, SE for the construction

of new projects for the division.

The balances receivables related to the line “Loans to associates” were mainly made up
of loans made by Acciona, S.A., Acciona Concesiones, S.A and Acciona Energia, S.A.
to associates.

These transactions were performed on an arm’s length basis.

Transactions with other related parties

At 31 December 2014, following the arrival of the KKR Fund in the shareholding
structure of the Acciona Group subsidiary, Acciona Energy Internacional, S.A., this fund
became a “related party” for the Group as the term is defined in IAS 24. The only
transaction of note with the KKR Fund in financial year 2016 was the subordinated debt
described in Note 21.

In addition, the contract signed between Acciona Energy, S.A. and said fund incorporates
long-term collaboration agreements between the Acciona Group and KKR in certain
affected countries, through certain rights of refusal that in no case represent a firm
commitment.

Transactions with shareholders

WOy D
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In 2017 there were no significant transactions involving a transfer of resources or
obligations between the Parent or its Group companies and the Company’s main
shareholders.

Transactions with directors or executives

The Group’s “related parties” are deemed to be, in addition to the subsidiaries, associates
and jointly-controlled entities, the Company Management’s “key personnel” (members
of its Board of Directors and of senior management, and their close relatives) and the
entities over which key management personnel may exercise control or significant
influence. The transactions performed by the Group in 2017 and 2016 with its related
parties are listed below, differentiating between the Company’s significant shareholders,
members of the Board of Directors and Managers, and other related parties. Related party
transactions are made on terms equivalent to those in arm’s length transactions that
usually take place in a normal business relationship with Acciona, S.A. or the Group
companies within the scope of the ordinary course of trade of these entities and under
market conditions. These transactions consisted basically of:

3i.12.2617

Directors Groap

Significant employees,

shareholiders ox an:!h’es companies
or catities

Other

Expenses and income refated Total

Expeases:

Fmance costs — — - — -
Management or cooperation agrecments - - - — —
R&D wransfers and licensing agreements - - — — —
Leases — - - . -
Services received - - — 105 105

Purchase of goods (finished goods and work in — — —_ — —
progress)

Valge adjsstmenis due to gncoliectable or doubuful - - - - -
debts

L osses on derecogpition or disposal of assets - — — — -

QOther expenses — — — - —

Income: - - - — .
Financial income - - - — -
Management or cooperation agreements - - - - -
R&D transfers and licensing agreements - - - -- -
Dividends received - - -- - —
Leases . - - - -
Rendering of services - - - 228 228
Sale of goods (finished goods or work in progress) - - - - -
Gains on de-recognition or disposal of assets - - - - -

Other income - - — - .

31.12.2017

. Group
- Directors
Significant and employees,

shareholders . companies
executives L
or entities

Other
related Total
parties

Other transactions
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Purchases of property. plant and equipment.
intangible assets or other assets

Financing agreements: loans and capital
contributions (lender)

Finance leases (lessor)

Repayment or cancellation of loans and leases
(lessor)

Salcs of property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets or other assets

Financing agreements: loans and capital
contributions (borrower)

Finance leases (lessee)

Repayment or cancellation of loans and leases
(lessee)

Guarantees provided

Guarantees received

Obligations acquired
Obligations/guarantees discharged
Dividends and other profits distributed

Other transactions

Expenses and income

Expenses:

Finance costs

Management or cooperation agreements
R&D transfers and licensing agreements
Leases

Services rcceived

Purchase of goods ( finished goods and work in
progress)

Value adjustments due to uncollectable or doubtful
debts

Losses on de-recognition or disposal of assets

Other expensces

Income:

Financial income

Management or cooperation agreements

R&D transfers and licensing agreements
Dividends received

Leases

Rendering of services

Sale of goods (finished goods or work in progress)
Gains on de-recognition or disposal of assets

Other income

Significant
shareholders

Directors
and
executives

31.12.2016
cmGrl:)m p-q Other
ployees, related Total
companies arties
or entities p
- 88 88
- 87 87

31.12.2016 -

it et s
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Group

Significant Directors mployees Other
Other transactions g and cmployees. related Total
shareholders R companies .
executives N parties
or entities

Purchases of property, plant and equipment, - - - - -
intangible assets or other assets

Financing agreements: loans and capital - - - - —
contributions (lender)

Finance leases (lessor) - - — - -

Repayment or cancellation of loans and leases - - - - -
(lessor)

Sales of property, plant and equipment, intangible -- - - -- -
assets or other assets

Financing agreements: loans and capital - . - - -
contributions (borrower)

Finance leases (lessee) - - - - -

Repayment or cancellation of loans and leases - - - - -
(lessee)

Guarantees provided -- - — - -
Guarantees received - - - - -
Obligations acquired - - - - -
Obligations/guarantees discharged - - - - -
Dividends and other profits distributed -- - - - —

Other transactions - - - - -

34.- Remuneration and other benefits

A. Board of Directors

In 2017 the remuneration accrued by the members of the Company’s Board of Directors,
and taking into account that this remuneration is taken from the perspective of the Parent
and its subsidiaries, totalled, in euros, the sum indicated in this Note.

According to article 31 of Articles of Association, the remuneration for Directors will
consist in a fixed annual allocation determined for their membership of the Board of
Directors and any Committees on which each Director may sit. The amount of the
remuneration to be paid by the Company to the Directors as a whole for belonging to the
Board of Directors and its Committees will be that determined for this purpose by the
General Meeting of Shareholders. Once established, this amount shall remain in force
until such time as it may be amended, and the Board of Directors may reduce the amount
in the financial years where this is considered convenient.

The Board of Directors determines the exact amount to be paid within that limit and its
distribution among the different Directors, with consideration being given to the functions
and responsibilities of each member, sitting on the Board’s committees and any other
unbiased circumstances considered relevant by the Board.

Regardless of the provisions contained in section above, the remuneration deriving from
membership of the Board of Directors shall be compatible with any other remuneration
(fixed salary; variable bonuses depending on the attainment of business, corporate and/or
performance goals; compensation for removal of the Director for reasons other than the
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failure to perform his or her duties; welfare systems; deferred remuneration items) that,
following a proposal by the Appointments and Remuneration Committee and by
resolution passed by the Board of Directors, could correspond to the Director for the
performance of other functions in the Company, be they senior management executive
functions or otherwise, apart from those of joint supervision and decision-taking carried
out as mere members of the Board.

Following a resolution adopted by the General Shareholders’ Meeting with the legally
required scope, Executive Directors may also be remunerated through the delivery of
shares or share option rights, or by means of any other remuneration referenced to the
value of the shares. Furthermore, art. 55 of the Regulations for the Board of Directors
establishes that the Board determines the system for distributing the remuneration for
Directors within the framework established in the Articles of Association.

The decision must take into account the report issued for the purpose by the Appointments
and Remuneration Committee.

The Board of Directors shall strive to ensure that the Directors’ remuneration is moderate
and in line with that paid on the market in companies of a similar size and business
activity, with preference for those formats relating a significant portion of the
remuneration to their dedication to Acciona.

The system for remuneration of independent directors will strive to serve as a sufficient
incentive for their dedication without compromising their independence.

The remuneration of external directors representing substantial shareholders for their
performance as Directors must be proportional to that of other Directors and shall not
represent any favoured treatment in the form of remuneration of the shareholder(s)
designating them. The remuneration system will establish similar remuneration for
comparable functions and dedication.

As regards remuneration of executive directors, article 55 bis of the Regulations
establishes that the Board of Directors must try and ensure that the remuneration policies
in force at each time include for variable remuneration necessary technical safeguards to
make sure that such remuneration is in line with the professional performance of its
beneficiaries and does not arise simply from the general trend of markets or of the
company’s business sector or from other similar circumstances. The remuneration of
directors must be transparent.

On 18 May 2017, the General Shareholders’ Meeting approved the Directors
Remuneration Policy for the years 2018-2020, without prejudice to the fact that
amendments introduced by the Policy shall apply to remuneration accrued from the date
the Policy was approved.

At its meeting on 28 February 2013, the Board of Directors resolved, at the proposal of
the Appointments and Remuneration Committee, to reduce the amounts for membership

of the Board of Directors and its Committees by 10%, and these were therefore set as
follows:
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a) For each director belonging to the Board of Directors 67,500 euros.

b) For each director belonging to the Executive Committee 45,000 euros.

¢) For each director belonging to the Audit Committee 45,000 euros.

d) For each director belonging to the Appointments Committee 36,000 euros.
e) For each director belonging to the Sustainability Committee 36,000 euros.

At the meeting held by the Board of Directors on 11 June 2015 additional remuneration
was established: 10,000 euros for the directors holding the chair on the Committees,
except in the case of the executive committee.

Executive directors who are members of the Executive Committee do not receive any
remuneration specifically for belonging to that committee.

After a detailed analysis of the remuneration received at international companies and
those included on the IBEX 35 index, the Appointments and Remuneration Committee
considered the remuneration to be in line with what was paid on the market in companies
of a similar size in the same business area, that similar remuneration was paid for
comparable functions and dedication and, without compromising independence,
remuneration is an adequate incentive to achieve, if possible, a greater engagement by
directors in the different committees.

Furthermore, the General Shareholders’ Meeting held on 6 June 2013 resolved to set, for
the purposes established in new section 2 of article 31 of the Articles of Association, the
amount of remuneration that may be paid by the Company to its Directors as a whole, for
their membership of the Board of Directors and its Committees, at a maximum of
1,503,000 curos. This amount shall remain in force until such time as the General
Sharcholders’ Meeting decides to change it, but it may be reduced by the Board of
Directors on the terms contained in the aforesaid section. This amount has been set at
1,700,000 euros by the Remuneration Policy 2018-2020.

The total remuneration paid to the members of the Board for discharging their duties as
Company directors in 2017 amounted to 1,308,247 euros. This amount is broken down in
thousand euros, by member of the Board of Directors, in the following way:

Fixed Remuneration Total 2017 Total 2016
remuneration for membership
of Board
Committees
Mr. Daniel Entrecanales Domecq 67.5 82 1495 149.5
Mr. Jeronimo Marcos Gerard Rivero 675 - 67.5 67.5
Mr. Jaime Castellanos Borrego 67.5 136 203.5 203.5
Mr. Fernando Rodés Vila 67.5 72 139.5 139.5
Mr. José Manuel Entrecanales Domecq 67.5 - 67.5 67.5
Mr. Juan Ignacio Entrecanales Franco 67.5 67.5 67.5
Mr. Juan Carlos Garay Ibargaray 67.5 136 203.5 203.5
Ms. Belén Villalonga Morenés 67.5 - 67.5 67.5
Mr. Javier Entrecanales Franco 67.5 81 148.5 148.5
(*) Ms. Maria del Carmcn Becerril Martinez 25.8 13.7 395 103.5
Ms. Ana Sainz de Vicufia Bemberg 67.5 45 112.5 112.5
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(**) Ms. Karen Christiana Figueres Olsen 41.7
TOTAL 742.5

(*) Directors leaving the Board in 2017
(**) Directors joining the Board in 2017

565.7

41.7
1308.2

The remuneration paid to Directors for the performance of senior management executive
functions and for being members of the Board was 16,027 and 3,277 thousand euros in

2017 and 2016, respectively.

With regards to long term variable remuneration linked to Company shares following
what was established in the Plan 2014 regulations and based on an evaluation of the
results obtained during the three year period from 2014 to 2016, following a proposal by
the Appointments and Remuneration Committee the Board of Directors approved to
deliver a total of 104,096 shares to Executive Directors in 2017, with a fair value of 7,277

thousand euros.

In addition, a non-executive director that left her position on 18 May 2017 had a
professional services contract signed with the Acciona Group for which she received 63

thousand euros in 2017.

In 2014, the Company implemented a savings plan related to a term life assurance,
permanent disability in the degrees of total, absolute and grand invalidity, and death
(“Savings Plan”) aimed solely and exclusively at the Company’s Executive Directors.

The basic characteristics of the plan are as follows:

a) Itis a social welfare system based on a defined contribution.

b) It is a system endowed externally through the payment by the Company of annual
premiums to an insurance company in favour of the Participant for the coverage of
survival and the risk contingencies, i.e., (i) death and (ii) permanent disability in the

degrees established in the Regulations.

¢) Should the Participants cease to occupy positions as Executive Directors of Acciona
for any reason, the Company shall cease to pay the premiums to the Savings Plan
on the date on which they indisputably cease to hold their position, without
prejudice to any economic rights recognised to Participants.

d) The payment of the Benefit arising out of the Savings Plan will be made directly by
the insurance entity to the Participants, net of any corresponding withholdings or
payments on account of personal Income Tax that may be applicable in each case
and payable by the beneficiary of the Benefit. For the rest of the contingencies, the
payment of the Benefit will also be made directly by the insurance entity to any

entitied parties.

e) The status of Participant in the Savings Plan will be lost should any of the following
circumstances arise: i) occurrence of any of the risk contingencies covered and
collection of the Benefit; ii) attainment of the age of 65 years; ii1) removal from the
position of Executive Director of Acciona for any reason other than those indicated

above.

[

1330.5

L R
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The contributions to the Savings Plan in 2017 in favour of the Executive Directors came
to 5,125 thousand euros. These contributions included 75% of the fixed annual salary and
an additional amount arising from extraordinary contributions to the Savings Plan related
to part of the variable remuneration in 2017.

The global remuneration related to rights accumulated by the Directors in this respect
amounts to 12,768 thousand euros.

No obligations have been entered into in connection with pensions with respect to former
and current members of the Board of Directors. Nor have any advances, credits or
guarantees been given in favour of the members of the Board of Directors, except as
indicated in this note.

In financial years 2017 and 2016 the directors of the Parent did not receive any
remuneration for being members of other boards and/or senior management of Group
Companices.

The remuneration of members of the board of directors of Acciona, S.A. was, in thousand
euros, 17,263 and 4,623 in financial years 2017 and 2016, respectively.

The Board of Directors of Acciona, S.A. approved on 26 February 2015, upon proposal
by the Appointments and Remuneration Committee, amendment to the “Plan for Delivery
of Shares and options to Senior Management of Acciona and its group” Regulations,
preparing new regulations that affect the executive directors and the Group’s executives.
The main characteristics are described below.

B. Senior Management

Senior Management includes those people forming the top two levels of the Acciona
group’s management and the Corporate Internal Audit Director. This classification is for
information purposes only and without prejudice to their specific employment
relationship.

The remuneration of the Company’s General Managers and people discharging similar
duties, excluding those who are simultancously members of the Board of Directors
(whose remuneration is disclosed above), and bearing in mind that this remuneration is
taken from the perspective of Parent and subsidiaries, in 2017 and 2016 is summarised as
follows:

Type of remuneration 2017 2016
Number of people 35 39
Remuneration (thousand euros) 21,551 24,672

The figures for 2016 appearing as remuneration (thousand euros) included the amounts
related to compensation paid to the executives that left the company every year, for
termination of their employment relationship, as well as the money settlement for
differences in the options exercised during the year. In 2017 no settlements were paid to
Senior Management.
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The civil liability premium for directors and executives as paid in 2017 amounted to1,211
thousand euros.

Plan for delivery of shares and performance shares

The General Shareholders’ Meeting held on 24 June 2014 approved the following
agreement:

A) To extend the term of validity of the Shares and Options Delivery Plan to Acciona
group’s management, including Executive Directors, as was approved by the General
Shareholders’ Meeting of Acciona, S.A. on 4 June 2009, for application in financial years
2014 to 2020, and to increase the maximum number of shares available by 200,000
shares.

B) To authorise the Board of Directors of the Company so that it may, to all the extend
required by law and upon proposal by the Appointments and Remuneration Committee,
amend the Plan Regulations under the terms and conditions that the Board considers
convenient, establishing delivery conditions and times, accrual periods, allocation
criteria and limits and any other aspect that the Board considers relevant, in order to
align further the long-term interests of the Company’s Executive Directors and other
executives of the Acciona Group with those of the shareholders of Acciona, S.A., and thus
boost their motivation in the attainment of higher value and long-term stability for the
group, and consolidate their loyally and permanence in the Group.

Pursuant to that authority, on 26 February 2015 the Board of Directors approved, upon
proposal by the Appointments and Remuneration Committee, to amend the Plan
Regulations, drawing up a new one whose term of validity covers the six-year period from
2014 to 2019, both inclusive. In addition, and making use of the approval of the General
Shareholders’ Meeting on 18 May 2017, following a proposal from the Appointments and
Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors approved an additional amendment to
the Plan Regulations at their meeting held on 14 December 2017 with the aim of adapting
it to corporate governance best practices regarding deferral, malus and clawback on the
variable remuneration of executive directors, and to the principles and guidelines
contained in the Directors Remuneration Policy approved by the General Shareholders’
Meeting.

The main characteristics are as follows:

A) Purpose of the Plan:

The purpose of the 2014 Plan for Delivery of Shares and “Performance Shares” is to
remunerate management, including the Executive Directors of Acciona in such a manner

as to boost the attainment of strategic business objectives to the benefit of the Company’s
shareholders, and the loyalty and permanence of executives.

B) Strategic indicators and objectives to achieve

Achievement of objectives will be based on business strategic indicators, which have been
defined by the Board of Directors for financial years ranging from 2014 to 2019.
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C) Plan beneficiaries

C.1. — Executive Directors

For Executive Directors, it is contemplated for the first time that they may have
“performance shares™ annually allocated by the Board of Directors. This does not give
them the right to acquire the related shares (except where so provided by the Regulations)
but it is an indication by the Board of Directors of the number of shares that the Board
forecasts that can be allocated to these Executive Directors at a later date if two conditions
are fulfilled: their permanence and the attainment of Acciona Group’s long-term strategic
goals as established by the Board as a requisite for the Executive Directors to receive
shares.

Reference period: The reference period of the business strategic indicators will be the
2014-2019 six-year period, although, for allocation of “performance shares”, the whole
period from the start of the 2014 Plan application period to the end of the previous
financial year will be considered.

“Performance shares™ allocation: Upon completion of each financial year, the Board of
Directors may assess the extent to which the long-term strategic objectives have been
achieved up to that point.

The final allocation of treasury shares to Executive Directors will take place (a) at the end
of the whole 2014 Plan period (in 2020) upon consideration of the assessment made for
the whole 2014-2019 period and (b) at a midpoint milestone, in 2017, upon completion
of the first three 2014-2016 financial years, upon consideration of the assessment made
on the first 2014-2016 three-year period.

Based on the interest of the company and if circumstances so advise for Acciona and its
group in the opinion of the Board of Directors, upon consideration of the recommendation
from the Appointments and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors may put
off to 2020 the delivery to the Executive Directors of the final shares allocated in 2017
(in relation to financial years 2014, 2015 and 2016), making the delivery of these shares
coincide with the delivery of the shares that, if appropriate, should be delivered to the
executive Directors at the end of the whole 2014 Plan period (in 2020).

Permanence condition: Delivery of the shares finally allocated to Executive Directors is
dependent on the fact that, up to 31 March of the year when the shares are to be delivered,
the Executive Director has not ceased to perform his/her senior management duties in
Acciona or its Group for reasons attributable to the Director in question.
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In no event may the number of allocated shares thus quantified exceed, together with
those allocated under the 2014 Plan, the maximum number available approved by the
GM.

The actual share delivery date in accordance with the provisions in the preceding sections
shall be determined by the Board of Directors or their delegates, and in any case, it shall
be done after the General Shareholders’ Meeting of the year in which the shares are to be
delivered has taken place. Delivery of 20% of the shares that the Executive Directors have
a right to receive shall be subjected to a minimum deferral period of one (1) year, and its
accrual shall be subject to their permanence as an Executive Director as detailed in the
Regulations, and on there not being any causes that in the opinion of the external auditors
could lead to a material restatement of the Acciona Group’s consolidated financial
statements, as determined by the Board of Directors following a proposal by the
Appointments and Remuneration Committee, except when this arising from an
amendment to accounting standards.

Shares delivered in 2017 are subject to an option for Acciona to buy them back: Treasury
shares transferred to Executive Directors in 2017 (in relation to financial years 2014, 2015
and 2016) have been subjected to Acciona’s right to buy them back, a right that can be
exercised if the Executive Director acquiring the shares ceases to perform his/her senior
management duties in Acciona or its group before 31 March 2020 for breach of his/her
contractual obligations or resignation of his/her own free will.

C.2. — Group’s Executives

For the other beneficiaries that are not executive directors, the Board of Directors will
approve, upon considering proposal by the Appointments and Remuneration Committee,
the amount for separate variable remuneration to be paid through delivery of the
Acciona’s treasury shares allocated for each financial year to each executive that benefits
from the 2014 Plan other than Executive Directors.

The allocation may be implemented through a number of treasury shares or in a cash
amount. In the latter case, the equivalent number of shares will be based on the closing
price on the last day of trading of March of the year when the Board of Directors
determines the allocation. In no event will the number of allocated shares thus quantified
exceed, together with the other shares allocated under the 2014 Plan, the maximum
number approved by the GM.

Treasury shares transferred to these Beneficiaries are subject to Acciona’s right to buy
them back, a right that can be exercised if the beneficiary acquiring the shares ceases
his/her professional engagement with Acciona or its Group before 31 March of the third
year following the year when delivery takes place, for reasons attributable to the
Beneficiary. The Board of Directors may extend to a reduced group of executives the
“performance share” and/or shares allocation system established for executive directors,
with the changes as can be proposed by the Appointments and Remuneration Committee
regarding interim allocation, tax system, objectives, midpoint milestones and delivery
times, with the purpose of increasing their motivation in the attainment of higher value
and long-term stability for the group, as well as consolidating their loyalty and
permanence in the Group.



TRANSLATION

The 2014 Plan does not provide for the possible sale of shares delivered in order to pay
the tax incurred by the Beneficiary as a result of such delivery. The cost of the payment
on account of the 2014 Plan performance shall not be passed on to the beneficiaries, and
the Company shall assume the tax cost that this payment may have on the personal income
tax of the beneficiaries with the established limits.

D) Number of shares available for the Plan

Initially, the maximum number of shares that could be allocated to the Beneficiaries in
application of the 2014 Plan was fixed at 258,035, although it could be increased by
resolution of the General Shareholders’ Meeting.

In this respect, the General Shareholders” Meeting held on 11 June 2015, 10 May 2016
and 18 May 2017 agreed to increase the maximum number of shares available for the
“2014-2019 Plan for Delivery of Shares and Performance Shares™” by 100,000 for each
year, without affecting later increases if so proposed by the Board of Directors and
approved by the General Shareholders’ Meeting.

At the close of 2017 the maximum number of shares that could be delivered to implement
the Plan, was 353,240, after 35,917 were used in 2017 for delivery to executives other
than Executive Directors, and 104,096 shares were used for delivery to Executive
Directors. Without prejudice to the foregoing, in 2017, 26,025 shares have been assigned
to have a delivery deferred for a period of three years on a straight-line basis in
implementation of the Plan.

E) Recipients

The annual number of Recipients shall not exceed 100.

Plan to replace variable remuneration for shares

Upon proposal by the Appointments and Remuneration Committee, given the limited
number of Beneficiaries of the former Plan, with the purpose of furthering and extending
the objectives for building loyalty and retaining executives to the Group’s executives, on
26 March 2015 the Board of Directors approved the “Plan to Replace Variable
Remuneration for Acciona shares, aimed to Acciona and its group’s management” (the
Replacement Plan), excluding executive directors; the main characteristics of the plan are
the following:

Aim: To retain and motivate the management team effectively and achieve higher
alignment of their interests with those of the Company and its Group.

Initial duration: Six years (2014 to 2019).

Purpose: To offer discretionally the option of replacing or swapping, in whole or in part,
variable remuneration in cash for Company shares to certain Acciona and its group’s
executives, according to a swap equation to be determined each year. In 2015, 2016, and
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2017, the swap equation approved carried an incentive of 25% over the variable
remuneration replaced.

Beneficiaries: The executives that the Board of Directors determines of its own free will.
Executive Directors are excluded from this Plan.

Restrictions on the shares delivered: In general terms, the shares delivered cannot be
(a) disposed of, encumbered or used under any title (except for mortis causa), and (b) no
option right can be set up over them, or any other right limiting ownership or as security,
until after 31 March of the third year following the year in which the shares in question
were delivered to the Beneficiary.

Treasury shares transferred to these Beneficiaries, corresponding to the incentive and not
to the portion of the shares related to the replaced remuneration as per the amendment
approved on 29 February 2016 by the Board of Directors, are subject to Acciona’s right
to buy them back, a right that can be exercised if the Beneficiary acquiring the shares
ceases his/her professional engagement with Acciona or its Group before 31 March of the
third year following the year when delivery takes place, for reasons attributable to the

Beneficiary.

The Acciona share price to be taken as benchmark to determine the swap equation will
be the closing price on the last day of trading of March of the year when the Board of
Directors determines the allocation of the replacement option.

SHAREHOLDERS’ PLAN

The Board of Directors, following proposal by the Appointments and Remuneration
Committee, with the purpose of facilitating participation in the company’s shareholdings,
approved on 28 February 2017 a new Plan that makes it possible to redistribute part of
the variable and/or fixed money remuneration with the limit of 12,000 euros per year
through delivery of shares in the Company in accordance with the current regulatory
framework, which is favourable in terms of the fiscal treatment of this type of plan.

The plan is voluntary, and it offers all employees with fiscal residence in Spain the
opportunity of participating in the company’s results by becoming shareholders. This Plan
does not affect executive directors as their relationship is mercantile and not based on an
employment contract. The shares were measured at the closing quotation price on 13
April 2017.

Finally, the number of shares delivered to Beneficiaries other than executive directors (47
Beneficiaries), under the Plan for Delivery of Shares /Performance Shares, in
consideration of their dedication and performance in financial year 2017, was 35,917
shares at the fair value of 2,678 thousand euros.

Given that this plan accrues on a three-year basis, one third of the fair values mentioned
above is reflected in “Staff costs” on the accompanying income statement at 31
December. The other two thirds will be recognised on the income statements for financial
years 2018 and 2019.
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As regards Executive Directors, one allocation and delivery of shares took place in 2017;
104,096 shares were delivered to Executive Directors and 26,025 shares have been
assigned with a deferred delivery on a straight-line basis over a three-year period.

Finally, in application of the Replacement Plan, 22,086 shares in the Company were
delivered in 2017, at the fair value of 1,651 thousand euros, to 37 executives of Acciona
and its Group, in payment of part of their variable remuneration in cash in 2016.

The Company determined the fair value of the goods and services received by reference
to the fair value of the equity instruments assigned.

The “Plan for delivery to Senior Management™ replaced by the plan described in the
paragraphs above established the replacement of shares with stock option rights for
Acciona, S.A. ordinary shares. The options granted one year as part of the Plan could be
exercised, in whole or in part, in one go or more, within the three-year period from (a) 31
March of the third calendar year following the year when they were allocated and (b) 31
March of the third year following the start of the period (the “Exercising Period™). The
movement in 2017 in the number of options and weighted average of the prices to exercise
the stock options was the following:

Strike Price
2017 N .of - Weighted
options Average
(in euros)

Existing at the start of the financial year 68,872 60.31
Awarded during the period - -
Cancelled during the period -- -
Exercised during the period (45,150) 46.15
Lapsed during the period - -
Existing at the end of the period 23,721 63.25
Sus_ceptlble of being exercised at the end of the 23721 6325
period

As regards the options existing at the end of the financial year, it should be indicated that
the strike price ranged between 56.21 and 66.73 euros and that the weighted average of
the remaining life of the contract was 0.8 years.

The valuation methodology applied is based on the Enhanced FASB 123 method
(Accounting for Stock Based Compensation), which is in turn based on standard “fair
value” methods of the CRR binomial type with certain modifications. The model consists
in estimating the value of the option by trinomial tree methods and then adjusting this
value by considering that the executive in question may leave the company during the
maturity period or may exercise the option when the share reaches a multiple of the strike
value. The market inputs applied for valuation purposes are the closing price of the
reference share on the date of issue of the plan and the strike price established for the
exercise of the option, the track record of the reference share in terms of volatility
calculated as the standard deviation from the quotation yields for a period equal to the
duration of the plan and the risk-free interest rate.

Detail of the individuals who held Senior Management positions in the Group (taking the
Parent and subsidiaries into account as Senior Management) in 2017 was as follows:
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Name or registered name

Alcazar Viela, Jesis

Ancin Viguiristi, Joaquin
Antinez Cid, Isabel

Arilla de Juana, Carlos Maria
Beltran Nuficz, Ranl

Callejo Martinez, Alfonso
Carrion Lopez de 1a Garma, Macarena
Castilla Camara, Luis
Castillo Garcia, Joaquin
Claudio Vizquez, Adalberto
Corella Hurtado, Olga

Cruz Palacios, Juan Manuel

Diaz-Caneja Rodriguez, José Luis
Ezpeleta Puras, Arantza

Fajardo Gerez, Fernando

Farto Paz, José Maria

Fernandez Lopez, Roberto
Figueroa Gomez de Salazar, José Julio
Guticrrez Abarquero, David
Jiménez Scrrano, Ramoén

Mateo Alcala, Rafael

Mollinedo Chocano, José Joaquin
Moreno Lorente, Huberto José
Muro-Lara Girod, Juan

Otazu Aguerri, Juan

Quero Gil, Mario

Rego Prieto, Oscar Luis
Rodriguez Hernandez, José Luis
Santamaria-Paredes Castillo, Vicente
Silva Ferrada, Juan Ramoén

Soto Conde, Antonio

Tejero Santos, José Angel
Terceiro Mateos, José Manuel
Vega-Penichet Lopez, Jorge

Vicente Pelegrini, Justo

Detail of the individuals who held Senior Management positions in the Group (taking the
Parent and subsidiaries into account as Senior Management) in 2016 was as follows:

Name or registered name

Alcdzar Viela, Jesis

Ancin Viguiristi, Joaquin
Antunez Cid. Isabel

Arilla de Juana, Carlos Maria
Beltran Nifiez, Raal

Blanco Dic¢gucz, José Luis

Position(s) held

General Manager — Acciona Infrastructure - Latin America

General Manager — Acciona Energy - Engineering & Construction

General Manager — Acciona Property

General Manager - Economic and Financial Area

Internal Audit Manager

General Manager - Corporate Resources

General Manager - Office of the Chairman

CEO - Acciona Infrastructure

Area General Manager - Acciona Energy Development

Area General Manager - Acciona Infrastructure Contract Management and Studies

General Manager - Acciona Infrastructure - Economic Control Area

General Manager - Acciona Infrastructure - Labour Relations, OHS and

Sustainability

Area General Manager - Acciona Water

General Manager — Technology & Innovation

Area General Manager - Acciona Infrastructure — Australia and South-East Asia

Area General Manager - Acciona Infrastructure — Gaticia

Area General Manager - Acciona Infrastructure - Corporate Resources

Arca General Manager — Legal Services

Area General Manager - Fiscal

Area General Manager — Acciona Industrial and Acciona Service

CEO - Acciona Energy

General Manager - Institutional Relations, Sustainability and Brand

General Manager — Acciona Infrastructure - Construction Area

General Manager — Corporate Development and Relations with Investors

Production Area General Manager - Aceiona Energy

Area General Manager — Trasmediterranea

Procurement Area General Manager - Acciona Infrestructure

Area General Manager — Other Businesses and Investces

Area General Manager — Complianee

Area General Manager — Sustainability

Area General manager - Grupo Bodegas Palacio 1894

Area General Manager - Economic Oversight and Finance

Area General Manager - Acciona Infrastructure - Economics and Finance

General Sccretary

Area General Manager - Acciona Construction - Spain, Portugal and Africa

Position(s) held

General Manager — Acciona Infrastructure - Latin America

General Manager — Acciona Energy — Engineering & Construction

General Manager — Acciona Property

General Manager - Economic and Financial Area

Internal Audit Manager

General Manager - Acciona Windpower
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Name or registered name

Cabanillas Alonso, Pio

Callejo Martinez, Alfonso

Carrion Lopez de la Garma, Macarena
Castilla Cdmara, Luis

Castillo Garcia, Joaquin

Claudio Vazquez, Adalberto

Corella Hurtado, Olga

Cruz Palacios, Juan Manuel

Diaz-Caneja Rodriguez, Jos¢ Luis
Ezpeleta Puras, Arantza

Fajardo Gerez, Fernando

Farto Paz, José Maria

Fernandez Lopez, Roberto
Figueroa Gomez de Salazar, José Julio
Gutierrez Abarquero, David
Jiménez Serrano, Ramén

Luna Butz, Walter

Mateo Alcala, Rafael

Mollinedo Chocano, José Joaquin
Moreno Lorente, Huberto José
Muro-Lara Girod, Juan

Otazu Aguerri, Juan

Quero Gil, Mario

Rego Prieto, Oscar Luis

Rivas Anoro, Félix

Rodriguez Hernandez, José Luis
Santamaria-Paredes Castillo, Vicente
Silva Ferrada, Juan Ramon

Soto Conde, Antonio

Tejero Santos, Jos¢ Angel
Terceiro Mateos, José Manuel
Vega-Penichet Lopez, Jorge

Vicente Pelegrint, Justo

C. Auditor

Position(s) held

General Manager - Corporate Image and Global Marketing

General Manager - Corporate Resources

General Manager - Office of the Chairman

CEQ - Acciona Infrastructure

Area General Manager - Acciona Energy Development

General Manager Civil Works - Acciona Infrastructure

General Manager - Acciona Infrastructure - Economic Control Area

General Manager - Acciona Infrastructure - Labour Relations, Environment Quality
Plan and Sustainability

Area General Manager - Acciona Water

General Manager — Technology & Innovation

Area General Manager - Acciona Infrastructure — Australia and South-East Asia
Area General Manager - Acciona Infrastructure — Galicia

Area General Manager - Acciona Infrastructure - Corporate Resources
Area General Manager — Legal Services

Area General Manager — Fiscal

Area General Manager — Acciona Industrial and Acciona Service

CEQ - Acciona Energy

CEOQO - Acciona Energy

General Manager - Institutional Rclations, Sustainability and Brand

Area General Manager- Railway & Tunnels, Acciona Infrastructures
General Manager - Corporate Development and Relations with Investors
Production Area General Manager - Acciona Energy

Area General Manager — Trasmediterrianea

Procurement Area General Manager - Acciona Infrestructure

Area General Manager - Procurement, [nnovation, Quality and the Environment
Area General Manager — Other Businesses and Investees

Area General Manager — Compliance

Area General Manager — Sustainability

Area General manager - Grupo Bodegas Palacio 1894

Area General Manager - Economic Oversight and Finance

Area General Manager - Acciona Infrastructure - Economics and Finance
General Secretary

Area General Manager - Acciona Infrastructure Spain and Construction Affica,
Sweden and Emirates

In 2017, the fees for financial audit and other services provided by the new auditor of the
Group’s consolidated financial statements, KPMG Auditores, S.L., or by firms in the
KPMG organisation (Deloitte, S.L. in 2016), and the fees billed by the auditors of the
financial statements of the consolidated companies, and by companies related to these
auditors as a result of a relationship of control, common ownership or common

management, were as follows:

Services provided by the

Services provided by other

main auditor audit firms
2017 2016 (*) 2017 2016
Auditing services 3,694 3,282 752 1,654
Other assurance services 961 383 560 1,037
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Total audit and related services 4,655 3,665 1312 2,691
Tax advisory services 153 807 1.235 790
Other services 2,059 3,537 5.019 3.998

Total professional services 2,212 4344 6,254 4,788

(*)Deloitte, S.L. was the main Auditor during 2016.

With regards to the main auditor, “other assurance services” includes mainly advisory
services in the scope of sustainability and corporate social responsibility, financial due
diligence services, services to issue “comfort letters”, and reports on agreed procedures.
The concept of “tax advisory services” includes mainly fees for advisory services on
transfer pricing, corporate tax and indirect taxation documentation. Finally, “other
services” mainly includes advisory services the Group’s management of expatriate staff,
valuation services, advice regarding information security and information technology and
business consultancy services.

35.- Other disclosures concerning the Board of Directors

Pursuant to Article 229 of Royal Legislative Decree 1/2010, of 2 July, whereby the
consolidated text of the Capital Companies Act was approved, at 31 December 2017,
according to the information available to the Company and notified by Directors and their
related parties, they were not involved in any situations of conflict, whether direct or
indirect, with the Company’s interests.

36. - Trade and other accounts payable

At 31 December 2017, the balance of trade and other payables came to 2,199 million
euros, and to 2,297 million euros in 2016; as a significant variation under this heading it
should be noticed the transfer of the Subgroup Trasmediterranea to “held for sale” for the
amount of 74 million euros.

As detailed in Note 14, the amount corresponding to customer advances recorded at the
close of the financial year 2017 and 2016 under this heading amount to 658 and 944

million euros, respectively, mainly from the infrastructure division.

Average period for payment to suppliers

The table below details the information required by Final Provision Two of Act 31/2014,
of 3 December, as prepared following application of Resolution dated 29 January 2016
by the Spanish Accounting and Audit Institute. This information refers only to Spain,
where this regulation is applicable:

Average payment period and payments
made and payments outstanding at the 2017 2016
balance sheet date in Spain

Days Days
Average period of payment to suppliers 38 42
Paid operations ratio 34 40
Unpaid operations ratio 60 55
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(thousand euros) Amount Amount
Total payments made 2,655,262 2,344,181
Total payments outstanding (*) 448,834 411,792

(*) There are "outstanding payments™ at 31 December 2017 recorded under “liabilities associated with
assets held for sale” for the amount of 56,205 thousand euros.

The “Average period of payment to suppliers” refers to the time that elapses from delivery
of goods or provision of services by a supplier to payment of the operation.

The “Average period of payment to suppliers” is calculated as the quotient whose
numerator is the result of adding the paid operations ratio by the total amount of payments
made to suppliers plus the operations outstanding ratio by the total amount of payments
outstanding and whose denominator is the total amount of payments made and payments
outstanding.

The “Paid operations ratio” is calculated as the quotient whose numerator is the sum of
the products related to the amounts paid, by the number of payment days (calendar days
elapsed as from the time when the period begins to run up to actual payment of the
operation) and whose denominator is the total amount of payments made.

And the “Unpaid operations ratio” refers to the quotient whose numerator is the sum of
the products related to the amounts outstanding, by the number of payment outstanding
days (calendar days elapsed as from the time when the period begins to run up to the
closing of annual accounts) and whose denominator is the total amount of payments
outstanding.
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APPENDIX I

GROUP COMPANIES

The subsidiaries of ACCIONA, S.A. considered to be Group companies were treated as
such in accordance with [FRS. The companies fully consolidated in 2017, and the
information thereon at 31 December 2017, were the following (amounts in thousand

euros):

. - . .- Effective . Carryisg
/ / N -
Company Aadit Locatioa fain activity Share % Holder of interest amopat
21 Nenn Seotin £ , S ) oy gy, TUDZIOUR Acciona .
3240934 Nova Scotm € ompary Canada Emergy JREAZE TS R able Canada 292
Subgroup Acciona
Acciona Wind Frergy Camada Inc. - Canada Energy 66.67% Faergia 5246
Intermacionat
Acciona & Sogex Facility : . Subgroup Acciona -
Services LLC A Oman Urian Servioes TOU% Eacility Services 8
. et s - i, SEIETOED ACCHODR
Acciona Agea Adelade Pry Lid A Awnstralia Water Treatmey 10U 6% Asoa tia 7
Accm.na Agua Australia A Aastratia Water T ) 160,008 Subgroup Acciona 5
Proprietary, Lid ua
ary
Acciona Agua Brasil - Traiamento Brazil Water Treatment 1O0.055% Subgromp Acciona 2544
Dec Agua Ltd Agua
Acciona Agua Canada Inc. B Canada W ater Treatsnert HELY i!-::imtﬁp Accwona 7
A.cqona Agua India Private e India Water Treatment 00,0055 Subgroup Acciora 1257
Limited Agua
Acciona Agua Internacional scrati 5 . Subgroup Acciona
Australia Pty, Ltd c A = Water Trea 160.60% Agua lntemnacional -
. . i . - " . Subgroup Acciena -
Acciona Agua [merazcronat Inc. Canada Water Treatment HW.00%% Apua In ional 7
Acciona Agua {ntemacional, S L. - Madrid Water Treatment 00 00% f\gr;a up Acciona 4
Acciona Agua México. S.R L. De _ Mevico Water Treatment 160.060% Subgroup Acciona 6.061
C.V. Agua
Accwna Agua Servicros S.L. A Madrid Water Treatment 10 0% A u; p A 51130
Subgroup
Acciona Agua, S A A Madrid Water Treatment rop gpes,  COTPOTRCHR 284285
Acciona
Iafraestructuras
R . ’» Subgroup Acctona
gg;‘:jﬂg%’;’;se Tviees A Germany Logistics Services 100.00% Airpont Services 25
Frankfart
Acciona Airport Services . - o . Subgroop Acciena
Barcelona, S.L — Madrid Logistics Services 100.00% Airport Services 3
Acciona Airpori Services _ . - . Subgroup Accwna
Canarias, S.1. Madnd Logistics Services 0000% . ot Services 3
. . e Subgzroup Acciona
g\““’"a Aifrport Services Chile, —  Chile Logistics Services 100.00%  Servicios Urhanos 774
pa y Medio Ambiente
Acciona Airpori Services Este, . e . Subgroup Acciona
S1 — Madrid Logtstics Services 160.00% Airport Services 3
Acciona Atrport Services . ) L . . i _
Frankfurt, Gmbh A Germany Logrstics Services 100.0% Accuona 5.637
g\tl:ciona Airport Services Madrid, _ Madrid [ ogictins Core inne o N\PL Mgugrl;up A}.Ciona 3
S Tvhees . ' T
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Conipaay

Acciona Airport Services Norte,
SL

Acciona Airport Services Sur, S.L

Acciona Airport Services, S AL

Acciona Biocombustibles, § AL

Acciona Bivrmasa

Accivns Cerro Negre, 8.4,

Acciona Concesiones Australia
Pry Limited

Acciona Concesiones Chile, S.A.

Acciona Concesiongs, S.L.
Acciona CORcessions
Manasgerrent Ine.

Acciona Constreccion Apstralia,

Pty Ltd.

Acciona Construccion, § A

Acciona Constrection Holdings
Pry Lud

Acciona Constraction Maroc,
SARL

Accwaa Constrection Philippmes
inc.

Acciona Constraction USA Corp.

Acciona Copiapd, S.A

ACCIONA CORPORACION,
5.A.

Acciona Desareolio Corporativo,
S.A.

Acciona Do Brasil, Lida.

Acciona Epergiz Atlanta [ S 1.

Acciona Energia Atlanta 11, S.1..

Acciona Encrgia Atlanta I, S 1.

Acctona Enerzia Chife

Acciona Energia Chile Holdmgs,
SA

Aveiena Erergls Costa Riva, 5.4

Acciona Energia Global ltalia,
SR

Aot

A

A

L crstiom

Meadrd

Madrid

Madrid

Navarra

¥

Navarra

Chite

Auwstralia

Chile

Madrnd

Canada

Madrid

Asstratia

Morocco

Philippizes

USA

Chile

Medrid

Madnd

Brazi

Madrid

Madnd

hiadrd

Chile
Chile

Cosin Rica

Safm wrtivity

Logistics Services

Logistics Services

Logistics Services

Energy
Enerzy

treatment/Consiruction

Concession Operation

Holding Company

Holdieg Company

Holding Company

Construction

Construction

Constroction
Coastruction
Conswectin:

Construction

Water

treatment/Construction

lostr . izl

Instrumenial

Holdmg Company

Energy

Energy

Energy

Energy

Energy

Energy

Encrgy
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Effective
Share %

1GD.00%

100.00%

160 .80%

106.007%

108.60%

[REERIIPN

100.00%

100.00%

100.(H%

1000

82.40%

100.06%

100.00%

O G0%

160.00%

100.60%

[EEARY ) )

100.000

HH.60%

66.67%

6667

66.6T%

160897

108.65%

&

100.00%

Heider of interest

Subgroup Acciona
Sewvicios Urbanos

Subgroup Acciona
Adrport Services
Subgroup Acciona
Servicios Urbanos
vy Medio Ambiente
Subgroup Acciona
Energia

Subgroup Acciona
Energia

Subgroup Acciona
Constraccion

Subgroup Acciona
Coveesiones

Subgroup Acciona
Constrnccion

Acciona

Subgroup Acciona
Cozcesiones

Sebgroup Geotech
Holding

Subgroup
Corporacitn
Acciona
Infraestruchuras
Subgroup Geotech
Holding

Subgroup Acciona
Construccidn
Subgromp Acciona
Comstraccion
Subgroup Acciona
Constroceidn

Subgroup Acciona
Constraccién

Subgrozp Fmanzas
v {artera 2
Subgroup Finanzas
v Carters 7
Subgroep Accioas
Cosstraccion

Subgroup Acciona
Energia
Isgernacional
Subgronp Acciona
Energia
Internacional
Subgroup Acciona
Erncrgia
Intesnacional
Subgroup Acciona
Eneypia Giobal
Subgroup Acciona
Enerzin Glohal
Subgronp Accipaa
Energia Global
Subgroup Acciona
Energia Global

Carryiag
amount

25,726

25,724

12,871

26.003

8,419

59.060

4,142

332227

127442

18,927

479

3,347
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Company

Acciona Energia Global, S.L.

Acuiona Erenzia [ntevepcwomal,
Acciona Encrgia México Globat
e

Acciona Energia México. St

Acciona Epergia Servicios México
SDeRiDeC.V.

Acciona Energia, S.A.

Acciona Erergija D.O.O.
Acciona Energy North Aménca
Corp.

Acciona Energy Australia Global,

Pty. Ltid
Acciona Energy Canada Global
Corp

Acciona Encrgy Development
Canada Inc

Acciona Energy Global Poland
Sp. 2.0.0.

Acciona Encrgy India Private
Limited

Acciona Energy Korea, Inc

Acciona Energy Oceania
Construction Pty Ltd

Acciona Energy Oceania Financial
Services Ply, Ltd

Acciona Energy Oceania Ply. Lid

Acciona Energy Poland
Maintenance Services Sp. Z 0.0

Acciona Energy Poland Sp. Z.0.0

Acciona Energy South Africa
(Proprictary ) Limited

Acciona Energy South Alrica
Global (Pty) Lud

Acciona Energy USA Globalt LLC

Acciona Engincering Qatar

Acciona Edlica Calabriz, St

Acciona Eolica Cesa lialia, SR

Acciona Folica Cesa, 5.1

Acciona Edlica De Castilta La
Mancha, S.L.

Acciona Edlica De Galicia, S A

Andit Location

A Navarra

A Navarmra

A Mexico

A Mexioo

A Nexico

A Navarra

- Croatia

A UusA

A Australia

— Canada

- (anada

A Poland

A India

_ South
Korea

- Australia

A Amstraliz

A Australia

A Poland

A Poland
South

A Africa
South

A Africa

A USA

A Qatar

- Ttaly

A Lialy

- Madrid

A Madrnd

A Lugo

Maim activity

Energy

Energy

Energy

Eoergy

Energy

Eoergy

Energy

Enerpy

Energy

Energy

Energy
Enersy
Energy

Epergy

Enerpy

Energy

Energy

Energy

Energy

Enersy

Egergy

Engincering

Energy

Enerpy

Eperey

Enerpy

- Page’

Effective
Share %

100007

66.6T%

106 (09

66.67%

100 3%

100.007%

100.0¢%

66.67%

100.00%

100.00%

103.00%

100.00%

1668006

106.00%

100.60%

100.00%,

66.67%

10G.00%

66.67%

66.675%

100.060%

1 .00%

100.00%

100.00%

66.6T%%

100.00%

100.00%

~——Rrhromr

Carrviag

Hodder of mterest
amount

Subgroup Acciona
Epergia

Subgrowp Acciona
Energia

Subgroup Acciona
Energia Global
Sofverowp Acciona
Energia
Intermacional
Subgroop Acciona
Eaergia Mevco
Global

Subgroup Corp.
Acciona Energias
Repoyables
Subgroump Acciona
Energia Global
Subgroup Acciona
Energia
imermacional
Subgroup Acciona
Energta Global
Subgroup Acciona
Energia Global
Subgroup Acciona
Energia Global —
Canada

Subgroup Acciona
Energia Global
Subsroup Acciona
Evergia Global
Subgroup Acciona
Enerniz Global
Suhgronp .Sccrwna
Energia Global
Australia
Subgroep Acciona
Emergia Global 34
Aunstralia
Subgroup Acciona
Irerpacional
Subgroup Acciona
Energia Global 25
Polanad

Subgrosp Accioma
Energia
Internacional
Subproup Accrona
Energia
Internacional

92 307
324,000

7.632

3916

1.146,380

224,438

2267

1.087

162736

46,968

34.852

Subgroup Acciona
Energia Global
Subgroup Acciona
Energiz Giobal
Subgroup Acciona a7
Ingenteria
Subgroep Acciona
Energia Global
Italia

Subgroup Acciona
Energia 20572
Internacional

Subgrou -
Ceatesalas 93,938

Subgroup Alabe 100

10.823

128.715

2,723

o E.m:rgl.qs o 27716 . ’)
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Comgany
Acciona Edlica Levamte S1.

Acciona Edlica Portusal
Unspersonal, Lda.

Accrona FPC North América 11O
Acctona Facility Services
Automocion Catabanya, S.L.

Acciona Factlity Services Canada
Lid

Acciona Facidity Services Este,
S.i.

Acciona Facility Services
Germany Gmbh

Acciona Faoiisy Services Holland
BV,

Accinos Fecilloty Services Naba,
Sri

Accions Faeilnty Services Poland
Spolka Z.0.0.

Acciona Facility Services Portagal

Acciona Faciinty Scrvices Suor,
S.A.

Acciona Facility Services, S.A.
Acctona Financiactdn De Filiales
Chile Spa

Acciops Financiacidn Filiales

Acciona Financiacion Filiales
Australia Pty Lid

Acciona Forearding Argenting,
S.A.

Acciona Ferwznding Brsss

Acciona Forwarding Cansrias,
S.i.

Acciona Forwarding, 5.4,

Acciona (eotech Group Services
Pry Ltd

Acciona Geotech Holding Pty Lid

Acciona Ghidml Renewslles 5 4

Acciona Green Energy
Developments, S.L.

Acciona Grosad Services, S.L

Accioeg Harding Services, S L.

Accionz Healih Care Services,
S.L.

Andsr Letsticn

A Valercia

A Portugal

- USA

- Holland

— Ttaly

- Poland

E Portugal

- Toledo

A Chile

A Medsnid

A Amnstralia

- Argentma

A Braz:t
Capary

A Islands

A Madnd

A Awsiraiza

A Anstralia

A Mavoma

- Yoleooa

- Madrid

Rinim metivily

Emerpy

Energy

Epergy

Urban Services

Urban Services

Urben Semvices

Legistics Services

Urban Services

Facility Services

Urban Services

Urhan Services

Urban Services

Financial

Financial

Financial

Logistics Services

Logistics Services

Logistics Services

Logistics Services

Constraction
Construction
Energy
Energy

Legistics Services

Logistics Services

Urban Senvices
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Effective
Share %

160.00%

66.67%

0007

10 G0%

160.60%

FECEEE ot

1004070

160.00%

RutZotes

16.66%

100.00%

100.08%

160.06%

10.66%

100.00%

1506609

100.00%

G8.71%

10 800

{60.00%

§2.3°%

82.40%

0657%

168.00%

100.00%

Rt R i

166.00%

Hoblder of interest

Sabgroup Alabe
Sehereup Aociona
Energia
Internacional
Subgroup Accona
Frergia Globa!
USA

Subgroup Acciona
Facility Services

Subgroup Acciona
Facility Services

Seberoup Accionz
Facility Services

Sabgroup Acciona
Servieios Urbanos
v Madwo Ambiemte

Subgroup Accionsa
Facility Services

Subproap Acciona
Facility Services
Suberoup Acciona
Facility Services
Subgroup Acciona
Facility Services
Subgroup
Multiservictos
Acciona Facility
Sgbaroup Accions
Servicios Urbanos
¥ Medio Ambiente

Acciona
ALions
Acciona

Suberoup Acciona
Forewarding

Subgrosp Acciona

Forwarding

Subgroup Acciona
Forwarding
Subgroup Acciona
Servicios Urbanos
v Medio Ambiemte
Suberoup Gentech
Holding

Subgronp Acciona
Geotech

Subaronp Accinga
Energia

Subgroup Accwna
Emergia

Sebeman Acciozs
Servicios Urbamos
v Medio Ambiente
Subgyoup Acciona
Servicios Urbexes
y Medio Ambiente

Subsronp Acciona
Facility Services

Carrying
amount

15314

24457

5844

18

12

1,048

b
=
8]

101,518

70,873

411,826

673

3,305

389

3,628

130390

40

26 060
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Companmy

Acciona Industrial Australia, Pty
Ltd

Acciona indostral S A,

Acciona Infraestructaras
Coiombra SAS

Acciona lnfraesiracturas
Residenciales México S.A.
Acciona Infracstructuras-Elecror,
Hospital David

Acciona Infraestoctoye Asia
Pacific Pty Limited

Acciona Infrastructure New
Zealand. 1.td

Acciona infrastructures Australia
Pty. Ltd

Acciona Ingenieria Colombia,
SAS.

Acciona Ingenieria Industrmal S A

DeCV.

Acciona Ingenieria S A,

Acciona Inmobiliana S 1.

Acciona Instalactones Méxao,
SADCYV.

Acciona Inversiones Corea, S

Acciopa Logistica, S A

Acciona Manteqimiento De
Infraestructaras, S A

Acctona Medioambiente, S A.

Acciona Multiservicios, S A
Acciona Nieruchomosci, Sp.
Z0.0

Acciona Operaiids y
Mantenimiento, SR.L De C. V.

Acciona Portugal Il - Enecrgia
Global, Lda

Acciona Producciones y Diseiio
S.A.

Acciona Project Management
Mexico. S.A. de C.V

Acciona Rail Services, S.A.

Acctona Real Estate. S A U.

Acciona Redes y Mantenimientos
Especializados, S 1L

Acciona Rencwable Energy
Canada Gp Holdings Inc

Acciona Renewabie Epergy
Canada Holdmgs L1.C

Acciona Sakos e Agua S1.U.

Acciona Saudi Arabia For
Contracting Lic

Audit

A

A

Locatien Maziw activity
Australia Counstraction
Sevilla Constyaction
Colombia  Constroction
Mexico Construction
Panama Constructson
Anstratia Constraction
e og | Comstruction
Australia Construction
Colombm Engincering
Adexico Engineering
Madrid Engineering
Madrid Real estate
Mexico Construction
Navamra Enerey
Madrd Hoelding Company
Madnd Construction
Valencia Urban Services
Madnd Urban Services
Poland Real estate
Mexico Urban Services
Portupal Enerey
Madrid Andio-visoal sevvices
Sexico {Urban Senvices
Madnid Logistics Services
Madnid Real estate
Madnd Urbem Sexvices
Canada Energy
USA Energy
Madrad Ererzy
Saud§ Engincering
Arabza

- Pag¢

EfRective
Share %

100.00%

10002

160.00%

100.00%

T548%

100.60%

160.00%

100 .00%

100.0%

100.00%

10.00%

100068

J00.00%

HER LAY

106.00%

160.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

1t (0%

1H000%

160.00%

KOs

100.00%

100.60%

160009

100.00%

160.00%

100 i%e

100.00%

Helder of imterest

Subgroup Acciona
Constrocerm
Subgroup AccKma
Construccion
Subgroup Acciona
Comstruccion
Subgroup Acciona
Constroccién
Subgroup Acciona
Coastrucciton
Subgroup Accima
Constraceidn
Subgroup Acctona
Construccitn
Subgronp Acciona
Constroccida
Subgrosp Acciona
Ingenieria
Subgroep Acciona
Ingenteria
Subgroap Acciona
Cromstracesdn
Accrona
Subgroup Acciona
tadustrial
Subgroup Acciona
Encrgia Global

Acciona

Subgroup Acciona
Construccion
Suberoep Acciona
Senvicios Urbanos
y Medw Aminiente
Subgroap Acciona
Facility Services
Subgroup Acciona
Inmobihana
Sabgroup Accioma
Factlity Services
Subgroup Acciona
Encrgia Global
Subrgroup Accrona
Servicios Urbanos
y Medio Ambiente
Subgroup Acciona
Facility Services
Subgroup Acciona
Servicios Urbanos
v Medic Ambtente
Subgroup Acciona
Inmobiliana
Subgroup Acciona
Facilrty Services
Subgroup Nova
Scotia

Sebproup Acciona
Energia Global
USA

Suhsroup Cosp.
Accione Erergias
Renovables

Subgroup Acciona
indostrial

Carrying
amount

6

21476

57223
i9

16,133

6

12211
12,409
1434454

122

326.889

278

700

7,705

7.805

1977

256

369,506

3,965

297

70.603

123
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Compuay

Acciona Serv. Hospozlanios, S 1.

Acciona Service, S.L.

Agcipna Servicios
Administratives, S.A. de C.V.
Acciona Servicios Conoesionales,
SL.

Acciona Servicios Ferroviarios,
S.L.

Acciona Servicios Urbanos Medio
Ambiente México, S.A. De C.V.

Accrong Servicios Urbazos, S L.

Acciona Sisternas De Segurnidad,
S.A.

Acciona Smant City Services, S.L

Accioez Selar Exemgy 11.0

Acciona Solar Power Inc.

Acciyna Solar, S.A.

Acctona Semunistradorn Méxco,
SRI deCV.

Acciona T ermosolar

Acciona Water Supplies
Technology Benjmg Co. L.1d

Accionz Wird Energy Pyt Lid

Acciona Wind Enersy USA, LLC

Acciones Urberas, Senvictes ¥
Medio Ambeente, 8.1

Aepo Gabon, S.A

Azpo Polska S.P.Z OO

Aerosite Epergy Private L anited
AFS Efficicat Energy Uk | imized

AFS Empleo Sociw! Barealosa,
S1I.

AFS Empleo Social, S.L.

Agenciz Mayitires Treoshisponica,
SA.

Apezea Schoamin, 5.4

Aguas Pilor De La Horedada $1.

Aedt  Location

— Madnd

A hdadnd

A Mexico

A Madnid

A Mexico

A dandrid

- Madrid

- USA

— Navamra
— Mexico
A WNavarra

- USA

- Murcia

— Poland

A India

United
Kirgdom

- Barorlona

- Barcelona

- Madnd

C Mpderid

Main activity

Holding Compagny

Urban Services

Real estate

Cozesssing Opesation

Logistics Services

Urban Services

Urkon Sexvices

Coastruction

Urban Services

Energy

Energy

Energy

Encrey

Energy

Wiger Trestment

Energy

Enerpy

Urban Services

Engineening

Enpineenng

Energy

Urban Services

Urban Services

Urban Services

Logistics Sexvices

Lomistics Services

Water Treatment

- Pagel68 -

100.00%

100.66%

100.00%

100.60%

100.60%

FH.80%

100.60%

160.00%

6. 67%

HHL.G0%

100.60%

100.60%

100.00%

4004

66.67%

66.67%

505.00%

150.00%

180.008%

160.62%

100.00%

15805

100807

92 71%

92.71%

100,007

Heolder of fnterest

Subgroup Acciona
Servictns Urbanos
¥ Medio Ambimnte
Subgroap
Corporacién
Acciona
Infzestractzras
Subgroup Acciona

Facility Services
Accioaz

Subgroup Acciona
Facility Services

Subgroup Acciona
Facility Services
Seberosp Acctona
Servicws Urbanos
y Medio Ambiente
Subgroup Acciona
Facility Services
Subgroup Acciona
Facility Services
Subgronp Acciona
Enerpia Nonth
América
Subgroup Accicna
Erergia Globat
LiSA

Subgronp Acciona
Energia

Subgroup Acciona
Subgroup Acciona
Erergia

Subgroap Acciona
Agua

Subgroup Acciona
Erpergis
Intermacional
Subgroup Acctona
Enerpia North
América
Subgroup Acciona
Servicips Urhanos
Subgroup Accicna
Ingenteria
Subgroup Accicna
Ingenserta
Subgroup Acctona
Erergia Global
Subgroup Accionz
Facility Services

Subgroup Acciosa
Facility Services
Subsroup Acciona
Facility Services
Subgroup Acciona
Trasmediterranea
Sebgrosp Accinma

Trasmediterranea

Subgroup Acclona
Agua Servicios

Carrving
amounnt

629

143,538

1294

21

1.76¢

30,809

411

27.664

6,055

3.360

7,050

313,921

200

3

3,020

153

14808



TRANSLATION

Company
AIE Trafalgar

Alabe Mengibar, ALE.

Alabe Socredad De Cogeneracion,

S.A.
Almeyda Spa

Ambherst Wind Construction Gp
Inc

Anchor Wind, LLC

Andratx Obres  Sanetjanent, 8.1,

Antigua Bodega De Doa Cosme
Palacio, S.1L.

Apoderada Corporativa General,
S.A.

Arsogaz 2005, S.L.

Asesores Turisticos Del Estrecho,
S.A.

ATLIL Concesionaria de la
Generalitat de Catalunya, S.A.

Aulac Wind Power Lp

Autovia De Los Viiiedos

Avenir El Romero Spa

Bear Creek

Bestinver Gestion S.C.I.I.C., S.A.

Bestinver Pensiones G.F.P.,S.A.

Bestinver Sociedad De Valores,
S.A.

Bestinver, S.A.

Biocarburants De Catalunya, S.A.
Biodiesel Caparroso, S.L.
Biodiesel Del Esla Campos
Biodiesel Sagunt, S.L.

Biomasa Alcazar, S.L.

Biomasa Briviesca, S.L.

Biomasa Miajadas, S.L.

Biomasa Sangiiesa, S.L.

Bodegas Palacio, S.A.

Capev Venczucla

Ce Oaxaca Cuatro, S. De R.L.. De
C.V.

Ce Oaxaca Dos, S. De R.L. De
C.V.

Audit

Location

Cadiz

Madnd

Madrnd

Chile

Capada

UsA

Kallorca

Alava
Madrid

Madrid

Malaga

Barcelona

Canada

Toledo
Chile
USA
Madrid
Madrid
Madrid
Madrid
Barcelona
Navarra
Navarra
Navarra
Madrid
Burgos
Madrid
Navarra
Alava
Venezucla
Mexico

Mexico

-P

Maig activity

Energy

Energy

Energy

Epergy

Energy

Eneray

Water Trestment
Winery
[nstrumental

Real estate

Logistics Services

Water Trcatment

Energy

Concessions
Energy
Energy
Financial
Financial
Financial
Financial
Energy
Encrgy
Energy
Energy
Energy
Energy
Energy
Energy
Winery
Construction

Energy

Effective
Share %

86.2{0%

9625%

100.00%

190 .00%

160.00%

1H¥.00%

100 60%:

16D 00%

100.00%

100.00%

92.71%

76.05%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

85.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

66.67%

Holder of interest

Subgrosp Acoona
Energia

Subgroup lueuropa
de cogencracion
Subgrooep Corp.
Acciona Energias
Renovables
Subgroup Acciona
Enerzia (lobel
Subgroup Acciora
Energia Global
Canada

Subgroup Acciosa
Energia Global
USA

Subgmup Acciona
Agua

Subgroup Palacio

Acciona

Subgroup Acciona
Inmobiliaria
Subgroup Acciona
Trasmediterranea

Subgroup Acciona
Agua

Subgroup Acciona
Energia Global
Canada

Acciona

Subgroup Acciona
Energia Global
Subgroup GWH
Acciona Energy
Subgroup
Bestinver
Subgroup
Bestinver
Subgroup
Bestinver

Acciona

Subgroup Acciona
Energia

Subgroup Acciona
Energia

Subgroup
Biocombustibles
Subgroup
Biocombustibles
Subgroup Biomasa
Nacional
Subgroup Biomasa
Nacional
Subgroup Biomasa
Nacional
Subgroup Acciona
Energia

Subgroup Sileno
Subgroup Acciona
Construccion
Subgroup Acciona
Energia Mcxico

] “'“S“lﬁ)gmup Acciona

Eneméia Mexico -

Carryiag
amosat

1.693

59

3.132

TH
60

1,001

186

24,609

1.396
331
1,203
5,267
6.113
1,947
54.707
5611
2,186
303
4,191
20,003
100
1.526
3.883
278

-335

<o

N



TRANSLATION

Conpamy

Ce Oaxaca Tres, S. De RL.De
CV.

Ceatesalas. S L.

Cenarso Fspafia S.1.

Centro De Servicios Compartidos
De Acciona S.L.

Cetdica Hispamiz. 8.1,
Cesa Eole Sicilia St
Cintover, S.L.
Civerzba ITG, S.L.
Coefisa, S A

Coleman Rail Prv Ltd

Combusiebor, S.L.

Compaitia de agua Calten, S APL

de C.V.

Compasitia De Apuas Pagnera, S L.

Compshia Bélica Grepadima $1..

Compafiia Intemacionat De
Construcciones

Compafifa Trasmediterranea, S.A.
Compafiz Urbanirada Del Coto,
SE.

Consorcio Accipna Ossa, S.A
Ceasorcio Acciona Ossa Andina
SA.

Consorcio Constructor Araucaria
Lid.

Consorcio Eolico Chiripa, S_A.

Constrecciones Restdenciales
Mexico, C.B.

Constructora El Paso S.PA.
Constructora La Farfana, Spa
Constrectora Ruta 160, § A

Copane Valores, S.L.

Corporacion Acciona Energias
Removables, S.1..

Corporacion Acciona Edlica, S.A_
Corporacion Acciona Hidraulica,
SA

Corporcida Acciona
{nfracstractoras 5.1L.

Corporacion De Explotacinoes y
Servicios, S.A

Andit Laezatics:

A Mexico

- Madnd

~  Madud

- Switzeeland

A Ausstralia

— Murcia

- Mexico

- Mallorca

A Madrid

C Madrd

- Chile

- Chile

A Costa Rica

A Mexico

- Chile

- Chile

A Madrid

A Aludrid

— Refpadred

Mizin zrtivisy

Epergy

Energy

Instrumental

Emergy

Energy

Tostn memtsl
Energy

Financial
Construction
Logistics Services

Water Treatment

Water Treatment
Erergy
Financial
f.ogistics Services
Real estate
Construction
Construction
Construction
Enerpy
Construction
Construction
Construction
Constuction
Instramental

Energy

Energy

Energy

Holdivg Comrpemy

Holding Company

- Pagel70 -

Effective
Share %

66.67%

100.00%

Q2 7%

100.00%

Hb.eb%

66.67%

HB.80%

100.00%

JRETR

82.40%

§30.60%

68 .60%

100.00%

3580

108.00%

92.71%

21.62%

65 0%

63 5%

&8.80%

65.00%

HAL.00%

0%

100.00%

100.680%

100.60%

100.00%

100.00%

100.60%

10 68%

160.00%

Heldesr of interest

Subgroup Acciona
Energia Mexico
Subgrozp Corp.
Accipna Energias
Renovables
Suberoup Agencia
Schembr

Acciona

Sehzronp Acciona
Edlica Cesa
Subgroup Cesa
italia

Asriv

Subgroup Acciona
Energia Global

Acciona

Subgroup Geotech
Holding

Sabzrusp
Cllogquiegui
Subgroup Acciona
Agua

Subgroup Gesba

Subgroup Cedlica
Acciona

Sebsreap Acciona
Logistica
Sebgroup Accions
Real Estate
Subgroup Acciona
Construccion
Subgrosp Acciona
Coastruccion
Subgroup Acciona
Constraccion
Subgroap Accions
Enerpia

Subzroup Acciona
Construccion
Subgroap Acctona
Constriceidn
Subgroup Acciona
Constrzccion
Subgroup Acciona

Cercesiones Chile

Apciona

Acciona

Subgroap Corp.
Acciona Energias
Renovables
Subgrosp Carp.
Acciona Energias
Renovables

ALCTomn
Subgroup Acciona

Servicios Urbanos
v Medin Ambicnte

Carrying

amount

983,583

7.080

49,404

10,581

4,307
Tii

2665

29

1,803

2,930

1.353

260,540

87429
55,779

2917224

343,503

65043

THL A2

3,829



TRANSLATION

Company

Corporacion Eolica Catalana S.L.
Corporacitn Edlica De Valdivia
SL.

Corporacion Edolica La Caiiada.
S

Demsey Ridge Wind Farm, LLC

Depurar 7B, S.A.

Depurar 88, S_A.

Desarrolladora De Infraestructura
Hispano-Peninsular, S.A. De C.V.

Desarrolladora De Infraestructuras
Hispano-Mexicanas, S.A. De C.V.

Desarrollos Revolt Del
Llobregat S.1.

Desarrollos y Construccwones,
S.A.DeCV.

Dren, S.A.
Ecogrove

Ecovista Wind, LLC
Efrato ITG, S.L.

EHN Slovenia

Emp.Diseto Coastr. Cons Jardmes
y Zonas Verdes, S.A.

Empordavent S.L.U.
Empreendimientos Eéhces Do
Verde Horizonte, S A.

Empreendimientos Eélicos
Ribadelide, S.A.

Empresa Operadora ATLL, S.A.

Enalia, Ltda.

Energea Senvictos y
Mantenimiento. S.1..

Energia Rerovable Dei Isimo I
SAdeCv

Energia Renovabies De Barazar,
S.L.

Energias Alternativas De Teruel,
S.A.

Energias Eolicas De Catalumya,
S.A.

Energias Repovables De
Ricobayo. S_A.

Energias Renovables F} Abra S L

Energias Renovables Operacion y
Mantenimiento, S.L

Energias Renovabies Pefia
Nebina. S.L.

IIntidad Efinen, S A

Awdit 1 scatisa

- Madrid
- hizdnd
— Madrid
A USA

E AraghHn
E Arapdén
A Mexico

A Mexico

- Madnid

A Mexico

- Madnd

- Egym

- Stovenia
- Malaga

A Barcelona
A Portugal
A Portugal

A Barcelona

- Colombia
A Barcetona
A Mexico

- Madrnid

- Teruel

A Barcelona
- Madnid

- Vimava

A Barcelona

A Madrd

Main activity

Encrpy

Emergy

Energy

Water Treatment

Water Treatmerst

Comstroction

Construction

Real cstate

Construction

Holdmag Company

Inerey

Energy

Energy

Energy
Constraction
Energy

Energy

Energy

Water Treatment

Winery

Encrgy

Energy
Energy
Encrgy
Energy
Energy
Energy

Urban Services

Energy

Effective
Share %

1030.00%

JRTEY 1579

100.00%

66.67%

100.60%

HO.00%

03.00%

HIQ %%

160097

100.0t%

100.90%

H56.6T

100.00%

100G e

106.00%

HA 00

160.60%

66.6T%

66.67T%

100.90%

100.00%

100.60%

100.00%

100.00%

55.060%

100,600

56.60%

100605

100.00%

106.00%

Holder of interest
Subgroup Ceolrca

Sabgroup Cedlica
Subgroup
Ceatesalas
Sebpryap Acciona
Wind Energy USA
Subgroup Acciona
Agua

Suhgroup Acciona
Agua

Subsroup Acciona
Construccion

Subgroup Acciona
Consiraccion
Subgroup Acciona
inmobiliaria
Subgroup Acciona
Construccion

Acciona

Suberoup Acciona
Wind Energy USA
Subgroup
Ecoenergy
Suberoun Accrna
Energia Global
Subgroup Acciona
Energia Global
Suberoup Acciona
Constroccion
Subgroup Acciona
Energia

Sabsrowp Accwna
Edlica Portugal
Subgroup Acciona
Eolica Poriugal
Subgroup Acciona
Agua

Subgroup Hipos de
Antonio Barcelo
Subgroup
Terranova Energy
Corporatin
Subgroup Acciona
Energia Mexico
Global

Subgroup
Ceatesalas
Suhbgroup Acciona
Energia

Subgroap Acciona
Encrgia

Subgroup Ceolica
Subgroup Cedlica

Subgroup
Multiservicios
Acciona Facility
Services
Subgroup Ceolica

23

-

Carrying
amount

12

1257972

4,892

5.939

32461
7.828
1,335

85329

4.307

546
14,206
5248

3,662

2.136

14,154

47.836
82
6.000
254

5.798

2,625

1.5
IS

R RV R



TRANSLATION

Company

Entorno Urbano y Medio
Ambiente, S.L.

Entrecanales v Tavora Gibraltar,
Ltd

Eolica De Rubid, S.A.
Eélica De Zoraquir, S.L.
Edlica Villangeva, S.L.
Edlicos Breogan. 8.1,

ES Legarda, S.L.

Estibadora Puerto Bahia, S.A.

Estudios y Construcciones De
Obras, S A. De CV.

Furopa Ferrys, S.A.

Furus SAPI1De C V.
Finanras Dos, S.A.

Finanzas Nec, S.A.
Finanzas y Cartera Dos, $.A.
Finanzas v Cartera Uno, S.A.

Flughafendienst Av Gmbh

Frigoriferi Di Tavazzano, S P.A.

Fujin Power Private Limited

Rencwable encrpy generation S 4

Genenica De Constrace Y Mo,
Indusirial, S AL

Geog Services Pry Lid
Geotech Holdeo Pty Ltd
Geotech Pty Lid

Gestio Catalara D' Aigites, S A.

Gestion De Recursos
Corpomtivos, S.1.

Gestion De Servicios Urbanos
Baleares, S A.

Gounds Wind Facilny { Proprietany)
Limited

Gsd Flaghafen Gmbh

Guadalaviar Consorcio Edlico
Alabe Enerfin, 5. A.

Gunning Wmd Fnergy
Developments Pty Lid

Gunaing Wind Epergy Holdings
Pty Ltd

Aandit

A

Locatios

Murcia
Gibraltar
Barcelona
Madrid
Navarra
Pontevedma
Navarra
Cadiz
Mexice
Cadiz
Mexico
Madrid
Madnd
Madrid
Madrid

Germany

{taly
India
Alava
Zaragoza

Auastralzm

Austrafia
Barcelona
Navarra

Mallorca

South
Africa

Germany
Madeid
Australia

Auvstralia

Main activity
Urban Services
Construciion
Energy
Energy
Energy
Energy

Enerpy

Logistics Services
Comstroction
Logistics Services
Energy
Instrurnenial
Financial

Holding Company
Instromental

Logistics Services

L ogistics Services

Energy

Enerzy
Construction
Canstraction
Construction
Construction
Water Treatment
Energy

Water Treatment
Energy

Logistics Savices
Energy

Energy

Energy

- Pagel72 -

Effective
Share %

50.00%

100.66%

100.00%

60.00%

66.66%

166.60%

100.60%

92.71%

S00%

92.71%

62.67%

160.00%

160.00%

150.60%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

1508026

100.60%

82.40%

82.40%

82.40%

100.00%

100 60%

100.00%

36.60%

168.060%

H03.00%

66.67%

66675

Holder of iaterest

Subgronp Acciona
Servicios Urbanos
Subgroup Acciona
Construccion
Subgroup Acciona
Energia

Subgroup Acciona
Energia

Subgroap Acciona
Enerpia

Subgronp Cedlica

Subgroap
Biocombustibles
Sebgroup Acciona
Trasmediterranea
Subgroup Acciona
Construccion
Subgroup Acciona
Trasmediterranea
Subsroap Acciona
Enerpta Mexco
Agcciona
Suberoup Accioas
Inmobiiaria

Acciona

Acciona

Suberoup Acciona
Subgrorp Acciona
L ogistica
Subsroup Acciona
Energia Global
Sabgroap Cedlica
Sebgreup Acciona
Constreccion
Suberoup Geotech
Holding

Subgroop Geotech
Hotdeo

Subgrounp Geotech
Holding

Subgroup Acciona

Agua

Acciona
Subgroup Acciona
Agpa Servicios
Seheroap Acciona
Fperzia Sudafrica
Subgroup Acciona
Airport Services
Subsroup Alabe
Subgronp Guaamg
Wind Energy
Subgroup Acclona
Energia Oceania

Carrying
amount

2

37,645
6,000
603
867
5,028

8.424

18,494

6,626

61

160

28

3,188

3.020
4438

107

6,376

25

1,738

1,738



TRANSLATION

Compary

Gwh-Acciona Energy LLC

Heartland Windpower, LI1.C

Hermes Logistica, S.A.

Hidroeléctrica Del Serrado, S.L.

Hijos de Antonio Barcelé, S A

Hospital De Leon Bajio. S.A. De

C.V.
Iber Rail France, S.L.
Iberica Arabian Co Lid

Iberinsa Do Brasil Engenharia
Ltda.

Inantic, S.A.

Inetime, S.A.

Ineuropa De Cogeneracion, S.A.
Infraestructaras Ayora, S.1.

Inmobiliana Parque Reforma,
S A DeCV

INR Edlica, S.A.

Interlogistica Ded Frio, S_A.

Interurbano De Prensa, S.A.

John Beever Pty Lid

Kw Tanfa, S.A.

Lambarene Necso Gahon

Lameque Wind Power Lp

Lusonecso
Malganida I Spa
Malgarida 11 Spa

Maritime Global Operator, Lid

MDC Asrpont Consul Gmbh

Meltemi South Sp. Z.0.0.

Meltemi Sp. 2.0.0.

Metrotogia y Comunicaciones,
S.A.

Andit

Location

USA

UsA

Barcelona

Barcelona
Madrid

Mexico

Francia

Saudi
Arabia

Brazil

Mofmdred

Madrd

Madnd

Madnd
Mexico

Sevilia

Barcelona

Madnd

Avstralia

Madrd

Gabon

Canada

Portugal
Chie

Chite

Malta

Germnany

Poland
Poland

Madrid

- Pa

Mazin activity

Energy

Energy

Logistics Services
Energy

Wimery
Concessions
Logistics Services
Enginesring
Engineerimg
Instrmanentad

Urhan Services

Erergy

Energy

Real estate

Energy

Logistics Services

Logistics Sernvices

Construction

Energy

Coastrction

Energy

Reaf estate

Encrgy

Erergy

Logistics Services

Leogistics Services

Energy

Cnergy

Construction

Effretive
Share %

100.00%

160.00%

92 36%

100.00%

1000608

100.U6%

92.71%

10.08%

160.00%

[ Di%a

106.00%

00007

84.72%

100.00%

100.00%

H0.00%

100.00%

82 3%

100.00%

10060

H6.6T%

106.00%

1611.00%

100.60%

92.71%

108176

66.67%

66.67%

100 00%

Holder of interest

Subgroup Acciona
Energia Global
USA

Subgroup Acciona
Energia Global
USA

Subgroup Acciona
Trasmediterranea
Subgroup Accions
Saltos de Agzua

Acciona
Acciona

Subgroup Acciona
Trasmediterranea

Subgroup Acciona
Ingenieria
Subgroup Acciona
Ingenieria
Subgrosp Accippa
Construccion
Subgruap Acciona
Senvicios Urbanos
y Medio Ambiente
Subgroup Corp.
Acciona Energias
Resovables
Subgreap
Guadalaviar
Subgroup Acciona
lomobiliaria
Suireronp Acciona
Energia

Subgroup Acciona
Logistica
Subgroup Acciona
Servicios Urbanos
y Medio Ambiente

Subgmup Gentech
Holding

Subgroap Corp.
Acctopz Energias
Reronables
Subgroup Acciona
Construccion
Subgroup Acciona
Wind Eszrgy
Canada

Subgroup Acciona
{nmobihana
Subgrrap Acciona
Energia Global
Subgroup Acciona
Energia Giobal
Subgroup Acciona
Trasmediterranea
Subgroup Acciona
Servicias Urhagos
y Medio Ambiente
Subgroup Acciona
Energia Poloaia
Subgroup Acciona
Energia Polonia
Subgroup Acciona

ATITH0 TTEATTS ARt e

Coo

v

Carrvieg
amount

3,855

1844
31,719

2,960

170

1,624

560

18,462

La

34.357

613

16,819

2,714

13,233

8,134

12.060

5,173

172,510

1.685

38.290

150

[}



TRANSLATION

Com paay
Miliatres 2003, S.L.

Mostostal Warszawa, S A

Moura Fabrica Solar, L.da.

Mt Gellibrand Wind Farm
Hoiding Pty Lud

Mt Gellibrand Wind Farm Py,
Led.

Multiservicios Gropo Ramel §.A.

Necso Canada, Inc.

Wecso Entrecanates Crbiertas
Mexico, S.A. De CV

Newso Hoag Keng Ld
Necso Touwafo Cosstiucoes Lida

Nevada Sofar Oge, LLC
Northwinds Trading (Progwicteny)
Limited

Notos Produgao De Energia L.da
Nvsi Investment Group LLC

Gperadora De Servicios
Hospitalarios, S A Be V.

P & S Legistica Integral Peru

Pacific Renewable Energy
Generstion LLC

Packtivity, 3.4,

Palmas Wind, Lic

Parco Edico Covulle SPA

Paris Agpitaine Transponis, S.A.

Pargse Edlico Da Costa Vicentina,

S.AL
Parque Edlico Da Raia, S A

Pargque Edlico De Manmigee, 5.4
Pargue Eolico De Pracana, S.A.
Parque Edlico Do Mamo, 8.4
Pargue Edlico Do Guteira, S.A.
Pangque Edlico Dos Fiets, S.A.
Parque Edlice El Chaparro
Parque Eolico Escepar, §.A

Parque Eclico L2 Esperanza. S1.

Aot R ozzitnm

- Tenerife

A Poland

A Portugal

—_ Awustralia

- Anstratia

- Barcelana

B Canada

A Mexico

- Hong Kong

- Brazil

A Usa
South
Africa

A Portugat

- USA

A Mexico

A Pem

- USA

- USA

A Ftaby

- Francia

A Partugst

A Portugal
A Portezal
A Portngal
A Portogal
A Portugat
A Portugal
- Navarra
A ‘Foledo

A Madnd

Main activily

Logistics Services

Construction

Energy

Energy

Eunerey

Usbas Services
Comstruction
Constucton
Constrection
Construction
Eoergy
Engineering
Energy

Energy

Concession Operation

Logistics Services

Encrgy

Logistics Sexvicas

Energy
Exergy
Logistics Services
Ererey
Energy
Epergy
Epergy
Energy
Energy
Energy
Energy

Epergy

- Pagel74 -

Effective
Share %

52.71%

50.09%

100.60%

100.50%

YR 009

160.60%

H0.00%

100.00%

166.005:

50.06%

06T

100.00%

46.67%

66.67%

130.66%

89.54%

100.00%

100.00%

160.00%

GhBTV

10060

66.67%

0.67%

66.67%

660.67%

66.6TH

60.67%

66.67%

HI0.860%

.68

100.60%

Holder of interest

Subgroup Agencia
Schembri
Subgroup Acciona
Construccion
Subgroup Acciona
Energia Global
Subgroup Acciona
Energia Global
Subgroup Acciona
Eperoia Global

A X

Subgroup Acciona
Facitity Services
Swbgronp Acciona
Construccion
Subsroup Acciona
Coustreccion
Subgroup Acciona
Coastruccién
Subgroep Acciona
Cepstruecion
Subgroup NVS1
Investment Group
Subgroup Acciona
Tedustrint
Subgroup Sayago
Subgroup Acciona
Subgrosp Acciona
Servicios
Hospitalarios
Suberonp Acciona
Forwardmg
Sebgroup Acciona
Erergin Global
USA

Subgroup Acciona
Servicios Urbanos
v Medio Ambiente
Subgroup Acciona
Enerpia Global
UusAa

Suboroup Cesa
Italia

Subgroup
Ologurregut
Subgroup Acciona
Edlica Portupgal
Suberonp Acciona
Edlica Portugal
Subgroup Acciona
Edlica Portugal
Subgronp Acciom
Edlica Portagal
Suberoup Acciona
Edlica Portugal
Suhgroup Acciona
Eélica Portogal
Subgroup Acciona
Eolica Portugal

Subgroup Alabe
Subgrnp Cedlica

Subgroup Cedlica

Carrying
amount

3

24316

16,858

377

1,500

218,730

200

11,559

757

65



TRANSLATION

Company
Parque Eélico Peralejo, S.A.
Pargoe Eokco Saw Gabriel Spa

Parque Eolico Villamayor, S.L.

Parque Reforma Sants Fe, S.A. De
C.V.

Parques Eodlicos Celadas, S.L.

Parques Edlcos De Ciodad Real.
S.L.

Parques Eolicos Del Cermato. S.L.

PAT Cargo, S.A.

PiaCos S.R.L.

Pichilingue Spa

Pililin Spa

Pitagora Sri.

Press Cargo Cofomnbia, S A

Pridagua Tratamiento De Aguas y
Residuos, Lda.

Pridesa America Corporatzon

Punta Palmeras, S.A.

Pyrences Wind Energy
Developments Pty. Ltd
Pyrences Wind Energy Holdmgs
Pty. Lid

Ramwork. S.A

Ravi Unja Energy India Pyt Lud
Red Hills Finance, 1L1LC

Red Hills Holdmg, £L.C
Rendos, S.A.

Renovables Del Penedés, S.A.U.

Riacho Novo Empreendimentos
Inmobilanos, Lida

Rio Paraiba Do Sal Servigos Lida

Ripley Windfarm JV

Rodovia do Ago, S.A.
Rusticas Vegas Alms S.L.
S.C. A2 Trame 2. S A.
S.C.DLP, S.A.

S.C. Hospital del Norte. S AL

Amdit Lecatios

A

Toledo
Chile
Madrid
Mexico
Madrid
Cindad
Real
Madnd
Chile
Ttaly
Chile
Chie
Ttaly
Colomsbis
Portugal
USA
Chile
Aupstralia
Australia
Barcelona
india
UsA
USA
Madnd
Badajoz
Brazit
Brazil
Canada
Brazil
Badajoz
Guadalajara

Madid

Madrid

-Pa

Nizim sothvity
Energy
Energy
Energy
Real estate
Energy
Energy
Energy
Logistics Services
Water Treatment

Energy
Energy
Energy
1 pgistics Sersices

Water Treatment

Water Treatment

Energy

Energy
Eoergy
Urban Services

Energy
Ererpy
Frergy
Fmancial
Energy

Real estate

Concession Operation

Energy

Coacessions
Energy

Concessions
Construction

Nannocc: e

Eflertive
Share %

100.000%

166 .60%

1060.00%

FOU %

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

57.50%

106.80%

1 .09%

106 4%

60.67%

F3.34%

16002

LO0.00%

G6.67%%

66.6T%

66.6T%

99.98%

100.00%

66.67%

66.6T%

100.0P%

100.00%

H0.00Re

100.00%

fiedder of imterest

Subgroup Cedlica

Subgroup Actiona
Energia Global

Subgroup Cedhica

Subgroup Pargue

Reforma

Subgroup Cedlica
Subgroup Ceolica
Subgroup Cediica

Scbgrosp Acciona
Forwarding
Subgroup Acciona
Agua

Subgroap Acciora
Epergia Global
Subgroup Acciona
Emergia Global
Subgroup Cesa
Itaba

Suberoup Acciona
Forwardmg Perd

Subgroup Acciona
Agua

Subgroup Acciona
Agua

Subgroup Acciona
Encrpia
Internacional
Subgroup Acciona
Energia Oceania
Subgroup Pyrenees
Wind Emergy
Subgroup Acciona
Facility Services
Subgroup Acciona
Energia Globat
Subgroup Acciona
Wind Energy USA
Subgroup Red
Hills Finance
Acciona

Subgroup Accrona
Energia

Subgroup Acciona
inmobiiara
Subgroup Acctona
do Brasil

Subgroup Acciona
Wmd Epergy
Canada

Subgroup Acciona
Construceion
Subgronp Acciona
Energia

Acciona

Subgroup Acciona
Construccion

Carrying
amount

1,020
4133
6,127
13,326
4,599
7.8+

1.375

687

5.854

632

24 866

8,076

5.398

500



TRANSLATION

Couipany

Saltos Del Napsa, S AU
Sattos v Centrates De Cotrlmma,
S.A.

San Roman Finance Lic

San Roman Holdimg Lic

San Roman Wied I L1LC

San Solar Enevpy Facility
{Propietary) Limited

Sc Accions Facilly Services
Automotive Sri

Scdad Empresarial De
Financiacion y Comercio, S.L

Sierra De Selva, S L.

Sifeno, S.A.

Sishen Solar Facility (Pmoprictary)
Liritend

Sistemas Enerpéticos Savago. S.L

Sistemas Epergédons Valle De
Sedano. S.A.

Sociedad Fxplotadora De
Recursos Folicos, S AL

Sociedad Istime@ia Desarrolio
Edlico, SRL De C.V.

Sociedad Levantina De Obras y
Servicios, 5.A.

Sociedad San Rafaci Hidrdulica
SA. DeCV.

Seconfil, S A,

Sofar Fields Energy Photo Voltaic
{ndia Pvt Lid

Solomon Forks Wind Farm. L LC

Starke Wind Golice Sp. Z.0.0.

Sun Photo Voltaic Energy India
PviLid

Surya Energy Photo Veltaic lndia
Prtizd

Table Mountain Wind L1.C

Tajro, Sp. 2.0.0.

Tatanka Finance L 1O

Tatanka Holding, LLC

Tecniompia Espafela, S 1.

Temmninal De Cargz Rodada S AL

Andt

Loestics
Santander

Barceiona

USA
usA

Usa

South
Aftica

Rixnania
Madrid
Mavarra
Alava

South
Africa

Meadrid

Madnd

Portugal
Mexico
Yalencia
Mexico
Mndred
india
LSA

Poland
Indta

india
USA
Poland
UsSA

USA

Barcelona

Neded

3Esin activity

Energy

Energy

Energy

Energy

Energy

Urban Services

Firancial

Enerpy

Winery

Energy

Energzy
Energy

Energy

Constrocting

Engineering

Lostromrereal

Enerpy

Energy

Epergy

Enerzy

Encrey

Energy

Real estate

Enerpy

Energy

Urban Services

Fogistics Services

- Pagel76 -

Share %
100.00%

100605

160.60%

160.60%

180.060%

FOD.60%6

100.60%

.00
130,60
100.60%

36.607%

66.67%

100.00%

66.67%

100.00%

100.00%
106.060%
1600075

160.00%

100.00%

65.67%
100.60%

160.60%

100.00%

100.60%

H6T%

26 80%
{1000
accwones
clase B)

160.00%

92 71%

Halder of toterest

Subgroup Acciona
Salws de Agpn
Saltos de Agua
Subgroup Acciona
Energia Globat
USA

Subgroup San
Roman Holding
Lic

Subgronp San
Roman Holding
Lic

Subgroup Acciona
Energis Globad
Suddfrica
Sebgroup Acclona
Facility Services

Acciona

Subgroup Acciona
Saberoup Hijos de
Antonio Barceld
Subsroup Acciona
FPrergia Sedidfrica
Subgroup Acciona
Energia
Internacional

Subgroup Cedlica

Subgroup Acciona
Edtica Portugat
Subgronp Acciona
Energmaa Mexico
Global

Subzroup Accrona
Constroceion
Subgroup Acciona
Ingenieria
Sebzroap Finanzas
y Cartera 2
Subgrosp Acciona
Encrgia Global
Suboroup Accions
Erergia Global
USA

Subgroup Acciona
Enerpiz Polonts
Subgroup Acciona
Energia Global
Subgroup Acciona
Emerziz Globel
Subgroup Accions
Enetgia Globai
USA

Subgroup Acciona
Inmobiliaria
Subgroup Acciona
Wind Energy USA

Subgroup Tatanka

Subgroup Acciona
Facility Services

Suberoup Acciosa
Tresmoditerrumes

Carrying
amount

73,038

38,238

51,884

51,884

120,871

408

i38
17,126
7.615

1,584

20,837

4,818

1,303

1,503
10,902
60

2,298

6,371
17,133

3472

33458

682

30

2.941



TRANSLATION

Company

Terminal Ferry Barcelona SR.L.

Termosolar Advarado Pos, S.1..

Termosolar Alvarado, S L.

Termosolar Majadas, S

Termosolar Palna Saetlia, S.L.

Temua Holdmgs. B.W.

Terranova Energy Corporation

Terranova Energy Corporation.
S.A.

Tibest Cuatro, S.A.

Tictres, S.A.

Tlaui Aqua. S A. de C.V.
Tolchén Transmision Spa
Tolpan Sur, Spa

Tormre Lugano S.i.
Tours And Incentives, S.A.U.
Towarowa Park Spotka Z.0.0.

Transportes Oltoguicgm, S A

Transurme, S.A.

Trasmeditermanea Cargo, S.A.

Trasmeditenrinea Shipping Maroc
S.ARL.

Ttanka Wind Power L1.C

Tucana, Sp. Z.0.0.

Tuppadahalh Energy india Private
Limited

Tunismo y Aventuras, S AU

Usya Spa
Valgrand 6, S.A

Velva Windfarm, 1 1L.C
Viajes Eurotras, S.A.

Vientos Bajo Hondo 1. S A

Awdi Lacation

C Barcelona

- Badajoz

A Badainz

A Madnd

A Madvid

- Hodland
— USA

- Barcelons
- Madnd

— Madrid
- Mexico

- Chile
- Chile

- Valeacia

- Madrid

— Poland

— havara

- Barscelona

- Madrid

- Tanger

A USA

A Poland

A Indm

- AMadnd

-~ Chije
— Madnid

- USA

- Argen

Maim activity

Logistics Services

Evergy

=2

Epergy

Energy
Eqergy
Energy
Energy
Instrarmental

Iostrumrendal

Water Treatment

Energy
Energy

Real estate

Logistics Services

Real estate

Logistics Sexvices

Logistics Services

Logistics Services

Enerpy

Real estate

Energy

L ogistics Services
Energy

Real estate
Energy

L ogtstics Services

Effective
Share %

92.71%

10.00%

160.00%

16.00%%

160.00%

JEEANE TN
100.00%
1060
100.00%%
160 065
T0.00%
100007
M08
100.00%
92.71%

00008

180.00%

100,008

92.71%

92.71%

26.00%
(100%
BCCIONES
clase B)

106.04026

66.67%

",
.4

Holder ef futerest 27 Y92
amoeat
Subgroup Acciona 25330
Trasmeditermanca
Suobgroep Acciona
: ; 193
Energia
Subgroup
Termosolar 11,500
Nacional
Subgroup
Termosolar 24039
Nacwomal
Subgroup
Termosotar 49,164
Naciomal
Sobgroup Tecusa 866
Suhgroup Acciona ”
Edlica Cesa 52,289
Subgroup Cedlica 15,933
Acciona 13,523
ACCHOTER 182749
Subgroup Acciona 5.693
Aguma
Subgroup Acciona 70
Frergia Global
Subgroup Acciona 4
Energia Giobal 1470
Subgroup Acciona
Real Estate 6,097
Subgroup Acctona
Traserediterranea
Subgroup Accioma 5 33
Inmobiliana
Subgroup Acciona
Logistica 44,063
Subgroup Acciona
Servicios Urbanes 109
v Medio Ambvente
Subgroup Acciona
Trasmediterranea 18,187
Subgroep Acciona 9
Trasmediterranea
Subgroup Tatanka 130,138
Subgrqz{p Acciona 23.300
Inmobitiana
Subgroup Acciona
Encrgia 10,891
internacional
Suberoup Accirna 464
Trasmediterranea
Subgroup Acciona B
Energia Global
Sobgroup Acciona _
Real Estate
Subgroup Acciona
Wmd Energy USA 7.052
Subgroup Acciona 927
Trasmediterranca
“Sdbaroup Acciona B
Cioersi Glebat | 1)
O L S <. - -

[0 75 PSR T SR (VR

Gl e e



TRANSLATION

) - . . o Effective . . Carrying
Compaay Aadtt Eoratica Mnin aréieity Share % Hclder of intevest amount
N . : . Subgroup Acciona _
Vientos Bago Hondo, S A - Argentina Energy H0.00% Enersia Globai
. o T L e e Suberoup Hios de
Viedos Vifia Mayor, S.L. - Madnd Winery 10.60% Antonio B 16 4
- S - . . , . Subgroup Acciona
Victrocicktrana Cememnica DO.O. - Croatia Esergy 106.60% E i Global 415
Sebgrrp Acciong
Vietroelektrana Jelinak Doo A Croatia Energy 6667% Energia 8,002
imternacional
. . . Subgroup Acciona
" . . . B¢
Vietroelektrana Oper D.O.O. Croatin Energy 100.00% Erergia Global 1.444
SR Subgroup Acciona
;;‘;gi‘:g“; ’g: CTWO”““‘EK" E —~  Porngal  Enemsy 100.060% Energia Global 79
= Portugal 11
' Subgronp Acciona
White Shield Wind Proyect 11.C A USA Energy 6667T% Wind Energy Usa, 48,586
Lic
Subgroup Acciona
Wmnd Farm 66, LEC - UsA Energy 1006Fs Everpia Global 800
USA
. - ) N ) . Subgremp Acciona
Zunch Wind Power Lp lnc - Canada Enerpy 100.00% Renewable Canada 856

(*) Companies whose financial statements are audited by: (A} KPMG; (B) PricewaterhouseCoopers; (C) Deloitte; (D) Ernst &
Young (E) Others
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TRANSLATION

APPENDIX II

JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

The jointly controlled entities proportionately consolidated in the year ended 31
December 2017, in accordance with IFRS, and the information related thereto are as
follows (amounts in thousand euros):

Company

Aista-Trans IV (PTY) LTD

Bokpoort EPC Comsortram (Pty)
Ld

Chin Chute Windfarm JV

Consercio Acciona Brotec Icafal
S.A.

Consorcio Hospital Ege. S AL

Iniciativas Eperpéticas
Renovables, S.L.

Liciastar (Propietary ) Limniied
Magrath Windfarm fv

Ouarzazate Solar 1, Sarl

Proyecto F8 Troy Aym, S_A_ de
C.V.

Sistemna Eléctrico De Evacuacion
Eolica En Subestac

(*) Companies whose financial statements are audited by: (A) KPMG; (B) PricewaterhouseCoopers; (C) Deloitte;

Young (E) Others

Aadit

Location
South
South
Canada
Chile

Chile

Pamplonz

Soath
Africa

Canada
Meorocco
AMexroo

Madnd

Mzin
activity

Comstruction
Engineering
Energy
Construction
Construction
Energy
Engineering
Energy
Engineering
Enomeering

Energy

- Pagel79 -

Effective
Share %

66.6T%

30.00%

2227%

66 (%%

80.00%

56.00a

50.00%

Hotder of interest

Subgroup Acciona
Construcciin

Subgroup Acciona
Ingenieria

Seberosp Acciome Wad
Energy Capada
Subgroup Acciona
Construaccién

Subgroup Acciona
Construccion

Subgroup Acciona
Energia

Subgroup Acciona
Ingenieria

Subgroup Accrona Wod
Energy Canadd
Subgroup Acciona
{ngenieria

Subgroup Acciona
Industrial

Sabgroup Acciona Eolica
Cesa

Carrying
amount

4,000

25893

10

(D) Emnst &



TRANSLATION

APPENDIX 111

COMPANIES ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD

The associates accounted for using the equity method in the year ended 31 December
2017, in accordance with IFRS, and the information related thereto are as follows
(amounts in thousand euros):

- . . L. Effective . Carrying
Company Andit  Location Main activity Share % Helder of interest ameount
Autovia Del Almanzors S_A. - Scvilla  Coscossions 23.75% Subgroup Acciona 1,635
Construccion
Acciona & Ghanim Bin Saad - Subgroup Acciona
Alsaad And Sons Group Ho - Qatar Urban Services  49.00% b ey Services 21
- ) Water , e _
Acciona Agna & Sogex Lic - Oman Treatment 50.00%e Subproup Acciona Agua
Acciona Agua Sardinia i Water .
P SRI. - Taky T ent 10.0{P%  Sehgreup Accivza Agua -
Acciona Concesiones F2W _ New Conc 16005 Subgroup Acciona _
investment Himited Zeatand infracstructuras 7 Concesiones
Acciona Wastc Water Treatment Trinidad y  Water ; . .
Plant 1 imited - Tobago Trea " T0.0{% Subgroup Acciena Agua 3,074
Acciona Wastewater Solutions GP Water . .
inc. - Canzda Trea 2560% Sebgroop Accioma Agea -
Acciona Wep Holdings Inc. - Canada  Coneessions 33339, ubsroup Acciona I
Concestones
Acctones Urbanas, Servicios y . o = Sebzroup Acciona
Medio Ambiente, S.L. - Murcia Urban Services  S0.00% - ¢ cins Urbanos 200
. . Water Sabgroup Acciona Agua
. 2 -
Adelaideagua Pty Ltd. A Agstratta T 50.00% Adelnid
Aguas Tratadas Del Valie De . Water o .
Mexico S A. DeCV. A Mexico Tr ont 24.26% Suobgroup Acciena Agua 25494
. , P . . < . Subgroup Acclozz
Aleph Solar 1 SAPT De CV — Mexico Energy 50.00%0 E 12 Mevica Global 873
. - . . < Subgproup Acciona
Aleph Solarfield | SAPIDe CV - Mexico Eneigy 36.00% Foeroia Mexico Glokal 529
’ _ . ) Subproup Acciona
Aleph Solarfield I SAPIDe CV Mexico Energy 50.00% Energia Mexico Global 529
. . ) I Subrniwp AcCionz
Aleph Solarfield SA PI De CV - Mexico Energy 5¢.00% Enersia Mevico Global 529
Aleph Solarfields Méwico SA Pl De . Ssbegroup Acciona
cv - Mexico Energy 50.00% Erermin Mewion Glohal 5,256
: ; . . A Water .
Algerian Water Investment. S.L. - Madnd Tt ot 50.00% Subgroup Acciona Agua 6,825
. @ _ . i . Suhsyoup Accone
Alsubh Solar Power, S AE. Egypt Energy 50.00% Encraia Global 667
Alizc Light Rall Holdings 1 Py Australia  Concessions Sp0% Subsmup Accigna 8,614
Limited Concesiones
Amper Central Solar Moara C Portugal  Enerpy 43749 Subgroup Accioma 12,740
: Energia Internacional -
Ampliacién Facultad Dret, S.A - Barcelonz  Construction 5006 ubETOup Accioma 1,038
o T Comstreccion ¥
Aprofitament D'Faergies B ] - . Subgroup Acciona
Renovables De L'Fbre S L. - lona  Encrgy 9.76% Energia 378
Baja Californa Power, S.A. De B Mexico  Engineering 65.00% Subaroup Acciona i
[OR'A Ingenieria

- Page180 -



TRANSLATION

Company

Bama H2 Szeleroma Megujnlo
Energia Hasznosito K ft

Broctano! Foergético
Bioctanol Energético La Mancha
Camarate Golf, S.A.

Carnotavento. S.A.

Cathedral Rocks Coastroce. And
Management. Pty Lud

Cathedral Rocks Holdings 2, Pty.
Lid

Cathedral Rocks Holdings, Pty Lid

Cathedral Rocks Wind Farm, Pty.
Ltd

Chincok Highway Operations Inc.

Cogeneracion Arrndas Lida

Concesionarta De Desalacion De
Ibiza, S A.

Concesianaria La Chira, S A,

Consorcio Traza, S A,

Constructora De Obras Civiles v
Electromecanicas

Constructore Necso Sacyr Chile

Constructora Terminal Valle de
México, S A . de C.V.

Depurar P1, S.A.

Desarrolfo De Energias Renovables
De Navarra, S A

Divinopolis Saneamento, S.A.

EMSERVA, S A

Energias Renovables
Mediterraneas, S.A.

Energy Corp Hungary Kfl
Edlicas Mare Nostrum S.L.
Eélico Aljjar. S.A.

Eurovento. S.L.

Evacuacion Villanueva Del Rey,
S.L.

Explotaciones Eolicas Sierra De
Utrera. S.L.

Ferrimaroc Agcncias, S.L.

Ferrimaroc, S.A.

Firetly Investments 238
(Proprietary) Limited

Andit

Locatioz
Hungary
Madrid
Madrid
Madnd
A Coruiia
Austraisa
Australia
Australia
Anstratia
Canada
Braril

ibiza

Peru
Zaragoza
Mexico
Chile
Mexico
Zaragoza
Pamplona

Braz!
Alafapa
Valencia
Hungary
Valencia
Cadiz

A Corufia
Sevilla

Madrid

Almeria

Morocco

South
Africa

- Page

. .. Effective
Main activity Share %
Energy 49.25%
Eperpy S0.00%0
Energy 50.00%
Real estste 27 ¥
Energy 24 .50%
Energy S56.08%
Epergy 33.34%
Energy 33.34%
Energy 3334%
Concession 50 00%
Operation i
Water .
Treatment S009%
Water
50 00%
Treatment 30.00%
Waler <
Treatment 30.00%
Concessions 16.60%
Water -
T ot 24 30%
Coastraction S0
Construction 14.28%
Water
T " 50.00%
Energy 503.00%
Water
%
Treatment 15.00%
Water P
Trea . 49 160%,
Energy 50.00%
Encrgy 50.00%
Energy 50.00%
Energy 50.00%
Energy 50.00%
Energy 44.75%
Energy 25.00%
LOgl.SlICS 46.36%
Services
Logistics
Servi 46.36%
ervices

Helder of interest

Subgroup Enesgy Corp
Hungary

Subgroup
Brocombastibles
Subgronp
Biocombustibles
Subgroup Acciona
Inmobstiana

Subgroup Enrovento

Subgrup Acciona
Energia Global Australia
Subgroup Cathedral
Rocks Holdmmgs
Subgroup Acciora
Energia Oceania
Subgrounp Cathedral
Rocks Holdings 2
Subgroup Acciona
Concesiones

Subgrosp Acciera Agea

Subgroup Acciona Agua

Subgroup Acciona Agua

Acciona

Sebgroup Agnas Hispano
Mexicana

Subgroup Acciona
Concesiones Chile

Subgroup Acciona
Construccion

Subgroup Acciona Agua

Subgroap Acciona
Energia

Subgroup Accionz Agua

Subgroup Acciona Agua
Servicios

Subgroup Acciona
Encrgia

Subgroup Acciona Edlica
Cesa

Subgroup Acciona
Energia

Subgroup Acciona
Energia

Subgroup Tripower

Subgroup Termosolar
Palma Saetilla

Subgroup Ceodlica

Subgroup Cenargo
Espaiia

Subgroup Cenargo
Espana

Suberoup Acciona_ ____
lafrica

Carrying
asowst

804

931

21,455

8,256
9.123

8256

h
Lh

1.082

6364

12,074

1,035

4,936

185



TRANSLATION

Compnny
Grae Hospital Can Misses, S A
Helena Water Finance Pty 1.td

Infraestructiras Radiales, S.A.

Indraestructuras Villanueva, S 1.

Interboya Press, S A

Lincas Eléctricas Astorianas. S.L.
Lineas Eléctricas Gallegas 1. S L.
Lineas Eléctricas Gallegas HI. S.L.
Lineas Eléctricas Gallegas. S.1L.
Locubsa

Logiberica de Prensa v Sexvicios,
S.L.

Maple Concessieons Canada Jec.

Mov-R H1 Szeleroma Mesujulo
Energia Hasznosito Kfi

Myah Tvpara, Spa

Necsorgaz, S.L.

Nexus Infrastructzse Holdings Unit
Trust

NORDEX SE

Maova Darsema Depertne Be Bama.
SA.

Neevo Hospital De Teledo, S.A.

Qakleaf Imvestment Holdmgs 86
(Proprietary) Limit

Operador Del Mercado hénico -
Polo Espafiol S.A.

Operadora Can Misses S.L.

P2W Services L mmited

Paramo De Los Asgosiiiies, S1..
Pargque Edlico A Runa S1..

Pargue Edlico Adranro. 8.L.

Pargue Edlico Amemenda
Filguema. S.L.

Parque Edlico Cimsesrn. S .
Panque E6lico Corras. .10,
Parque Edlico De Abara S1.

Parque Eolico De Bobia y San
Isudro. 8.1.

Parque Edfice De Deva 1.

Aot Locatias

E

A

Fhiza
Australia
Madrd
Madrid
Madnid
Asturias
Galicia
Galicia
Galicia
Andotra

Madrid

Canada

Humgary

Madrid
Awustratia
Germany
Madrid
Toledn

Sowoth
Africa

Madrid
Thiza

New
Zealand

Palencia
A Corufia
A Corufia
A Corafia
Lamors
A Corusia
A Corufia
A Conrfa
Asturias

A Cormsiia

Madn activity
Conrcessions

Water
Treatoent

Couacessions
Energy

Lopistics

Segvices
Energy
Energy
Energy
Eoerpy
Constraction

Logistics
Servrces

Helding
Company

Enetgy

Water
Treatment

Real state
Concessions
Enmergy
Concessions
Concessioas
Energy
Energy

Concession
Operation
Cane
infracstructuras

Energy
Energy
Energy
Erersy
Enerpy
Ersygy
Epergy

Energy
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Effective
Share %

40.00%

25.05%

25.60%

40.53%

50.60%

50.00%

58.00%

50.00%

3500%

48 8%%

58.00%

10.066%

49.25%

25500

50.00%

26.00%

2950%

30807

3333%

50.00%%

5005

40.060%

50.86%

50600

50.00%

56609

50.06%

50.00%

30466%

50.00%

12 50%

50000

S0 40%

Fialder of interest

Acciona

Sobgoep Accisaa Agua
Internacionsl Australia

Acctona

Subgroup Guadalaviar
Seberonp Accione
Servicios Urbanos y
Medio Ambiente

Subgroup Eurovento
Sebgroup Furovento
Subgroup Eurovento

Subgrosp Eurovento

Subgroup Acciona
Comstruccion

Subproup Acciona
Servicios Urboros v
Medio Ambiente
Subgroup Acciona
Concesiones
Subgroup Energy Corp
Hungary

Subeyoup Algeran Water
Investment

Subgroup Acciona
Inmobiliana
Subzroap Acciom
Corcesiones

Acciopa
Acciona

Subgroup Acciena
Concesiones

Subgroup Acciona
Encrgia Global Sudafrica

Subproup Acciona
Erergia

Subgroup Acciona
Servicios Hospitalarios

Subevoop Accions
Concesiones

Suberoep Acciona
Enerpia

Subgroup Cedlica
Sebgroep Cedlica
Subgroup Ceolica
Suhgroup Cedlica
Subgroup Cedlica
Subgrouap Cedlica
Subgroup Eaxvovemio
Subgronp Cedlica

Subzronp Cedlica

Carrying
amount

2,148

7.995

28773

1

30

26

30

179

1,159

6.858

14
5,830

753,942

3,726

6,684

1,583

281



TRANSLATION

Company
Parque Eddico De Tea. S.L.

Parque Eohico Vicedo. S.L.

Parque Eohico Virxe Do Monte.
S.L.

Parques Eolicos De Bato. S_.L.

Polizoao Romica, S AL

Port City Water Services Inc.

Reghion Agua SCARL.

Residencial Maranta Dos S A de
C.V.

Rising Sun Energy. S AE.

S.C. Autovia De La Plata S.A.

S.C. Autovia Gerediaga Elorrio
S.A.

S.C. Del Canal De Navarra, S A.
Novo Hospitat De Vigo S.A
S.C. Puente Del Ebro, S.A.

Servicio De Tratamiento De Aguas
Ptar Caracol, S,A

Servicios Comunitarios De Molina
De Segura, S.A.

Sistemes Electrics Espluga, S A.

Sociedad De Aguas Hispano
Mexicana S.A De C.V.

Sociedad Explotadora Autovia
Gerediaga - Elorrio S.L.

Sociedad Mixta Del Agua- Jaen,
S.A.

Sociedad Operadora Novo Hospital
De Vigo S.A.

Solena Group
Sunrisc Energy, S.A.E.
Testa Residencial Socimi SA

Tranvias Urbanos De Zaragoza S.L.

Tuto Energy 1, S.A.P.l. de C.V.

Tuto Energy li, SAP.I. de C.V.

Valdivia Energia Eolica, S.A.
Vento Mareiro. S.L.
Ventos ¢ Terras Galegas 1. S.L.

Ventos ¢ Terras Galegas. S.L.

Awdit

A

sl

Location

A Corofia
A Corufia
A Coruiza
A Comuiia
Albaccte

Canada

ftaly
Mexico
Egypt
Madnd
Bilbao
Pamplona

Poatevedra

Aragén

Mexico

Surcis

Barcelona

Mexico

Spain

Jaén

Pontevedra

USA

Egypt

Madrid

Zaragoza

Mexico

Mexico

Sevilla

A Corufa

Galicta

Galicia

Maia activity
Epergy
Energy
Eoeren
Energy
Real estate

Water
Treatment

Water
Treatment

Real estate
Energy
Concessions
Concessions
Concessions
Concessions
Concessions

Water
Treatment

Water
Treatment

Energy

Water
Treatment

Concession
Operation

Water
Treatment

Concession
Operation

Urban Services

Encrgy

Real estate

Concession
QOperation

Energy

Energy

Energy
Energy

Energy

Effective
Share %

54.00%%

50.00%

504

50.00%

50.00%

50.60%

50.60%

10.00%

50.00%

50.00%

28.70%

60.00%

43.33%

25.00%

38.00%

21.02%

15.00%

50.00%

50.00%

50.00%

24.50%

50.00%

Holder of interest
Subgroep Cedlica
Subgroup Cedlica
Subgroup Cedlica

Subgroup Cedlica
Subgroup Acciona
Immobilana

Subgroup Acciona Agua

Sebegroup Acciom Agua
Servicios

Subgroup Pargue
Reforma

Subgroap Acciona
Energia Global

Subgroup Acciona
Constraccidn

Subgroup Acciona
Construccion

Acciona

Acciona

Acciona

Subgroup Acciona Agua

Subgroup Acciona Agua
Servicios

Subgroup Acciona
Enecrgia

Subgroup Acciona Agua

Subgroup Acciona
Concesiones

Subgroup Acciona Agua
Servicios

Subgroup Acciona
Servicios Hospitalarios
Subgroup Acciona

Servicios Urbanos y
Medio Ambiente
Subgroup Acciona
Energia Global
Subgroup Acciona Real
Estate

Subgroup Acciona
Concesiones

Subgroup Acciona
Energia Mexico Global

Subgroup Acciona
Energia Mexico Global

Subgroup Acciona
Energia

Subgroup Eurovento
Subgroup Tripower

Fripower

Carrying
amoant

8G7
1.091
11.531

7017

13,605

6,693

10,267

34

5,944

50

1,368

26

3,995

1,091

335,824

213

1,888

3,145
1

2

)



TRANSLATION

. - Al . ... Effective - . Carrying
Corpary Awmdit Laocatics  Mals aciivity Share % Holder of interest amount

Vertex Residencial Cuajimalpa, X ,  Subgroup Parque
SADeCV. A Mexico Real estate 10.60% Rek 298

(*) Companies whose financial staterments are aedited by (A) KPMG:. (B) PricewaterhonseCoopers; {C) Deloitte; (D) Emst &
Young (E) Others
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TRANSLATION

APPENDIX IV

CHANGES IN THE SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION

Changes in the consolidation scope in 2017 were as follows:

Company Location Main activity

Acciona Facility Services Polend Spotka 7Z.0.0. Poland Urhan Services
Acciona Geotech Holdimg Pty 11d Australia Constraction
Geotech Holdeo PTY LTD Austrahia Constrachion
Acciona Construction Holdings Pty Ltd Australia Constmction
Geotech Pry Ltd Australia Constraction
Coleman Rail Pty Lid Australia Construction
John Beever Pty Lid Australia Construction
Geog Services Pty Lud Australia Construction
Acciona Geotech Group Services Py Lid Austraha Construction
Acciona Concesiones PZW mvestment limated New Zealand Conces'slon

Operatien
P2W Services Limited New Zealand Concession

Operation
Acciona Constroction USA Corp. usa LConstraction
Alsubh Solar Power, S.AE. Egypt Energy
Vientes Bajo Hoodo, SA. Argentina Foergy
Vientos Bapo Hondo 1, S.A. Argemtina Epergy
Aista-Trans JV(PTY)LTD Seuth Africa Engineering
g o\r;structom Terminal Valle de Méxwo. S A de Mexico Co ction
Acciona Constrecewn Aastralia, Pty Lud Austrai Construction
Acciona Financiacion Fihales Austraiia Pty Ltd Australia Financiat

. . g . Water
Acciona Wastewater Solutons GP toc. Canads Treatment
Acciona Construction Maroc, SARL Morocco Construction
Palmas Wind, Llc USA Energy
Civerzba ITG, S.L. Egypt Energy
Efrato ITG, S.L. Egypt Energy
Testa Residencial Socimi SA Spain Real estate
Acciona Suministradora México, S.R.L. de C.V. Mexico Energy
Acciona Industrial Australia, Pty Lid Australia Engineering
Rising Sun Energy, S.A L. Egypt Energy
Sunrise Energy, S.A.E. Egypt Frnerey,
- Pagel

Chbange

Addition
Additien
Addition
Addition
Addition
Addition
Addition
Additzon
Addition

Adduion

Addition
Addition
Agddition
Addition
Addition
Addition
Additien
Addition
Addition
Addition
Addition
Addition
Addition
Addition
Addition
Addition

Addition

—~=KAdition

Cluh

Consolidation
Method

Groap

Group
Group
Group
Group
Group
Group
Group
Group
Associates
Associates
Group
Associates
Greap
Grmoup

Multigroup
Associates
Group
Group
Associates
Group
Group
Group
Group
Group
Group
Group

Associates

Associates

P
R IR



TRANSLATION

Company

Acciona Aguz Sardizia Infieestractere SR

Tlaui Agoa. SA e C V.

Compafiia de agpa Calten, SAPL de (V.

Acciona Construction Philippines Inc.

Combuasiebor, S.L.

Logistica Del Transporte Sib, S.A.

Murfitrans, 5.1,

Transportes Frigorificos Murcianos, S.L.

Grupo Transportes Frigerificos Murcianos, 8.1

Frigorificos Caravaca, S.L.

Acciona Facility Services Belgigue Spil
Compagiz Urbanizade Det Coto, S.L.
Valgrand 6, S.A.

East West Connect Holding 3 Pry Limited
Acciona Solar Canarias, S A.

Tripower Wind. B.V.

S.C. Acciona Concesiores Rutz $690
Corporacion Eblica Sora. S.A.

Ripley Windfarm IV

Autovia De Les Viledos

Acciones Urbenas, Servicies v Medio Ambiente

SL.

Location

Trady

Miexico

Mexico

Philippines

Murcia

Murcia

Murcia

Mamgcia

Adzdrid
Madrid
Anstralia
Canary islands
Holland

Chile
Zaragoza

Canada

Tolede

Murcia

Main activity
Water
Treatment

Water
Treatment

Water
Treatment

Construction

Lagistics
Services

Logrtics
Services

Logistics
Services

Logistics
Services

Logistics
Services

Logisties
Services

Urban Services
Real estate
Real estate
Concessions
Energy

Energy

Concessions
Erergy
Energy
Comoessions

Urban Services

Changes in the consolidation scope in 2016 were as follows:

Company
Acciona Agua & Sogex Lic
Accinge Agas Caneds o,
Acciona Agua Internaciona! inc.
Acciona Airpor Services Disseldorf Gmbh
Acciona Airport Services Chile Spa
Acciona Concesiones Australia Pty Limited
Acciona Financiacién De Filiales Chile Spa

Acciona Infrastructore New Zealand, Lid

Location

Omam
Carzda
Canada
Germany

Chile

Aupstralia
Chile
New Zealand

- Pagel86 -

Maip activity

Water Trestment
Waer Treztment
Water Treatment
[ogistics Services
Logistics Services

Concession

Operation
Financial

Construction

Change

Addron

Addition

Addition

Addition

Removals

Removals

Removals

Removals

Removals

Removals

Removals

Removals
Removals
Removals
Removals
Removal
Remaoval
Removal

Change in
Method

Change n
Method

Change m
Method

Change

Addition
Additon
Addition
Addition
Addition
Addition
Addition
Addition

Coasclidaticn
Method

Associates

Group

Group

Group

Group

Group

Group

Group

Group

Group

Group

Group
Group
Associates
Group
Associates
Group

Group

Group

Group

Group

{ozselidation
Method

Associates
Group
Group
Group
Group
Group

Group
Group



TRANSLATION

Company

Acciona Ingenieria Colombia, S.A.S.
Acciona Saudi Arabia For Contracting Llc
Divinopolis Sancamento, S.A.

Energia Rcnovable Del Istmo [ SA de Cv
Liciastar (Propietary ) Limitcd

Mt Gellibrand Wind Farm Holding Pty Lid
NORDEX SE

Northwinds Trading (Proprietary) Limited
Parque Eolico San Gabriel Spa

Port City Water Services Inc.

Proyecto F8 Troy Aym, S.A.de C.V.
Reghion Agua S.C.AR.L.

Residencial Maranta Dos S.A.de C.V.
San Roman Finance Lic

San Roman Holding Lic

Sociedad Explotadora Autovia Gerediaga -
Elorrio S.L.

Tolchén Transmision Spa
Tolpan Sur, Spa

Tuto Encrgy I, SAPIL de C.V.
Tuto Energy li, S. APl de C.V.

Almeyda Spa
Malgarida 1 Spa
Malgarida [1 Spa
Pichilingue Spa
Pitilin Spa

Usya Spa

Acctona - Vjetroelektrane D.O.O.
Acciona Airport Services Berlin, S.A.
Acciona Blades, S.A.

Acciona Energiaki, S.A.

Acciona Engineering Canada Inc
Acciona L.as Tablas, S.L.

Acciona Towers, S.L.

Acciona Windpower Brasil Ltda.
Acciona Windpower Chile, S.A.
Acciona Windpower Deutschland Gmbh
Acciona Windpower India Private Limited
Acciona Windpower Internacional, S.L.
Acciona Windpower Korea, Inc

Acciona Windpower México, Srl De C.V.

Acciona Windpower North America L.1..C.

Acciona Windpower Oceania, Pty, Ltd

Location

Colombia
Saudi Arabia
Brazil
Mexico
South Africa
Australia
Germany
South Africa
Chile
Canada
Mexico

Italy

Mexico
USA

USA

Spain
Chile
Chile
Mexico
Mexico
Chile
Chile
Chile
Chile
Chile
Chile
Croatia
Germany
Navarra
Greece
Canada
Madrid
Madrid
Brazil
Chile
Germany
India
Navarra
South Korea
Mexico
USA

Australia

- Pagel &’

Main activity

Engineering
Engineering
Water Treatment
Energy
IEnginecring
Energy

Energy
Engineering
Energy

Water Treatment
Engineering
Water Treatment
Real estate
Energy

Energy

Concession
Operation

Energy
Energy
Encrgy
Encrgy

Energy
Energy
Energy
Energy
Energy

Energy
Energy
LLogistics Services
Energy
Energy
Enginecring
Real estate
Energy
Energy
Energy
Energy
Energy
Energy
Energy
Energy

Lnergy

Change

Addition
Addition
Addition
Addition
Addition
Addition
Addition
Addition
Addition
Addition
Addition
Addition
Addition
Addition

Addition

Addition
Addition
Addition
Addition

Addition
Addition on
Split
Addition on
Split
Addition on
Split
Addition on
Split
Addition on
Split
Addition on
Split

Removal
Removal
Removal
Removal
Removal
Removal
Removal
Removal
Removal
Removal
Removal
Removal
Removal

Removal

.. .—Remaoval. . -

TR

Consolidation

Method
Group
Group

Associates
Group
Multigroup
Group
Associates
Group
Group
Associates
Muitigroup
Associates
Associates
Group
Group

Associates
Group
Group

Associates

Associates
Group
Group
Group
Group
Group

Group
Group
Group
Group
Group
Group
Group
Group
Group
Group
Group
Group
Group
Group
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Company

Acciona Windpower Riizgar Enerjisi Sistemleri
Acciona Windpower South Africa (Pty) Ltd.
Acciona Windpower, S A.

Arturo Soria Plaza, A.I.E.

Constructora Sacyr Necso Chile, S.A.
Corporacion Acciona Windpower, S.L.
Energia Renovable De Teruel ,S.L.

Eoliki Evripoy Cesa Hellas Epc

Eoliki Panachaikou Sa

Eoliki Paralimnis Cesa Hellas Epe

Gestion De Edificios Comerciales, S.A.

Hsd Flughafen Gmbh

Industria Toledana De Energias Renovables, S.L.

Secomsa Gestid, S.L

Shanghai Acciona Windpower Technical Service
Co.,Ltd

Tratamiento De Residuos De La Rad, S.L.
Vector-Cesa Hellas Likosterna Epe

Yeong Yang Windpower Corporation 1
Acciona Energia Solare Italia, S.R.L
Acciona Edlica Basilicata, Srl

Acciona Eolica Molise, Srl

Acciona Rinnovabili Calabria, Srl
Acciona Rinnovabili Italia, Srl
Corporacion Eélica De Zamora. S.L.
Eoélica De Sanabria. S.L.

Eolicas Del Moncayo. S.L.

Parque Eolico Tortosa. S.L.

Sistemas Energéticos Ei Granado. S.A
ATLL Concesionaria de la Generalitat de

Catalunya, S.A.

Parque Reforma Santa Fe, S.A. De C.V.

Location

Turkey
South Africa
Navarra
Madrid
Chile
Madrid
Teruel
Greece
Greece
Greece
Madrid
Germany
Toledo

Tarragona

China
La Rioja
Greece

South Korea
[taly

ftaly

Italy

Haly

Italy
Madrid
Madrid
Soria
Barcelona
Sevilla
Barcelona

Mexico
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Main activity

Energy
Energy
Energy

Real estate
Construction
Energy
Energy
Energy
Energy
Energy

Real estate
Logistics Services
Energy

Urban Services

Energy
Urban Services
Energy

Energy
Energy
Energy
Energy
Energy
Energy
Energy
Energy
Energy
Energy
Energy
Water Treatment

Real estate

Change

Removal
Removal
Removal
Removal
Removal
Removal
Removal
Removal
Removal
Removal
Removal
Removal
Removal

Removal

Removal
Removal
Removal

Removal
Removal on
Merger
Removal on
Merger
Removal on
Merger
Removal on
Merger
Removal on
Merger
Removal on
Merger
Removal on
Merger
Removal on
Merger
Removal on
Merger
Removal on
Merger
Change in
Method
Change in
Method

Consolidation
Method

Group
Group
Group
Associates
Associates
Group
Group
Group
Group
Group
Associates
Group
Group

Associates

Group
Group
Group

Group
Group
Group
Group
Group
Group
Group
Group
Group
Group
Group
Group

Group
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APPENDIX V

BREAKDOWN OF THE MAIN CONCESSIONS

Water division:

EDAR 8B

EDAR 7B

IDAM Alicante

IDAM Javea

IDAM Cartagena

1DAM Fouka

1DAM Ibiza -

Portmany

PTAR Atotonilco

WWTP Mundaring

PTAR La Chira

1DAM Arucas Moya

Red de

saneamiento en

Andratx

Port City Water

ATLL

Sercomosa

Somajasa

Gesba

Paguera

Costa Tropical

Boca del Rio

Construction, operation and maintenance of the
wastewater treatment plant "08B Zone" of Aragon

Construction, operation and maintenance of the
wastewater treatment plant "07B Zone" of Aragon

Construction, operation and maintenance of the sea
water desalination plant in Alicante

Construction, operation and maintenance of the sea
water desalination plant in Javea

Construction, gperation and maintenance of the sea
water desalination plant in Cartagena

Consbruction, operation and mairtenance of the sea
water desalinabion plant in Tipaza

Reconstruction, works operation and marnttenance of
the sea water desalinaetion pERt n San Amoria
Portmmamny and 1biza

Construction, operatron and maintenance of the
wastewater treatmend plant in Atotonilco

Construchon, operaton and mavdenance of the
wastesvater reatmernt plants in Mundanng

Construction, operation and maintenance of the
wastewater treattnent piants in La Chia

Extension, operation and maintenance of the sea
water desalination piaat ™ Arucas / Moya

Construction, op ina and sk e of the
sewage network it Asdvate

Design, construction, financing, operation and
maintenance of a water treatment plant and storage
reservoirs in Samt Johnt

Upstream water supply service in Ter-Liobregat

Public-private company whose principal activity is the
water supply to Molina de Segura
Public-private company to manage integrated water

cycle of public services in some relevant
Municipalities of Province of Jaen

Water supply service in Andratx and Deid (Matlorca)

Water supply service in Calvia (Mallorca)

Integrated water cycle service in Costa Tropical
(Granada)

Integrated water cycle of public services in Boca del
Rio { Veracruz )

2008 - 2031
2011 - 2031
2000 - 2018
2001 - 2023
2001 - 2020
2008 - 2036
2009 - 2029
2010 - 2035
2011 - 2048
2011 - 2037
2008 - 2024
2009 - 2044
2016 - 2048
2013 - 2062
1998 - 2040
2007 - 2032
1994 - 2044
1969 - 2019
1995 - 2045
2018 - 2047
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Spain

Spain

Spain

Spain

Spain

Mexico

Australia

Spasn

Spain

Spain

Spain

Spain

Spain

Spain

Spain

Mexico

100%

100%

50%

100%

63%

26%

S

24%

100%

100%

40%

76%

48%

60%

100%

100%

49%

70%

Operational

Operational

Operational

Operationat

Operational

Operational

Ciperationzd

Construdion

[Operational

Cperationatl

Operationai

Comsbruction

/Operarionat

Construction

Operational

Operational

Operational

Operational

Operational

Operational

Operational

Global integration

Global integration

Intangible asset

Intangible asset

Proportional integration  Financial asset

Globatl integration

Financial asset

Proportiona!l integration  Financia! asset

Eqguity method

Ergusity method

Equity method

Equity method

Eguity method

Gobal regraiion

Equity method

Globat integration

Equity method

Equity method

Global integration

Global integration

Fnancial asset

Finandal asset

Finandal asset

Financal asset

Financial asset

Intangible asset

Irangiue asset

financial asset

Intangible asset

Intangible asset

Intangible asset

Intangible asset

Intangible asset

Proportional integration Intangible asset

Global integration

Intangible asset
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Infrastructure division:

Chinook mads
(SEBT)

Avtrreia de los
Vifiedos
Rodovia do Ago
A2 - Section 2
Viindsor Essex
Pariayay

Pouveile Avtomuts
A-30

Auntovia Gerediaga -
Eioio

Auinvia de fa Fiala

Toowoomba Second
Range Crossng
{Hexws)

Puhi to Waricgorth

Corswoin Trazs
{Tranwvia Zaragoza)

Sydney Light Kad

Canal de Bavers

Hova Dassena
Esportiva de Bara

Fewt. St Sutra
Hospitat de Leon
Bajio

Hospital ded Horte
{Madnd}

Gran Hosgritad Can
Misses {Thiza)

Hoveo Hospitat de
Vigo

Centro Hospiteianio
Universitario de
Tolado

*Indirect shareholding through MAPLE Concessions Canada Inc., where 10% shareholding is held.

Pay for avabiily mad srtegreted m the (2igey g moioruay
{25hm)

[ Hion, ion and we of read CM-42 bebrean
Consuegra & Tomeflose {74.5km). Shados toi

Rermwery, cpermion and memenanoe & BR-353 (200.4%m) roag n
Rin e Jansiro stabe {between Yotz Redonda & Alén). Exphot ol

Remedeling, restoration, operation znd maimtenance of a 76.5km
strech of 2n expsting road between an 62 {A-2) and km 139 (boder
of prowince of Soria-Guadalgisra). Shadow tol

Design, construction and operation of 11om Righwray connecting
wdspr {Cetend - Cerads} aot US. Borer (DTt - Mohigan)

Consorurion st cperstion of Wl mad-Highway 30 in Monireal,
between Chiteauguay and Yaudreuit-Danon {74%m). Explict totf

Constructing, conservetion and speration of N-636 road, Gerediaga-
Bmvia stretrh, and ounservetion end coeration of Yanants de Hamio
atrezdy buit Pay for avishablity

Consiyuclion, orsenvalns ang operatien of Autovia de la Fata (A-
66} road, between Benavente aad Zammora. Stretches: A6

{G TGOTTAD) - S e} Fsla, Samicseniz dal Fsia -
Font=nilias de Castyo, Fontanidias de Castvo -Zamora. Pay for
EvalEbiy

Design, construction and operabion of 41km of the north ring road

n Toswoosba {Queeosiand), from Heliden Sga ta Atho!, throegh
Chartion. Aviatiabdity pay {25 year op ian frem construction
end)

Fmamce, design, consiruct and maintain the new Piho to
Werkwrrth motoesay. Tha Paet o Werkereth prgect =7 exdend
the four-fane Northern Motorway (SH1) 1B.5km from the
Jehrstone’s Bl enneds o fust north of Warkusorth.

Crnstyuction & sparstizn of the srestcay that oosses e ohy
{12.8kem)

Design, tonsbruction and C&M of 12 ref ne frem Ciroudar Quay
iz George Shreet & Centrat Saticn cossiog Sy Hils to Moore
Park, Kensingoon, Kingsford and Randwick. It inchrdes operation of
Inner Yest Une

Consinzction B operzsion of the 1™ phase of the Canal de Naverz

Constructips & apevation of the Roda de Bara manna. Revenusss
from meoTings, shaps & parkings (191,771m7)

TBEFOM for 3 mew 55-bed hospid {gfas 103 swrsing teme patieais)

Design, constructon, equipment avd Ok of the hospial (184
beds)

DAFCH of the hospital with an 2725 of 98 £00%" dvided it 4 Epoes
(283 beds)

DBFOM of the hospital with an 2rma of 72,000m° & a health center
(241 bads)

DEFDM of 3 tomprals with 23 eves of 202 0809 (175.080m2
hospial y 125,000m2 cer park). (2007 beds)

Constnsttion rd eperation of Hospitat Universitario de Toleds, with
FED beds

2010 -

2503 -

2008 -

2807 -

a0 -

2008 -

2012 -

20132 -

2015 -

2018 -

2014 -

2005 -

ZED5 -

2610 -

2015 -
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2343

2033

2833

20328

2044

2043

20342

20342

2843

2345

2044

2034

2035

2035

2047

2030

TS

2045

X035

2045

Spam

Brazu

Spain

Canada

Spain

Austrahia

e
Zeatand

Spain

Aushralia

SpEn

Spamn

Spsmn

Spain

SpEA

Spain

5%

1%

160%

5%
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ACCIONA, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(CONSOLIDATED GROUP)
DIRECTORS’ REPORT - FINANCIAL YEAR 2017

ACCIONA discloses its results in accordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) under a corporate structure, which comprises three divisions:

* Energy comprises the electricity business, from construction of wind farms to the
generation, distribution and marketing of different energy sources.

= Infrastructure:

~ Construction includes mainly construction, industrial and engineering activities
as well as transport and hospital concession activities.

—  Water includes the construction of desalination, water and wastewater treatment
plants, as well as integral water services management from bulk water abstraction
all the way to discharging treated wastewater to the environment. ACCIONA
Agua also operates water concessions across the entire water cycle.

- Services include the activities of facility services, airport handling, waste
collection and management and logistic services among others.

= QOther activities include the businesses of Trasmediterranca, Real Estate, Bestinver
(fund manager), wineries and other businesses.

The Alternative Performance Measures or APM’s used constanly in this half period
report by ACCIONA Group are listed and defined below:

EBITDA or Gross profit/(loss) from operations: is defined as operating income
before depreciation and amortisation, that is, it shows the operating result of the Group.
The Company presents the calculation of EBITDA in the consolidated Profit & Losses
account (see Consolidated Income Statement in point 2 of the Directors' Report). It is
calculated by taking the following items of the consolidated income statement: “net
revenue”, “other revenues”, “change in inventories of finished goods and work in
progress”, “cost of goods sold”, “personnel expenses” and “other operating expenses”.

Net debt: it shows the Group’s debt, in net terms, deducting cash and cash equivalents.
The detailed reconciliation is broken down in the Cash-flow and Net Financial Debt
Variation section of the Directors' Report. [t is calculated by taking the following items
from the consolidated balance sheet: “non-current interest-bearing borrowings”,
“current interest-bearing borrowings”, less “cash and cash equivalents” and “other
current financial assets”.

Non-recourse debt: as indicated in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements, it
corresponds to debt that does not have corporate guarantees, and therefore its recourse
is limited to the debtor’s assets and cash flows.

Recourse debt: debt with a corporate guarantee.

Financial gearing: it shows the relation between the Group’s financial debt and its

equity. [t is calculated dividing “net debt” (calculated as explained above) by equlty )

Backlog: is defined as the pending production, that is to say, contract@ial amounts.or.. -

o~

customer orders after having deducted theam = : . iIncome on
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the income statement. It is calculated on the basis of orders and contracts awarded to
the Group, deducting the realised portion that is accounted on “net revenue” and adding
or subtracting “other variations”, that corresponds to forex adjustments, modifications
to the initial contracts and other changes to be made to the awarded backlog.

Net Capex: is defined as the net change in the balance of property, plant & equipment,
intangible, financial and real estate assets during the period, corrected by:

e Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of assets during the period
e Results on disposal of non-current assets
e Forex fluctuations

When dealing with changes in the consolidation perimeter, net capex is defined as the
net outflow/inflow of used/sourced resources in the purchase/sale of net assets.

Operating Cash-flow: it represents the ability of assets to generate resources in terms
of net debt. It is obtained as follows:

EBITDA plus/minus change in operating working capital minus net financial cost
plus/minus cash inflow/outflow of capital gains plus income from associates
plus/minus other cash inflow/outflow different from those included in the Net
Investment Cash-flow and from those which constitute remuneration to shareholders.

Net Investment Cash-flow: It is calculated as the Net capex plus/minus change in
payable to capex providers.

Ordinary EBT: it is defined as earnings before tax excluding those accounting
impacts related to exceptional decisions made by the Group’s management, which go
beyond the usual course of business operative decisions made by the different
division’s top management and are detailed in segment information note.

Management uses these APMs to take financial, operational or planning decisions.
They are also used to evaluate the performance of the Group and its subsidiaries.

Management considers these APMs provide useful additional financial information to

evaluate the performance of the Group and its subsidiaries as well as for decision-
making by the users of the financial information.
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Executive Summary

Key Highlights of the period:

e ACCIONA generated an income of €7,254 million, that represents an increase of 21.4%
vs. FY2016.

e The EBITDA reached €1,275 million during FY2017, 7.0% more than in FY2016. This
year is characterised by a higher contribution from Infrastructure division (+€106 million)
which largely offset the slight decrease in the Energy division (-€14 million) and the
lower contribution from Other Activities (-€7 million).

e The Energy division has delivered slightly lower EBITDA (-1.9%) vs FY2016, even
though the Generation business improved its results (+2.5%). Mainly, due to the lower
contribution from third-party turnkey activity, now that the Energy division has decided
to focus exclusively on the construction of assets for its own portfolio.

e The Generation business in Spain increased its EBITDA by 9.7% thanks to the higher
level of wholesale electricity prices as well as higher regulated incomes over the periodic
review, even these drivers were significantly mitigated by the regulatory banding
mechanism, forward sales, and lower production.

e The International Generation business suffered from lower generation volumes -partly
due to events of force majeure- which led to declining EBITDA (-5.5%), despite the new
capacity in operation.

e The Infrastructure division EBITDA increased across all its business lines and
consolidated its margin levels. The volume in construction business is exceptionally high
due to the simultaneous execution of five big projects.

e In Other Activities, the increased contribution of Bestinver (+18.9%) should be
highlighted, with an EBITDA approaching historical highs.

e |n terms of investment force, the gross capital expenditure in FY2017 reached €920
million which compares to the €916 million invested in FY2016. The Group’s core
businesses attracted the majority of the capex, with €468 million in Energy and €359
million across the Infrastructure division, which included one-off investments. Net
Investment Cash-flow amounted to €609 million.

e Net Debt reached €5,224 million, 1.8% higher than in FY2016, highlighting the
improvement of working capital and the closing of the sale of Ruta 160 in Q4 2017.

e On the other hand, ordinary financial expenses have decreased by 23.0%, consolidating
the Group’s new funding model as well as marginally improving financial expenses. Cost
of debt decreased t0 3.77% in FY2017 vs. 4.74% in FY2016.

e FY2017 has been a year of intense M&A activity, notably divestment deals as the sell
agreement of Trasmediterranea (expecting close for H1 2018), the contribution of Real
Estate assets to Testa Residencial and the sale of Ruta 160 concession that was liquidated
in Q4 2017.

-
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Income Statement Data

(Million Euros)
Revenues
EBITDA
EBIT
Ordinary EBT
EBT

Net attributable profit

Balance Sheet Data and Capital Expenditure

. (MiBiex Ewrws)
Equity

Net debt

(Million Euros)
Gross Capex
Net Capex

Net Investment Cashflow

Operating Data

Construction backlog (Million euros)
Water backlog (Million euro))

Total wind installed capacity (MW)
Total installed capacity (MW)

Total production (GWh) (Jan-Dec)

Average workforce

Jan-Dec 17 Jan-Dec 16 Chg. %
7.254 5,977 21.4%
1.275 1,192 7.0%
720 988 27.1%
382 312 22.3%
356 408 -12.6%
220 352 -37.5%
3i-Bee-17 3i-Pec-16 Chg. %
3,963 4,097 -3.3%
3224 3,131 1.8%
Jan-Dec 17 Jan-Dec 16 Chg. %
920 916 0.4%
719 852 -15.7%
609 719 -15.3%
31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 Chg. %
6,768 8,140 -16.9%
11,165 10,469 6.6%
7.382 7.260 1.7%
9,022 8,913 1.2%
20,431 20,830 -1.9%
37.403 32.835 13.9%
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Consolidated Income Statement

(Million Euros)

Revenues

Other revenues

Changes in inventorics of finished goods and work in progress

Total Production Value

Cost of goods sold
Personnel expenses
Other expenses

EBITDA

Depreciation and amortisation

Provisions

Impairment of assets value

Profit/(loss) from plant, property and equipment
Other gains and losses

EBIT

Net financial result
Translation differences (net)

Var. provisions financial mvestimess

Share in results of associates accounted for by the eqaity method

Variatton in fair valoe of fmance] mstrements
EBT

Tax on profit

Profit/(loss) from Continaing Activities

Non-controlling interests

Attribntable Net Profit
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Jan-Dee 17

7,254

613
29

7,896

(1,976)
(1.497)
(3,149)

1,275

(633)
(30)
(7
1l
4

720

(322
(10)
(2
(70
3%

356

(i)

251

Gh

Jan-Dec 16

5,977

(1,595)
(1.288)
(2.466)

1,192

(547)
(231)
(107)
640
43

988

(671)
28
(1}
70

(€)

(34)

374

(22)

352

Chg. (€Em) Chg. %

1,277 21.4%
59 10.6%
21 247.4%

1,356 20.7%

(381) 23.9%

(209) 16.3%

(682) 27.7%
82 7.0%

(86) 15.7%
201 87.1%
101 93.7%

(528) 82.6%

(39) 91.2%
(268) 27.1%
349 -52.1%

(38)  -135.7%
(h  -129.8%

(139) -199.9%

+a
L

na

(1) -12.6%

(72) 211.8%

a23) -32.9%
@ -20.9%
(132) 375%
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In order to facilitate the analysis of financial results for the period, a simplified Income
Statement separating ordinary from exceptional impacts is provided below.

Jan-Dec 17 Jan-Dec 16 Chg.
(Million Euros) Ordinary
Ordinary ]En’:;jlgt Total  Ordinary lEn’::)flgt Total [7A
Revenues 7,254 - 7,254 5977 - 5977 21.4%
Cost of goods sold, expenses and other (5.979) - (5.979) (4.786) - (4.786) 24.9%
income
EBITDA 1,275 - 1,275 1,192 - (1,192) 7.0%
Depreciation and amortisation (633) - (633) (547) - (547) 15.7%
Provisions, impairments and other 37 115 78 (43) 387 344 -14.5%
EBIT 605 115 720 601 387 988 0.6%
Net financial result (322) 0 (322) (373) (298) (671) -13.7%
Share in results of associates accounted for
ﬁ()
by the equity method 75 (145) (70) 70 0 70 8.5%
Other financial results 23 4 27 13 7 20 66.5%
EBT 382 -26 356 312 95 408 22.5%
Tax on profit (108) 3 (105) -117 83 (34) -7.4%
Profit/(loss) from Continuing Activities 274 (23) 251 195 179 374 40.4%
Non-controlling interests (41) 10 31 (49) 27 (22) -17.2%
Attributable Net Profit 233 (13) 220 146 206 352 59.8%
Revenues
(Mo Ewvos) Son-Dee 17 Jon-Bee 16 Che. ) Che %

Energy 1,737 1,796 (59) -3.3%

infrastrectere 4540 3611 1,329 36.8%

Other Activities 690 668 22 3.2%

Consolidation Adjustment (113) (98) (13 -15.7%

TOTAL Revenaes 7,234 3,977 1,277 2i4%

Consotidated revenues increased by 21.4% to €7,254 miilion, mainty due to the combined
effect of:

e The decline in Energy revenues (-3.3%) mainly due to the AWP deconsolidation
(wind turbine business) from 1st April 2016, and despite of the higher revenues
from generation {(+4.6%)

o Increase in revenues in all Infrastructure business lines (+36.8%)

Revenues from Other Activities slightly increased by 3.2%
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EBITDA

(Million Euros)

Energy

Infrastructure

Other Activities
Consolidation Adjustment
TOTAL EBITDA

Margin (%)

Note: EBITDA contributions calculated before consolidation adjustments.

Jan-Dec 17

726
426
124
()
1,275

17.6%

%
EBITDA

57%
33%
10%

1%

100%

Jan-Dec 16

740
321
131
0
1,192

19.9%

%

EBITDA  Che- (Em)
62% (14)
27% 106
i11% (7)

0% )
100.0% 84

Chg. %
-1.9%
33.0%

-5.2%

7.0%

-2,4pp

EBITDA increased by 7.0% to €1,275 million. This amount is reached due to the higher
contribution of Infrastructure (+33.0%), which largely offset the slight decrease in Energy
division (-1.9%) and the lower contribution from Other Activities (-5.2%).

EBIT

EBIT amounted to €720 million, 27.1% lower than in FY2016. This was mainly due to
the accounting of exceptional impacts last year for a total amount of €375million (mainly
related to capital gains derived from the AWP-Nordex deal).

Earnings Before Tax (EBT)

(Million Euros)

Energy

Infrastructure

Other Activities

Consolidation Adjustment

Ordinary EBT

Extraordinaries

TOTAL EBT

Margin (%)

Jan-Dec 16
134

120

127

1

382

(26)

356

4.9%

Jan-Dee 17
107

122

85

-3

312

95

408

6.8%

Chg. (€Em) Chg. %

(27) 25.1%
2) -1.9%
42 48.9%

4 n.a.

70 22.3%
(121) -126.7%
(3N -12.6%
-L.9 pp

Ordinary EBT increased by 22.3% to €382 million boosted not only by the increase in
EBITDA, but also by the lower financial expenses.

Including the exceptional results derived from the contribution of Real Estate assets to
Testa Residential, Ruta 160’s capital gain and the impairment of the Groupn’s stake in
Nordex total EBT reached €356 million, -12.6% vs. FY2016.
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Attributable Net Profit

Attributable net profit amounted to €220 million, 37.5% lower than in FY2016 mainly
due to higher taxes, since in 2016 a large part of the exceptional impacts generated tax
credits. However, ordinary attributable net profit reached €233 million, which means an
annual growth of 59.5%.

Consolidated Balance Sheet

(Million Euros) 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 Chg. (€Em) Chg. %

Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible assets 8,393 9,974 (1,581) -15.9%
Financial assets 1,523 1,340 183 13.7%
Goodwill 186 79 106 134.2%
Other non-current assets 1,083 1,291 (208) -16.1%
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 11,184 12,684 (1,500) -11.8%
Inventories 821 783 38 4.9%
Accounts receivable 1,892 1,724 168 9.8%
Other current assets 298 250 48 19.1%
Other current financial assets 247 211 36 16.9%
Cash and Cash equivalents 1,273 1,428 (156) -10.9%
Assets held for sale 1,432 327 1,105 333.7%
CURRENT ASSETS 5,963 4,723 1,239 26.2%
TOTAIL ASSETS 17,147 17,408 (260) -1.5%
Capital 57 57 - 0%
Reserves 3,486 3437 49 1.4%
P‘roﬂt attributable to equity holders of the parent 220 352 (132) 37.5%
Company

Treasury stock (3) (14) a 78.2%
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS o
OF THE PARENT COMPANY 3,760 3.831 an -1.9%
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 203 266 (63) -30.9%
EQUITY 3,963 4,097 (134) -3.4%
Interest-bearing borrowings 5,272 5,602 (330) -5.9%
Other non-current habilitics 2,805 3,237 (432) -15.4%
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 8,077 8,839 (762) 9.4%
Interest-bearing borrowings 1,472 1.169 304 26.0%
Trade payables 2,199 2,297 (98) -4.3%
Other current liabilities 962 819 143 17.4%
Liabilities associated to assets held for sale 474 186 287 154.4%
CURRENT LIABILITIES 5,107 4,471 636 14.2%
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 17,147 17,408 (260) -1.5%
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(Million Euros) Jan-Dec 17 Jan-Dec 16 Chg. Chg. (%)
EBITDA 1,275 1,192 83 7.0%
Financial Results (254) (330) 76 23.0
Working Capital (343) 162 (505) n.a.
Other operating cashflow (251) (244) (7) -2.9%
Operating cashflow 427 780 (353) -45.3%
Gross ordinary Capex (920) (916) (4) -0.4%
Divestments 201 64 137 n.a.
Other investment cashflows 110 133 23) -17.3%
Net Investment Cashflow (609) (719) 110 15.3%
Treasury stock (6) - (6) n.a.
Derivatives 25 (12) 37 n.a.
Forex 105 (81) 186 n.a.
Dividends (165) (143) (22) -15.4%
Changes in scope & other inc. convertible bond 130 203 (73) -36.0%
Financing/other cashflow 89 (33) 122 369.7%
Change in net debt decrease/(increase) (93) 28 (121) 432.1%
Attributable Equity

ACCIONA s attributabie equity as of 3 1st December 2017 reached €3,760 million, 1,9%
lower than the previous year.

Net Financial Debt
31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16
Chg. (€m) Chg. %
Amouast Total Amount % Total
Non-recourse financial debt 1,889 28% 2254 33% (365) -16.2%
Reeourse financial debt 4.855 72% 4,517 67% 338 7.5%
Financial debt (*) 6,744 100% 6,771 100% 27) -0.4%
Cash + cash equivalents (1,520) (1,640) (120) -7.3%
Net financial debt: 5,224 5,131 93 1.8%

* Financial debt includes debentures and bonds.

Net financial debt as of 3ist December 2017 totalled €5,224 miilion, 1.8% above
December 2016 levels. This variation in debt was mainly due to the combination of the
following factors:

e The Operating Cash-flow amounte {égﬁééﬁ Efffc;\c/ted ;

N
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- The improvement in EBITDA by €83 million
- The investment in working capital vs. the cash received in FY2016 (-€343
million vs. +€162 million in 2016) had a negative impact. The main cause of
this variation is the collection of prepayments from construction projects in
2016 that have been partially consumed in 2017.
- The positive effect of the reduction in financial outflows that fell to -€254
million (€76m lower than in FY2016)
e The Net Investment Cash-flow of -€609 million included a few one-off
investments in Infrastructure and Energy divisions.
e The positive effect of the exchange rates (-€81 million in 2016 vs. +€105 million
2017).

Financial gearing has evolved as follows:

(Million Euros) 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16
Gearing (Net Debt/Equity) (%) 132% 125%
Capital Expenditure
{MSisn Earos) Jas-Dev 17 Jan-Bee 16 Chg. {€m) Chg. (%)
Energy 468 489 21) -4.3%
Infrastrectnre 35 338 1 0.3%
Construction and Induostrial 278 205 74 36.0%
Concessions 25 19 6 31.8%
Water 38 107 (69) 642%
Services i8 28 (o) -343%
Other Achivities 93 69 24 34.3%
Gross Capex 928 916 4 8.4%
Divestments {201 {63) (137) -2152%
Net Capex 719 852 (134) -15.7%

Gross capital expenditure across ACCIONA’s divisions in FY2017 amounted to €920
million.

Energy and Infrastructure divisions comprise the greatest investment effort. The Energy
division invested €468 million related to, among others, the last payments for projects
already in operation, the construction of new wind power capacity in Mexico, Australia
and Chile and the acquisition of an additional 50% of a wind farm in Canada.
Infrastructure division investments worth €359 million, including the acquisition of
Geotech (€139 million).

In terms of divestments, it includes the sell of a real estate asset and Ruta 160 concession
(debt was already classified as liability held for sale).

As a result, Net Capex has reached €719 million. In terms of cash outflows, Net
Investment Cash-flow amounted to €609 million.
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Results by Division

Energy
(Million Euros) Jan-Dec 16 Jan-Dec 16  Chg. (€m) Chg. %

Generation 1,324 1,266 58 4.6%
Spain 823 765 58 7.6%
International 501 501 - 0%
Non-generation 758 880 (122) -13.9%
Consolidation adjustments and other (345) -350 6 1.6%
Revenue 1,737 1,796 (59) -3.3%
Generation 802 782 20 2.5%
Spain 452 412 40 9.7%
International 350 370 (20) -5.5%
Non-generation (32) 27 (59) -219.1%
Consolidation adjustments and other 44) -70 25 36.5%
EBITDA 726 740 (14) -1.9%

Margin (%) 41.8% 41.2%
EBT 134 107 27 25.1%

Margin (%) 7.7% 6.0%

ACCIONA Energy's revenues fell by 3.3% compared to FY2016 to €1,737 million.
EBITDA slightly decreased to €726 million (-1.9%).

Generation EBITDA improved by a 2.5% to €802 million.

The Generation business in Spain grew thanks to higher wholesale prices (€52.24/MWh
vs €39.67/MWh in FY2016) and higher regulated revenues after the periodic review at
the beginning of the year, however, these factors have been mitigated by the regulatory
band mechanism (-€25 million), forward sales and lower production.

The International Generation business also suffered from lower generation volumes -
partly due to events of force majeure (Mexico and USA), although such effect was partly
offset by the new capacity in operation.

EBITDA contribution coming from Non-Generation activities decreased mainly due to
the reduction in the turnkey project business and AWP deconsolidation.

EBT amounted to €134 million, 25.1% higher than FY2016.

Over the last 12 months, consolidated installed capacity increased by 148MW due to the
increase of the international installed capacity and the reduction of 37MW of wind in
Spain (repowering of a wind farm), and 12MW hydro in Spain (end of this concession).
Internationally, 84MW of wind have been added in Mexico, 7SMW of wind in India and
38MW of wind in Canada.

At operational level, consolidated production amounted to 16,929GWh, 2.4% lower than
in FY2016, due to lower hydro and wind power production in Spain and despite the new

international capacity in operation. e e 2 T
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31-Dec-17
Spain
Wind
Hydro
Solar Thermoeleciric
Solar PV
Biomass
international
Wind
Usa
Mexico
Australia
baly
Sowh Affica
indta
Portugal
Canmda
Poland
Costa Rica
Chile
Croatia
Humgary
Solar PV
Chile
South Africa

Poriugal

Solar Thermoelecine (USA)

Total Wind

Total other technologies

Total Esergy

Total Coasolidated
Ipstalled Produced 1astalled Produced
MW GWh MW GWh
5,991 12,529 4,623 9,749
4,710 ¢ 850 3433 7069
876 1.804 876 1,804
250 457 250 457
3 4 3 4
61 414 61 414
3,122 7561 2874 7,189
2,671 7.208 2,469 6,584
721 2115 646 1,868
641 1,835 641 1,835
303 889 239 727
156 252 156 252
138 370 138 370
161 364 i6d 304
120 290 120 290
151 467 141 3604
101 210 101 250
30 225 50 225
45 120 45 120
30 78 30 78
24 33 - -
386 572 34 476
246 270 246 275
94 267 99 207
46 96 - -
&4 121 64 i21
7,382 17,858 5902 13,653
1,548 3373 1,595 3277
9,622 28,431 7,497 16,929
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Breakdown of Installed Capacity and Production by Technology

Installed
MW

5,229
4042
876
250

180

32
30
20
i2

301

Net

Produced
GWh

11,054
8.392
1.804

457
3
397
4,923
4,456
1.365
1,191
539
168
135
232
178
203
140
146
80

52
26

387
270
76

42

80

12,848
3,130

15,977
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Infrastructure
(Million Euros) Jan-Dec 17 Jan-Dec 16 Chg. (€Em) Chg. %

Construction 3,131 1,983 1.148 57.9%
Industrial 274 174 100 57.4%
Concessions 140 110 30 27.7%
Water 682 708 (26) -3.7%
Scrvices 753 677 76 11.2%
Consolidation adjustments 39 -41 2 4.9%
Revenues 4,940 3,611 1,329 36.8%
Construction 197 116 81 70.4%
Industrial 10 6 4 60.4%
Concessions 56 52 4 6.7%
Water 130 119 11 9.2%
Services 34 28 6 22.6%
EBITDA 426 321 106 33%

Margin (%) 8.6% 8.9%
EBT 120 122 2) -1.9%

Margin (%) 2.4% 3.4%

Revenues increased in both businesses amounting to €3,131 million in Construction
(+57.9%) and €274 million in Industrial (+57.4%).

EBITDA stood at €207 million backed by the growth of works in progress, as well as the
growth of capital-intensive construction projects, with greater EBITDA margins. It
should be noted that such high level of income and EBITDA is exceptional due to the
simultaneous development of important projects that are investment intensive.

Construction & Industrial Backlog

- Page203 -

(Million Euros) 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 Chg. % "V(f,;g)h'
0
Construction 6,287 7,527 -16.5% 33%
Industrial 481 613 -21.5% 3%
Water 11,165 10,469 6.6% 59%
Services 898 783 14.7% 5%
TOTAL 18,831 19,392 -2.9% 100%
e
J - D
A. Construction and Industrial RN
\ VU o
(Million Euros) Jan-Dec 17 Jan-Dec 16 Chg. (€Em) Chg. %
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Construction 3,13 1,983 1,148 57.9%
Industrial 274 174 100 57.4%
Revenues 3,404 2,157 1,247 57.8%
Construction 197 116 81 70.4%
Margin (%) 6.3% 5.8%
Industrial 10 6 4 60.4%
Margin (%) 3.5% 3.5%
EBITDA 207 122 85 69.9%
Margin (%) 6.1% 5.6%
EBT 57 56 1 1.9%
Margin (%) 1.7% 2.6%

Revenues increased in both businesses amounting to €3,131 million in Construction (+57.9%)
and €274 million in Industrial (+57.4%).

EBITDA stood at €207 million backed by the growth of works in progress, as well as the growth
of capital-intensive construction projects, with greater EBITDA margins. It should be noted that
such high level of income and EBITDA is exceptional due to the simultaneous development of
important projects that are investment intensive.

Construction & Industrial Backlog

As of 31st December 2017, backlog amounted to €6,768 million, 16.9% lower than in
FY2016.

It is to be highlighted the award of the contract for the construction of the Ciudad de
Mexico International Airport’s terminal, as well as the new construction projects of Cebu
Bridge in Philippines, Panamericana road in Panama and Marga Marga Hospital in Chile.

Furthermore, ACCIONA-Geotech was awarded during 2017 with a contract regarding
the modernization of the Ballarat Rail Line in Australia, which also contributed to the
construction backlog.

(Million Euros) 31-Dec-17  31-Dec-16  Chg. % “;f,jug)ht
Total Spain 1,247 1,417 -12.0% 18%
Total International 5,521 6,723 -17.9% 82%
Latin America 2,151 2,710 -20.6% 32%
EMEA (Spain not incl.) 1,738 2,407 -27.8% 26%
Australia and South-East Asia 1,026 1,146 -10.5% 15%
North America 606 459 32.1% 9%
TOTAL 6,768 8,140 -16.9% 100%
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B. Concessions

(Miltion Euros)
Revenues
EBITDA

Margin (%)
EBT

Margin (%)

Jan-Dec 17

140

56

39.6%

7.3%

Jan-Dec 16

110

52

47.4%

11.7%

Chg. (€m)
30

4

3)

Chg. %
27.7%

6.7%

-20.3%

Concessions increased its revenues by 27.7% to €140 million and EBITDA to €56

million.

As of December 31st 2017, Book Value of concessions amounted to €1,21 1 million (€368
million in “equity” and €844' million in net debt) and has a total amount of 20

concessions.

Appendix V shows the detail of the concessions portfolio as of 31st December 2017.

This figure includes the proportional part of the net debt from those concessions accounted by the equity

method (€568m)

C. Water

(Million Euros)

Revenues
EBITDA

Margin (%)
EBT

Margin (%)

The Water division revenues fell by 3.7%, but EBITDA increased by 9.2% to €130
million, primarily due to the increase of O&M activity which has higher margins.

Jan-Dec 16
682

130

19.1%

38

5.6%
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Jan-Dec 17
708

119

16.8%

38

5.4%

Chg. (€Em)
(26)

1

Chg. %
3.7%

9.2%

1.1%
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Water Backlog

Water Backlog as of December 2017 stood at €11,165 million, increasing by 6.6%
compared to FY2016. Among the new-awarded concessions, it is worth to mention the
construction of water treatment facilities in Canada and Panama, as well as the water
management service of Boca de Rio in Mexico.

(Million euros) 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16  Chg. (%) W(f,jog:"

D&C 537 555 -3.3% 5%
O&M 2,769 2,117 30.8% 25%
ATLL 7,858 7,796 0.8% 70%
TOTAL 11,165 10,469 6.6% 100%
(Million euros) 31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16 Chg. (%) W‘?;og)ht

Spain 9,194 9,141 0.6% 82%
International 1,970 1.328 48.4% 18%
TOTAL 11,165 10,469 6.6% 160%

Appendix V shows the detail of the portfolio of water concessions regulated by
CINIIF12 as of 31st December 2017.

D. Services

(Million Euros) Jan-Dee 17 Jan-Dec 16 Chg. (€m) Chg. %

Revenues 753 677 76 11.2%

EBITDA 34 28 6 22.6%
Margin (%) 4.6% 4.1%

EBT 14 15 1) -8.5%
Margin (%) 1.8% 2.2%

The division reported an increase in revenues of 11.2% to €753 million and an EBITDA
increase of 22.6% to €34 million, mainly due to higher volumes in the airport business.
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Other Activities
(Million Euros) Jan-Dec 17 Jan-Dec 16 Chg. (€m) Chg. %

Trasmediterranea 426 431 (5) -1.2%

Real estate 113 105 8 7.7%

Bestinver 106 85 21 24.9%

Corp. & other 45 48 (2) -5.0%
Revenues 690 668 22 3.2%

Trasmediterranea 45 61 -16 -26.0%

Margin (%) 10.5% 14.1%

Real estate 12 14 2) -13.3%

Margin (%) 10.8% 13.4%

Bestinver 70 59 11 18.9%

Margin (%) 66.1% 69.4%

Corp. & other -3 -3 - -9.6%
EBITDA 124 131 (7) -5.2%
EBT 127 85 42 48.9%

Margin (%) 18.4% 12.8%

During FY2017, Other Activities division, which includes Trasmediterranea, Real Estate,
Bestinver and others, reported revenues of €690 million, up to 3.2% vs. FY2016.

EBITDA decreased to €124 million (-5.2%), mainly due to Trasmediterrdnea’s results
and despite the increase in contribution of Bestinver.

Trasmediterranea:

It presents a relatively flat revenues level (-1.2%) with an increase in passengers, vehicles
and lane meters. EBITDA fell to €45 million, due to the increase in fuel costs related to
increase in oil prices.

Jan-Dec 17 Jan-Dec 16 Chg. (%)

Passengers served 2,547,566 2,508,535 1.6%

Cargo handled (lane metres) 6,057,793 5,780.966 4.8%

Vehicles 612,046 575,991 6.3%
Real Estate:

Turnover increased by 7.7% due to the asset rotation strategy (land).

EBITDA, however, fell by 13.3%, mainly due to desconsolidati
patrimonial assets and relaunching of development activity.
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Bestinver:

Bestinver’s AUMs reached €6,058 million as of 31st December 2017, and improved
EBITDA, up to €70 million (+18.9%) mainly due to higher average managed funds vs.
FY2016.
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MATERIAL INFORMATION, DIVIDEND AND SHARE DATA

Significant communications to the stock market

16 January 2017: ACCIONA reports the buyback of its remaining convertible
bonds up to a maximum of €108.4m

The Company announced its intention to repurchase up to €108.4m in aggregate principal
amount of its Bonds, representing the outstanding balance of the Bonds not already held
by the Company in treasury stock.

The Repurchase period was expected to close as soon as practicable on 19 January 2017
after market close, subject to the right of the Company to close or extend, at its sole
discretion, the Repurchase at any time.

19 January 2017: ACCIONA informs about the terms & conditions of the buyback
of its remaining convertible bonds

The definitive terms & conditions of the Repurchase were the following:
The aggregate principal amount of the Bonds to be repurchased would be €91,600,000.

The repurchase price per Existing Bond will be 134.80% of its principal amount, which
represents an aggregate consideration of approximately €123.48m for the Repurchase as
a whole.

The Company has accepted all offers for repurchase of the Existing Bonds.

Given that, following completion of the Repurchase, less than 15% in aggregate principal
amount of the Bonds originally issued will be outstanding, the Company will be able to
exercise its early redemption call in relation to all remaining Bonds at its principal amount
plus accrued and unpaid interests, subject to the decision of the Board of Directors.

8 March 2017: ACCIONA Construction Australia-Geotech Group Transaction

ACCIONA Construccion S.A has indirectly acquired through ACCIONA Geotech
Holding Pty Ltd the 82.4% of Geotech Holdings Pty Ltd, parent company of the
Australian construction group Geotech for a cash consideration of AUD197m (subject to
potential working capital, net debt and capex adjustments) and the assignment to
ACCIONA Australia of three projects currently under tender. The transaction values
Geotech at AUD262m (Enterprise Value) and the undertaking that ACCIONA Australia
will be the bidding vehicle for future civil construction projects in Australia and New
Zealand.

6 April 2017: Official announcement and submission of proposal of the Annual
General Meeting

On 6 April 2017, the company informed the CNMV (Spanish Stock Market Regulator)
of the Annual General Meeting announcement for 17 May 2017 for its first call, or the 18
May 2017 for its second one, and submitted the proposed agreements.
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» 28 April 2017:; Liquidity contracts and specialists

~ On 28 April 2017, the Company informed about the temporary suspension of the
Liquidity Contract subscribed with Bestinver Sociedad de Valores to manage its treasury
stock in order to allow the purchase of 300,000 shares of ACCIONA S.A by ACCIONA
S.A. that represent 0.523% of the share capital that is intended to cover 4.5% outstanding
from the Senior Convertible Bonds, after direct repurchases and the ones made on the
17th, 18th and 19th of January 2017.

= 28 April 2017: Liquidity contracts and specialists

— On 28 April 2017, ACCIONA acquired, through a mass operation, a total share issue of
221,357 treasury stocks that represent a 0.386% of the social capital whose unit price is
€74.70. After this transaction, the Company informed about the resumption of the
operations under the liquidity contract subscribed on 3 July 2015 with Bestinver Sociedad
de Valores S.A. in order to manage its treasury stock.

= 18 May 2017: Annual General Meeting — Approval of Agreements

- On 18 May 2017 the Annual General Meeting adopted, among others, the following
agreements:

- To approve the individualised annual accounts of ACCIONA S.A. for 2016, as well as
the consolidated annual accounts of the corporate for the same period.

—~ To appoint KPMG Auditores S.L. as the accounts auditor of ACCIONA S.A. and its
corporate group for a period of three years.

- To re-elect Mr. Jeronimo Gerard Rivero as Independent Director and appoint Ms. Karen
Christiana Figueres Olsen as Independent Director.

— To authorise the acquisition of shares in the Company by the Company itself and by
companies in its group, respecting the legal limits and requirements and in accordance
with the conditions set out, leaving without any effect, in the amount not utilised, the
authorisation approved for the purpose by the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders
in 24 May 2012.

- To approve the Directors Remuneration Policy for the years 2018,2019 and 2020 and the
empowerment of the Board of Directors to interpret, develop, formalise and execute this
agreement.

- To increase the maximum number of available shares for the Shares Delivery and
Performance Shares Plan for 2014-2019 in 100,000 shares, without prejudice to
subsequent increases, if proposed by the Board of Directors and approved by the General
Meeting.

- To Approve, for information purposes, the Annual Directors’ Remuneration Report for
the year 2016.

~ To approve the Sustainability Report 2016.

= 10 July 2017: The Company announces the completion of the liquidity contract
signed on 2 July 2015

~ ACCIONA informs that the liquidity contract subscribed with Bestinver Sociedad de
Valores, SA has been cancelled due to the entry into force on 11 July 2017, of Circular
1/2017 of 10 May, by the CNMV on liquidity contracts.

= 10 July 2017: ACCIONA announces the subscription of a new liquidity contract in
accordance with Circular 1/2017 of the CNMV

- ACCIONA informs that it has entered into a liquidity agreement with Bestinver Sociedad
de Valores, S.A. for the management of its treasury stock.
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—~ The Contract will have a duration of twelve months, which may be extended tacitly for
an equal period.

= 27 July 2017: ACCIONA reports the agreement reached with Testa Residencial for
the contribution of real estate assets

~ ACCIONA via its subsidiary ACCIONA Real Estate, S.A.U. has signed an agreement to
contribute its residential rental business to Testa Residencial SOCIMI, S.A. for €336m.
As consideration, ARE will receive newly issued shares in Testa representing 21% of the
total share capital.

= 1 August 2017: ACCIONA reports the early redemption call of the outstanding
Convertible bonds

—~ ACCIONA informs that there are in circulation less than the 15% of the Bond’s aggregate
principal amount originaily issued.

- The Company has decided to exercise its early redemption call on all current remaining
Bonds at its principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest up to (but excluding) the
redemption date pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Bonds, and redeem and cancel
the issuance entirely.

= 11 August 2017: ACCIONA announces the agreement for the sale of the Chilean
highway concession, Ruta 160

- The Company, via its subsidiaries ACCIONA Concesiones Chile Limitada and
ACCIONA Construccion, S.A., has entered into an agreement with Globalvia for the sale
of 100% of the Ruta 160 shares. The consideration transaction amounts to €335m,
including the assumption of €117m of project debt and €33m corresponding to the market
value of the financial derivatives associated to the debt.

= 25 October 2017: ACCIONA announces the disposal of its stake in
Trasmediterrinea

- ACCIONA has reached an agreement with Naviera Armas Group for the sale of its
holdings in Trasmediterranea (92.71%). The agreement implies an enterprise value for
100% of the company in a range of €419m to €436m, depending on the level of
achievement of an earn out agreed with the Purchaser. The sale price for the shares owned
by the Company amounts to €260.4m, of which €30.4m have been unconditionally
deferred. In addition, the Purchaser will assume the repayment of a debt between
Trasmediterranea and other companies belonging to the ACCIONA Group for an amount
of €127.3m. The transaction is subject to the fulfilment of a condition precedent.

®« 14 December 2017: ACCIONA reports on the modification of the Plan 2014 for
Delivery of Shares and Performance Shares

- The Board of Directors of ACCIONA has approved the amendment of the regulation of
the Plan 2017 for Delivery of Shares and Performance Shares to the manasement of
ACCIONA and its group.

- Amendments to the regulation of the Plan consist of:

a) Regarding Executive Directors:

o Deferral, of at least one year, in the delivery of 20% of the shares they are entitled- -~ - ~ -
to receive, also subject to the condition that their delivery d%qs,\q,o; disclose-a -
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material restatement of the ACCIONA Group's consolidated financial
statements.

o Possibility of claiming, under certain circumstances and during the 3 years
following the date on which the delivery of the shares has been made, the refund
of the equivalent amount (“claw-back”).

o Delivery date: The date specifically determined by the Board of Directors after
the Ordinary General Shareholders’ Meeting.

o The tax regime applicable to the Executive Directors is in line with that
established for the other beneficiaries of the Plan's regulations.

o Remuneration may be replaced at the proposal of Appointments and
Remuneration Committee, in the delivery of shares or different Alternative
Instruments provided for in the Plan’s regulations.

b) Regarding Beneficiaries other than Executive Directors:

o Extend the Plan duration by two additional years (that is, up to and including
2021) under the terms and conditions provided for in the Plan's regulations.

o It is foreseen the possibility of making an extraordinary allotment and delivery
of ACCIONA shares in multi-annual periods (minimum of three years) to one or
more Beneficiary Executives (other than Executive Directors) for the
achievement of extraordinary results.

o Remuneration may be replaced at the proposal of Appointments and
Remuneration Committee, in the delivery of shares or different Alternative
Instruments provided for in the Plan’s regulations.

* 18 December 2017: ACCIONA announces the temporary suspension of Liquidity
Contract

- ACCIONA announces the temporary suspension of the Liquidity Contract signed on 10
July 2017 with Bestinver Sociedad de Valores, S.A., for the management of its treasury
stock to allow the purchase by ACCIONA, S.A., of up to 90,000 shares of ACCIONA,
S.A., representing 0.157% of the social capital through two block transactions. Shares
that will be used to implement the Plan of Delivery of Shares and Performance Shares.

= 18 December 2017: ACCIONA informs of the resumption of operations under the
Liquidity Contract subscribed after the block transactions.

- ACCIONA has acquired, through two block transactions, a total package of 90,000
company’s own shares, representing 0.157% of the social capital at the cost of €70.71 per
share. In addition, once completed the reported operations, the Company informs of the
resumption of the transaction under the Liquidity Contract signed on 10 July 2017 with
Bestinver Sociedad de Valores, S.A., for the management of its treasury stock.

From 31 December 2017, ACCIONA has released the following material information:

® 26 January 2018: The Company communicates the internal reorganisation carried
out by one of the reference shareholders and the subsistence of the Pacto Parsasocial
de Estabilidad

- The family Group of Mr. José Maria Entrecanales de Azcarate, in order to rationalise the
management of its participation, updating and simplifying its corporate governance, has
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implemented an internal reorganisation resulting in La Verdosa SL directly owning
5.31% of ACCIONA.

- The terms of the aforementioned Pacto Parsasocial de Estabilidad, to which La Verdosa
SL adheres, have not been modified, with each of its signatories retaining full freedom to
vote and, therefore, there is no agreement on ACCIONA’s management.

= 9 February 2018: ACCIONA reports on the news published in the newspaper "E!
Economista' regarding certain energy assets.

- Inrelation to the news published in the newspaper "El Economista”, ACCIONA informs
that it is holding negotiations with Contour Global to carry out a corporate operation
related to energy assets, but neither the perimeter, nor the valuations, nor the other terms
and conditions mentioned in the article reflect the reality of it.

* 22 February 2018: ACCIONA reports on the news published by the media
regarding the Alta Ter-Llobregat (ATLL) water management contract.

—~ Regarding the news published by the media in relation to the Supreme Court ruling
dismissing the Generalitat de Catalunya and Sociedad General de Aguas de Barcelona,
S.A. contentious-administrative appeal against the ruling of the High Court of Justice of
Catalonia dated 22 june 2015, confirming the annulment of the award of the alta Ter-
Llobregat water management contract already decreed by the High Court of Justice of
Catalonia. ACCIONA reports that its appeal, based on different grounds than those
portrayed on these appeals, has not yet been resolved. Therefore, no sentence has been
notified regarding this matter.

- Once the Sentence is notified, ACCIONA will analyse the grounds for its decision and
will determine the appropriate legal and/or judicial actions.

— Inany case, it should be remembered that in accordance to Article 56 related to the public
tender and decision of the Regional Departments of Economy & Knowledge and Territori
i Sostenibilitat of the Generalitat de Catalunya dated 5 July 2013, ATLL Concesionaria
de la Generalitat de Catalunya is obliged to continue providing service until the
compensation set on the terms of reference and on the Consolidated Text of the Public
Contract Law is paid and until the minutes in relation to the return of the assets and rights
linked to the public service is signed.

Dividend

On 28 February 2017 ACCIONAs AGM proposed the payment of a dividend of €164.6m
(€2.875 per share) against 2016 results. The dividend was paid on 3 July 2017.
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The changes in treasury shares in financial year 2017 were as follows:

2017 2016
Mool con Mol o
Opening balance 233.898 14,403 320,460 20,238
Additions 3,395,430 253.160 4,992,255 338,284
Retirements (3.392916)  (253,024) (4,987,221) (338,300)
Liquidity contract 2,514 136 5,034 (16)
Additions 03/05/2017 (*) 221,357 16,569 - -
Other additions 90,001 6,370 - -
Retirements (502,068) (34,332) (91,596) (5,819)
Other movements (190,710) (11,393) (91,596) (5,819)
Closing balance 45,702 3,146 233,898 14,403

(*) Specific acquisition to meet the convertible bond conversion requirements

Events after the reporting period

On 21 February 2018, Acciona Group and the company ATLL Concessionaria de la
Generalitat de Catalunya S.A. became aware of the judgement handed down by the
Supreme Court on the cassation appeal filed by the Generalitat de Catalunya against the
High Court of Justice of Catalonia (HCJC) ruling which invalidated the procedure to
award said concession (appeal 2725/2015). This judgement dismisses the claims brought
forward by the Generalitat and confirms the HCJC ruling.

The Acciona Group is currently waiting for notification of the cassation appeal 2682/2015
filed by Gestio Catalana de Aigues, and appeal 2678/2015 filed by the Concessionaire
and by Acciona Agua against the HCJC judgement which invalidated the procedure to
award said concession.

On 26 February 2018, an agreement has been reached for the sale of the thermal solar
business in Spain to subsidiaries of the company Contour Global, consisting on five plants
with a total capacity of 250 MW for an amount of 1,093 million euros (including debt).
In addition, the parties have agreed to the payment of an earn out of up to 27 million
euros. The effectiveness of the operation is conditional upon compliance with several
conditions precedent (see Note 23 in the financial statements).
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Main Risks associated with the ACCIONA Group’s business activities

The risk scenarios considered in the ACCIONA Risk Management System have been
classified into four groups: financial, strategic, operational and unpredictable, with the
first two groups identified by the Group’s executives as those presenting a higher risk
profile.

1. Financial and Economic Risks:

Mainly fluctuations in exchange rates, interest rates and financial markets, changes in the
prices of raw materials, liquidity, cash flow, late payment or loss of clients.

In order to mitigate the exchange rate risk, ACCIONA engages currency derivatives
(mainly exchange-rate hedging instruments) to cover significant future transactions and
cash flows in line with the tolerated risk thresholds. Note 19 to the annual accounts for
2017 includes detail of current and non-current assets and liabilities and of net equity at
31 December 2017 in the main currencies in which the Group operates.

Interest rate risk is particularly material with regard to the funding of infrastructure
projects, in concession contracts, in the construction of wind farms or solar plants and
other projects where the variation in interest rates may have a strong impact on their
profitability. It is mitigated by hedging transactions through the engagement of
derivatives. (Mainly Interest Rate Swaps, IRS).

The risk of fluctuations in prices of raw materials, mainly when purchasing fuel, is
fundamentally mitigated in the short term by specific hedging transactions generally
through the engagement of derivatives.

As regards credit and liquidity risks, the Group negotiates operations exclusively with
solvent third parties and requires sufficient assurances to mitigate the risk of financial
losses in the event of any default.

Together with a suitable level of reserves, it also constantly monitors the forecasts and
the current levels of cash flows to match these against the maturity profiles for financial
assets and liabilities.

2. Strategic Risks:

They are risks that have the consequences of reducing the growth of the company and
failing to meet the objectives due to inability to respond to a dynamic and competitive
environment. These risks include organisational changes, investments and divestments,
threats from competitors, economic, political and legal changes, and the impact of new
technologies or research and development.

ACCIONA minimises this type of risk through its own strategy and business model by
applying adequate sectoral and geographic diversification of its businesses; the
performance of exhaustive market research, surveys of competitors and the countries in
which its activities are carried out; as well as through the encouragement of Research and
Development.
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Risks derived from contrary conduct to ethics and integrity. The markets in which
ACCIONA operates could be exposed to risks of an ethical nature that go against the
principles of integrity and respect in existing legislation. ACCIONA has put in place a
Code of Conduct which establishes the basic principles and commitments that all
directors and employees of the divisions as well as suppliers and third parties in contact
with these companies must fulfil and respect when carrying out their activities. There is
a whistle blowing channel, communicated at all levels of the Organisation, to enable
information to be passed on, with guarantees of confidentiality, regarding any irregular
conduct relating to accounting, supervision and auditing as well as any other non-
compliance or breach of the behaviour promulgated in the Code.

3. Operational Risks:

They are risks concerning processes, people and products. They are related to regulatory,
legal and contractual compliance, control systems and procedures, the supply chain,
auxiliary services, information systems, employee productivity and the loss of key
personnel.

In each business area, specific systems are established to cover all the business
requirements, to systematise and document processes, and to manage quality, operations,
planning and financial control.

In order to mitigate the risks in the procurement process, controls have been established
to favour free competition and transparency in the processes and to avoid violating
ACCIONA’s commitment to ethical behaviour in these processes.

Every year ACCIONA draws up a map of the risks with its critical suppliers, analysing
the main risks in its supply chain from the perspectives of economics, the environment,
the prevention of occupational hazards, the activity and the country of origin.

4. Unforeseeable Risks:

They are risks related to damage caused to company assets and civil liability risks that
could negatively impact the company’s performance, including criminal acts of a cyber
nature.

ACCIONA has a Corporate Management System for Environmental Crises. This system
includes measures to be followed and the allocation of responsibilities and resources
necessary for the adequate management of a crisis situation following any incident
occurring at facilities owned or operated by the Company and leading to consequences
for the environment.

ACCIONA has consolidated its initiatives for management of risks to the environment,
focusing its efforts on the identification and implementation of measures for the
mitigation of the most relevant risks.

As regards the tax risks faced by the Group, these are basically procedures,
communication with business areas that may lead to an inadequate technical analysis,
changes in tax regulations or administrative and jurisprudential criteria, as well as the
reputational risk arising from tax decisions that mav damaoce the Group's image and

reputation.
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Non-Financial Information Statement

Through ACCIONA’s sustainability strategy defined in its Sustainability Master Plan
(SMP), the company responds to the main challenges of sustainable development,
particularly regarding the mitigation of climate change, the provision of solutions to
address water stress and the design of infrastructure adapted to the new realities.

With a time frame up to 2020, the SMP (http://pds2020.acciona.com/) is structured in
strategic and operational objectives, applicable to the whole organisation, with
specifications for the different business lines, within the following areas:

e Society: social impact management, dialogue and leadership, social action and
volunteering.

e Climate Change: carbon neutrality, climate risks and education.
Environment: eco-efficiency in operations, sustainable water management,
biodiversity.

e Good Governance: ethics, human rights, corporate governance, risk management
and transparency.

e People: health and safety, development and incentives, diversity and inclusion,
and training.

¢ Value Chain: sustainable management of the supply chain, partners, and clients.

¢ Innovation: being at the forefront in the field of collaborative innovation and
operational innovation.

Since 2009, sustainability-related actions and undertakings as well as the objectives in
the field of sustainability are promoted by the Board of Directors’ Sustainability
Committee. In addition, the Management Committee includes a body in charge of
sustainability matters. At the same time, the specific objectives and initiatives of each
division within the SMP framework are driven through the Sustainability Committees of
each business.

In order to maintain an attitude of continuous monitoring of new trends and challenges in
sustainability matters, and to delve deeper into the social, environmental and governance
aspects of relevance for the business and to focus on accountability, ACCIONA draws up
a materiality survey every year.

In 2017 the materiality analysis was updated based on the previous year’s study, which
identified and prioritised issues relevant to each of ACCIONA's main lines of business
and their impact along the entire value chain. With regards to the key issues identified,
"Climate change”, "non-financial risks", "Ethics and anti-corruption ", "Human Rights at
Work" and "Occupational Safety and Health" stand out as relevant in the ACCIONA's

main businesses.

Based on this materiality analysis, ACCIONA exhaustively reports on its commitments,
practices and performance each year in the Annual Sustainability Report, which is
published on the corporate website (http://www.acciona.com).

As required by Royal Decree-Law 18/2017 on non-financial information and diversity,
and in accordance with Directive 2014/95/EU, relevant information relating to
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environmental and social issues is provided below, as well as information regarding staff,
respect for human rights and the fight against corruption and bribery?.

Environmental issues

ACCIONA has four specific policies adopted by the Board of Directors’ Sustainability
Committee, which apply to all business lines and countries in which the company
operates: Environmental Policy, Climate Change Policy, Water Policy and Biodiversity
Policy.

In addition, the Code of Conduct includes the duty of ACCIONA and all its staff to know
and adopt the Environmental Policy, and to strive to minimise the environmental impact
of their activities.

ACCIONA'’s environmental management model is based on the principles of improving
environmental performance, and it establishes a common action framework for all
company divisions. This model involves considering environmental aspects from the
perspective of an entire life cycle, as well as the identification of risks and opportunities
to ensure improvement and the planned results. Environmental objectives are established
in all business lines, taking as a reference the objectives included in the SMP and
management systems.

The company’s environmental management systems are certified under various
international standards. Those certified under ISO 14001 for example are 100 % of the
company’s certifiable installed MW, 100 % of the marketing and sale of renewable
energy with guarantees of origin accredited by the CNMV, 100 % of the construction
activity in several countries (Spain, Chile, Mexico, Canada, Poland, Australia, etc.),
among other ACCIONA activities. Energy management systems are also certified
according to ISO 50001:2011, as well as all activities carried out by ACCIONA Agua in
12 of its centres for example, in addition to EMAS certifications for the water distribution
network centres of ATLL, among others. Likewise, the Wineries for Climate Protection
certification has been renewed at Bodegas Vifia Mayor.

Environmental risk management is carried out by applying a procedural’ methodology,
with which the risks are identified, assessed, prioritised and communicated to the
decision-making bodies, as well as the potential environmental events that could impact
the company and its centres, and the events generated by the company and its centres
which in turn could impact on the environment, in order to establish action policies and
tolerance thresholds. The focus is on the risks that ACCIONA’s activities pose to the
environment, the risks associated with climate change and those associated with water
resources. In addition, the company has procedural mechanisms to manage risks, with the
aim of addressing risks that have turned into environmental crises.

e In 2017, ACCIONA carried out a top-down analysis of the environmental risks
associated with climate change, following the Intergovernmental Panel on
Climate Change (IPCC) methodology. Further work has also been done on the
identification and assessment of risk scenarios that could specifically impact

2 Issues relating to the diversity of the Board of Directors are included in ACCIONA’s 2017 Annual Corporate
Governance Report. o

)Corporale Standards on Environmental Risk Management an .lg;! Res;;oﬁ;ibilily:
Climate Change and Water Resources). . g .
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ACCIONA’s centres, activities and locations. The analysis carried out has
obtained a total of 87 climate risk scenarios, of which 13% correspond to
significant risk scenarios.

e In addition, a top-down analysis of risks and opportunities associated with water
resources was carried out, which was able to identify 77 risk scenarios, 13% of
which are significant risk scenarios.

e With regard to the risks that ACCIONA’s activities pose to the environment, 115
risk scenarios have been analysed and evaluated within the scope of
environmental risk standards.

ACCIONA has made a commitment to be a carbon neutral company and therefore, all
emissions generated since 2016 that could not be reduced, are compensated through
certified carbon credits. Thanks to ACCIONA’s electricity generation activities being
100% from renewable sources, ACCIONA has avoided the emission of more than 14
million tonnes of CO2.

With the aim of contributing to the mitigation of climate change, the company has
developed plans and programmes to reduce energy consumption and emissions of
greenhouse gases, with a focus on energy efficiency and the use of renewable energy. In
2017, more than 200 centres have consumed energy from 100% renewable energy
sources4.

Regarding water management, in 2017, ACCIONA’s water footprint has generated a
positive impact on the planet. In addition, plans to monitor and reduce water
consumption4 have been developed in production centres with intensive use of water
resources.

ACCIONA is committed to driving the transition towards a circular economy. In 2017,
progress has been made in setting and achieving specific annual goals within the
framework of its Waste Management Plan 2016-2020 promoting a circular economy,
which at the group level sets a target to recover 50% of the waste generated in 2020, and
to reduce the total amount of waste generated and not recovered by 10% when compared
to 2015. During 2017, the company has recovered approximately 40% of the waste
generated4.

Finally, the new life cycle analyses undertaken during 2017 has been incorporated into
the company’s portfolio, reaching a total of 50 analyses corresponding to 19 ACCIONA
Construccion, ACCIONA Agua, ACCIONA Service, ACCIONA Energia and Bodegas
Palacio 1894 Group projects, in which the standardised environmental impacts of various
company products and services are exposed.

ACCIONA has a total of 187 facilities that are located completely or partially in protected
areas or non-protected areas with high biodiversity values, occupying around 8,000
hectares. The company has identified and assessed the most significant impacts for each
of the facilities at these locations, taking into account the affected species, the surface

4 The consolidated data on emissions, energy consumption, water consumption, waste, among others, are published
in the Sustainability Report, after the calculations were verified by an external entity (ongoing at the date the
Management Report was finalised).
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area of the facility, the duration of the impacts and their reversibility or irreversibility. In
2017, the main impacts have been on the water environment (43 %), fauna (23 %),
vegetation (15 %) and to a lesser extent on the atmosphere, soil, landscape and habitat.
ACCIONA has protected and restored more than 120 hectares in the surroundings of its
projects. In addition, the company has a Biodiversity Compensation and Improvement
Programme which consists in designing and implementing voluntary initiatives that go
beyond the administrative environmental requirements.

On the other hand, and aiming to extend its environmental commitment to its suppliers,
ACCIONA has calculated the greenhouse gas emissions of 100 % of its supply chain for
the fourth consecutive year, and the water consumption of 100 % of the suppliers for the
third consecutive year, which makes it possible to carry out an analysis by country,
procurement sector and division.

Social 1ssues and issues related to staff

ACCIONA has a specific Human Resources and Occupational Health and Safety Policy
which reflects the company's commitment to ensure the respect for human rights and the
principles governed by the International Labour Organisation, as well as its support for
the objectives of the Seoul Declaration on Safety and Health at Work. In addition,
Acciona’s Code of Conduct sets conduct standards regarding respect for people, equality
and safety and health at work, among others.

With a workforce of 37,403 employees of 111 nationalities, 41 % being of non-Spanish
nationality, ACCIONA considers it essential to attract and retain the best talent to
compete in a global market and achieve the strategic goals that are pursued. Human
capital management at ACCIONA is designed based on the definition of the human
resources strategy and each year it is readjusted to the new business requirements.

For the period 2018-2020, the company sets as its main priority the need to put the
employees at the centre of its strategy, with five basic management pillars. During 2017,
the selection methodology has been revised, incorporating new tests that allow the
capabilities that are required to be detected in a more effective way, and it has defined an
internal mobility control panel. In the same way, a new Performance Management Model
has been developed formed by four gears, launched through the first two phrases: Target
Setting, Performance Status, My Development and Pay Decisions.

In addition, the company considers training to be an essential part for the professional
development of individuals and therefore, in 2017, has carried out various initiatives such
as the M3 Plus manager training, the TMAX+ programme for technicians, the new
programme on Digital Skills and the new ACCIONA Sustainability Course, among
others.

In 2017, voluntary rotation has decreased compared to the previous year to 3.7, the total
rotation having increased from 6.59 in 2016 to 7.6 this year.

At ACCIONA, nearly all employees are covered by collective labour regulations in
different countries (in certain countries, and due to commissioning reasons or legal
framework reasons, there may be a minimum number of workers who are not covered, in

any case this is less than 1% of the total sta™ G
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Depending on the country and the performed activity, the occupational and social risks
associated with the projects carried out by the company are different: the most labour-
intensive businesses increase the risk associated with personnel management. Also, the
protection of minorities stands out in certain countrics (BBEEE requirements in South
Africa, First Nations in Canada, Indigenous Peoples in Australia), as well as the
promotion of equality (Europe, Canada, etc.), and the protection of immigrant groups
(Middle East and Asia). The management of these risks at ACCIONA involves aligning
the overall processes and objectives of diversity and socially responsible recruitment with
the development of specific plans and procedures where required. To do this, external
audit processes on working conditions are established in certain high-risk situations, as is
the case of the United Arab Emirates.

In order to ensure these objectives are met, the results obtained in the field of equality and
socially responsible recruitment are reported on a monthly basis. These results are
analysed by each business and country division in order to determine the action and/or
correction plans required to ensure the objectives are met.

In the specific case of Spain, all activity sectors are covered by Equality Plans in
accordance with Organic Law 3/2007 for effective gender equality between women and
men, signed with the most representative labour unions, in which the results are reported
and assessed jointly every six months. Similar mechanisms are implemented in countries
such as Australia, Mexico and Canada.

Regarding the gender diversity, in 2017, 30% of the total staff are women, occupying
12.8% of the total number of Director positions and 19.8% of management positions.
With regards to the employability of people with disabilities, 3.52% of the equivalent
employment of the total workforce in Spain has been reached.

In matters regarding occupational safety and health, ACCIONA has action plans and
specific objectives for promoting the health of its employees and collaborators and
preventing occupational risks. Within the occupational risk management system, the
company makes a continuous effort to assess the specific risks associated with each
actrvity (e.g., risks associated with occupational diseases, construction works, machinery,
work at height, electrical contacts, etc.).

It should be noted that the majority of ACCIONA’s businesses are certified according to
the OHSAS 18001 standard (100% of ACCIONA Energy, 97% of ACCIONA
Infrastructure, 100% Corporate, 100% ACCIONA Real Estate and 100% Bestinver). In
addition, ACCIONA Infrastructure has other local voluntary certifications, such as the
COR in Canada and the OFSC Federal Safety in Australia.

The Prevention Committee holds a meeting twice a year, made up of the OHS Managers
from ACCIONA’s different divisions and business lines and the human resources
department; the aim is to follow up on the projects that are ongoing and their level of
development, as well as the occupational accidents in the period.

- Page222 -



TRANSLATION

In the last such Committee, the data on accidents occurred on 2017 was analysed and the
investigations into the causes and corrective measures of fatal accidents both of
employees and subcontracted employees were reviewed. >

The company carries out different preventive actions such as the Health and Welfare Plan,
the Road Safety Plan, actions in the field of education in all divisions, raising awareness
and disseminating information relating to safety, among others. Some of the infrastructure
division’s initiatives should be noted, for example, the Leader Project which establishes
leadership habits in OHS, as well as the Behaviour Based Safety for You (BBS4U)
project, the aim of which is to control and prevent risks related to worker’s behaviour
from occurring. At ACCIONA Energia, the Think Safe programme has been
implemented to improve the preventive culture of all the employees of the division, by
taking part in awareness meetings.

ACCIONA extends its culture and commitment to health and safety through its entire
supply chain, involving contractors or subcontractors in preventive and training activities,
and monitoring the accident rate statistics of contractors and subcontractors. In addition,
specific initiatives have been developed, such as for example, the Voluntary Protection
Programme for companies collaborating with ACCIONA Infrastructuras, so that these
companies improve the occupational risk prevention standards and can be certified with
a seal of approval which qualifies them as "safe companies". The implementation of this
programme has resulted in 39 improvement plans in 2017.

Social issues related to local communities

ACCIONA's Sustainability Policy, approved by the Board of Directors’ Sustainability
Committee in 2013, includes the company's commitment to create value for the
communities where it operates, as well as to maintain regular and fluid dialogue with its
interest groups. This commitment to the interests of local communities is also
incorporated into the Code of Conduct. In addition, by the end of 2017, work has been
done on developing a specific relational policy with interest groups which will be adopted
in 2018.

The company has developed its own methodology for Social Impact Management (SIM),
to analyse and address the social consequences of the projects on people, both negative
and positive. This methodology is being implemented through a specific corporate
procedure and is applicable to construction, operation and service projects of ACCIONA
Infrastructure and ACCIONA Energy. The Social Impact Management methodology
includes the following phases:

e Characterisation of the social risk: study of the degree of social risk of the project
through the characterisation of the social risk starting at the design and bid phase.

e Social evaluation of the project: analysis of the socio-demographic characteristics
of the populations in the area of influence of the project, identification and
assessment of the positive or negative social impacts, and pre|
action proposal.

5 Accident rates are published in the Sustainability Report, after the calculations were verified by an
external entity (ongoing at the date the Management Report was finalised). '

- Page223 -



TRANSLATION

e Communication and dialogue with communities: depending on the type of project,
means of communicating are established with local communities and other
interest groups to inform them of the project, its main impacts, and the social
measures to be carried out.

e Implementation and monitoring of the measures: implementation of the measures
identified to avoid and mitigate negative social impacts, as well as to strengthen
the positive impacts.

The possible negative impacts that the SIM methodology focuses on are, among others:
those affecting basic services and supplies to the communities; problems of road safety
in urban environments; alteration of basic rights such as education and health; and
changes in housing prices. On the other hand, the positive impacts that are generated when
projects are developed are the recruitment of local staff, improvement of access to traffic
routes and stimulating the local economy, among others, are highlighted.

With regards to the communications and dialogue with local communities, ACCIONA
Energy, in addition to the usual channels within the projects, has a form on its website
through which any person or group affected by the projects can raise a query and/or
suggestion. ACCIONA Infraestructuras establishes a suggestions and complaints
channels for projects in which the client requires it or allows it.

During 2017, the SIM methodology has been implemented in a total of 100 ACCIONA
projects (a 22% increase compared to 2016) in 33 countries (compared to 23 in the
previous year), 13 projects belong to ACCIONA Energy and 87 belonging to ACCIONA
Infraestructuras (Construction, Water, Industrial and Services).

In addition, social impact management has been carried out in 12 projects of the
Infrastructure division that have been classified as relevant, i.e. projects which although
are not within the scope of the methodology, are considered as strategic for the business.

The projects involved are diverse: construction of linear infrastructures and buildings,
construction and operation of water treatment plants, and construction and operation of
wind farms and photovoltaic plants, among others. For example, in 2017, the social
impacts have been managed on the construction of the Quito Metro (Ecuador), a water
treatment plant in Metesusto (Colombia), a solar thermal plant in Kathu (South Africa),
a wind farm in Bannur (India), the El Romero Solar photovoltaic plant (Chile), etc.

The main social measures implemented to mitigate negative impacts and enhance the
positive impacts in 2017 have been information campaigns about the project,
rehabilitation and improvement of areas surrounding the projects, professional training
for project workers, as well as environmental awareness-raising and social actions,
education and health campaigns for schools, collaboration agreements to activate the local
economy, among others.

As a novelty, in 2017, 9 external audits have been carried out, 2 on Energy projects and

7 on Infrastructure projects in order to assess the degree of implementation of the SIM
methodology.
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Issues related to human rights

As set out in the Code of Conduct, the Human Rights Policy, and the Human Resources
and Occupational Health and Safety Policy approved by the Board of Directors,
ACCIONA is committed to respecting the human rights and public freedoms recognised
in the Universal Declaration of Human Rights of the United Nations; ACCIONA assumes
the Declaration on Fundamental Principles and Rights at Work, the ILO Agreements, the
OECD's Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises and the United Nations Global
Compact, among others, as basic conduct guidelines. Any alleged breach or violation of
the conducts contained in the Code of Conduct, including human rights issues, can be
communicated through the company’s Ethical Channel.

The company developed a human rights risk diagnosis, taking the UN’s Guiding
Principles on Business and Human Rights as a frame of reference. During 2017, the
human rights risk categories have been reviewed and the risks associated in the countries
in which the company carries out its activities have been analysed. It was concluded that
52 % of the countries in which ACCIONA operates have a severe or very severe risk of
violating human rights, according to Maplecroft.

The human rights risks analysed include freedom of opinion and expression, rights of
minorities, rights of indigenous people, women and girls, rights to basic services,
violations by hired security forces, migrant workers' rights, working conditions, health
and safety, forced labour and child labour.

Taking the standards of the Danish Institute for Human Rights and the United Nations
Global Compact as a reference, with regard to the control measures identitied based on
the analysis of the company’s procedures and policies, it was concluded that 43% are
completed covered, 52% are partly covered, 3% have insufficient coverage and it does
not apply to 2%.

On the other hand, in relation to the rights of local and work communities that may be
affected by ACCIONA’s activities, the Social Impact Management (SIM) methodology
has been used to study possible infringements of human rights that a particular project or
service could inflict on communities and other interest groups, among other factors. In
addition, it evaluates the social impacts in terms of severity if significant changes are
incurred in the social, economic or cultural structure of a certain population or group of
employees, or if human rights are affected. In this case, the SIM methodology requires
prevention and mitigation measures for these impacts to be established.

In 2017, 12 of the projects in which the SIM methodology has been implemented
identified possible risks of violating human rights. In all of these cases, measures have
been taken to prevent such violations from occurring.

During 2017, different educational initiatives that include human rights issues have also
been implemented. In ACCIONA’s Sustainability Course released to more than 10,000
employees from all divisions and geographical areas, training on the company’s
responsibility to respect labour and civil rights is included. In addition, ACCIONA offers
a specific course on the Code of Conduct which includes human rights within their 17
basic action guidelines. In relation to the training provided to suppliers, ACCIONA has
designed an online course on "Sustainability applied to your company" in collaboration

with the Spanish Network for the United Na ~includes a
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specific module on human rights and social action. It is expected that a specific course on
human rights for company employees will be developed in 2018.

Issues relating to the fight against corruption and bribery

The policies established by the ACCIONA group to fight against corruption and bribery
are the following:

e Code of Conduct: establishes the values that should guide the behaviour of all
managers, directors, employees and suppliers of ACCIONA group companies.
The Code of Conduct, adopted in 2007, was revised in 2011 and again in 2016 by
the Board of Directors.

e Anti-corruption Policy: approved in 2013, establishes the ACCIONA Group’s
clear position against any corrupt or criminal act, as well as the extrapolation of
this commitment to all the people that make up the group.

e Anti-corruption Action Standards: approved by the Board of Directors in January
2016, provide compliance guidelines to prevent misconduct which are mandatory
for all employees and parties associated with ACCIONA (including agents,
intermediaries, advisers, consultants and suppliers).

e Corporate Standard on donations and non-commercial sponsorships: approved in
2017, developed from the anti-corruption standards.

The Compliance Management department, created in 2015 and reporting directly to the
Executive Presidency and to the Board of Directors’ Audit Committee, supervises the
respect for and the effectiveness of the procedures, controls and internal commitments
established to ensure compliance with voluntary and regulatory obligations regarding
ethical, organisational, environmental and social matters, and the identification,
prevention and mitigation of associated risks.

The ACCIONA Group maintains relations with Public Administrations and participates
in tender processes for infrastructure in different countries when carrying out its activities,
and therefore the risks of public corruption are analysed in each project, evaluating the
country and importance of the project.

ACCIONA has adopted and implemented a Crime Prevention and Anti-Corruption Model
which has the following features:

e The model is arranged according to ACCIONA group’s organisational structure,
and it specifies the criminal risks and their corresponding controls for each
department of the group in separate sections.

¢ Internal controls are associated to each identified risk which mitigate or, at any
rate, decrease the chances of each criminal risk occurring.

e The model documents these internal controls, with a series of attributes that
characterise them which include the area or administration responsible for
implementing the control, and a specific description of the control activity.
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¢ [naddition, the model includes controls from ACCIONA group’s Internal Control
over Financial Reporting Systems (ICoFRS) which are suitable for preventing
certain offences from being committed.

The crime prevention model established for Spain and adapted to local legislative
requirements as applicable is progressively being implanted to the other countries in
which the group’s activities are carried out.

In addition, control measures have been implemented to prevent or identify potential
cases of corruption. The most important controls are reviewed periodically by the
assigned managers. The following actions, among others, are highlighted.

The group has implemented an Ethical channel since 2007 which allows others to
communicate any irregular behaviour related to accounting, monitoring, auditing or any
breach or violation of the conducts contained in the Code and internal standards. The
internal standards impose an obligation to let the company know immediately of any
potential irregularities or breaches of the code that employees might become aware of, as
well as to report any fact, act, conduct or behaviour that is contrary to the Anti-Corruption
Standards.

The Code of Conduct Committee ensures that complaints regarding any possible breaches
are analysed thoroughly, always guaranteeing the confidentiality of the complaints, as
well as ensuring that there is no retaliation of any kind against those who make the
complaints in good faith and respecting, in any case, the people allegedly involved.

In 2017, 45 communications were received through the Ethical Channel compared to 26
in 2016. Specific instructions were carried out for 51% of the communications received,
involving an external instructor in many cases. The other 49 % were closed without any
instruction, since they were not related to the Code of Conduct (non-financial anonymous
complaints that were merely about labour, organisational or functional issues) without
prejudice to the fact that a preliminary investigation was conducted for the majority of
the archived files without a specific instructor being assigned.

The Code of Conduct, the Corporate Policies, and the Anti-Corruption Standards have
been communicated to the employees and published on the company's intranet and web
page. In addition, employees must mandatorily read and accept the Code of Conduct and
the Anti-Corruption Standards

In 2017, the Compliance Management department published relevant information on anti-
corruption on the intranet page, such as examples of reasonable gifts following the
standards of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, instructions regarding contracts with
agents and intermediaries, and clauses that must be contained in the agreements, the
importance of the Ethical Channel in order to communicating irregularities, and a
summary of their activities.

Likewise, two training activities were held in 2017. On the one hand, 1,400 executives
and managers were trained in an Anti-Corruption Course. On the other hand, 6,213
employees were trained in a course on the Code of Conduct, which is available to all
employees in 7 languages.
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Withregard to due diligence on the knowledge of third parties, the group has implemented
a tool that allows an initial analysis to be carried out on the third parties that ACCIONA
will/or aims to have a commercial/partnership relationship with, and which improves the
risks management in projects. At the end of 2017, more than 170 third parties were
evaluated.

Supply Chain: environmental, social, labour, human rights and anti-corruption issues.

ACCIONA works to extend sustainability to its supply chain and promotes the adoption
of the values contained in its Code of Conduct among its suppliers and contractors. In
addition, this Code sets specific guidelines on relations with suppliers. Similarly, the
Ethical Principles for Suppliers, Contractors and Partners which were approved in 2011
cover aspects regarding transparency and ethics, human and social rights, health and
safety, and quality and the environment. In addition, the company has established
minimum standards in the field of ethics and integrity, human rights and corporate
responsibility, environment, safety and health, among others, contained in the No Go
Policies.

The main tool used for supply chain management at ACCIONA is PROCUR-e, the
Supplier Portal and Tender Tool, in which increasingly detailed controls are established
as the criticality increases. All suppliers registered are required to accept the Supplier’s
Self-Declaration of Compliance document, which reflects ACCIONA’s commitment
with international standards, the Code of Conduct, Ethical Principles for suppliers, and
minimum standards in the field of integrity, environment and quality. This requirement
has already been formally accepted by more than 23,500 suppliers.

Any supplier that submits an offer through PROCUR-e, must complete the self-
assessment questionnaire regarding corporate responsibility (CR) and sustainability; from
this moment on the supplier forms part of the Supplier Risk Map which monitors and
updates the level of risk on a daily basis which is based on 10 variables including
Integrity, Country Risk, CR and Sustainability (focussing on Human Rights), Health and
Safety, the Environment, Assessment, etc. By the end of 2017, more than 16,700 suppliers
have a Risk Map.

The following control is established for critical suppliers during the Evaluation and
Approval Process, through which the criticality regarding the level of Integrity, country
risk, CR, sustainability, OHS risk, environmental risk, legal documentation and
assessment are reviewed. By the end of 2017, ACCIONA has 3,850 approved suppliers.
Within the approval process, 296 auditing process have been carried out on suppliers, 47
of them on suppliers from risk countries, in order to ensure the non-infringement of
human rights in those areas, among other aspects. 88.46 % suppliers on ACCIONA sites
in risk countries have been audited.

Focus has been on issues relating to the fight against corruption and bribery, and in 2017,
the Integrity variable has been monitored for 5,947 suppliers.

ACCIONA offers its suppliers and contractors training programmes in subjects such as

the Code of Conduct, sustainability, human rights, prevention of discrimination, among
others.
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Foreseeable Evolution

In 2017, the upturn in activity that began in mid-2016 was confirmed. This growth, which
occurred surprisingly in Europe and Asia, led to an increase in the global product which
was estimated at 3.7% over the past year, half a point higher than what was projected in
2016 for the end of 2017.

This growth force, the high confidence levels, and the US fiscal reform are the main
factors that have led to the global growth expectations being revised, placing them at
3.9% per year for 2018 and 2019. There are a number of risks that threaten this growth,
although these seem to be balanced. The possible correction of financial markets is
highlighted, as a result of the increase in the value of assets over the past few years with
very small volatilities, in addition to some isolating measures, the geopolitical tension in
some parts of the globe, and the political uncertainty in certain countries.

[t can be concluded that the upward revision of the global outlook is the result of advanced
economies, expecting a growth of 2.3% and 2.2% for 2018 and 2019, respectively. This
revision reflects the expectation that the acceleration of demand and investment will be
maintained, which are the result of the favourable financial conditions and the
improvement in the confidence level.

In addition, as noted, it is expected that the tax reform in the United States is a temporary
boost in the growth of the United States, which was corrected by the IMF in its latest
growth forecasts published in January 2018 to 2.7% in 2018 and 2.5% in 2019, as well as
the growth of its trading partners, especially Mexico and Canada. Although, it should be
noted that even if this stimulus will boost growth in the coming years, the forecasts then
reduce for a few years from 2022.

With regards to the euro zone, the forecasts have also been revised upwards, particularly
those of Italy, Germany and Holland, thanks to the increase in the internal and external
debt. The forecasts are 2.2% for 2018 and 2% for 2019.

With regards to Spain, it should be noted that the growth expected by the end of 2017 will
be far greater than the potential, standing at 3.1%. However, political uncertainty due to
the Catalonia situation and its effect on the demand and confidence have led to the growth
expectations for 2018 to be revised downwards, which have changed from the initially
estimated 2.5% to the current 2.4%, and to 2.1% in 2019. In this way, the Spain forecast
is the only one of the large economies that has been reduced for 2018. However, it remains
to be the economy with the highest growth rate among the major European economies as
a result of the reforms adopted in the past and the optimism of the macro-economic
situation in Europe.

The growth forecasts in other advanced economies have also been revised upwards,
especially as a result of the higher growth in the advanced economies of Asia. This is due
to the fact that these economies are more susceptible to changes in the investment and
international trade prospects, as is the case with Japan, whose growth expectations have
been revised upwards for 2018 and 2019 and are set at 1.2% and 0.9%, respectively.

The growth of the economies in emerging markets is expected to be 4.9% in 2018 and
5% in 2019, although there is a wide dispersion between the development of each
economy. The Asian region of emerging econnmiec nradnces move-than-halfofthe global
O L LD '
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growth and will grow by around 6.5% in 2018 and 6.6% in 2019, at the same rate as in
2017. It is expected that the growth in India will increase to 7.4% in 2018 and to 7.8% in
2019, while in China the growth projections moderate its growth gradually and it is
estimated to be at 6.6% and 6.4% for 2018 and 2019, respectively.

The emerging economies of Europe enjoy relaxed financial conditions and an increase of
exports to the euro zone, which has led to an upward revision of its growth, especially in
Poland and Turkey.

In Latin America, the forecasts show that the recovery will be strengthened, and the
growth has been revised upwards, noting that it will be at 1.9% in 2018 and 2.6% in 2019.
This upward revision occurs as a result of the strengthening of Brazil’s recovery, of the
new perspectives of Mexico as a result of the tax reform in the United States, and the
effect of the price increase of raw materials and the easing of financial conditions in some
raw material exporting countries. On the other hand, the Venezuelan economy has been
revised downward, which is loosely offset by upward revisions in the remaining Latin
American countries.

The revision of generalised growth caused the growth expectation of Russia to be revised
slightly upward to 1.7% in 2018 and 1.5% in 2019, which has led to an increase in the
growth expectations of the Commonwealth of Independent States, exceeding 2% in both
years.

Average period of payment to suppliers and Corporate Social Responsibility

To the effects of the provisions in article 262.1 of Royal Legislative Decree 1/2010, of 2
July, whereby the consolidated text of the Capital Companies Act is approved, the
information on the average period for payment to suppliers is contained in Note 36 to the
financial statements. In addition, and in conformity with recommendation 55 of the Code
of Good Governance of Listed Companies, it is hereby indicated that the aspects related
to Corporate Social Responsibility are discussed in the Sustainability Report.

Annual Corporate Governance Report

The Annual Corporate Governance Report is available in its entirety on the web site of
the National Securities Market Commission (www.cnmv.es) and on the Company’s web
page (www.acciona.es).

In addition, the Annual Corporate Governance Report will be notified to the National
Securities Market Commission as a Material Event.
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